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Annual Report 2023-24

It is with great privilege and pride that I address you today as we convene for our 20th Annual General MeeƟng of JHS Svendgaard 
Laboratories Limited. This gathering marks a significant milestone in our journey together.

I extend my hearƞelt graƟtude to each and every one of you, our dedicated employees, supporƟve shareholders, and valued 
stakeholders. Your unwavering commitment and hard work have been instrumental in our conƟnued success.

In the fiscal year 2023-24, despite challenging market condiƟons, we have strengthened our posiƟon as a leading manufacturer of oral 
care products. We are delighted to report substanƟal growth in both revenue and market share. Notably, we expanded our private label 
business, welcoming new clients like Mascot InternaƟonal Pvt. Ltd (Disney) while nurturing exisƟng relaƟonships.

I am thrilled to announce that our fourth-quarter sales for FY 23-24 have reached a milestone of Rs. 21.6 crores. This achievement 
underscores our dedicaƟon to sustainable growth and profitability, ensuring mutual benefits for all stakeholders.

Furthermore, the registraƟon of our products in the CSD army canteen has significantly enhanced our business porƞolio. Our strategic 
focus on insƟtuƟonal sales, coupled with prudent brand management, conƟnues to yield posiƟve results.

Our commitment to innovaƟon remains steadfast, with the introducƟon of 8 new products in the CPC category to meet evolving 
consumer needs. Despite the challenges, we have achieved a commendable revenue of Rs. 70.79 crores for FY 2023-2024.

In the compeƟƟve oral care industry, we prioriƟze innovaƟon, quality, and customer saƟsfacƟon. Our goal is not just to maintain 
leadership but to redefine industry standards and exceed consumer expectaƟons.

InternaƟonally, our efforts to expand exports to key markets such as the Italy, Nepal, Russia, USA and UAE are progressing posiƟvely. We 
have secured a significant opportunity with a leading US-based company, marking a pivotal step towards enhancing our global footprint.

Looking ahead, we are commiƩed to sustaining momentum through investments in research and development, product innovaƟon, and 
market diversificaƟon. By strengthening relaƟonships and broadening our client base, we aim to offer unparalleled value and service.

In closing, I extend profound graƟtude to our shareholders, customers, partners, and stakeholders for your steadfast support. Together, 
we have built a legacy of excellence, and together, we will conƟnue to script our success story.

Warm regards,

Nikhil Nanda

DEAR ESTEEMED STAKEHOLDERS,
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JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Forward looking statement 
Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condi�on and Results of Opera�ons of the Company 
describing the Company's objec�ves, expecta�ons or predic�ons 
may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable 
securi�es laws and regula�ons. Forward looking statements are 
based on certain assump�ons and expecta�ons of future events.
The Company cannot guarantee that these assump�ons and 
expecta�ons are accurate or will be realized. The Company 
assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise 
forward looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent 
developments, informa�on or events. Actual results may differ 
materially from those expressed in the statement. Important 
factors that could influence the Company's opera�ons include 
changes in government regula�ons, tax laws, economic 
developments within the country and such other factors globally. 
The financial statements are prepared under historical cost 
conven�on, on accrual basis of accoun�ng, and in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and 
comply with the Accoun�ng Standards. The management of JHS 
Svendgaard Laboratories Limited has used es�mates and 
judgments rela�ng to the financial statements on a prudent and 
reasonable basis, in order that the financial statements, reflect in 
a true and fair manner, the state of affairs and profit for the year. 
The following discussions on our financial condi�on and result of 
opera�ons should be read together with our audited 
consolidated financial statements and the notes to these 
statements included in the annual report. Unless otherwise 
specified or the context otherwise requires, all references herein 
to “we”, “us”, “our”, “the Company”, ”JHS”, “JHS Svendgaard” are 
to JHS Svendgaard & Laboratories Ltd.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 
Global Industry
The global oral care industry is set to experience robust growth in 
2024, driven by increasing consumer awareness about oral 
hygiene and the introducƟon of innovaƟve products. According 
to Mordor Intelligence, the market is projected to register a 
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 6.32% during the 
forecast period from 2024 to 2029. Key players such as Colgate-
Palmolive, Procter & Gamble, Unilever, and GlaxoSmithKline are 
leading the market, focusing on technological advancements and 
product innovaƟons to cater to the evolving consumer demands. 
The market's growth is also fuelled by the rising prevalence of 
dental diseases, which necessitates the use of effecƟve oral care 
products.
Source: hƩps://www.mordorintelligence.com/industry-
reports/oral-care-market
The Asia-Pacific region conƟnues to dominate the global oral care 
market, holding the largest market share in 2024. This region's 
dominance is aƩributed to the substanƟal elderly populaƟon in 
countries like India, Japan, and China, which leads to high 
consumpƟon of oral care products. The Asia-Pacific oral care 

market was valued at USD 18.78 billion in 2023 and is expected to 
reach USD 33.12 billion by 2033, growing at a CAGR of 5.8% from 
2024 to 2033. The increasing disposable incomes and improved 
standards of living in these regions further boost market growth. 
AddiƟonally, the North American market is expected to be the 
fastest-growing segment, with a CAGR of 6.2% from 2024 to 
2033, driven by the rising prevalence of oral disorders and a 
growing preference for herbal toothpaste products.
Source: hƩps://www.precedenceresearch.com/oral-care-
market
Technological innovaƟons and product advancements are 
significant drivers of the global oral care market in 2024. 
Companies are focusing on developing user-friendly and 
technologically advanced products such as powered 
toothbrushes and recyclable toothpaste tubes. For instance, 
Procter & Gamble's Crest, Oral-B, and Blend-a-med brands 
introduced the first-ever recyclable high-density polyethylene 
toothpaste tubes in Europe and North America in late 2020. 
These innovaƟons not only cater to the growing consumer 
demand for sustainable products but also enhance the overall 
oral hygiene experience. The introducƟon of smart toothbrushes 
and personalized oral care soluƟons is also reshaping consumer 
habits and driving market growth.
Source: hƩps://finance.yahoo.com/news/oral-care-market-size-
share-143000372.html

Indian Industry
India's oral care market was valued at $641 Million in 2022 and is 
esƟmated to expand at a CAGR of 9.2% from 2022 to 2030 and 
will reach $1295 Million in 2030. The oral care market in India is a 
large and rapidly growing market, driven by factors such as 
increasing awareness of oral hygiene, rising disposable incomes, 
and the growing prevalence of dental diseases. The toothpaste 
segment is the largest segment of the oral care market in India, 
accounƟng for more than 60% of the total market share. The 
toothbrush segment is the second-largest segment, followed by 
mouthwash and dental floss. Some key players in this market are 
Dabur India, Patanjali Ayurved, Colgate-Palmolive, Himalaya 
Wellness, Vicco Laboratories, Procter & Gamble, Baidyanath 
Ayurveda, and Unilever.
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In India, approximately 85% to 90% of adults and 60 to 80% of 
children have dental caviƟes. Furthermore, approximately 30% 
of children have misaligned jaws and teeth. More than half of 
Indians with dental health problems seek treatment or advice 
from someone other than denƟsts.

Market Growth Drivers
The growing awareness of the importance of oral hygiene and 
dental health is driving demand for oral care products in India. 
According to a survey by the Indian Dental AssociaƟon, only 50% 
of the Indian populaƟon brushes their teeth twice a day. This 
presents a significant opportunity for companies in the oral care 
market to increase their customer base. The increasing 
disposable incomes of the Indian middle class are driving 
demand for premium oral care products. According to the World 
Bank, India's per capita income increased from $1,670 in 2010 to 
$2,020 in 2020. This has led to a growing demand for higher-
quality oral care products and services. The growing prevalence 
of dental diseases in India, such as tooth decay and gum disease, 
is driving demand for oral care products and services.

According to a report by the Indian Council of Medical Research, 
dental diseases affect more than 80% of the Indian populaƟon. 
The increasing urbanizaƟon of India is also driving demand for 
oral care products and services. According to the United NaƟons, 
the urban populaƟon in India is expected to grow from 34% in 
2018 to 56% by 2050. Urban areas have higher levels of 
awareness of oral hygiene and access to dental services, driving 
demand for oral care products and services. The Indian 
government has launched several iniƟaƟves to promote oral 
hygiene and improve access to dental care. For example, the 
NaƟonal Oral Health Program was launched in 2014 to improve 
the oral health of the Indian populaƟon. Such iniƟaƟves are 
expected to drive demand for oral care products and services.

Source: hƩps://www.insights10.com/report/india-oral-care-
market-analysis/

About JHS Svendgaard Laboratories limited
Started as a small-scale enterprise in August 1997, Sunehari 
Svendgaard Laboratories Limited moved at a brisk pace and was 
incorporated as JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited on October 
8, 2004. By April 2005 the Company took over businesses from 
Sunehari Svendgaard Laboratories Limited, Sunehari Oral Care 
and Jai Hanuman Exports. Keeping up with the pace it reached 
new heights on October 21, 2006 when it was listed at BSE and 
NSE of India Limited at a price of Rs. 58.00.

StarƟng with manufacturing of only Toothbrushes the Company 
widened its scope to Toothpastes, Mouthwash and Denture 
Tablets and today is amongst leading oral care product 
manufacturers and exporters. The Company offers Contract 
Manufacturing Partnership to well-known domesƟc and 
internaƟonal brands in India and internaƟonal market. Some of 
the prominent brands with whom the Company has been 
associated with during its journey includes Amway India 
Enterprises Pvt. Ltd., Dabur India Limited, Patanjali Ayurved 
Limited, Hindustan Unilever Limited, Me N Moms Pvt. Ltd., 
VesƟge MarkeƟng Pvt. Ltd., Leeford, Reliance Retail Limited, 
Medplus, Vanesa, Spencer and many more recognized brands.  

MulƟple producƟon faciliƟes of the Company are in Kala-Amb, 
Himachal Pradesh. The Company has over 60 highly qualified 
managers, engineers, officers and supervisors to manage and 
maintain the plants effecƟvely. The Company's belief in Human 
Resource Development ensures the presence of all statutory 
welfare, recreaƟonal and emergency services within the plant.

JHS team is a perfect blend of experienced professionals from 
technical, commercial and other fields. This combined with the 
Company's vision ensures in manufacturing of high-quality 
toothbrushes using the best raw materials and equipment from 
around the world. JHS has grown at a rapid pace to become one of 
the top Indian exporters and a leading supplier to MNC 
customers in the Indian market.

JHS' well-established research and development department 
strives for constant innovaƟon and high-quality oral products. 
This assures that the Company is well prepared for the future 
challenges of this vast and growing field. The Company also has 
complete in house process faciliƟes from injecƟon moulding to 
bristling and packaging to ensure strict quality control. The 
presence of a fully equipped Q.C. laboratory with latest gadgets 
combined with state of the art VerƟcal & InjecƟon Moulding 
machines from Demag and CincinnaƟ, TuŌing & Trimming 
machines from Zahoransky Gmbh, Germany and Blister Packing 
Machines from Boucherie, Belgium ensures internaƟonal quality 
of products.

JHS is today a proxy for India's oral care market being India's 
largest integrated manufacturer of oral care products. JHS is a 
one-stop shop soluƟon for oral care products (toothbrushes, 
toothpastes, mouthwash, whitening gels, and denture products. 
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JHS possesses a fully integrated oral care unit to manufacture 
toothpaste and toothbrushes in the same premises, reconciling 
completely different manufacturing competencies - mechanical 
and chemical under one roof.

The Company is an ISO 9001, GMP, SMETA cerƟfied and focuses 
on both export and domesƟc market. The company has earned 
various rewards and recogniƟons, some of them are listed below:

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW –
The performance of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31st, 2024, is as follows:

 (In Lakhs)

Resources and Liquidity
As on March 31, 2024, the net worth stood at Rs. 15475.18 lakhs 
and the debt was at Rs. 355.81 lakhs. 

The cash and cash equivalents at the end of March 31, 2024 were 
Rs. 886.63 lakhs. 

Segment wise Business Performance
The Company is into manufacturing toothpaste, toothbrushes, 
Talcum etc.

Revenue share broad segments are stated below:

RISKS AND CONCERNS 
Like every business, the company faces risks, both internal and 
external, in the undertaking of its day-to-day operaƟons and in 
pursuit of its longer-term objecƟves. A detailed policy drawn up 
and dedicated risk workshops are conducted for each business 
verƟcal and key support funcƟons wherein risks are idenƟfied, 
assessed, analyzed and accepted / miƟgated to an acceptable 
level within the risk appeƟte of the organizaƟon. The risk 
registers are also reviewed from Ɵme to Ɵme. 

The Company faces the following Risks and Concerns: 

Credit Risk 
To manage its credit exposure, the company has determined a 
credit policy with credit limit requests and approval procedures. 
Company does its own research of client's financial health and 
project prospects before bidding for a project. Timely and 
rigorous process is followed up with clients for payments as per 
schedule. The company has suitably streamlined the process to 
develop a focused and aggressive receivables management 
system to ensure Ɵmely collecƟons.

Interest Rate Risk
The Company has judiciously managed the debt-equity raƟo. As 
on date, the company is relaƟvely debt free with only few vehicle 
loans and thus the Company has been able to reduce its overall 
interest cost drasƟcally.

CompeƟƟon Risk 
This risk arises from more players wanƟng a share in the same pie. 
Like in most other industries, opportunity brings with itself 
compeƟƟon. We face different levels of compeƟƟon in each 
segment, from domesƟc as well as mulƟnaƟonal companies. The 
Company has created strong differenƟators in project execuƟon, 
quality and delivery which make it resilient to compeƟƟon. 
Furthermore, the Company conƟnues to invest in technology and 
its people to remain ahead of the curve. While the company is 
conƟnuing to diversify into different product categories, a strong, 
stable client base consisƟng of large and mid-sized corporaƟons 
further helps to insulate the Company from this risk. We counter 
this risk with the quality of our infrastructure, our customer-
centric approach and our ability to innovate customer specific 
soluƟons, Ɵmely and consistent delivery, focusing on pricing and 
aggressive markeƟng strategy, disciplined project execuƟons, 
coupled with prudent financial and human resources 
management and beƩer control over costs. Thus, we do not 
expect to be significantly affected by this risk.

Input Cost Risk
The profitability and cost effecƟveness is relaƟvely less affected 
due to change in the prices of raw materials, power and other 
input costs as most of the impact is passed over to the clients. 
Some of the risks that are potenƟally significant in nature and 
need careful monitoring are Manpower costs, Power costs, 
capacity uƟlizaƟon etc.

Liability Risk 
This risk refers to the liability arising from any damage to 
equipment, life and third parƟes which may adversely affect 
business. The Company aƩempts to miƟgate this risk through 
contractual obligaƟons and insurance policies. 

Inventory Risk
This risk refers to the problems with high and low inventory. In 
case of low inventory or out of stock situaƟon customers would 

Name of the product % of total turnover of the Company 
Toothbrushes 60% 
Toothpastes  30% 
Talcum 3% 
Others 7% 
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ParƟculars  March
2023  

Sale to External Customers 189.87  83.9  

Revenue with Other OperaƟng Segment  0  0  

DepreciaƟon and AmorƟsaƟon 634.58  601.67  

Cost of Goods Sold 4282.73  5738.11  

Income Tax Expenses 0  0  

Total Assets 19,745.05  21,546.51  

Total LiabiliƟes 2,716.74  4,123.27  

 

March
2024
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easily switch to use of compeƟtor products. Contrary to the out-
of-stock situaƟon, high inventory shows that products are not 
consumed as expected.

OPPORTUNITIES
Growing awareness of maintaining high hygiene standards to 
prevent the spread of COVID-19 resulted in a spike in demand for 
personal care products, especially bar soap, liquid handwash and 
saniƟzers, during March.

MulƟnaƟonals such as Hindustan Unilever, ITC and Godrej 
Consumer Products have suspended the manufacturing of most 
product lines and enhanced the producƟon of necessiƟes, 
including hygiene products, to ensure there are no supply 
constraints. These companies are also working closely with the 
Indian government to provide price cuts for liquid soap, hand 
saniƟzers and bar soap to ensure higher access and affordability. 

Changing consumer preferences and growing Industrial base

Ÿ With ever changing consumer needs and demands, today 
consumers are looking for a complete package with good 
quality product and design. 

Ÿ With rising income and urbanizaƟon, consumer's purchasing 
power.

Ÿ Online retailers are gradually being preferred over tradiƟonal 
distributors, retailers, and pharmacies. The successful sale of 
oral care products through e-commerce has prompted 
increasing investment towards these channels by major 
market players.

Nowadays, a large number of people are suffering from various 
oral related diseases such as tooth decay, oral cancer, oral-dental 
trauma, and others. The increasing condiƟon of such diseases is 
likely to drive the demand for the oral care products. AddiƟonally, 
recent government norms regarding the ban on usage of plasƟc 
materials for manufacturing oral care products have strongly 
moƟvated the market players to develop sustainable oral care 
products, thereby providing newer opportuniƟes for the 
market's growth. 

Apart from that, people's unhealthy lifestyle and improper eaƟng 
habits are likely to generate consequences of various oral 
infecƟon problems, further resulƟng in high demand for such 
items. Further, some other major factors such as growing retail 
infrastructural faciliƟes, increasing number of dental clinics and 
hospitals, and other commercial distribuƟon channels are set to 
support the toothbrush market growth. 

On the back of rising social media endorsements and growing 
importance of oral beauty, the demand for teeth whitening 
products has considerably increased which is anƟcipated to 
expand further and thereby impacƟng the oral care products 
market posiƟvely around the globe. The increasing demand for 
improving personal care aestheƟcs and rising availability of new 
aƩracƟve products offered through constant R&D of the major 

market players is esƟmated to increase the oral care product's 
demand significantly. 

Different companies are introducing innovaƟve oral care items to 
provide effecƟve oral hygiene soluƟons to people. This factor is 
likely to aƩract consumers towards purchasing such products, 
which would drive the market in a posiƟve direcƟon. 

Source: hƩps://www.fortunebusinessinsights.com/toothbrush-
market-103880

Source: hƩps://www.researchnester.com/reports/oral-care-
products-market/1324

THREATS 

Ÿ CompeƟƟon from local and mulƟnaƟonal players seƫng up 
their inhouse manufacturing units due to higher liquidity 

Ÿ ExecuƟon risk 

Ÿ Regulatory changes 

Ÿ Input Cost risk

Ÿ AƩracƟon and retenƟon of human capital 

Ÿ Technological Advancements

Ÿ Dominance of various local and unorganized industry players.

Ÿ CompeƟƟve pricing will likely pose challenges to the major 
players in growing their oral care business. 

Ÿ High cost of premium based oral care products would limit 
consumpƟon among lower income group of people.

Source: hƩps://www.fortunebusinessinsights.com/toothbrush-
market-103880

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY 
The Company implemented proper and adequate systems of 
internal control to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and 
protected against loss from any unauthorized use or disposiƟon 
and all transacƟons are authorized, recorded and reported 
correctly. The Company also implemented effecƟve systems for 
achieving highest level of efficiency in operaƟons, to achieve 
opƟmum and effecƟve uƟlizaƟon of resources, monitoring 
thereof and the compliance with provisions all laws including the 
Companies Act, 2013, LisƟng Agreement, direcƟons issued by the 
SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India, labour laws, tax laws etc. 
It also aimed at improvement in financial management, and 
investment policy. The System ensures appropriate informaƟon 
flow to facilitate effecƟve monitoring. The internal audit system 
also ensures formaƟon and implementaƟon of corporate policies 
for financial reporƟng, accounƟng, informaƟon security, project 
appraisal, and corporate governance. The Audit CommiƩee of 
the Company also reviews the internal control system and its 
impacts on improvement of overall performance of the 
Company.

The Company has put in place internal control systems and a 
structured internal audit process vested with the task of 
safeguarding the assets of the organizaƟon and ensuring 
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reliability and accuracy of the accounƟng and other operaƟonal 
data. The internal audit department reports to the Audit 
CommiƩee of the company.

Similarly, the Company maintains a system of monthly review of 
the business as a key operaƟonal control, wherein the 
performance is reviewed and correcƟve acƟon is iniƟated on 
Ɵmely basis. The Company also have in place a capital 
expenditure control system for authorizing spend on new assets 
and projects. Accountability is established for implemenƟng the 
projects on Ɵme and within the approved budget.

The Audit CommiƩee and the Senior Management Team are 
regularly apprised of the internal audit findings and regular 
updates are provided of the acƟon taken on the internal audit 
reports. The Audit CommiƩee reviews the quarterly, half yearly 
and the annual financial statements of the Company. A detailed 
note on the funcƟoning of the Audit CommiƩee and of the other 
commiƩees of the Board forms part of the secƟon on corporate 
governance in the Annual Report.

During the year, the Company carried out a detailed review of 
internal financial controls. The findings were saƟsfactory and 
suggesƟons for improvement have been taken up for 
implementaƟon. Policy guidelines and Standard OperaƟng 
Procedures (SOPs) conƟnue to be updated where required, to 
keep pace with business requirements.

HUMAN RESOURCES 
The Company's HR philosophy is to establish and build a high 
performing organizaƟon, where each individual is moƟvated to 
perform to the fullest capacity, to contribute to developing and 
achieving individual excellence and departmental objecƟves and 
conƟnuously improve performance to realize the full potenƟal of 
our personnel. As on March 31, 2024, Company is giving 
employment to 250 permanent employees. Industrial relaƟons 
are cordial and saƟsfactory.

Employees are criƟcal to our business. The Company internally 
assess its employees to periodically idenƟfy competency gaps 
and use development inputs (such as skill up gradaƟon training) 
to address these gaps. The Company has implemented staff 
training policies and assessment procedures and intend to 
conƟnue placing emphasis on aƩracƟng and retaining moƟvated 
employees.

The Company also plans to conƟnue invesƟng in training 
programmes and other resources that enhance employees' skills 
and producƟvity which will conƟnue to help our employees 
develop understanding of the customer-oriented corporate 
culture and service quality standards to enable them to conƟnue 
to meet the customers' changing needs and preferences.

Our deep understanding of local needs and our ability to adapt 
quickly to changing consumer preferences has helped our 
performance driven growth. Our robust IT systems have 
significantly aided this growth by simplifying complex processes 

throughout our operaƟons.

Our IT systems are equipped with an array of data management 
tools specific to our business needs and support key aspects of 
our business. IT has enabled our cash management systems, in-
store systems, logisƟcs systems, human resources, project 
management, maintenance and other administraƟve funcƟons. 
This implementaƟon has contributed posiƟvely towards 
minimizing product shortage, pilferage, out of stock situaƟons 
etc. and has increased overall operaƟonal efficiency.

OUTLOOK 
As we have stepped into the financial year 2024-2025, JHS 
Svendgaard Laboratories Limited aims to enhance the market 
presence, diversify our product porƞolio, and expanding our 
global footprint. This fiscal year we are going to establish a new 
manufacturing facility in Jammu and Kashmir, which will increase 
our producƟon capacity and to meet our client requirements. 

To accelerate our growth trajectory, we are acƟvely seeking 
strategic Ɵe-ups with companies that complement our business 
model and enhance our market offerings. These collaboraƟons 
will enable us to expand our presence in various parts of India and 
tap into new customer segments. By joining forces with industry 
leaders, we aim to drive synergies that will benefit our 
stakeholders and reinforce our market posiƟon.

We recognize the significant opportuniƟes that lie in the 
internaƟonal markets. Our strategy includes obtaining the 
necessary cerƟficaƟons and compliance to penetrate these new 
markets effecƟvely and we are acƟvely exploring different 
avenues to introduce our products to internaƟonal consumers, 
thereby broadening our reach and increasing our revenue 
streams.

JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited is well-posiƟoned to 
embark on a path of significant growth and expansion in the 
coming years. With focus on innovaƟon and commitment to 
quality we are confident in our ability to deliver value and drive 
the business forward. We thank our shareholders, employees, 
and customers for their conƟnued support and look forward to a 
prosperous year ahead.
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JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited

BOARD REPORT
DEAR MEMBERS,

The Board of Directors hereby submits the reports of the business 
and operaƟons of your Company (“the Company” or “JHS”), along 
with the Audited Financial Statements (standalone and 
consolidated), for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. The 
consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiary has 
been referred to wherever required. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(Figures in Lacs)

Notes: The above figures are extracted from the audited 
standalone financial statements of the Company as per the Indian 
Accoun�ng Standards (Ind AS). Equity shares are at par value of 
10 per share.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS/STATEMENT OF AFFAIRS

The Company generated the revenue from operaƟons during the 
financial year ended 31st March 2024 amounted to INR 7,079.82 
Lakhs as compared to INR 8481.45 Lakhs during the previous year 
ended 31st March 2023. 
The Profit Before Tax and excepƟonal items increased from (3.42) 
million to (4.31) million, represenƟng growth of 20.65% for the 
year ended March 31st 2024,.Improvement in profit on account 
of product mix, improved realisaƟon and savings in operaƟonal 
expenses by 48.12% through OperaƟonal efficiencies announced 
with India for India strategy. The Profit AŌer Tax for the year 
ended March 31st 2024 increased from (4.05) million to (17.51) 
million represenƟng growth of 76.87% mainly due to excepƟonal 
income in previous year.
A detailed note on Performance Review is given under 
'Management Discussion and Analysis Report'.

Cash Flow and Consolidated Financial Statements
As required under RegulaƟon 34 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, a Cash 
Flow Statement and the Consolidated Financial Statements are 
part of the Annual Report. 

Consolidated Financial Statements
The audited consolidated financial statements incorporaƟng the 
duly audited financial statements of the subsidiaries, as prepared 
in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act'), LisƟng 
RegulaƟons, 2015 and in accordance with the Indian AccounƟng 
Standards specified under secƟon 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2015 along with 
all relevant documents and the Independent Auditors' Report 
thereon forms part of this Annual Report.
SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION AND ARRANGEMENT OF JHS 
SVENDGAARD RETAIL VENTURES PRIVATE LIMITED AND AND 
JHS SVENDGAARD BRANDS LIMITED AND JHS SVENDGAARD 
LABORATORIES LIMITED
The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company at its meeƟng 

thheld on 09  October 2020, approved the composite Scheme of 
Arrangement Subject to sancƟoning of same by Tribunal.
The raƟonale for the Scheme and Demerger, which would result 
in increased business synergies and unlocking of shareholder 
value, is set out below:

· CreaƟon of a separate, disƟnct and focussed enƟty housing 
the Retail Business leading to greater operaƟonal 
efficiencies for the Retail Business;

· Independent setup of each of the undertaking of the 
Demerged Company and the ResulƟng Company will ensure 
required depth and focus on each of the companies and 
adopƟon of strategies necessary for the growth of the 
respecƟve companies. The structure shall provide 
Independence to the management in decisions regarding 
the use of their respecƟve cash flows for dividends, capital 
expenditure or other reinvestment in their respecƟve 
business;

· Unlocking of value for shareholders of the Demerged 
Company by transfer of the Retail Business, which would 
enable opƟmal exploitaƟon, moneƟzaƟon and develop-
ment of joint venture partners and strategic partners having 
the necessary ability, experience and interests in this sector 
and by allowing pursuit of inorganic and organic growth 
opportuniƟes in such businesses and; 

· Enabling the business and acƟviƟes to be pursued and 
carried on with greater focus and aƩenƟon through two 
separate companies each having its own separate 
administraƟve set-up and dedicated management.

The Scheme was approved by the shareholders and creditors of 
the Company at the Court Convened meeƟng(s) held on 
November 13, 2022 and November 14, 2022. Subsequently, the 
Company filed a  second moƟon peƟƟon before the Hon'ble 
NaƟonal Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh (“Tribunal”). The 

thTribunal reserved the order dated 10  August 2023 and issued 
thCerƟfied copy of the order dated 25  August, 2023, and the 

scheme became effecƟve w.e.f. 28th August 2023
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ParƟculars 2024 2023

Revenue from operaƟons 7,079.82 8,481.45
Other income 431.44 1,132.10
Total income 7,511.26 9,613.55
Profit before excepƟonal items and tax (342.15) (431.15)
Profit before tax (342.15) (2,294.52)
Tax expense 62.91 (542.81)
Profit for the year (405.06) (1,751.71)
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Following are the key aspects of the Scheme as approved by the 
shareholders & Tribunal: 
With respect to Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking of the 
Demerged Company into the ResulƟng Company
I. That all the property, rights, and powers of the Demerged 

Undertaking of the Demerged Company be transferred, 
without further act or deed, to the ResulƟng Company and 
accordingly, the same shall pursuant to SecƟons 230 & 232 
of the Companies Act, 2013, be transferred to and vested in 
the ResulƟng Company but subject nevertheless to all 
charges now affecƟng the same;

II. That all the liabiliƟes and duƟes relaƟng to the Demerged 
Undertaking of the Demerged Company be transferred, 
without further act or deed, to the ResulƟng Company and 
accordingly the same shall pursuant to SecƟons 230 to 232 
of the Companies Act, 2013, be transferred to and become 
the liabiliƟes and duƟes of the ResulƟng Company;

III. All benefits, enƟtlements, incenƟves and concessions under 
incenƟve schemes and policies that the Demerged 
Undertaking of the Demerged Company are enƟtled to 
include under Customs, Excise, Service Tax, VAT, Sales Tax, 
GST and Entry Tax and Income Tax laws, subsidy receivables 
from Government, a grant from any governmental 
authoriƟes, direct tax benefit/exempƟons/deducƟons, 
shall, to the extent statutorily available and along with 
associated obligaƟons, stand transferred to and be available 
to the ResulƟng Company as if the ResulƟng Company was 
originally enƟtled to all such benefits, enƟtlements, 
incenƟves and concessions;

IV. All contracts of the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged 
Company which are subsisƟng or having effect immediately 
before the EffecƟve Date, shall stand transferred to and 
vested in the ResulƟng Company and be in full force and 
effect in favour of the ResulƟng Company and may be 
enforced by or against it as fully and effectually as if, instead 
of the Demerged Company, the ResulƟng Company had 
been a party or beneficiary or obliged thereto;

V. Upon the Scheme becoming effecƟve, all the employees of 
the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company, in 
service on the EffecƟve Date, shall be transferred to and 
shall become the employees of the ResulƟng Company as 
provided in the Scheme of Arrangement;

VI. That the proceedings, if any, pending by or against the 
Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company be 
conƟnued by or against the ResulƟng Company;

VII. That the ResulƟng Company shall, without further 
applicaƟon, allot to the exisƟng members of the Demerged 
Company shares of ResulƟng Company to which they are 
enƟtled under the said Scheme;

Upon the Scheme becoming effecƟve, all the assets and liabiliƟes 
and the business pertaining to the retail business  of the 
Company shall stand transferred to and vest in ResulƟng 
Company, as a going concern. 

With respect to AmalgamaƟon of the Transferor Company 
with and into the Transferee Company:

I. That all the property, rights and powers of the Transferor 
Company be transferred, without further act or deed, to the 
Transferee Company and accordingly, the same shall 
pursuant to SecƟons 230 & 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company for 
all the estate and interest of the Transferor Company but 
subject nevertheless to all charges now affecƟng the same;

II. That all the liabiliƟes and duƟes of the Transferor Company 
be transferred, without further act or deed, to the 
Transferee Company and accordingly the same shall 
pursuant to SecƟons 230 & 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
be transferred to and become the liabiliƟes and duƟes of the 
Transferee Company;

III. That All benefits, enƟtlements, incenƟves and concessions 
under incenƟve schemes and policies that the Transferor 
Company are enƟtled to include under Customs, Excise, 
Service Tax, VAT, Sales Tax, GST and Entry Tax and Income Tax 
laws, subsidy receivables from Government, grant from any 
governmental authoriƟes, direct tax benefit/exempƟons/ 
deducƟons, shall, to the extent statutorily available and 
along with associated obligaƟons, stand transferred to and 
be available to the Transferee Company as if the Transferee 
Company was originally enƟtled to all such benefits, 
enƟtlements, incenƟves and concessions;

IV. All contracts of the Transferor Company which are subsisƟng 
or having effect immediately before the EffecƟve Date, shall 
stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company 
and be in full force and effect in favour of the Transferee 
Company and may be enforced by or against it as fully and 
effectually as if, instead of the Transferor Company, the 
Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary or 
obliged thereto;

V. All the employees of the Transferor Company shall be 
deemed to have become the employees and the staff of the 
Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed Date, 
and shall stand transferred to the Transferee Company 
without any interrupƟon of service and on the terms and 
condiƟons no less favourable than those on which they are 
engaged by the Transferor Company, as on the EffecƟve 
Date, including in relaƟon to the level of remuneraƟon and 
contractual and statutory benefits, incenƟve plans, terminal 
benefits, gratuity plans, provident plans and any other 
reƟrement benefits;

VI. Upon the Scheme becoming effecƟve, all proceedings now 
pending by or against the Transferor Company be conƟnued 
by or against the Transferee Company;

VII. That the Transferee Company shall, without further 
applicaƟon, allot to the exisƟng members of the Transferor 
Companies shares of Transferee Company to which they are 
enƟtled under the said Scheme;

9



JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited

That the Appointed Date for the Scheme shall be 01.04.2021 
instead of 01.04.2020;
Details of the assets and liabiliƟes of company and the Company, 
pre and post the Scheme are available on the website of the 
Company.

SUMMARY OF SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO 
Share EnƟtlement RaƟo is as under –

· Demerger of Demerged Undertaking of Demerged 
Company into ResulƟng Company:

ResulƟng Company shall issue and allot to each of the 
shareholders of the Demerged Company shares in proporƟon of 
1 (one) equity share of the face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees ten) 
each at par in the ResulƟng Company for every 10 (Ten) equity 
shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each held in the 
Demerged Company.

· AmalgamaƟon of Transferor Company with the 
Demerged/Transferee Company:

Transferee Company shall issue and allot to each of the 
shareholders of the Transferor Company shares in proporƟon of 
150 (One Hundred FiŌy) Equity shares of face value of Rs.10/- 
(Rupees Ten) each in Transferee Company for every 100 (One 
Hundred) Equity shares of face value of Rs.10/- (Rupee Ten) each 
held by them in “Transferor Company”. 

The equity shares of JHS Svendgaard Retail Ventures Ltd 
“ResulƟng Company” got listed on the BSE Limited (Scrip code 
544197) and the NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited ( Scrip 

thRETAIL)on 26  June 2024, in accordance with the SEBI 
RegulaƟons and circulars issued thereunder.
The details of same can be accessed at hƩps://jhsretail.com/

ANNUAL RETURN
In accordance with the provisions of secƟon 92(3) and 134 (3) (a) 
of the Companies Act, 2013,  the annual return is uploaded on 
the Company's website and can be accessed at-
hƩps://www.svendgaard.com/annual_reports.html

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY
The Board has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the Company's policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevenƟon 
and detecƟon of fraud, error-reporƟng mechanisms, accuracy 
and completeness of the accounƟng records, and Ɵmely 
preparaƟon of reliable financial disclosures. For more details, 
refer to the 'Internal control systems and their adequacy' secƟon 
in the Management's discussion and analysis, which forms part of
this Integrated Annual Report.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the provision under SecƟon 134(3)© of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors to best of its 
knowledge & ability confirm that:
i. In the preparaƟon of the annual accounts for the Financial 

stYear ended 31  March, 2024, the applicable accounƟng 
standards have been followed and there are no material 
departures;

ii. The Directors had selected such accounƟng policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and 
esƟmates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at 
the end of the financial year and of the profit of the 
Company for that period ;

iii. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng fraud and 
other irregulariƟes ; 

iv. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going 
concern basis ; and

v. The Directors had  laid down internal financial controls to be 
followed by the Company and such internal financial 
controls are adequate and were operaƟng effecƟvely. ;

vi. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems are adequate and operaƟng effecƟvely. ;

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and 
compliance systems established and maintained by the 
Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and 
secretarial auditors and external consultants, including the audit 
of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng by the 
statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management 
and the relevant board commiƩees, including the audit 
commiƩee, the Board  is of the opinion that the Company's 
internal financial controls were adequate and effecƟve during 
Financial Year 2023-24.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/ 
KMP/ EMPLOYEES
Disclosures pertaining to remuneraƟon and other details as 
required under SecƟon 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is aƩached as 'Annexure 1' 
which forms an integral part of this report. 
The statement containing parƟculars of employees as required 
under SecƟon 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, forms part of this Annual 
Report. In terms of SecƟon 136 of the Act, any shareholder 
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interested in obtaining a copy thereof may write to the Company 
Secretary of the Company at .cs@svendgaard.com

AUDITORS & THEIR REPORT
· STATUTORY  AUDITORS & THEIR REPORT
M/s TaƩvam & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Reg. No. 
535309) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company 
for term of 5 (five) consecuƟve years, to hold office from the 
conclusion of the 18th Annual General MeeƟng Ɵll the conclusion 
of 22nd Annual General MeeƟng to be held in year 2027 by the 
members of the Company at their 18th Annual General MeeƟng 
held in 2022 in the accordance with SecƟon 139 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules thereunder.
Note: M/s TaƩvam & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Reg. No. 
535309) had tendered their resignaƟon on dated 18th May, 2024 
due to other professional commitments and assignments.
Upon recommended by Audit CommiƩee And the board of 
directors in the meeƟng held on 14th June 2024, M/s Lodha & Co 
LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN:301051E), were appointed as 
the Statutory Auditors to fill the Casual Vacancy caused by 
resignaƟon .
Further Audit CommiƩee and the board  recommends  
appointment of M/s Lodha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants 
(FRN:301051E), to hold office for the First term of five 
consecuƟve years from the conclusion of the 20th AGM of the 
Company held in  2022, Ɵll the conclusion of the 25th AGM to be 
held in 2029, as required under SecƟon 139 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 
The reports given by M/s TaƩvam & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
Statutory Auditors on Standalone And Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company for F.Y. 2023-24 form part of the 
Annual Report, which are self- explanatory. The Auditors' Report 
does not contain any qualificaƟon, reservaƟon or adverse remark 
or disclaimer given by the Statutory Auditors in their report. 

· SECRETARIAL AUDITORS & THEIR REPORT
Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 204 of the Companies Act, 
2013 your Directors had appointed M/s Dahiya & Associates, 
PracƟcing Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditors for 
the year 2023-24 to conduct the secretarial audit of the 
Company. 
The Secretarial Audit Report submiƩed by them in the prescribed 
form MR- 3 is aƩached as 'Annexure-2' and forms an integral part 
of this report.
The Secretarial Audit Report is self-explanatory and contains no 
qualificaƟons or observaƟons or other remarks.

· COST AUDIT
The maintenance of cost records and requirements of cost audit 
as prescribed by Central Government under the provisions of 
secƟon 148(1) of the companies act, 2013 are not applicable. 
Hence, the Company is not required to maintain cost records and 

to undertake cost audit in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

· INTERNAL AUDIT
At the beginning of each financial year, an audit plan is rolled out 
with approval of the Company's Audit CommiƩee. The plan is 
aimed at evaluaƟon of the efficacy and adequacy of internal 
control systems and compliance thereof, robustness of internal 
processes, policies and accounƟng procedures and compliance 
with laws and regulaƟons. Based on the reports of internal audit, 
process owners undertake correcƟve acƟon in their respecƟve 
areas. Significant audit observaƟons and correcƟve acƟons are 
periodically presented to the Audit CommiƩee of the Board.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS
During the year under review, there was no instances of frauds 
reported by Auditors under SecƟon 143(12) of the Companies Act 
2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND 
INVESTMENTS
The ParƟculars of Loans, guarantees and investments covered 
under SecƟon 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and schedule V of 

stthe lisƟng RegulaƟons, as on the 31  March, 2024, form part of 
the Notes to the financial statements provided in this Integrated 
Annual Report.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS 
WITH RELATED PARTIES
Your Company has adopted a Related Party TransacƟons Policy. 
The Audit CommiƩee reviews this policy periodically and also 
reviews and approves all related party transacƟons, to ensure 
that the same are in line with the provisions of applicable law and 
the Related Party TransacƟons Policy. 
The parƟculars of transacƟons entered with the Related Party 
refer in secƟon 188(1) and applicable rules of the Act have been 
given in the Annexure 4 to their report in Form AOC-2 .
All contracts and arrangements with related parƟes under 
SecƟon 188(1) of the Act, entered by the Company during the 
financial year, were in the ordinary course of business and on an 
arm's length basis. 
Also, the Company has disclosed all related party transacƟons in 
relevant Note 40 to the Standalone Financial Statements for the 
financial year 2023-24.  

FIXED DEPOSITS
We have not accepted any fixed deposits, including from the 
public, and, as such, no amount of principal or interest was 
outstanding as on the end of financial year 2023-24.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES
Your Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the 
general reserves of the Company..

DIVIDEND
Considering the future plans and business requirements of the 
Company, your Board is compelled to not recommend any 
dividend for the financial year 2023-24.

UNPAID/UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND  & INVESTOR 
EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)
In terms of the provisions of Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon 
Fund (AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 
(including amendments and modificaƟons, thereof), Rs.1,35, 078 
was transferred during the year 2019 to the Investor EducaƟon 
and ProtecƟon Fund.
Members are requested to claim the dividend(s), which have 
remained unclaimed/unpaid, by sending a wriƩen request to the 
Company at  or to the Company's Registrar cs@svendgaard.com
and Transfer Agent  Alankit Assignments Limited or at their 
address at Alankit Heights, 3E/7,Jhandewalan Extension, New 
Delhi- 110 055.
Members can find the details of Nodal Officer appointed by the 
Company under the provisions of IEPF and the details of 
unclaimed dividend and shares at -
hƩps://www.svendgaard.com/UNPAID%20&%20UNCLAIMED%
20DIVIDEND.html

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY:
Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, there are no material 
changes and commitments affecƟng the financial posiƟon of the 
company, which have occurred between the end of the financial 
year of the company to which the financial statements relate and 
the date of the report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,  TECHNOLOGY 
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO
The informaƟon pertaining to conservaƟon of energy, technology 
absorpƟon, foreign exchange earnings and outgo as required 
under SecƟon 134 (3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is furnished in 
Annexure – 5 and is aƩached to this report.

DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK 
MANAGEMENT
Your Company is having comprehensive risk assessment and 

minimizaƟon procedure in place, which are reviewed by the 
Board periodically. The Board is responsible for preparaƟon of 
Risk Management plan, reviewing, monitoring and updaƟng the 
same on regular and ongoing basis. Audit CommiƩee is also 
taking care for criƟcal risks on yearly basis.  
The Company has also formulated the Risk Management Policy 
through which the Company has idenƟfied various risks like 
quality risk, industry and compeƟƟon risk, risk of loss and assets 
which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of 
the Company. 
Further, the risks control systems are insƟtuted to ensure that the 
risks in each business process are miƟgated. The Audit 
CommiƩee of the Board is responsible for the overall risk 
management in coordinaƟon with Internal Auditor who reports 
directly to the Board.
In the opinion of the Board there have been no idenƟficaƟon of 
elements of risk that may threaten the existence of the Company. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
For your Company, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) means 
the integraƟon of social, environmental and economic concerns 
in its business operaƟons. CSR involves operaƟng Company's 
business in a manner that meets or exceeds the ethical, legal, 
commercial and public expectaƟons that society has of 
businesses. In alignment with vision of the Company, through its 
CSR iniƟaƟve, your Company will enhance value creaƟon in the 
society through its services, conduct and iniƟaƟves, so as to 
promote sustained growth for the society.
The Board of Directors of your Company has further formulated 
and adopted a policy based on above factors on Corporate Social 
Responsibility which can be accessed at our website at: 
hƩps://www.svendgaard.com/policy.html.

During the financial years under review, no changes took place in 
the CSR Policy and Company was not covered under provisions of 
SecƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules 
related to Corporate Social Responsibility. 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS
During the review under a year, there have been no material 
changes in the nature of business of the Company.
The Board of Directors at its meeƟng held on August 14, 2023, 
analyzed and discussed the proposal for consolidaƟon of 
business of the Company and Vedic CosmeceuƟcals Private 
Limited (“VCPL”).
Both the Companies belonged to the Fast-Moving Consumer 
Goods (FMCG) Industry, having similar line of Business and same 
customer base and the proposed AmalgamaƟon of both the 
Companies was anƟcipated to lead to huge synergy benefits in 
the form of enhancement of market size, improvement in 
organizaƟonal performance in long run due to expanded market 
control, upgraded benefit, and hazard expansion.
The Board in-principally agreed to the AmalgamaƟon of the 
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Company and VCPL under the Scheme of Arrangement for 
AmalgamaƟon to be entered into between the Company and 
VCPL, their respecƟve promoters/shareholders and creditors and 
filed the applicaƟon on both the stock exchanges on September 
22, 2023. 
However, due to the unforeseen challenges in integraƟon and 
pracƟcal issues, the board agreed to withdraw the Scheme of 
Arrangement for AmalgamaƟon of the Company with Vedic 
CosmeceuƟcals Private Limited (“Transferee Company”) entered 
into by the company with the Transferee Company (“JHS”) which 

thwas duly inƟmated to Stock exchanges on 05  March 2024.

SUBSIDIARIES & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
At the beginning of  the Year, The Company had 2 subsidiaries and 
1 associate company . The restructuring process, following the 
merger order dated 10th August 2023, resulted in significant 
changes to the company's subsidiary and associate company 
structure.

· One associate company was merged into the Company.

· One subsidiary was de-merged, meaning it was separated or 
spun off into a separate enƟty.

As a result of these restructuring acƟons, as of 31st March 2024, 
the company now only has one subsidiary remaining, which is JHS 
Svendgaard Mechanical and Warehouse Private Limited. 
During the year, the Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of the 
subsidiaries. In accordance with SecƟon 129(3) of the Act, we 
have prepared the Consolidated financial statements of the 
Company, which form part of this Integrated Annual Report. 
Further, a statement containing the salient features of the 
financial statements of our subsidiaries in the prescribed format 
AOC-1 is appended as Annexure 3 to the Board's report.
The statement also provides details of the performance and 
financial posiƟon of each of the subsidiaries, along with the 
changes that occurred, during fiscal 2024.
In accordance with SecƟon 136 of the Act, the audited financial 
statements, including the consolidated financial statements and 
related informaƟon of the Company and audited accounts of its 
subsidiaries, are available on our website, at www.svendgaard.com 
.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT
Our employees are our most important assets. We are 
commiƩed to hiring and retaining the best talent and being 
among the industry's leading employers. For this, we focus on 
promoƟng a collaboraƟve, transparent and parƟcipaƟve 
organizaƟon culture, and rewarding merit and sustained high 
performance. Our human resources management focuses on 
allowing our employees to develop their skills, grow in their 
career and navigate their next.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT
In terms of the provisions of RegulaƟon 34(2) of the SEBI (LisƟng 

ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 
(“LisƟng RegulaƟons”), the Management's discussion and 
analysis is set out in this Integrated Annual Report.

OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
Kindly refer to the Management Discussion & Analysis Report 
which forms part of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Your Company is commiƩed to maintain the highest standards of 
Corporate Governance and adhere to the Corporate Governance 
requirements set out by SEBI. Separate report on Corporate 
Governance, forms an integral part of this Annual Report. 
A cerƟficate from M/s Dahiya & Associates, PracƟcing Company 
Secretaries, confirming compliance with the condiƟons of 
corporate governance is also aƩached to the Corporate 
Governance Report.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS 
COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS
Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015) (“LisƟng RegulaƟons”), the 
Board, in consultaƟon with its NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon 
CommiƩee, has formulated a framework containing, inter-alia, 
the criteria for performance evaluaƟon of the enƟre Board of the 
Company, its CommiƩees and individual Directors, including 
Independent Directors.
A structured quesƟonnaire, covering various aspects of the 
funcƟoning of the board and its CommiƩee, such as, adequacy of 
the consƟtuƟon and composiƟon of the Board and its 
CommiƩees, maƩers addressed in the Board and CommiƩee 
meeƟngs, processes followed at the meeƟng, Board`s focus, 
regulatory compliances and Corporate Governance, etc., is in 
place. Similarly, for evaluaƟon of individual Director's 
performance, the quesƟonnaire covering various aspects like 
his/her profile, contribuƟon in Board and CommiƩee meeƟngs, 
execuƟon and performance of specific duƟes, obligaƟons, 
regulatory compliances and governance, etc., is also in place.
The Board members had submiƩed their response for evaluaƟng 
the enƟre Board, respecƟve commiƩees of which they are 
members and of their peer Board members, including Chairman 
of the Board.
The Independent Directors had a separate meeƟng held on 
14.02.2024. No Directors other than Independent Directors had 
aƩended this meeƟng. Independent Directors discussed inter-
alia the performance of Non-Independent Directors and Board as 
a whole and the performance of the Chairman of the Company 
aŌer taking into consideraƟon the views of ExecuƟve and Non- 
ExecuƟve Directors.
The performance evaluaƟon of all the Independent Directors 
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have been done by the enƟre Board, excluding the Director being 
evaluated. On the basis of performance evaluaƟon done by the 
Board, it shall be determined whether to extend or conƟnue their 
term of appointment, whenever the respecƟve term expires.
The Directors expressed their saƟsfacƟon with the evaluaƟon 
process.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
The Company has received necessary declaraƟon for each 
Independent Directors under secƟon 149(7) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence as laid 
down under SecƟon 149(6) of the Act and RegulaƟon 16 of SEBI 
(LisƟng and Other Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 
(“SEBI LODR”). The Independent Directors have also confirmed 
that they have complied with the Company's code of conduct for 
Directors and Senior Management Personnel.
All the Independent Directors of the Company have registered 
themselves in the data bank maintained with the Indian InsƟtute 
of Corporate Affairs, Manesar ('IICA'). 
Details of the FamiliarizaƟon Programme Module for Indepen-
dent Directors is provided in the Corporate Governance of the 
Report.
In the opinion of the Board, all independent directors possess a 
strong sense of integrity and having requisite experience, skills, 
qualificaƟon and experƟse. For further details, please refer 
Corporate Governance report.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS' APPOINTMENT AND POLICY 
ON REMUNERATION
Pursuant to SecƟon 134(3)(e) and SecƟon 178(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (Act), the policy on appointment of Board 
members including criteria for determining qualificaƟons, 
posiƟve aƩributes, independence of a Director and the policy on 
remuneraƟon of Directors, KMP and other employees can be 
accessed at the website of the Company at -
 hƩps://www.svendgaard.com/policy.html

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL (KMP)

Changes in the Key Managerial Personnel(KMP) during the 
Financial Year ended March 31, 2024
During the year 2023-24, Mr. Deepesh Sharma was appointed as 
Joint Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f. 30.05.2023. 
However, Mr. Deepesh Sharma resigned from the posiƟon 
effecƟve from the close of business hours October 16, 2023.
The Board noted and accepted his resignaƟon of at its meeƟng 

thheld on 07  November 2024. The Board places on record its 
immense appreciaƟon for his contribuƟon during his tenure in 
the Company.

Changes in the Board during the Financial Year ended March 31, 
2024
During the year, Mrs. Rohina Sital Sangtani resigned from the 
posi�on of Non-Execu�ve Independent Director w.e.f. close of 
business hours on 10.09.2023. The Board places on record its 
immense apprecia�on for her contribu�on during her tenure in 
the Company.

thThe Board at its mee�ng held on August 14 , 2023, based on the 
recommenda�on of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on 
Commi�ee, appointed Mrs. Upma Chawdhry as Independent 
Women Director of the Company for a period of 5 years w.e.f 
14.08.2023 and regularised in Annual General Mee�ng held in 
Year 2023. Mrs. Upma Chawdhry is an award-winning civil 
servant with more than three decades of leadership experience 
from grassroots implementa�on to policy formula�on at levels of 
both Government of India (Federal) and the State Government 
(Provincial).  A career officer of the premiere Indian 
Administra�ve Service (IAS), she has held diverse and extensive 
responsibili�es.
The composiƟon of the Board of Directors is in accordance with 
the provisions of secƟon 149 of the Companies Act and 
RegulaƟon 17 of SEBI(LODR) RegulaƟons 2015, with an opƟmum 
combinaƟon of ExecuƟve director, Non-ExecuƟve Director, 
Independent Women Director. 
The Directors & Key Managerial personnel (KMP) of the Company 

stas per secƟon 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 as on 31  
March, 2024 are as follows:

Kindly refer Corporate Governance Report for the full details on 
Director's skills and Integrity.

 CommiƩees of the Board
The Board of Directors have consƟtuted the following 
CommiƩees in order to effecƟvely deliberate its duƟes under the 
Act and the LisƟng RegulaƟons, 2015:
Ø Audit CommiƩee;

Director/KMP DesignaƟon 
Mr.Rajagopal Chakravarthi  
Venkateish  

Non-ExecuƟve Independent 
Director- Chairman 

Mr. Nikhil Nanda  Managing Director 
Mr. Mukul Pathak  Non-ExecuƟve Independent 

Director 
Mr. Kapil Minocha  Non-ExecuƟve Independent 

Director 
*Mrs. Upma Chawdhry Non-ExecuƟve Independent 

Director 
Mr. Vinay MiƩal  Non-ExecuƟve Director 
Mr. Paramvir Singh Pabla  Chief ExecuƟve Officer 
Mr. Ashish Goel  Chief Financial Officer 
**Mr. Deepesh Sharma Joint Chief Financial Officer  
Mrs. Komal Jha Company Secretary &  

Compliance Officer 
*Mrs. Rohina Sital Sangtani Non-ExecuƟve Independent 

Women Director 
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Ø NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee;
Ø Stakeholders' RelaƟonship CommiƩee;
Ø Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee;

During the year, all recommendaƟons made by the commiƩees 
were approved by the Board.
Details of the CommiƩees in respect of its composiƟon, terms of 
reference and meeƟngs held during the financial year 2023-24 
are provided in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms 
part of this Annual Report.

MEETINGS OF BOARD
Seven meeƟngs of the Board of Directors were held during the 
year. The parƟculars of the meeƟngs held and aƩendance of each 
Director are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report that 
part of this integrated Annual Report.

DEPOSIT 
During the year under review the Company has neither accepted 
nor renewed any deposit in terms of Chapter V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder.

DISCLOSURE ON SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN 
AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
Your Company firmly believes in providing a safe, supporƟve and 
friendly workplace environment – a workplace where our values 
come to life through the supporƟng behaviors. PosiƟve 
workplace environment and a great employee experience are 
integral part of our culture. Your Company conƟnues to take 
various measures to ensure a workplace free from discriminaƟon 
and harassment based on gender
The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at 
workplace. A policy has been adopted in line with the Sexual 
harassment of Women at Workplace (PrevenƟon, ProhibiƟon 
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under and an 
Internal Complaints CommiƩee has also been set up to redress 
complaints received regarding Sexual Harassment. 
During the year, no complaints pertaining to sexual harassment 
were received.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY 
THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 
IMPACT THE GOING CONCERNS STATUS AND THE 
COMPANY`S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE.
The Company has not received any significant or material orders 
passed by any regulatory Authority, Court or Tribunal which shall 
impact the going concern status and Company`s operaƟons in 
future.

NaƟonal Company Law Tribunal Chandigarh has issued Order 
whereby the Retail business of the company was demerged and 
went to resulƟng company , which got listed on Bombay Stock 

thExchange (BSE) and NaƟonal Stock Exchange (NSE) on 26  June 
2024,
The company “ JHS Svendgaard Brands Limited” got merged with 
the company w.e.f  25.08.2024.
However, despite these significant changes, there is no change in 
the going concern status of the Company

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
During the year under review, the Company has complied with 
the all applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the InsƟtute of 
Company Secretaries of India and adopted under the Act.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE 
(a) Share Capital

 During the year, there has been change in the authorized 
share capital  &  Paid Up share capital of the Company 
consequent to Scheme of AmalgamaƟon & Arrangement.

 As on March 31, 2024, the authorized share capital of the 
Company stood at Rs. 1,01,00,00,000 (One billion and ten 
million) comprising 10,10,00,000(One hundred and one 
million) equity shares of Rs. 10 each and paid-up Share 
Capital of the Company stood at Rs. 78,39,62,670(Seven 
hundred eighty-three million nine hundred sixty-two 
thousand six hundred seventy only) comprising 7,83,96,267 
(Seventy-eight million three hundred ninety-six thousand 
two hundred sixty-seven only ) 
In compliance with secƟon 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 
2013 & rules made thereunder and the SEBI (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 (as amended) and pursuant to the resoluƟon of Board 
of Directors dated 4th June 2024 and of shareholders by 
special resoluƟon dated 4th July 2024, the Company on 3rd 
August 2024 has alloƩed on preferenƟal allotment basis: a) 
72,07,204 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each at an 
issue price of Rs. 27.75 per equity share (including premium 
of  Rs. 17.75 per equity share) aggregaƟng to Rs. 2000 lakhs 
to individuals belonging to “Non-Promoter” Category; and 
b) 36,03,202 fully converƟble warrants of Rs. 10 each at an 
issue price of Rs. 27.75 per warrant (including premium of           
Rs. 17.75 per warrant) aggregaƟng to Rs. 1000 lakhs to 
individuals belonging to “Promoter & Promoter Group” and 
“Non-Promoter” Categories.

(b) Employees Stock OpƟon Plan and General Employee 
Benefits Scheme

 During the year, there has been no allotment of employee 
stock opƟon plan and general employee benefits scheme 
with affect the company share capital.
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VIGIL MECHANISM
As per LisƟng RegulaƟon and SecƟon 177(9) of the Companies Act 
2013, the Company has established Vigil Mechanism through 
which Directors, Employees and Business Associates may report 
unethical behavior, malpracƟces, wrongful conduct fraud, and 
violaƟon of company's code of conduct without any fear of 
reprisal. Vigil Mechanism is being overseen by the Audit 
CommiƩee for the genuine concerns expressed by the 
employees and the Directors. The said Policy provides adequate 
safeguards against vicƟmizaƟon of employees and Directors who 
express their concerns.

The Company has also provided direct access to the Audit 
CommiƩee on reporƟng issues concerning the interests of 
employees and the Company and no employee was denied 
access to the Audit CommiƩee. The policy as approved by the 
Board is uploaded on the Company's website at-
  hƩps://www.svendgaard.com/policy.html 

ParƟculars of employees
The Company had 250* employees on a standalone basis as of 
March 31, 2024.
The percentage increase in remuneraƟon, raƟo of remuneraƟon 
of each director and key managerial personnel (KMP) (as 
required under the Act) to the median of employees' 
remuneraƟon, and the list of top 10 employees in terms of 
remuneraƟon drawn, as required under SecƟon 197(12) of the 
Act, read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 
RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, form part of 
Annexure 1 to this Board's report.
Excluding contractual labours employed in plant.

GENERAL
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporƟng is required in 
respect of the following items as there were no transacƟons on 
these items during the year under review:
Ø Issue of equity shares with differenƟal rights as to dividend, 

voƟng or otherwise.
Ø Issue of equity shares (including sweat equity shares) to 

employees of the Company under any scheme.
Ø Your Company has not resorted to any buy back of its Equity 

Shares during the year under review.
Ø Neither Managing Director nor the Whole-Ɵme Directors of 

the Company receive any remuneraƟon or commission from 
any of its subsidiaries.

Ø Pursuant to scheme of Arrangement and AmalgamaƟon 

among JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited (Demerged/ 
Transferee Company), JHS Svendgaard Retail Ventures 
Private Limited (ResulƟng Company), and JHS Svendgaard 
Brands Limited (Transferor Company), the scheme has 
become effecƟve. As per the scheme, all the business 
acƟviƟes, assets, and liabiliƟes of JHS Svendgaard Brands 
Limited have been transferred to JHS Svendgaard 
Laboratories Limited. 

Ø The Board of Directors in its meeƟng held on 12.08.2024 
approved the addiƟon of following new clauses to exisƟng 
clauses of main object in the Objects Clause (Clause III) of 
Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the company. These clauses 
shall be added upon approval by the Members of the 
company at the upcoming 20th Annual General MeeƟng 
(AGM).

Ø No applicaƟon was filed by/ on the Company under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

Ø The details of difference between amount of the valuaƟon 
done at the Ɵme of one-Ɵme seƩlement and the valuaƟon 
done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial 
InsƟtuƟons along with the reasons thereof - Not Applicable. 

Ø The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to 
be followed by your Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and are operaƟng 
effecƟvely. The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of 
the Company shall ensure compliance of Insider Trading 
Rules of the Company and SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and 
Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015. 

Ø The details of applicaƟon made or any proceeding pending 
under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 
2016) during the year along with their status as at the end of 
the financial year – Not Applicable.

 Further, in terms of RegulaƟon 30A of SEBI (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015, there no such agreements which are required to be 
disclosed in the Annual Report.

  Also, the Company is not falling under the list of top 1000 
Companies, for the purpose of determinaƟon of 
applicability of dividend distribuƟon policy, Risk 
Management CommiƩee and business responsibility & 
sustainability reporƟng.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
The Company has been maintaining healthy, cordial and 
harmonious industrial relaƟons at all levels. The enthusiasm and 
unsƟnƟng efforts of employees have enabled the Company to 
remain at the leadership posiƟon in the industry. It has taken 
various steps to improve producƟvity across organizaƟon.
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LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES
The Company's shares are listed on BSE Limited and the NaƟonal 
Stock Exchange of India Limited.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
Your Directors take this opportunity to thank all customers, 
shareholders, suppliers, bankers, business partners/ associates, 
financial insƟtuƟons and the Central Government and the State 
Government for their consistent support and encouragement 
provided by them in the past. Your Directors conveying their 
sincere appreciaƟon to all employees of the Company and its 
subsidiaries and associates for their hard work and commitment. 
Their dedicaƟon and competence have ensured that the 

Company conƟnues to be a significant and leading player in this 
industry.

For and on behalf of the Board

   Sd/- Sd/-
   Nikhil Nanda Vinay MiƩal
   Managing Director Director
   DIN: 00051501 DIN: 08232559

Date: 12 /08 /2024           
Place: New Delhi
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Details under SecƟon 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The informaƟon required under SecƟon 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1. RemuneraƟon payable to non-execuƟve directors is based on the number of meeƟngs of the Board and its CommiƩees 
aƩended by them as member during the year.

2. The term 'Permanent Employees' does not include trainees, probaƟoners and contract employees.
3. *Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani Non- ExecuƟve Independent Director of the Company ceased as directors of the company w.e.f. 

10th September 2023 due to expiry of her tenure.
4. The remuneraƟon paid as above was as per the RemuneraƟon Policy of the Company.

                  For and on behalf of the Board
        
          Sd/-   Sd/-
          Nikhil Nanda  Vinay MiƩal
Date: 12.08.2024        Managing Director  Director
Place: New Delhi        DIN: 00051501  DIN: 08232559

Details under SecƟon 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

The informaƟon required under SecƟon 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1. RemuneraƟon payable to non-execuƟve directors is based on the number of meeƟngs of the Board and its CommiƩees 
aƩended by them as member during the year.

2. The term 'Permanent Employees' does not include trainees, probaƟoners and contract employees.
3. *Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani Non- ExecuƟve Independent Director of the Company ceased as directors of the company w.e.f. 

10th September 2023 due to expiry of her tenure.
4. The remuneraƟon paid as above was as per the RemuneraƟon Policy of the Company.

                  For and on behalf of the Board
        
          Sd/-   Sd/-
          Nikhil Nanda  Vinay MiƩal
Date: 12.08.2024        Managing Director  Director
Place: New Delhi        DIN: 00051501  DIN: 08232559

ANNEXURE-1

Relevant Prescribed Requirement ParƟculars

i. RaƟo of the remuneraƟon of each director to the Median RemuneraƟon to the employees of the 
Company for the financial year 37:1

ii. The percentage increase in remuneraƟon of each director, CFO, CEO, Company Secretary or 
Manager, if any, in the financial year 7.19

iii. Percentage increase in median remuneraƟon of employees in the financial year. 5.08

iv. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company. 250

v. .

Average percenƟle increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percenƟle increase in the 
managerial remuneraƟon and jusƟficaƟon thereof and point out if there are any excepƟonal 
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneraƟon

Nil
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ANNEXURE-2

Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024

[Pursuant to secƟon 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 

The Members
JHS SVENDGAARD LABORATORIES LIMITED
TRILOKPUR ROAD, KALA AMB,
NAHAN DISTRICT, SIRMOUR, 173030

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
pracƟces by JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited (hereinaŌer called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluaƟng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verificaƟon of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 
Company, to the extent the informaƟon provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representaƟves during the conduct 
of secretarial audit, the explanaƟons and clarificaƟons given to us and the representaƟons made by the Management and considering the 
relaxaƟons granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2024, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board 
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporƟng made hereinaŌer:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available to us and maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the applicable provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
ii. The SecuriƟes Contract (RegulaƟon) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the RegulaƟons and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulaƟons made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
v. The following RegulaƟons and Guidelines prescribed under the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI 

Act'):
a) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SubstanƟal AcquisiƟon of Shares and Takeovers) RegulaƟons, 2011;
b) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 2015;
c) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2018 and 

amendments from Ɵme to Ɵme;
d) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) RegulaƟons, 2021; 

(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);
e) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue and LisƟng of Non-ConverƟble SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 2021; (Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period);
f) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) RegulaƟons, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);
g) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (DelisƟng of Equity Shares) RegulaƟons, 2021; (Not applicable to the 

Company during the audit period) and;
h) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 2018;
i) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015.

vi. Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:-
a) InformaƟon Technology Act, 2000 and the rules made thereunder;
b) The Indian Copyright Act, 1957;
c) The Patents Act, 1970;
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d) The Trade Marks Act, 1999

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The InsƟtute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and general meeƟngs.

ii. The LisƟng Agreements entered into by the Company with NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited read with 
the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, RegulaƟons, Guidelines, standards etc. 
menƟoned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly consƟtuted with proper balance of ExecuƟve Directors, Non-ExecuƟve Directors and 
Independent Directors. The changes in the composiƟon of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate noƟce was given to all directors to schedule the Board MeeƟngs, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven 
days in advance for meeƟngs other than those held at shorter noƟce, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informaƟon 
and clarificaƟons on the agenda items before the meeƟng and for meaningful parƟcipaƟon at the meeƟng.

Majority decision is carried trough while the dissenƟng members' views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operaƟons of the 
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, RegulaƟons and Guidelines etc.

We further report that during the audit period: -

the company had received the NCLT order dated 10th August, 2023 in reference to the Scheme of AmalgamaƟon and Arrangement of JHS 
Svendgaard Retail Ventures Private Limited (resulƟng company) and JHS Svendgaard Brands Limited (Transferor) and JHS Svendgaard 
Laboratories Limited (Transferee). 

The company had issued 1,34,96,297 shares of Transferee company to the shareholders of the Transferor company in raƟo of 150:100 on 
12th September, 2023 and the Trading approval received on 7th February, 2024. Subsequently, the shares of resulƟng company had listed 
on both of the Stock Exchange on 26th June, 2024. 

We further report that during the audit period the company has acquired 100% stake in JHS SVENDGAARD MECHANICAL AND 
WAREHOUSE PRIVATE LIMITED.

Thanking you,

For Dahiya & Associates 

Sd/-
Mohit Dahiya
Proprietor
PracƟcing Company Secretary
Membership No-F9540
COP No- 23052
UDIN: F009540F000748597

Place: New Delhi
Date: 16/07/2024

This Report is to be read with our leƩer of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and Forms an integral part of this report.
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To, 
The Members,
JHS SVENDGAARD LABORATORIES LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this leƩer

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit pracƟces and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of 
the contents of the secretarial records. The verificaƟon was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the process and pracƟces, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management RepresentaƟon about the Compliance of Laws, Rules and 

RegulaƟons and happening of events etc.
5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons, standards is the responsibility of 

management. Our examinaƟon was limited to the verificaƟon of procedure on test basis.
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effecƟveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Thanking you,

For Dahiya & Associates 

Sd/-
Mohit Dahiya
Proprietor
PracƟcing Company Secretary
Membership No-F9540
COP No- 23052        

UDIN: F009540F000748597         

Place: New Delhi
Date : 16/07/2024
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ANNEXURE-3
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-secƟon (3) of secƟon 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(InformaƟon in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures:   NIL         (Rs. in lakhs)

Sl. No. ParƟculars Details
1. Name of the subsidiary JHS Svendgaard Mechanical  and 

Warehouse (P) Limited
2. ReporƟng period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding 

company's reporƟng period
-

3. ReporƟng currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant 
Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries

-

4. Share capital 1.00
5. Reserves & surplus (39.91)
6. Total assets 1,453.03
7. Total LiabiliƟes 1,491.94
8. Investments -
9. Turnover -

10. Profit/Loss before taxaƟon (0.71)
11. Provision for taxaƟon -
12. Profit aŌer taxaƟon (0.71)
13. Proposed Dividend -
14. % of shareholding -

Sl. No. ParƟculars Details
1. Name of the subsidiary

2. ReporƟng period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company's reporƟng period

3. ReporƟng currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries

4. Share capital
5. Reserves & surplus
6. Total Assets
7. Total LiabiliƟes
8. Investments
9. Turnover
10. Profit/(LOSS)before taxaƟon
11. Provision for taxaƟon
12. Profit / Loss aŌer taxaƟon
13. Proposed Dividend
14. % of shareholding

        For and on behalf of Board of Directors
        JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Ltd

              Sd/-          Sd/-
      Nikhil Nanda  Vinay MiƩal
      Managing Director   Director
      DIN: 00051501                           DIN: 08232559

             Sd/-  Sd/-
      Komal Jha                                 Ashish Goel
Date: 12.08.2024                 Company Secretary & Compliance Officer  Chief Financial Officer
Place: New Delhi     Membership No- 20356
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ANNEXURE-4
Form AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-secƟon (3) of secƟon 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of parƟculars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parƟes referred to in sub secƟon 
(1) of secƟon 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transacƟon under third proviso thereto for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2024.
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transacƟons not at Arm's length basis. (Not Applicable)

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transacƟons at Arm's length basis.

SL. No. ParƟculars Details
a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relaƟonship

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transacƟon

c) DuraƟon of the contracts/arrangements/transacƟon

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transacƟon including the value, if any

e) JusƟficaƟon for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transacƟons'

f) Date of approval by the Board

g) Amount paid as advances, if any

h) Date on which the special resoluƟon was passed in General meeƟng as required under first proviso to 
secƟon 188

SL. No. ParƟculars Details

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of 
relaƟonship

1. JHS Svendgaard Mechanical and Warehouse Private Limited, Subsidiary 
Company
2. Apogee Manufacturing Enterprises Private Limited.
3. GuruNanda LLC
4. Nikhil Nanda
5. Magna Waves Private Limited

b) Nature of contracts /arrangements 
/transacƟon

1. Cross selling of products
2. Sub- contracƟng
3. Leasing of immovable property 
4. Cost Sharing Agreements
5. Loan/ Corporate Guarantee

c) DuraƟon of the contracts /arrangements/ 
transacƟon

st st1  April, 2023 to 31  March, 2024

d) Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transacƟon including the 
value, if any

TransacƟons shall be undertaken as per the prevailing market price or as may 
be approved by the Audit CommiƩee/
Board (as required) from Ɵme to Ɵme

e) Date of approval by the Board  30.05.2023

f) Amount paid as advances, if any -

        For and on behalf of the Board
        JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited
        

                                                                             Sd/-                                            Sd/-
  Nikhil Nanda   Vinay MiƩal

Date: 12.08.2024                    Managing Director   Director
Place: New Delhi       DIN: 00051501   DIN: 08232559
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ANNEXURE-5

ConservaƟon of Energy, Technology AbsorpƟon, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

1. ConservaƟon of Energy
Wherever possible, energy conservaƟon measures have been implemented. However, efforts to conserve and opƟmize the use of energy 
through improved operaƟonal methods and other means are being conƟnued on an on-going basis. The energy consumpƟon and the 
cost of producƟon are kept under control. Wastage of energy has been minimized to a negligible level by switching off the electronic 
equipment as and when not in use.
Requisite data in respect of energy conservaƟon is given below:

2. Disclosure of parƟculars with respect to Technology AbsorpƟon
I. Efforts made towards Technology AbsorpƟon
 The company has continued its endeavor to absorb best of the technologies for its products range to meet the requirements of globally 

competitive markets. The Company undertakes from time to time, various studies for process improvement, quality improvement and 
economies in production cost. The Company has a R&D team having good experience and well equipped with all the latest 
technologies and machines that help the Company to compete with the competitors who exist in both Organized and unorganized 
Sector.

ii. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reducƟon, product development or import subsƟtuƟon: NIL
iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year):
 a) The details of technology imported: NIL
 b) The year of import: NIL
 c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed: NIL
 d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorpƟon has not taken place, and the reasons there of: NIL, and
iv. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL
3. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Power and fuel ConsumpƟon Units 2023-2024 2022-2023
1. Electricity

(A) Purchased
---      Units
---      Total Amount
---      Rate/Unit

Kwh
Rs. In Lacs

Rs.

  
3142320

27333797
7.67

  
37,40,853

254.39
6.80

(B) Own Generator
---      Through Diesel Generator Units
---      Unit per litre of Diesel Oil
---      Cost/Unit
---      Through steam turbine/generator

Kwh
Kwh

Rs.

72252
3.07

27.68
(85/- Ltr)

89900
3.10

28.29
(88/-Ltr)

2. Other/ Internal generaƟon light/diesel oil/furnace oil
(A) QuanƟty

Total Cost
Average Rate

– –

(B) ConsumpƟon Per unit of ProducƟon
1)  Electricity

                       Oral Care Products
                  2) Through Diesel Generator
                       Oral Care Products

Kwh/Per Unit

Kwh/Per Unit
– –

ParƟculars 2023-24 2022-23
Foreign Exchange and Outgo 1,99,12,375 2,94,39,181

Earning in Foreign Exchanges - -

        For and on behalf of the Board
        JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited
        

                                                                             Sd/-                                            Sd/-
  Nikhil Nanda   Vinay MiƩal

Date: 12.08.2024                    Managing Director   Director
Place: New Delhi       DIN: 00051501   DIN: 08232559
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
 Our corporate governance is a reflecƟon of our value system 

encompassing our culture, policies and relaƟonships with 
our stakeholders. Integrity and transparency are key to our 
corporate governance pracƟces to ensure that we gain and 
retain the trust of our stakeholders at all Ɵmes. At JHS 
Svendgaard Laboratories Limited, we feel proud to belong to 
a Company whose visionary founders laid the foundaƟon 
stone for good governance long back and made it an integral 
principle of the business.

 Responsible corporate conduct is integral to the way we do 
our business. Our acƟons are governed by our values and 
principles, which are reinforced at all levels within the 
Company. At JHS, we are commiƩed to doing things the right 
way which means taking business decisions and acƟng in a 
way that is ethical and is in compliance with applicable 
legislaƟon. 

 Our Board of Directors are responsible for and commiƩed to 
sound principles of Corporate Governance in the Company. 
Our Board of Directors plays a crucial role in overseeing how 
the Management serves the short and long-term interests 
of Members and other stakeholders. This belief is reflected 
in our governance pracƟces, under which we strive to 
maintain an effecƟve, informed and  an independent Board. 
We keep our governance pracƟces under conƟnuous 
review.

 The Company is in compliance with the requirements 
sƟpulated under regulaƟon 17 to 27 read with para C and D 
of Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) & (t) to Sub-RegulaƟon (2) 
of RegulaƟon 46 of SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015 (“SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons”) with regard to 
Corporate Governance. The Company is commiƩed to 
achieve the best standards of Corporate Governance. The 
Company has built up a strong foundaƟon for making 
Corporate Governance a way of life by having an 
independent Board with experts of eminence, forming a 
core team of top-level execuƟves, inducƟng competent 
professionals across the organizaƟon and puƫng in place 
best systems and processes. Going beyond, the Company 
has endeavored to regulatory and legal compliances and 
adopt pracƟces of high level of business ethics.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 The Board of Directors ('the Board') have ulƟmate 

responsibility for the management, general affairs, 
direcƟon, performance and long-term success of business 
as a whole. The Board has delegated the operaƟonal 
conduct of the business to the Managing Director of the 
Company and has Chief ExecuƟve Officer (CEO), business / 
funcƟonal heads, who look aŌer the management of the 
day-to-day affairs of the Company.

a) ComposiƟon of the Board of Directors as on 31st March, 
2024:

 As on 31st March 2024, the Company's Board consists of Six 
directors. The Chairman of the Board is a Non-execuƟve 
Independent Director. The Company has an opƟmum 
combinaƟon of execuƟve and Non-ExecuƟve directors in 
accordance with the provisions of applicable regulaƟons of 
the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons. The Board has one execuƟve 
director and five non-execuƟve directors, out of whom four 
are Independent Directors including one Women-
Independent Director. All Independent Directors are 
persons of eminence and bring a wide range of experƟse 
and experience to the Board thereby ensuring the best 
interests of stakeholders and the Company.

 None of the directors hold directorship in more than 7 listed 
companies. AddiƟonally, no Independent Director of the 
company serves as an Independent Director in more than 
seven listed companies. Furthermore, none of the 
Independent Directors who are also whole-Ɵme directors or 
managing directors in any listed enƟty serve as an 
Independent Director in more than three listed enƟƟes. 
Moreover, none of the Directors hold directorships in more 
than 20 Indian companies, including no more than 10 public 
limited companies. 

 None of the Directors are member of more than 10 
commiƩees or acts as Chairman of more than 5 commiƩees 
(being AC and SRC, as per RegulaƟon 26(1) of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons) across all the public limited companies in 
which he/she is a director. The necessary disclosures 
regarding commiƩee posiƟons have been made by the 
Directors.

Directors Category % to total number of 
Directors 

· Mr. Nikhil Nanda 
ExecuƟve Director,  
Managing Director 16.67% 

· Mr. Rajagopal Chakravarthi Venkateish  
· Mrs. Upma Chawdhry 
· Mr. Kapil Minocha 
· Mr. Mukul Pathak 

Non-ExecuƟve Independent 
Directors  66.66% 

· Mr. Vinay MiƩal  
Non- ExecuƟve Non-Independent 
Director 16.67% 

 Total  100% 
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Table 1.1

Key funcƟons of the Board
The Board performs various statutory and other funcƟons in 
connecƟon with managing the affairs of the Company. The key 
funcƟons performed by the Board of the Company are:
 a. Reviewing and guiding corporate strategy, major plans 

of acƟon, annual budgets and business plans, seƫng 
performance objecƟves, monitoring corporate 
performance and overseeing  major  capi ta l 
expenditures, acquisiƟons and divestments.

 b. Monitor ing  effecƟveness  of  the Company's 
governance pracƟces and making changes as needed.

 c. SelecƟng, compensaƟng, monitoring and when 
necessary, replacing Key Managerial Personnel and 
overseeing succession planning.

 d. Aligning remuneraƟon of the Key Managerial 
Personnel and the Board with long term interests of the 
Company and its shareholders.

 e. Ensuring a transparent Board nominaƟon process with 
the diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, 
perspecƟve and gender in the Board.

 f. Monitoring and managing potenƟal conflicts of 

interest of management, Board members and 
shareholders, including misuse of corporate assets and 
abuse in related party transacƟons.

 g. Ensuring integrity of the Company's accounƟng and 
financial reporƟng systems, including the independent 
audit and that appropriate systems of control are in 
place, in parƟcular, systems for risk management, 
financial and operaƟonal controls and compliance with 
the law and relevant standards.

 h. Overseeing the process of disclosure and communi-
caƟons.

 i. Monitoring and reviewing Board EvaluaƟon frame-
work.

b)     Directors' aƩendance record and their other Directorships/ 
CommiƩee Memberships
The details of the Directors on the Board as on 31st March, 2024, 
their aƩendance at Board MeeƟngs during the year and the 
number of directorship and chairmanships/memberships of 
commiƩee of each Director held in other public companies and 
aƩendance at last Annual General MeeƟng are shown below in 
Table 1.1:

 

Name of 
Director 

Category No. of 
Board 

MeeƟngs 
EnƟtled 

to aƩend 

No. of 
Board 

MeeƟngs 
AƩended 

AƩendance at 
last 

AGM 

Directorships 
in other 

Companies 

CommiƩee posiƟons held 
in other Cos.* 

Chairman Member 

Mr. Rajagopal 
Chakravarthi 
Venkateish 

Chairman Non-
ExecuƟve 
Independent 

7 7 Yes 2 - - 

Mr. Nikhil 
Nanda 

Managing 
Director 

7 7 Yes 6 - - 

Mr. Kapil 
Minocha 

Non- ExecuƟve 
Independent 
Director 

7 7 Yes 0 - - 

Mr. Mukul 
Pathak 

Non- ExecuƟve 
Independent 
Director 

7 3 Yes 1 - - 

*Mrs. Rohina 
Sanjay 
Sangtani 

Non- ExecuƟve 
Independent 
Director – 
Woman 

2 2 No 1 - - 

Mr. Vinay 
MiƩal  

Non-ExecuƟve 
Non-
Independent 
Director  

7 7 Yes 1 - - 

**Mrs. Upma 
Chawdhry 
 

Non-ExecuƟve 
Independent 
Director 

5 1 NA 0 - - 

All Independent Directors of the Company have been appointed as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and LisƟng 
RegulaƟons and leƩer of appointment are issued to Independent Director and Term & CondiƟons are posted on company's website 
hƩps://www.svendgaard.com/.

ClassificaƟon of the Board
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Note- 
1. Mr. Nikhil Nanda is a Promoter of the company.
2. Directorships include Directorships in SecƟon 8 companies.
3. Pursuant to RegulaƟon 26 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, 

Chairmanship/Membership of the Audit CommiƩee and the 
Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee of Indian Public Companies 
(excluding SecƟon 8 companies), whether listed or not, have been 
considered. Chairmanship/ Membership of the Audit CommiƩee 
and Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee held by the Directors in 
the Company are also included.

*Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani Non- ExecuƟve Independent Director of 
the Company ceased as directors of the company w.e.f. 10th September 
2023 due to expiry of her tenure. 
**Mrs. Upma Chawdhry was appointment as Independent Director of 
the Company w.e.f. 14th August, 2023 and regularized in the 19th AGM 
held on 28th September, 2023.

c) Date of Board MeeƟngs
The Company has held a minimum of one Board MeeƟng in each 
quarter and maximum gap between two consecuƟve meeƟngs 
did not exceed 120 days which is in compliance with the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons and provisions of the Act. An annual calendar of 
meeƟngs is prepared well in advance and shared with the 
Directors before commencement of the year to enable them to 
plan their aƩendance at the meeƟngs. Directors are expected to 
aƩend the Board and CommiƩee meeƟngs, spend necessary 

Ɵme and meet as frequently as the situaƟon warrants to properly 
discharge their responsibiliƟes. Concerned execuƟves of the 
Company communicate to the Company Secretary maƩers 
requiring approval of the Board, well in advance, so that these 
can be included in the agenda for the scheduled Board/ 
CommiƩee meeƟngs. Agenda papers are sent electronically to 
the Directors, well in advance, before the meeƟngs. DraŌ 
minutes of the Board and CommiƩee meeƟngs are circulated to 
the Directors of the Company for their comments and thereaŌer, 
noted by the Board/CommiƩees at the next meeƟng.
AddiƟonal meeƟngs are held to address specific needs of the 
Company. In case of any exigency/emergency, resoluƟons are 
passed by circulaƟon. The Board of Directors met 7 (seven) Ɵmes 
during the year on 30th May 2023, 14th August 2023, 12th 
September 2023, 22th September 2023 07th November 2023 
and 14th February 2024 and 5th March, 2024. The intervening 
gap between the meeƟngs was within the period prescribed 
under the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and SEBI LisƟng 
RegulaƟons.
The meeƟngs and agenda items taken up during the meeƟngs 
complied with the applicable provisions of the Act and LisƟng 
RegulaƟons read with various circulars issued by MCA and SEBI 
from Ɵme to Ɵme. 
The necessary quorum was present for all the meeƟngs.

Other than Mr. Nikhil Nanda who holds 2,64,94,102 equity shares  
stas on 31  March, 2024, no other director holds any shares in the 

Company.
Note: -
*Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani, Non- ExecuƟve Independent Director of 

ththe Company ceased as director of the company w.e.f. 10  September 
2023 due to expiry of her tenure. 
**Mrs. Upma Chawdhry was appointment as Independent Director of 

th ththe Company w.e.f. 14  August, 2023 and regularized in the 19  AGM 
thheld on 28  September, 2023.

d) There are no inter-se relaƟonships between the Board 
members.

e) The Company has not issued any converƟble instruments.
f) ConfirmaƟon of Independence 
 The definiƟon of 'Independence' of Directors is derived from 

SecƟon 149(6) of the Act and RegulaƟon 16 of the SEBI 
LisƟng RegulaƟons. The Independent Directors have 
confirmed that they meet the criteria of Independence laid 
down under the Act and RegulaƟon 16 (1) (b) of the SEBI 
LisƟng RegulaƟons.

 At the Ɵme of appointment and thereaŌer at the beginning 
of each financial year, the Independent Directors submit self-
declaraƟon, confirming their independence and compliance 
with various eligibility criteria laid down by the Company, 
among other disclosures and the Company also ensures that 
its Directors meet the above eligibility criteria. All such 
declaraƟons are placed before the Board for informaƟon.

 In the opinion of the Board, the independent directors fulfill 
the condiƟons specified in these regulaƟons and are 
independent of the management of the Company.

 CerƟficate from PracƟcing Company Secretary on 
qualificaƟon of Directors

 The Company has obtained a cerƟficate from the PracƟcing 
Company Secretary, Mr. Mohit Dahiya, Company Secretary 
in PracƟce (Membership No. FCS- 9540, CP No. 23052), 
confirming that none of the Directors on the Board of the 
Company has been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or conƟnuing as Directors of companies by SEBI/ 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 
The CerƟficate is aƩached as Annexure-A.

Name of Director Name of Listed enƟƟes in which Director is Director 
Mr. Rajagopal Chakravearthi Venkateish NA 
Mr. Nikhil Nanda NA 
Mr. Kapil Minocha NA 
Mr. Mukul Pathak NA 
*Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani  NA 
Mr. Vinay MiƩal  NA 
**Mrs. Upma Chawdhry  NA 

Name of other listed enƟƟes in which our Directors are Director as on 31st March, 2024:
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g) FamiliarisaƟon Programmes of the Independent Directors
 The FamiliarizaƟon Programme for Independent Directors 

aims to help the Director to understand the Company, its 
business and the regulatory framework in which the 
Company operates and equips him/her to effecƟvely 
discharge his / her role as a Director of the Company. The 
Independent Directors have complete access to the 
informaƟon within the Company.  

 The Company conducts training sessions for the 
Independent Directors where specific presentaƟons were 
provided to them about the Company's strategy, business 
model, operaƟons, markets, organizaƟon structure, product 
offerings,  finance,  r isk management framework, 
compeƟtor's analysis and various other factors affecƟng the 
Company's business. Moreover, interacƟve meets are 
organized from Ɵme to Ɵme where they get opportunity to 

interact with Senior Management, Head of departments and 
other key personnel of the organizaƟon.  

 Details of the familiarization programme is available on the 
Company's website at:-
www.svendgaard.com/familarizaƟonprogramme.html 

h) Skill of Board of Directors 
 The Board comprises of the qualified members who bring in 

the required skills, competence and expertise that allow them 
to make effective contributions to the Board and its 
Committees. 

 In the table below, specific areas of focus or expertise of 
individual Board Members have been highlighted. However, 
the absence of the mark against a members' name does not 
necessarily mean the member does not possess the 
corresponding skill or qualification:

SKILLS AND EXPERTISE OF BOARD 

NAME OF DIRECTORS 

Mr. Rajagopal 
Chakravarthi 
Venkateish 

Mr. 
Nikhil 
Nanda 

Mr. Kapil 
Minocha 

Mr. 
Mukul 
Pathak 

*Mrs. 
Rohina 
Sanjay 

Sangtani 

Mr. 
Vinay 
MiƩal 

*Mrs. 
Upma 

Chawdhry 

Deep understanding of 
Company’s business/ strategy 
and structure 

v v X X v v v 

Industry experience v v v v v v v 
Financial acumen X v v v v X v 
Knowledge in AccounƟng and 
AudiƟng 
Standards and tax maƩers  

X v v v X v v 

Knowledge of the Companies Act, 
applicable SEBI and Stock 
Exchange RegulaƟons 

v v v v v v v 

 Knowledge of Employee Benefit 
Schemes and maƩers related to 
employee hiring / skill 
development, gender diversity, 
etc. 

X v X v v v v 

Entrepreneurial skills to evaluate 
risk and rewards and perform 
advisory role 

v v v v v v v 

Focus on compliance v v v v v v v 
Understanding of the processes 
and systems for defining high 
corporate governance standards  

v v v X X v v 

Understanding rights of 
Shareholders and obligaƟons of 
the Management 

v v v v v v v 

Knowledge in global standards on 
Corporate Sustainability and 
Sustainability ReporƟng based on 
Global ReporƟng IniƟaƟves (GRI) 
Standards 

v v v X X v v 

Experience in Risk Management/ 
OperaƟonal Risk Management/ 
Financial Risk Assessment 
experience 

v X v X v v v 

InformaƟon Technology skills  v v v X X X X 

 

https://www.svendgaard.com/familarizationprogramme.html
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Note: -
*Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani Non- ExecuƟve Independent Director of 

ththe Company ceased as director of the company w.e.f. 10  September 
2023 due to expiry of her tenure. 
**Mrs. Upma Chawdhry was appointment as Independent Director of 

ththe Company w.e.f. 14  August, 2023 in the Board MeeƟng and 
th thregularized in the 19  AGM held on 28  September, 2023.

I) Separate MeeƟng of The Independent Directors
 During the year under review, one separate meeƟng of the 

Independent Directors was held on February 14, 2024, which 
was chaired by Mr. Rajagopal Chakravarthi Venkateish and 
was held without the presence of Non-Independent 
Directors and members of the management. At the said 
meeƟng, the Independent Directors reviewed the 
performance of the NEDs, of the Board as a whole and the 
Chairman, aŌer considering the view of the CEO & Managing 
Director and the NEDs.

 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
 To focus effecƟvely on the issues and ensure expedient 

resoluƟon of diverse maƩers, the Board has consƟtuted 
several  CommiƩees of Directors with specific terms of 
reference. The CommiƩees operate as empowered agents of 
the Board as per their term of reference that set forth their 
purposes, goals and responsibiliƟes. CommiƩee members 
are appointed by the Board with the consent of individual 
Directors. These CommiƩees meet as oŌen as required or as 
statutory required.

st The Board as on 31  March, 2024 had four statutory 

commiƩees to focus effecƟvely on the issues and ensure 
expedient resoluƟon for diverse maƩers namely:
· Audit CommiƩee
· Stakeholders' RelaƟonship CommiƩee
· NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee
· Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee

 The Board is responsible for consƟtuƟng, assigning, and 
fixing the terms of reference for the members of various 
commiƩees. RecommendaƟons made by these CommiƩees 
have been accepted by the Board. The Company Secretary 
officiates as the Secretary of these CommiƩees. Terms of 
reference, composiƟon, quorum, meeƟngs, aƩendance and 
other relevant details of these CommiƩees are as under:

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
st As on 31  March, 2024, the Company's Audit CommiƩee 

comprises of 5 (five) members, out of whom four are 
Independent Non-ExecuƟve Directors and one is ExecuƟve 
Director. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to 
CommiƩee. The composiƟon of the Audit CommiƩee meets 
the requirements of SecƟon 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and RegulaƟon 18 of SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons. During the 
year under review total 5 (Five) meeƟngs of Audit 

th thCommiƩee were held on 30  May 2023, 14  August 2023, 
nd th th22  September 2023, 07  November 2023 and 14  February 

2024. The quorum for the meeƟngs is two members or one-
third of members whichever is higher, with at least two 
Independent Directors.

Note: -
*Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani Non- ExecuƟve Independent Director of 
the Company ceased as member of the commiƩee w.e.f. 10th September 
2023 due to expiry of her tenure. 
**Mrs. Upma Chawdhry was appointment as member of the CommiƩee 
w.e.f. 14th August, 2023 and regularized in the 19th AGM held on 28th 
September, 2023.
*** Mr. Kapil Minocha was appointed as a member of the CommiƩee 
w.e.f. 14th August, 2023.

All the members of the commi�ee are eminent professionals and 
draw upon their experience and exper�se across a wide spectrum 
of func�onal areas such as finance and corporate strategy. 
Minutes of audit commi�ee mee�ngs were placed before the 
Board Mee�ng.
The powers and role of the Audit Commi�ee is in accordance with 
the provisions of Regula�on 18 and Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI 
Lis�ng Regula�ons and sec�on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Name of the Member Category No of MeeƟngs 
enƟtled to 

aƩend

No of MeeƟngs 
AƩended

Mr. Mukul Pathak Chairman- Independent Director 5 2

Mr. Nikhil Nanda Member-ExecuƟve Director 5 5

*Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani Member- Independent Director 2 1

Mr. Rajagopal Chakravarthi VenkaƟesh Member- Independent Director 5 5

**Mrs. Upma Chawdhry Member-Independent Director 3 1

***Mr. Kapil Minocha Member-Independent Director 3 2

ConsƟtuƟon and AƩendance Record: 
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Invitees
The Statutory Auditors, representaƟves of the Internal Audit firm 
aƩend the CommiƩee meeƟngs. The other execuƟves including 
Mr. Paramvir Singh, CEO, Mr. Nikhil Nanda, Managing Director, Mr. 
Ashish Goel, Chief Financial Officer, Mr. Deepesh Sharma, Vice 
President, also aƩend the CommiƩee meeƟngs as invitees as per 
requirements.
Terms of Reference
The broad terms of reference of Audit CommiƩee, inter-alia, 
includes the following:
a) Oversight of the Company's financial reporƟng process and 

the disclosure of its financial informaƟon to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

b) RecommendaƟon for appointment, remuneraƟon and 
terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

c) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other 
services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

d) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial 
statements and auditor's report thereon before submission 
to the board for approval, with parƟcular reference to:
i. MaƩers required to be included in the Director's 

Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board's 
report in terms of clause (c) of sub-secƟon 3 of secƟon 
134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

ii. Changes, if any, in accounƟng policies and pracƟces and 
reasons for the same;

iii. Major accounƟng entries involving esƟmates based on 
the exercise of judgment by management;

iv. Significant adjustments made in the financial 
statements arising out of audit findings;

v. Compliance with lisƟng and other legal requirements 
relaƟng to financial statements;

vi. Disclosure of any related party transacƟons;
vii. Modified opinions in the draŌ audit report;

e) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial 
statements before submission to the board for approval;

f) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / 
applicaƟon of funds raised through an issue (public issue, 
rights issue, preferenƟal issue, etc.), the statement of funds 
uƟlized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document / prospectus / noƟce and the report submiƩed by 
the monitoring agency monitoring the uƟlizaƟon of 
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendaƟons to the Board to take up steps in this 
maƩer;

g) Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence and 
performance, and effecƟveness of audit process;

h) Approval or any subsequent modificaƟon of transacƟons of 
the Company with related parƟes;

i) ScruƟny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
j) ValuaƟon of undertakings or assets of the Company, 

wherever it is necessary;
k) EvaluaƟon of internal financial controls and risk 

management systems;
l) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory 

and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control 
systems;

m) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit funcƟon, if any, 
including the structure of the internal audit department, 

staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 
reporƟng structure coverage and frequency of internal 
audit;

n) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings 
and follow up there on;

o) Reviewing the findings of any internal invesƟgaƟons by the 
internal auditors into maƩers where there is suspected fraud 
or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 
material nature and reporƟng the maƩer to the Board;

p) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit 
commences, about the nature and scope of  audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

q) To look into the reasons for substanƟal defaults in the 
payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 
(in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and 
creditors;

r) To review the funcƟoning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;
s) Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-Ɵme 

Finance Director or any other person heading the finance 
funcƟon or discharging that funcƟon) aŌer assessing the 
qualificaƟons, experience and background, etc. of the 
candidate;

t) Carrying out any other funcƟon as is menƟoned in the terms 
of reference of the Audit CommiƩee.

u) Reviewing the uƟlizaƟon of loans/advances from/ 
investment by the holding Company in the subsidiary 
exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the 
subsidiary, whichever is lower including exisƟng 
loans/advances/investments exisƟng as on the date of 
coming into force of this provision.

v) Considering and commenting on rationale, cost benefits and   
impact of schemes involving   merger,  demerger,  
amalgamation   etc.,   on   the   listed   entity   and   its 
shareholders.

The Audit CommiƩee mandatorily reviews the following 
informaƟon(s) as well:
a) Management discussion and analysis of financial condiƟon 

and results of operaƟons;
b) Management leƩers / leƩers of internal control weaknesses 

issued by the statutory auditors;
c) Internal audit reports relaƟng to internal control 

weaknesses; and 
d) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneraƟon of the 

Chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the Audit 
CommiƩee.

e) Statement of deviaƟons:
 a.  quarterly statement of deviaƟon (s) including report of 

monitoring agency, if applicable, submiƩed to stock 
exchange (s) in terms of RegulaƟon 32 (1).

 b.  annual statement of funds uƟlized for purposes other 
than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/ 
noƟce in terms of RegulaƟon 32 (7).

4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
st As on 31  March, 2024, the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 

CommiƩee (NRC) comprises 4 (four) Non-execuƟve 
Independent Directors. Mr. acts as Chairman Mukul Pathak 
of the CommiƩee. The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon 
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CommiƩee met 2 (two) Ɵmes during the year 30th May 
2023, 14th August 2023. The Company Secretary acts as the 
Secretary to CommiƩee.

Note: -
*Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani Non- ExecuƟve Independent Director of 

ththe Company ceased as director and member of the commiƩee w.e.f. 10  
September 2023 due to expiry of her tenure. 
**Mrs. Upma Chawdhry was appointment as member of the CommiƩee 

thw.e.f. 14  August, 2023.
*** Mr. Kapil Minocha was appointed as a member of the CommiƩee 

thw.e.f. 14  August, 2023.

Invitees
Mr. Paramvir Singh, Chief ExecuƟve Officer, Mr. Nikhil Nanda, 
Managing Director, Mr. Ashish Goel, Chief Financial Officer Mr. 
Vinay MiƩal, Non-execuƟve Director and Mr. Deepesh Sharma, 
Vice President, Business AnalyƟcs are invitees to the NominaƟon 
and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee meeƟngs.
Terms of Reference
The broad terms of reference of the CommiƩee, inter-alia, 
includes the following:
1. IdenƟfying persons who are qualified to become directors 

and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the 
Board their appointment and removal;

2. FormulaƟng the criteria for determining qualificaƟons, 
posiƟve aƩributes and independence of a director and 
recommend to the Board a policy, relaƟng to the 
remuneraƟon for the directors, KMP, senior management 
and other employees;

3. Formulate a familiarizaƟon programme to acquaint Directors 
with the Company and its business etc. 

4. FormulaƟng the criteria for evaluaƟon of every director's 
performance; 

5. Devising a policy on Board diversity;
6. The CommiƩee shall take into consideraƟon and ensure the 

compliance of provisions of SecƟon 196, read with Schedule 
V of the Companies Act, 2013 while appoinƟng and fixing 
remuneraƟon of Managing Director / Whole-Ɵme Directors;

7. While approving the remuneraƟon, the CommiƩee shall take 
into account financial posiƟon of the Company, trend in the 
industry, qualificaƟon, experience and past performance of 
the appointee; 

8. Recommend to the board, all remuneraƟon, in whatever 
form, payable to senior management.

9. The CommiƩee shall consider and recommend to the Board, 
shares to be alloƩed to the eligible employees pursuant to 
the ESOP Scheme of the Company. Further, the CommiƩee 

shall have the authority in its discreƟon: 
i. To determine the Exercise Price; 
ii. To select the Employees to whom OpƟons may from 

Ɵme to Ɵme be granted hereunder; 
iii. To determine whether and to what extent OpƟons are 

granted hereunder; 
iv. To determine the number of Shares to be covered by 

each OpƟons granted hereunder; 
v. To approve forms of SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons for use 

under the Plan; 
vi. To determine the terms and condiƟons, not 

inconsistent with the terms of the Plan, of any award 
granted hereunder; 

vii. To prescribe, amend and rescind rules and regulaƟons 
relaƟng to the Plan; 

viii. To construe and interpret the terms of the Plan and 
Shares issued pursuant to the Plan; and 

ix. To take decisions on other maƩer as may be necessary 
for administraƟon of this Plan. 

10. The CommiƩee shall perform other acƟviƟes as requested by 
the Board of Directors or to address issues related to any 
significant subject within its term of reference. 

Performance EvaluaƟon 
The Company has devised a formal process for annual evaluaƟon 
of performance of the Board, its CommiƩees and Individual 
Directors including Independent Directors. The process provides 
that the performance evaluaƟon shall be carried out on annual 
basis.
During the year, the Board of Directors has carried out an annual 
evaluaƟon of its own performance, board commiƩees, and 
individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and SEBI 
LisƟng RegulaƟons. The evaluaƟon process focused on various 
aspects of the Board and CommiƩees funcƟoning such as 
structure, composiƟon, quality, board meeƟng pracƟces and 
overall Board effecƟveness. The above criteria are based on the 
Guidance Note on Board EvaluaƟon issued by the SecuriƟes and 
Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017
The NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee reviewed the 
performance of individual directors including Independent 
Directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribuƟon of the 
individual director to the Board and commiƩee meeƟngs like 
meaningful and construcƟve contribuƟon and inputs in meeƟngs, 
etc.

Name of the Member Category No of MeeƟngs 
EnƟtled to AƩend 

No of MeeƟngs 
AƩended 

Mr. Mukul Pathak  Chairman - Independent Director 2 1 
Mr. Rajagopal Chakravarthi Venkateish  Member – Independent Director 2 2 
*Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani Member – Independent Director 2 1 
**Mrs. Upma Chawdhry Member-Independent Director 0 0 
***Kapil Minocha Member-Independent Director 2 0 
 

 ConsƟtuƟon and AƩendance Record:
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In the Board MeeƟng that followed the meeƟng of the 
independent directors and meeƟng of NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee, the performance of the Board, its 
commiƩees, and individual directors was also discussed. 
Discussion on Performance evaluaƟon of independent directors 
was done by the enƟre board, excluding the independent director 
being evaluated. There are few following specific criteria(s) which 
are for performance evaluaƟon of Independent Directors: 
· ParƟcipaƟon and contribuƟon by a Director.
· Commitment, including guidance provided to the Senior 

Management outside of Board/ CommiƩee MeeƟngs.
· EffecƟve deployment of knowledge and experƟse.
· EffecƟve management of relaƟonship with various 

stakeholders.
· Independence of behavior and judgment.
· Maintenance of confidenƟality of criƟcal issues.
Outcome of EvaluaƟon Process
The Board was saƟsfied with the professional experƟse and 
knowledge of each of its Directors. All the Directors effecƟvely 
contributed to the decision-making process by the Board. Further, 
all the CommiƩees were duly consƟtuted and were funcƟoning 
effecƟvely. The Board also expressed its saƟsfacƟon in relaƟon to 
the provision of supporƟng documents to the Board enabling it to 
assess the policy & procedural requirements for proper 
funcƟoning of the Company. The Board expressed its saƟsfacƟon 
with the decision making and decision implemenƟng procedure 

followed by it.
5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
 The Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee oversees various 

aspects of interest of security holders like review of 
adherence to the service standards adopted for shareholder 
services, measures taken for reducing the quantum of 
unclaimed dividends, redressal of shareholder and investor 
grievances and related maƩers in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act and RegulaƟon 20 read with Part D of 
Schedule II to the LisƟng RegulaƟons. AddiƟonally, the Board 
has authorised the Chief Financial Officer and the Company 
Secretary to jointly exercise the powers of approving 
transfer/ transmission of shares. Normally, transfers/ 
transmissions are approved once in a fortnight.

 In Compliance with the RegulaƟon 20 of SEBI LisƟng 
RegulaƟons and provisions of SecƟon 178 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the company has a stakeholders' RelaƟonship 

stCommiƩee. As on the 31  march, 2024, the stakeholders 
RelaƟonship CommiƩee comprises of 3(three) Non-
ExecuƟve directors and 1 (one) execuƟve director.

 The CommiƩee meets as frequently as circumstances 
necessitate with at least one meeƟng in a year. The quorum 
for the meeƟng is two members or one-third of members, 
whichever is higher. During the year under review, the 
stakeholder RelaƟonship CommiƩee meeƟng was held on 
the August 14, 2023.The company secretary acts as the 
secretary to commiƩee.

Note: -
*Mr. Kapil Minocha was appointed as a member of the CommiƩee w.e.f. 

th14  August, 2023.

Terms of Reference
The broad terms of reference of the CommiƩee, inter-alia, 
includes the following:
a. The CommiƩee is entrusted with the responsibility of 

addressing the shareholders' and investors' complaints with 
respect to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual report, 
non-receipt of declared dividend, etc.

b. Review of   measures   taken   for   effecƟve   exercise   of   
voƟng   rights   by shareholders

c. Ensuring an expediƟous share transfer process in line with 
the proceedings of the Share Transfer CommiƩee.

d. The CommiƩee also evaluates performance and service 

standards of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the 
Company.

e. Providing conƟnuous guidance to improve the service levels 
for the investors.

f. Review of the various measures and iniƟaƟves taken by the 
listed enƟty for reducing the quantum of  unclaimed 
dividends and ensuring Ɵmely receipt of dividend 
warrants/annual reports/statutory noƟces by the 
shareholders of the company.

g. Name & DesignaƟon of Compliance Officer:
 Komal Jha
 Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
 During the year under review, no shareholder's complaint 

was received as well as no complaint was pending at the 
stbeginning of the financial year i.e. on 1  April, 2023.

Name of the Member Category No of MeeƟngs 
enƟtled to aƩend

No of MeeƟngs 
AƩended

Mr. Rajagopal Chakravarthi Venkateish Chairman- Independent Director 1 1

Mr. Mukul Pathak Member- Independent Director 1 1

Mr. Nikhil Nanda Member- ExecuƟve Director 1 1

*Mr. Kapil Minocha Member-Independent Director 1 0
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 5C.  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
 The consƟtuted a Corporate Social Board of Directors 

responsibility (CSR) CommiƩee and formulated the CSR 
Policy of the Company which is available on the website of 
the Company  hƩps://www.svendgaard.com/policy.html

 During the year under review SecƟon 135 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and other relevant rules related to Corporate 
Social Responsibility were not applicable to the Company.  

6. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS
I) Non-execuƟve Directors: The Company has no pecuniary 

relaƟonship or transacƟon with its Non-execuƟve Directors 
other than payment of siƫng fees to them for aƩending 
Board and CommiƩee meeƟngs. The criteria of making 
payments to non-execuƟve directors is available on the 
website of the Company at-
 hƩps://www.svendgaard.com/criteriaformakingpayment.html . 

The Chairman of the Stakeholder's RelaƟonship CommiƩee was 
thpresent at the AGM held on 28  September 2023.

Transmission of shares
During the year, the Company has not received any request for 
share transmission. The Company has 26448 shareholders as on 
March 31,2024.

5A.  RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
 The provision of RegulaƟon 21 of SEBI (LODR) RegulaƟons, 

2015 dealing with Risk Management CommiƩee are not 
applicable on the Company.

5B.  SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Note: -
*Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani Non- ExecuƟve Independent Director of 
the Company ceased as director and member of the commiƩee w.e.f. 

th10  September 2023 due to expiry of her tenure. 

II) ExecuƟve Directors: The remuneraƟon policy is directed 
towards rewarding performance. It is aimed at aƩracƟng 

and retaining high caliber talent. The Company does have an 
incenƟve plan which is linked to performance and 
achievement of the Company's objecƟves. 

 RemuneraƟon paid to the Mr. Nikhil Nanda, Managing 
stDirector of the Company during the year ended 31  March, 

2024 is detailed below:

NAME DESIGNATION 
Deepesh Sharma Vice President-Business and Strategy  
Sapana Singh HR Manager 
Sanjay Prabhakar Manager Export Import  
Vivek Kumar Chhabra Deputy manager-QA  
Rishendra Srivastava Manager Engg  
Anurag Kumar Mathur DGM (Paste)  
Jitendra kumar sharma DY Manager  
Rajesh Kumar Sr. HR Manager   
Arun Kumar singh DGM  
Vipan Dogra Accounts Manager  

 

SNO. NAME OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR  SITTING FEES PAYABLE/PAID IN FY 2023 -2024 
1 Mr. Rajagopal Chakravarthi Venkateish 1.5    
2 Mr. Mukul Pathak 0.7    
3 Mr. Kapil Minocha 0.9   
4 Mrs. Upma Chawdhry 0.2   
5 *Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani 0.4   

 

ParƟculars (Rs. In Lakhs)

Salary 60.00

Siƫng Fees Nil
Other Perquisites/Benefits Nil

Commission on Profit 9.64

Total 69.64

(Rs. in lakhs)

https://www.svendgaard.com/policy.html
https://www.svendgaard.com/criteriaformakingpayment.html
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Service Contract, NoƟce Period and Severance Fee
Services of Mr. Nikhil Nanda, Managing Director may be terminated by either party, giving three months' noƟce or the Company paying 
three month's salary in lieu thereof. There is no separate provision for payment of severance fees.
No noƟce or severance fee is payable to any other director. Further, there were no other pecuniary relaƟonships or transacƟons of Non-
ExecuƟve Directors vis-à-vis the Company.

stDetails of Equity Held as on 31  March, 2024

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS
I. General MeeƟng:
a) Annual General MeeƟng 
 The last three Annual General MeeƟngs of the Company:

b) No Special ResoluƟon passed last year through postal 
ballot. 

c) No Special ResoluƟon is proposed to be conducted through 
postal ballot.

d) Procedure for Postal Ballot
Ÿ In accordance with the provisions of SecƟon 108 and SecƟon 

110 of the Act read with Rule 20 and Rule 22 of the Companies 
(Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014, as amended 
from Ɵme to Ɵme, read with the Circulars issued by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and RegulaƟon 44 of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons, as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme read with SEBI 
Circulars, Secretarial Standards on General MeeƟngs issued 
by the InsƟtute of Company Secretaries of India, the noƟces 
containing the proposed resoluƟons and explanatory 
statement were sent in electronic mode to the shareholders 
whose e-mail address were registered with the Company or 
the Depository ParƟcipant(s).

Ÿ The communicaƟon of assent / dissent received by the 
shareholders through the remote e-voƟng within 30 days of 
sending the noƟce are considered by the ScruƟnizer;

Ÿ The ScruƟnizer submits his report to the Chairman/ Co-
Chairman of the Company or a person authorized by them, 
who on the basis of the report, announces the results; and

Ÿ The Company has entered into an agreement with NaƟonal 
SecuriƟes Depository Limited ('NSDL') for providing e-voƟng 
facility to its shareholders. Under this facility, shareholders 
are provided an electronic plaƞorm to parƟcipate and vote on 
the resoluƟons to be passed through Postal Ballot.

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
 All vital informaƟon relaƟng to the Company and its 

performance, including quarterly results, official press 
releases are posted on the website of the Company i.e. 
www.svendgaard.com.The quarterly and annual results of 
the Company's performance are published in Mint (English) 

Name of Director No. of Equity Shares Held

Mr. Nikhil Nanda 26494102

Mr. Vinay MiƩal Nil

 

Year Venue Date Time Special ResoluƟon
2022-23 Held through 

Video 
Conferencing

28.09.2023 02:00 P.M. Appointment of Mrs. Upma Chawdhry as an Independent Director of the 
Company.

2021-22 Held through 
Video 
Conferencing

30.09.2022 11:00 A.M To confirm the remuneraƟon of Mr. Nikhil Nanda Managing Director of 
the Company.

Increase in Authorized Share Capital and consequent alteraƟon of the 
capital clause in the Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the company. 

PreferenƟal Issue of up to 1,55,00,000 fully ConverƟble Warrants to the 
persons belonging to promoter & promoter group and non-promoter 
category.

2020-21 Held through 
Video 
Conferencing

28.09.2021 01:00 P.M -
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· DIVIDEND
 The Board of Directors have not recommended any dividend 

for the year under review. 
• BOOK CLOSURE DATE
 Not Applicable.  
• LISTING INFORMATION: 
 The Company's shares are listed on the Bombay Stock 

Exchange Limited and the NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India 
Limited. LisƟng fees as prescribed have been paid to the 

strespecƟve Stock Exchanges for the financial year ended 31  
March, 2024. 

• STOCK CODE 
 Bombay Stock Exchange Limited: 532771 
 NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited: JHS 
 ISIN Code: INE544H01014 
• MARKET PRICE DATA
 Monthly high and low prices and volumes of equity shares of 

stthe Company at BSE and the NSE for the year ended 31  
March, 2024. The below Chart compares the Company's 
share price at the BSE versus the Sensex.

and/or Business Standard (English) circulated all over India, 
Business Standard (Hindi) circulated in Regional Area. 

 The quarterly and annual financial results of the Company 
are also available on the websites of Bombay Stock 
Exchange Limited and NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 
v i z .  www.bse ind ia .com and www.nse ind ia .com 
respecƟvely.

 Further, official news releases have also been posted on the 
website of the Company and presentaƟons are made to 
insƟtuƟonal investors and analysts on the Company's 
audited annual financial results.

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:
• COMPANY'S WEBSITE:
 The website of the Company is  which www.svendgaard.com

contains all relevant informaƟon about the Company the 
Annual Report, Shareholding PaƩern, Results and all other 

material informaƟon as and when prepared are updated on 
this site. 

• ENSUING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 Date of AGM : 10th September 2024
 Time  :   1:00 P.M. 
  Venue  : This meeƟng is being held through Video 

Conferencing or Other Audiovisual 
Means facility.

• FINANCIAL CALENDER 
st st Financial  Year :  1  April, 2023 to 31  March, 2024 

ST· TENTATIVE CALENDAR FOR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDING 31  
MARCH, 2024

 The tentaƟve dates for Board MeeƟngs for consideraƟon of 
quarterly financial results are as follows:

First Quarter Results Within 45 days of the end of the first quarter 

Second Quarter & Half Yearly Results Within 45 days of the end of the second quarter 

Third Quarter & Nine Months Results Within 45 days of the end of the third quarter 

Fourth Quarter and Annual Results Within 60 days of the end of the financial year 

 

S. No. Month 
BSE NSE 

High Low High Low 
1 Apr-23 18.79 15.35 18.35 15.30 
2 May-23 19.00 15.00 19.10 16.00 

3 Jun-23 24.84 16.70 24.85 16.70 

4 Jul-23 24.50 20.40 24.65 20.30 

5 Aug-23 28.84 20.10 28.00 20.10 

6 Sep-23 26.23 21.10 26.15 21.15 

7 Oct-23 26.51 19.93 25.60 19.85 

8 Nov-23 28.26 20.80 28.20 20.75 

9 Dec-23 31.00 23.86 31.10 23.80 

10 Jan-24 39.45 24.71 39.50 24.90 

11 Feb-24 36.41 22.56 26.70 22.80 

12 Mar-24 25.09 15.53 25.00 15.55 

 

http://www.svendgaard.com
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Performance in comparison to broad-based indices of BSE Sensex and NIFTY 50

Month JHS Closing Price  
(BSE) (INR) 

BSE Sensex Closing  
(INR) 

JHS Closing Price  
(NSE) (INR) 

NSE NiŌy 50 Closing 
(INR) 

Apr-23 17.67 61,112.44 17.70 18065 

May-23 16.96 62,622.24 16.95 18,534.40 

Jun-23 23.44 64,718.56 23.40 19,189.05 

Jul-23 21.44 66,527.67 20.80 19,753.80 

Aug-23 24.26 64,831.41 24.25 19,253.80 

Sep-23 22.00 65,828.41 22.15 19,638.30 

Oct-23 22.10 63,874.93 22.30 19,079.60 

Nov-23 25.64 66,988.44 25.70 20,133,15 

Dec-23 25.50 72,240.26 25.45 21,731.40 

Jan-24 36.36 71,752.11 36.30 21,725.70 

Feb-24 24.19 72,500.30 24.15 21,982.80 

Mar-24 16.39 73,651.35 16.15 22,326.90 

 

Category Category of shareholders No. of Shareholders No of Shares % of Holding

(A) Promoter and Promoter Group 4 2,95,81,318 37.73

(B) Public 26444 4,88,15,444 62.27

(C) Non-Promoter- Non Public 0 0 0

(C1) Shares underlying DRs 0 0 0

(C2) Shares held by Employee Trusts 0 0 0

Grand Total 26448 78396762 100.00

*None of the Company's SecuriƟes have been suspended from trading.

• REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER AGENTS 
 Name and Address       : Alankit Assignments Limited, Alankit Heights
     1E/13, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi – 110055
 Telephone                     : +91-11-4254 1234
 Fax                                : + 91-11-4254 1201
 Email                            : jksingla@alankit.com
• SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM 

th As per  SEBI circular dated 8  Jan. 2022 requests for effecƟng transfer of securiƟes (except in case of transmission or transposiƟon of 
securiƟes) shall not be processed from April 01, 2019 unless the securiƟes are held in dematerialized form with the depositories. All 
such requests are handled and disposed off by Company's Registrar & Share Transfer Agent i.e. Alankit Assignments Limited, within 
fiŌeen days from the date of receipt of request, provided the documents are found to be in order. In case of shares in electronic form, 
the transfers are processed by NSDL/CDSL through respecƟve Depository ParƟcipants. 

 Further pursuant to RegulaƟon 40(9) of SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons, cerƟficate on half yearly basis confirming the due compliance of 
share transfer formaliƟes by the Company from PracƟcing Company Secretary have been submiƩed to Stock Exchanges within 
sƟpulated Ɵme.

ST· SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 31  MARCH 2024

https://www.svendgaard.com/policy.html
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• DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2024

•  TOP 10 SHAREHOLDERS
st  The top 10(ten) Shareholders of the Company as on 31  March, 2024 are, namely:

• DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES
st The equity shares of your Company are under compulsory dematerializaƟon mode as on 31  March, 2024. 

st 99.99 % of shares of the Company are dematerialized as on 31  March, 2024. Trading in Equity shares of the Company is permiƩed 
only in Demat mode. The Equity shares of your company are frequently traded. (In April 2007 all shares of the company have been 
Listed on Stock Exchange). 

  PARTICULARS       AMOUNT
  
  NSDL        5,69,75,591
  CDSL        2,14,16,465
  PHYSICAL                   4,706          
  TOTAL       7,83,96,762

• OUTSTANDING GDRS/ ADRS/ WARRANTS OR ANY CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS 
st There is no outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ or any converƟble instruments as at the end of the financial year ended on 31  March 2024.

• CREDIT RATING 
 The Company has not obtained credit raƟng for the debt instruments/faciliƟes of the Company.
• UTILIZATION OF FUNDS RAISED THROUGH PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT OR QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONS PLACEMENT AS SPECIFIED 

UNDER REGULATION 32 (7A) 
 This is not applicable at the Company as there being no preferenƟal allotment during the year under review.
• PLANT LOCATION
 Himachal Pradesh
 Trilokpur Road, Kheri Kala-Amb, Tehsil - Nahan, DisƩ: Sirmaur, Himachal Pradesh-173030

    Sno.  Name of Shareholder Holdings 

1 NIKHIL NANDA 26494102 
2 SIXTH SENSE INDIA OPPORTUNITIES II 4867185 
3 SUSHMA NANDA 3065985 
4 VIJAY MOHAN GOVILA 2394000 
5 PARKER MULTI COMMODITIES  1605189 
6 ASPIRE EMERGING FUND 1500000 
7 ZAVERI FINSTOCK PVT. LTD.  1036164 
8 GRK ASSOCIATES PRIVATE LIMITED  699742 
9 DEEPAK SINGH 675850 
10 JAIADITYA HOLDINGS PRIVATE LIMITED  600000 

 

  
No. of shares  No. of Accounts  Percentage to Total Accounts Hoding Percentage to capital 

1-500  18733  70.83 2950240 3.76 
501-1000  3267  12.35 2752098 3.51 

1001-2000  1914  7.24 3035980 3.87 
2001-3000  744  2.81 1951340 2.49 
3001-4000  369  1.40 1338162 1.71 
4001-5000  357  1.35 1717686 2.19 

5001-10000  553  2.09 4218220 5.38 
10001-99999999999 511  1.93 60433036 77.09 

Total  26448  100.00 78396762 100.00 

 



JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited38

10. OTHER DISCLOSURE
a) Related Party TransacƟons: 
 AƩenƟon of the members is drawn to the disclosure set out 

in Note no. 40 to the standalone financial statements 
forming a part of the Annual Report for accessing the details 
of related party transacƟons. 

 Besides this, the Company has no material significant 
transacƟon with the related parƟes viz. promoters, directors 
of the Company, management, their relaƟves, subsidiaries 
of promoter Company etc. that may have a potenƟal conflict 
with the interest of the Company at large.

 Apart from the transacƟons specified in above notes of 
financial statements, there is no transacƟons of the 
Company with any person or enƟty belonging to the 
promoter/promoter group which hold(s) 10% or more 
shareholding in the listed enƟty.

 All related party transacƟons are negoƟated on an arm's 
length basis and are intended to further the Company's 
interests. In terms of SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons, the Company 
has formulated policy on dealing with Related Party 
TransacƟons and available at our website:
www.svendgaard.com/policy.html. 

b) Details of Non-Compliance: 
 The Company has complied with all requirements specified 

under the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons as well as other 
regulaƟons and guidelines of SEBI. Consequently, there 
were no strictures or penalƟes imposed by either SEBI or 
Stock Exchanges or any statutory authority for non-
compliance of any maƩer related to the capital markets 
during the last three Financial years except events given 
below: 

 Delay in filing of the voƟng results under RegulaƟon 44 of 
the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015, of the meeƟng of Equity Shareholders 
held on November 12, 2022 in pursuance of NCLT order 
dated August 30, 2022 in relaƟon to ongoing Composite 

Scheme of Demerger and AmalgamaƟon between JHS 
Sve n d ga a rd  L a b o rato r i e s  L i m i te d  ( “ D e m e rge d 
Company”/Transferee Company”), JHS Svendgaard Retail 
Ventures Private Limited (“ResulƟng Company”) and JHS 
Svendgaard Brands Limited (“Transferor Company”).

 Consequently, a penalty was levied by NSE and BSE 
amounƟng of INR 11,800/- (inclusive of GST) each which the 
Company paid Ɵmely as taken note by the Board. The 
Management also assures the members for being cauƟous 
of the same in order to avoid future inconvenience

c) Details of establishment of vigil mechanism/whistle 
blower policy: 

 Pursuant to SecƟon 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and RegulaƟon 22 of the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons, the 
Company has formulated Vigil Mechanism and Whistle 
Blower Policy for vigil mechanism of Directors and 
employees to report to the management about the 
unethical behavior, fraud or violaƟon of Company's code of 
conduct. The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards 
against vicƟmizaƟon of employees and Directors who use 
such mechanism and makes provision for direct access to 
the chairman of the Audit CommiƩee in excepƟonal cases. 
None of the personnel of the Company has been denied 
access to the Audit CommiƩee. The Whistle Blower Policy is 
displayed on the Company's website at : 
www.svendgaard.com/download/invester/Vigil_Mechansi
m/VIGIL%20MECHANISM%20POLICY.pdf

d) Compliance with mandatory and non-mandatory 
requirements: 

 The Company is fully compliant with the applicable 
mandatory requirements of the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons.

 The compliance with non-mandatory requirements can be 
understood from the following:

 A.   The Board 
  The Board is headed by a Non-execuƟve Independent 

Director as  Chairman. 

• ADDRESS FOR INVESTOR CORRESPONDENCE 
 All shareholders' correspondence should be forwarded to Alankit Assignments Limited, the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the 

Company or to the Investor Service Department at the Registered Office of the Company at the addresses menƟoned below. An 
exclusive e-mail Independent Director, investor@svendgaard.com for redressal of investor complaints has been created and the 
same is available on our website. 

 For Correspondence:        Registered Office: 
 JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited       JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited
  B-1/E-23, Mohan CooperaƟve Industrial Area,     Trilokpur Road, Kheri (Kala-Amb), Tehsil – 
 Mathura Road, New Delhi-110044   Nahan, District Sirmour,
 Ph: 09560933011; Fax: 011-26900434       Himachal Pradesh – 173030 
          Ph: 7906848423 Fax: 01702-238830
Compliance Officer: 
 Mrs. Komal Jha, Company Secretary 
 Phone: 09560933011; Fax: 011-26900434 
 e-mail:  cs@svendgaard.com

https://www.svendgaard.com/policy.html
https://www.svendgaard.com/download/invester/Vigil_Mechansim/VIGIL%20MECHANISM%20POLICY.pdf
https://www.svendgaard.com/download/invester/Vigil_Mechansim/VIGIL%20MECHANISM%20POLICY.pdf
mailto:cs@svendgaard.com
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 B.  Modified opinion(s) in audit report 
  The audit report on the financial statements have been 

issued with an unmodified audit opinion.
  C.  ReporƟng of internal auditor
  The internal auditor may report directly to the audit 

commiƩee.
e) Disclosure In Respect of Policy For Determining Material 

Subsidiaries : 
 The Company does not have any material subsidiary as 

defined under the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons. 
 The Company has also formulated a policy for determining 

material subsidiaries in accordance with RegulaƟon 16(1) (c) 
of the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons and it has placed the same on  
the website of the company at

 www.svendgaard.com/policy.html. 
f) Disclosure of AccounƟng Treatment in preparaƟon of 

Financial Statements: 
 The Company has followed accounƟng principles generally 

accepted in India, including the Indian AccounƟng Standard 
(Ind AS) as specified under SecƟon 133 of Act (“the Act”) and 
other relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013. The 
Company has uniformly applied the AccounƟng Polices 
during the period presented. Kindly refer notes to the 
financial statements (standalone and consolidated) for 
significant accounƟng policies adopted by the Company.

g) CEO/ CFO CerƟficaƟon: 
 As required by the SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons, the CEO and CFO 

cerƟficaƟon is provided in this Annual Report as Annexure- 
A.

h) CerƟficate of Non-DisqualificaƟon
 A cerƟficate from a company secretary in pracƟce that none 

of the directors on the Board of the Company have been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or conƟnuing 
as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is annexed 
to the Annual Report as Annexure B.

i)  The Company has not undertaken commodity price risk or 
foreign exchange risk and hedging acƟviƟes; 

j)  The Board had accepted all the recommendaƟon of the 
commiƩee(s) of the Board which is mandatorily required, 
in the year under review.

k)   The provision of RegulaƟon 21 of SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons 
dealing with Risk Management CommiƩee are not 
applicable on the Company.

l) There have been no loans or advances extended by the 
Company and its subsidiaries, which bear resemblance to 
loans, to any firms or companies where the Directors of the 
Company hold an interest.

m)  DETAIL OF TOTAL FEES PAID BY THE COMPANY ALONG 
WITH SUBSIDIARIES TO THE STATUTORY AUDITORS AND 
THEIR NETWORK FIRMS

 The details of total fees for all services incurred by the 
Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the 
statutory auditor and all enƟƟes in the network 
firm/network enƟty of which the statutory auditor is a part, 
are as follows:

n) DISCLOSURES IN RELATION TO SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF 
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013.

 An Internal Complaints CommiƩee has been consƟtuted to 
look into grievance/complaints of sexual harassment lodged 
by employees as per Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (PrevenƟon, ProhibiƟon and Redressal) Act, 
2013. Further, no complaints were received during the year 

stand no complaint is pending on 31  March, 2024.
o) COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY 

SECRETARIES REGARDING COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS 
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 In terms of Regulation 34 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
the compliance certificate from practicing company 

secretaries to the effect of compliance of conditions of 
corporate governance by the Company is annexed with this 
Report as Annexure- C. 

p) CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING PRACTICES
 The Company has in place a Code of Conduct for Prevention 

of Insider Trading and a Code of Practices and Procedures for 
Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information 
in accordance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015. The Code of Conduct for Prevention of 
Insider Trading lays down guidelines advising the 
Management, staff and other connected persons, on 
procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made by 
them while dealing with the shares of JHS, and cautioning 
them of the consequences of violations. Also, the company 
has been complying with SDD Disclosure.  The Company 

ParƟculars Amount 
(In Lacs) 

Services as statutory auditors  04.00 
Tax audit  1.50 

Limited Reviews 2.46 
Other maƩers (cerƟficaƟon and reporƟng)  0.00 
Re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses 0.75 
Total  8.70  
 

https://www.svendgaard.com/policy.html
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Secretary is the compliance officer under the Code 
responsible for complying with the procedures, monitoring 
adherence to the rules for the prevention.

q) CODE OF CONDUCT
 The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for all its 

Directors, Senior Management and Employees. This Code of 
Conduct has been communicated to all of them. The Code of  
Conduct has also been put on the Company's website i.e. 
www.svendgaard.com/Codes.html. 

 The Code was circulated to all the Board members and 
Senior Management Personnel and compliance of the same 
has been affirmed by them for the financial year 2023-24. A 
declaraƟon signed by the all board Members and senior 
management of the Company is aƩached as Annexure- D.

r) Provision of RegulaƟon 24 of SEBI (LODR) RegulaƟons, 
2015 is not applicable on the company as there is no 
material subsidiary of the Company. However, provision 
relaƟng to unlisted subsidiary companies were compiled 
during the year

s) Director & Officer Liability Insurance 
 The RegulaƟon 25(10) of the SEBI (LODR) RegulaƟons, 2015 

is not applicable on the company as the company is not fall 
under the top 1000 companies as per market capitalizaƟon 
as on 31st March 2024.

t) Suspense Escrow Account
Ÿ The aggregate number of shareholders and the 

outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at the 
beginning of the year are NIL . 

Ÿ Number of shareholders who approached listed enƟty 
for transfer of shares from suspense account during the 
year are NIL.

Ÿ Number of shareholders to whom shares were 
transferred from suspense account during the year are 
5.

Ÿ The aggregate number of shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the suspense account lying at the 
end of the year are  5  and 1356 respecƟvely. 

Ÿ That the voƟng rights in these shares shall remain frozen 
Ɵll the righƞul owner of such shares claim the shares.

u) Secretarial Audit
 Secretarial Audit report issued by PracƟcing Company 

stSecretary for the financial year 31  March, 2024 in the MR-3 
is part of the annexure of Board report. 

v) Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed 
enƟƟes

 The company were not entered into any type of agreement 
menƟoned under clause 5A of paragraph A of Part A of 
Schedule III of SEBI(LODR) RegulaƟons, 2015.

11. DISCLOSURE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE 
GOVERANCE REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED LISTING 
RELUGATIONS

 During the year under review the company has complied:
 a) With the requirement of Schedule V of the SEBI LisƟng 

RegulaƟons.
 b) With Corporate Governance requirements specified in 

RegulaƟon 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) & (t) of sub-
regulaƟon (2) of RegulaƟon 46 of the SEBI LisƟng 
RegulaƟons and necessary disclosure thereof have 
been made in this Corporate governance Report.

For and on behalf of the Board
        

          
  Sd/- Sd/-
  Nikhil Nanda Vinay MiƩal
  Managing Director Director
  DIN: 00051501 DIN: 08232559

Date:12/08/2024           
Place: New Delhi      

https://www.svendgaard.com/Codes.html
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Annexure- A

CEO CFO CERTIFICATION

We, Paramvir Singh, Chief ExecuƟve Officer and Ashish Goel, Chief Financial Officer, of JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited, to the best of 
our knowledge and belief cerƟfy that:
A. We have reviewed the financial statements and the Cash Flow Statement of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2024 

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:
 1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be 

misleading;
 2.  These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company`s affairs and are in compliance with exisƟng accounƟng 

standards, applicable laws and regulaƟons.
B. We also cerƟfy, that based on our knowledge and the informaƟon provided to us, there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, 

no transacƟons entered into by the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violaƟve of the Company`s code of 
conduct.

C. The Company`s other cerƟfying officers and we are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporƟng and procedures for the Company and that we have evaluated the effecƟveness of Company`s internal control systems and 
procedures pertaining to financial reporƟng.

D. The Company`s other cerƟfying officers and we have indicated, based on our most recent evaluaƟon, wherever applicable, to the 
Company`s Auditors and through them to the Audit CommiƩee of the Company`s Board of Directors:

 1. Deficiencies in the design or operaƟon of internal controls of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to 
take to recƟfy these deficiencies;

 2. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporƟng during the year;
 3. Significant changes in accounƟng policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 

statements; and
 4. Any fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the Management or an employee having a 

significant role in the Company`s internal control system over financial reporƟng.

                   Sd/-   Sd/-
Place: New Delhi                  Paramvir Singh                   Ashish Goel
Date :  18/05/2024                                             CEO             CFO
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(pursuant to RegulaƟon 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015)

To
The Members 
JHS SVENDGAARD LABORATORIES LIMITED

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of JHS Svendgaard 
Laboratories Limited having CIN L74110HP2004PLC027558 and having registered office at Trilokpur Roadkala AMB DisƩ Sirmaur 
Himachal Pradesh (hereinaŌer referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
CerƟficate, in accordance with RegulaƟon 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the SecuriƟes Exchange Board of India 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015.
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the verificaƟons (including Directors IdenƟficaƟon Number (DIN) status 
at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanaƟons furnished to us by the Company & its officers, We hereby cerƟfy 
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2024 have been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or conƟnuing as Directors of companies by the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.

Mrs. Upma Chawdhry (DIN: 02333321) appointed as  Non-ExecuƟve Independent Director on the Board of the Company w.e.f. 14th 
August 2023.
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / conƟnuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verificaƟon. This cerƟficate is neither an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effecƟveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company

 For Mohit & Associates 
Company Secretaries           
Sd/-
 Mohit Dahiya 
Proprietor 
PracƟsing Company Secretary 
Membership No-F9540 
COP No- 23052 
UDIN : F009540F000186365 

 Date : 19/04/2024 

Sr.No.  Name of Director  DIN Date of Appointment 
1  NIKHIL NANDA  00051501 08/10/2004 
2  MUKUL PATHAK  00051534 14/07/2015 
3  RAJAGOPAL CHAKRAVARTHI VENKATEISH  00259537 23/06/2020 
4  KAPIL MINOCHA  02817283 23/06/2020 
5  UPMA CHAWDHRY  02333321 14/08/2023 
6  VINAY MITTAL  08232559 27/05/2023 
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Annexure- C

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE FROM PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES REGARDING 
COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members of
JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited
B1/E23, Mohan Co-OperaƟve
Industrial Area, Mathura Road
New Delhi-110 044

We have examined the compliance of condiƟon of JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended on 31st 
March, 2024, as sƟpulated in chapter IV of The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 
RegulaƟons, 2015 (“LisƟng RegulaƟons”). The compliance of condiƟons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 
Management. Our examinaƟon was limited to procedures and implementaƟon thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
compliance with the condiƟons of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial Statements 
of the Company.
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, we cerƟfy that the Company has complied 
with the condiƟons of Corporate Governance as specified in chapter IV of the LisƟng RegulaƟons. We further state that such compliance is 
neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effecƟveness with which the Management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company.

 For Mohit & Associates 
Company Secretaries           
                    
Sd/- 
 Mohit Dahiya 
Proprietor 
PracƟsing Company Secretary 
Membership No-F9540 
COP No- 23052 
UDIN : F009540F000186365 

 Date : 19/04/2024 



JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited44

Annexure- D

CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF THE COMPANY

I, Paramvir Singh, Chief ExecuƟve Officer of the Company, hereby cerƟfy that the members of the Board of Directors of the Company and 
the Management Personnel have affirmed the compliance with the code of conduct adopted by the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2024 in terms of Para D of Schedule V of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015.

                   Sd/-
Place: New Delhi                   Paramvir Singh                   
Date :    12/08/2024                                            CEO           
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
........................ u ........................

TO THE MEMBERS OF 
JHS SVENDGAARD LABORATORIES LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited (the 
“Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 
2024, the statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and 
the statement  of cash flows for the year ended on that date and a 
summary of significant accounƟng policies and other explanatory 
informaƟon (hereinaŌer referred to as the “standalone financial 
statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to 
the explanaƟons given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the informaƟon required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the Indian AccounƟng Standards 
prescribed under secƟon 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind 
AS”) and other accounƟng principles generally accepted in India, 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024 and its 
loss, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash 

flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in 
accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng (“SA”s) specified 
under secƟon 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibiliƟes under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements secƟon of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the   Code of Ethics issued by the 
InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical      responsibiliƟes in accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion  on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit MaƩers
Key audit maƩers are those maƩers that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the current period. These 
maƩers were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these maƩers.

# Key Audit MaƩer Auditor's Response

1 Revenue recogniƟon
Revenue from the sale of goods (hereinaŌer 
referred to as “Revenue”) is recognized when the 
company performs its obligaƟon to its customers 
and the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably and recovery of the consideraƟon is 
probable. The Ɵming of such recogniƟon in the 
case of sale of goods is when the control over the 
same is transferred to the customer, which is 
mainly upon delivery. The Ɵming of revenue 
recogniƟon i s  re levant  to  the  reported 
performance of the Company. The management 
considers revenue as a key measure for evaluaƟon 
of performance.
Refer Note 2.1. (a) to the Standalone Financial 
Statements – Significant accounƟng policies.

Principal audit procedures
Our audit approach was a combinaƟon of test of internal controls and 
substanƟve procedures including:
· Assessing the appropriateness of the Company's revenue 

recogniƟon accounƟng policies in line with Ind AS 115 ("Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers") and tesƟng thereof.

· EvaluaƟng the design and implementaƟon of Company's controls in 
respect of revenue recogniƟon.

· TesƟng the effecƟveness of such controls over revenue cut off at 
year-end.

· We performed substanƟve tesƟng by selecƟng samples of revenue 
transacƟons recorded during the year by verifying the underlying 
documents, which included goods dispatch notes and shipping 
documents.

· Performing analyƟcal procedures on current year revenue based on 
monthly trends and where appropriate, conducƟng further 
enquiries and tesƟng.

Based on the above procedure performed, the recogniƟon and 
measurement of revenue from sale of goods are considered to be 
adequate and reasonable.
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InformaƟon Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's 
Report Thereon
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other 
informaƟon. The other informaƟon comprises the informaƟon 
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Director's 
Report including Annexures to Director's Report, Corporate 
Governance and Shareholder's InformaƟon, but does not include 
the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. These reports are 
expected to be made available to us aŌer the date of this 
auditor's report. 
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not 
cover the other informaƟon idenƟfied above when it becomes 
available and we do not and will not  express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connecƟon with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other informaƟon 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other informaƟon is 
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, 
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
When we read the other informaƟon, if we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement therein, we are required to 
communicate the maƩer to those charged with governance and 
take appropriate acƟon, if required.
Management's ResponsibiliƟes for the Standalone Financial 
Statements
The Company's Management and Board of Directors is 
responsible for the maƩers stated in secƟon 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparaƟon of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial posiƟon, 
financial performance, including other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the Ind AS and other accounƟng principles generally 
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounƟng records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds and other irregulariƟes; 
selecƟon and applicaƟon of appropriate accounƟng policies; 
making judgments and esƟmates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementaƟon and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operaƟng 
effecƟvely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounƟng records, relevant to the preparaƟon and presentaƟon 
of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to conƟnue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maƩers related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounƟng unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operaƟons, or has no realisƟc alternaƟve but to do so.
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the 

Company's financial reporƟng process.
Auditor's ResponsibiliƟes for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements
Our objecƟves are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepƟcism 
throughout the audit. We also:

· IdenƟfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecƟng a material misstatement resulƟng from fraud is 
higher than for one resulƟng from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intenƟonal omissions, 
misrepresentaƟons, or the override of internal control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal financial control 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under secƟon 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operaƟng 
effecƟveness of such controls.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟng policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounƟng esƟmates and related 
disclosures made by the management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of 
the going concern basis of accounƟng and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or condiƟons that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to conƟnue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw aƩenƟon in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or condiƟons may cause the 
Company to cease to conƟnue as a going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presentaƟon, structure and content of 
the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 
statements represent the underlying transacƟons and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentaƟon.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone 
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may 
be influenced. We consider quanƟtaƟve materiality and 
qualitaƟve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and 
in evaluaƟng the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect 
of any idenƟfied misstatements in the standalone financial 
statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 
among other maƩers, the planned scope and Ɵming of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we idenƟfy during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relaƟonships and other maƩers that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.
From the maƩers communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those maƩers that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit maƩers. We 
describe these maƩers in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulaƟon precludes public disclosure about the maƩer or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a maƩer 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communicaƟon.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 

2020 (“the order”), issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-secƟon (11) of secƟon 143 of the act, 
we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the maƩers 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent 
applicable.

2) A.  As required by SecƟon 143(3) of the Act, based on our 
audit we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the informaƟon and 

explanaƟons which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examinaƟon of those books.

c) The standalone Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of 
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
SecƟon 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the wriƩen   representaƟons   received   
from   the   directors   as on 31 March 2024 taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of SecƟon 164(2) of 
the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporƟng of the Company and 
the operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operaƟng effecƟveness of the Company's internal 
financial controls over financial reporƟng.

B.  With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the 
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to 
us:
i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 

l iƟgaƟons on its financial posiƟon in its 
standalone financial statements- Refer Note 35 to 
the standalone financial statements.

ii.  The Company did not have any long term 
contracts including derivaƟve contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to 
be transferred to the Investor EducaƟon and 
ProtecƟon Fund by the Company.

iv. 
a) The Management has represented that, to the 

best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which 
are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Company to or in any other person or enƟty, 
including foreign enƟty (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in wriƟng 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or enƟƟes idenƟfied in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(“UlƟmate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
UlƟmate Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the 
best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which 
are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been received by the Company 
from any person or enƟty, including foreign enƟty 
(“Funding ParƟes”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in wriƟng or otherwise, that 
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or enƟƟes 
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idenƟfied in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf  of  the Funding Party  (“UlƟmate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the UlƟmate Beneficiaries; 

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been 
considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our noƟce 
that  has caused us to bel ieve that  the 
representaƟons under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a)and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any 
dividend during the year and has not proposed 
final dividend for the year.

vi. Based on our examinaƟon which included test 
checks, the company has used an accounƟng 
soŌware for maintaining its books of account 
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facil ity and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transacƟons 
recorded in the soŌware. Further, during the 
course of our audit we did not come across any 
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered 
with.

C.  With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the 
Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of 
secƟon 197(16) of the Act,
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and 
according to the explanaƟons given to us,  the 
remuneraƟon paid by the Company to its directors during 
the year is in accordance with the provisions of secƟon 197 
of the Act.

 For TATTVAM & Co.
 Chartered Accountants

Firm's RegistraƟon No. 015048N

Sd/-
Gaurav Saraf

Partner
Membership No.535309

UDIN: 24535309BKHJQP8406
Place: New Delhi
Date: 18 May 2024
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S 
REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements' secƟon of the Independent Auditor's 
Report of even date to the Members of JHS Svendgaard 
Laboratories Limited on the standalone financial statements as 
of and for the year ended 31 March 2024)
To the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons 
provided to us by the Company and the books of account and 
records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state 
that:
(i)  In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment 

and Intangible Assets:
(a) 

(A) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full parƟculars, including quanƟtaƟve 
details and situaƟon of property, plant and 
equipment and relevant details of right-of-use 
assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full parƟculars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verificaƟon of 
Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets 
so to cover all the assets once every three years which, 
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of 
the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to 
the program, certain property, plant and equipment 
were due for verificaƟon during the year and were 
physically verified by the Management during the year. 
According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to 
us, no material discrepancies were noƟced on such 
verificaƟon.

(c)  According to the informaƟon and explanaƟon given to 
us and on the basis of our examinaƟon of the records of 
the Company, the Ɵtle deed of immovable property 
(other than immovable properƟes where the company 
is the   lessee, and the lease agreements are duly 
executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the 
standalone financial statements are held in the name 
of the Company except

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, 
Plant and Equipment (including right- of-use assets) 
and intangible assets during the year. Accordingly, 
reporƟng under clause 3(i)(d) of the order is not 
applicable to the company.

(e) No proceedings have been iniƟated during the year or 
are pending against the Company as at 31 March 2024 
for holding any benami property under the Benami 
TransacƟons (ProhibiƟon) Act, 1988 (as amended in 
2016) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, 
reporƟng under clause 3(i)(e) of the order is not 
applicable to the company.

(ii) 
(a) The management has conducted physical verificaƟon 

of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year, 
accordingly to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given 
to us and based on the audit procedures performed by 
us, we are of the opinion that the coverage and 
procedure of such verificaƟon by the management is 
appropriate and no material discrepancies of 10% or 
more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were 
noƟced.

(b) The Company has not been sancƟoned working capital 
limits in excess of ₹5 crore, in aggregate, at any points 
of Ɵme during the year, from banks or financial 
insƟtuƟons on the basis of security of current assets. 

DescripƟon of property Gross 
carrying 
value (in 

lakhs)

Held in 
name of

Whether 
promoter, 
director or 

their 
relaƟve or 
employee

Period held 
– indicate 

range, 
where 

appropriate

Reason for not  being held in name of 
company*

Land Kh/Kh/No-22/23 
Khasra no-57 measuring 4-9 
bighas, Khasra no.58 
measuring 2-2 bighas and 
Khasra no.59 measuring 2-9 
bighas i.e. Kitas 3total 
measuring 9-00 bighas 
situated at Mouja Kheri Teh 
Nahan District Simour H.P. 

1,062

Sh. Sita Ram 
s/o Sh. Kartar 
Chand s/o Sh. 
Shyama Ram 
R/O Vill 
Shivpur Teh 
Amb District 
Una H.P.

No 6 Days 

The Company has entered into an 
agreement to sell & nbsp with the seller. 
The Company is in undisputed possession 
of the land. However, in the recent years, 
the company has been evaluaƟng the 
mergers with another companies in the 
manufacturing business. Thus the 
company has presently deferred the 
registraƟon of the said land, to be 
registered in the name of the merged 
enƟty, in the future years.
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Accordingly, reporƟng under clause 3(ii)(b) of the order 
is not applicable to the company.

(iii) 
(a) the company has not made investment in, guarantee or 

security to companies, firms, limited liability 
partnerships or any other parƟes during the year. 
However the companies has granted unsecured loans, 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, 
to the companies, limited liability partnerships and 
other parƟes during the year, the details of which are as 
follows:

(b) In our opinion, the investments made and the terms 
and condiƟons of the grant of loans, during the year 
are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's 
interest.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the 
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of 
interest has been sƟpulated and the repayments of 
principal amounts and receipts of interest are generally 
been regular as per sƟpulaƟon. 

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no 
amount which is overdue for more than 90 days as at 
the balance sheet date. 

(e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due 
during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh 
loans granted to seƩle the overdues of exisƟng loans 
given to the same parƟes.

(f) The Company has not granted loans or advances in the 
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without 
specifying any terms or period of repayment during the 
year. Accordingly, reporƟng under clause 3(iii)(f) of the 
order is not applicable to the company.
The Company has not provided any guarantee or 
security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or any other parƟes.

iv.  The Company has complied with the provisions of SecƟons 
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans 
granted, investments made and guarantees and securiƟes 
provided, as applicable.

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts 
which are deemed to be deposits. Hence, reporƟng under 
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts 
maintained by the company pursuant to the Rules made by 
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost 
records under sub-secƟon (1) of secƟon 148 of the Act in 
respect of the company's products/services and are of the 
opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts  and 
records have been made and maintained.

 However, we have not made a detailed examinaƟon of the 
cost records with a view to determine whether they are 
accurate or complete.

vii. In respect of statutory dues:
a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been 

regular in deposiƟng undisputed statutory dues, 
including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, 
Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise and other 
material statutory dues applicable to it with the 
appropriate authoriƟes except for slight delays.

 There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect 
of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees' 
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, 
duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess 
and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 
March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months 
from the date they became payable.

b) There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) 
that have not been deposited with the appropriate 
authoriƟes on account of any dispute.

viii. There were no transacƟons relaƟng to previously 
unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961(43 of 1961).

ix. 
(a)   The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans 

or other borrowings or in payment of interest thereon 
to any lender.

(b)  The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by 
any bank or financial insƟtuƟon or government or any 
government authority.

(c)  In our opinion and according to informaƟon and 
explanaƟons given to us, the term loans were applied 
for the purpose for which loans were taken. 

(d)   On an overall examinaƟon of the financial statements 
of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis have, 
prima facie, not been used during the year for long-
term purposes by the Company.

(e)   On an overall examinaƟon of the financial statements 
of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds 
from any enƟty or person on account of or to meet the 
obligaƟons of its subsidiaries.

ParƟculars Amount  
(in Lakhs) 

 

Aggregate amount granted during the 
year:  

- Subsidiaries 
- Others 

 
Balance outstanding as at balance 
sheet date in respect of above cases: 

- Subsidiaries 
- Others 

  

 

 
 
 

- 1,225.32 
- 117.36 
 
 
 
- 165.67 
- 157.36 
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(f)  According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to 
us, we report that the Company has not raised loans 
during the year on the pledge of securiƟes held in its 
subsidiaries.

x.        
(a)  The Company did not raise moneys by way of iniƟal 

public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not 
applicable. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any 
preferenƟal allotment or private placement of shares 
or converƟble debentures (fully, parƟally or 
opƟonally). Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (x)(b) of 
the Order are not applicable.

xi.         
(a)  No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the 

Company has been noƟced or reported during the year.
(b)  No report under sub-secƟon (12) of secƟon 143 of the 

Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014with the Central Government, 
during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c)  There are no whistle blower complaints received by 
company during the year.

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporƟng 
under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with SecƟon 
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to 
applicable transacƟons with the related parƟes and the 
details of related party transacƟons have been disclosed in 
the standalone financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounƟng standards.

xiv. 
(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal 

audit system commensurate with the size and the 
nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the 
year under audit, issued to the Company during the 
year and Ɵll date, in determining the nature, Ɵming 
and extent of our audit procedures.

xv. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transacƟons with its Directors or persons 
connected with its directors and hence provisions of secƟon 
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company.

xvi. 
(a) The company is not required be registered under 

SecƟon 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xvi)(a) of the order 
is not applicable. 

(b) The company has not conducted non- banking 
financial or housing finance acƟviƟes during the year. 
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xvi)(b) of the order 
is not applicable.

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company 
(“CIC”) as defined in regulaƟons made by the Reserve 
Bank of India. Accordingly, provisions of clause 
3(xvi)© of the order is not applicable.

(d) Based on the informaƟon and explanaƟons provided 
by the management, the Group does not have any 
CICs, which are part of the Group. Accordingly, 
provisions of clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order are not 
applicable.

xvii.  The company has not incurred any cash losses in the 
financial year and preceding financial year. 

xviii. There has been no resignaƟon of the statutory auditors of 
the Company during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial raƟos, ageing and expected 
dates of realisaƟon of financial assets and payment of 
financial liabiliƟes, other informaƟon accompanying the 
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and Management plans and based on our 
examinaƟon of the evidence supporƟng the assumpƟons, 
nothing has come to our aƩenƟon, which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of 
the audit report indicaƟng that Company is not capable of 
meeƟng its liabiliƟes exisƟng at the date of balance sheet as 
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporƟng is based on the facts up to 
the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabiliƟes falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. The provisions of secƟon 135 are not applicable to the 
company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xx) (a) and (b) 
of the order is not applicable.

For TATTVAM & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's RegistraƟon No. 015048N

Sd/-
Gaurav Saraf

Partner

Membership No.535309
UDIN: 24535309BKHJQP8406

Place: New Delhi
Date: 18 May 2024
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ANNEXURE 'B' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S 
REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements' secƟon        of the Independent 
Auditor's Report of even date to the members of JHS 
Svendgaard Laboratories Limited on the standalone financial 
statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Standalone Financials Statements under Clause (i) of sub-
secƟon 3 of SecƟon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements of JHS Svendgaard Laboratories 
Limited (the “Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjuncƟon 
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements based on the internal control 
over financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company 
considering the essenƟal components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). These responsibiliƟes include 
the design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operaƟng effecƟvely for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, and the 
Ɵmely preparaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon, as required 
under the Act.
Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial ReporƟng (the “Guidance Note”) issued 
by the ICAI and the Standards on AudiƟng prescribed under 
SecƟon 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effecƟvely in all material respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to standalone financial statements and their 
operaƟng effecƟveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to standalone financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and tesƟng and evaluaƟng the 
design and operaƟng effecƟveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls with reference to 

standalone financial statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements 
A company's internal financial control with reference to 
standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporƟng and the preparaƟon of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounƟng 
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference 
to standalone financial statements includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transacƟons 
and disposiƟons of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transacƟons are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparaƟon of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounƟng principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisaƟons of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevenƟon or Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorised 
acquisiƟon, use, or disposiƟon of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent LimitaƟons of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to Standalone Financial Statements 
Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial controls 
over financial reporƟng, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. Also, projecƟons of any evaluaƟon of the internal 
financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control with reference to standalone financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in 
condiƟons, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our informaƟon and according to the 
explanaƟons given to us, the Company has, in all material 
respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial statements were 
operaƟng effecƟvely as at 31 March 2024, based on the criteria 
for internal financial control with reference to standalone 
financial statements established by the Company considering the 
essenƟal components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
ReporƟng issued by the ICAI.

For TATTVAM & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's RegistraƟon No. 015048N

Sd/-
Gaurav Saraf

Partner

Membership No.535309
UDIN: 24535309BKHJQP8406

Place: New Delhi
Date: 18 May 2024
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2024

(₹ in lakhs)

ParƟculars Notes  As at 31 March 
2024  

 As at 31 March 
2023  

ASSETS     Non-current assets    
 (a) Property, plant and equipment  3.1 8,553.43 6,274.52 

 (b) Capital work-in-progress 3.2 81.68 856.83 

 (c) Right-of-use assets 3.3 146.47 151.93 

 (d) Goodwill 3.4 79.61 79.61 

 (e) Other intangible assets 3.5 261.96 0.72 

 (f) Financial assets    
  i) Investments 4 345.83 297.76 

  ii) Loans 5 321.23 49.11 

  iii) Other financial assets 6 124.29 291.75 

 (g) Deferred tax assets (net) 7 1,052.23 1,127.83 

 (h) Non-current tax assets (net) 8 95.70 85.40 

 (i) Other non-current assets 9 4,340.12 3,842.00 
Total non-current assets  15,402.56 13,057.46 
Current assets    
 (a) Inventories 10 1,264.97 1,299.82 

 (b) Financial assets    
  i) Trade receivables 11 1,287.96 1,853.60 

  ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 886.63 3,721.61 

  iii) Bank balances other than (ii)above 13 126.01 140.23 

  iv) Loans 14 1.80 279.66 

  v) Other financial assets 15 106.48 372.51 

 (c) Other current assets 16 668.64 821.62 

 (d) Current tax assets (net)  - - 
Total current assets   4,342.49 8,489.05 
Total assets   19,745.05 21,546.51 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    EQUITY     
 (a) Equity share capital 17 7,839.68 7,839.68 

 (b) Other equity 18 9,188.63 9,583.57 
Total equity  17,028.31 17,423.24 
LIABILITIES    Non-current liabiliƟes    
 (a) Financial liabiliƟes    
  i) Borrowings 19(i) 11.89 23.93 

  ii) Lease liabiliƟes 19(ii) 104.85 182.99 

 (b) Provisions 20 147.71 136.75 

 (c) Other non-current liabiliƟes 21 118.90 130.44 
Total non-current liabiliƟes  383.35 474.11 
Current liabiliƟes    
 (a) Financial liabiliƟes    
  i) Borrowings 19(i) 343.92 13.95 

  ii) Trade payables    
  - total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 22 381.94 179.86 

  - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 
small enterprises 22 1,027.57 2,058.49 

  iii) Lease liabiliƟes 19(ii) 52.21 36.73 

  iv) Other financial liabiliƟes 23 442.83 231.86 

 (b) Other current liabiliƟes 24 72.61 1,116.17 

 (c) Provisions 20 12.31 12.11 
Total current liabiliƟes   2,333.39 3,649.16 
Total liabiliƟes  2,716.74 4,123.27 
Total equity and liabiliƟes  19,745.05 21,546.51 
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       The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements  
           

  As per our report of even dated aƩached   
  For TATTVAM & Co.     For and on behalf of Board of Directors  

Chartered Accountants    JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited  
Firm RegistraƟon No.:015048N   

            
            
             Nikhil Nanda   Vinay MiƩal  

Gaurav Saraf    Managing Director   Director  
Partner      DIN : 00051501   DIN : 08232559  

Membership No.: 535309   
            
             Ashish Goel  Paramvir Singh Pabla  

          
 Chief Financial 

Officer  
 Chief ExecuƟve 

Officer  
            
          

  Place : New Delhi   
 

Komal Jha 
Date : 18 May 2024   

 
Company Secretary  

 

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-
Sd/-

Sd/-
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 

(₹ in lakhs)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

ParƟculars Notes  Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

INCOME    Revenue from operaƟons 25 7,079.82 8,481.45 
Other income 26 431.44 1,132.10 
Total income  7,511.26 9,613.55 
EXPENSES    
Cost of materials consumed 27(i) 4,081.25 5,603.91 
Purchases of stock-in-trade 27(ii) 201.48 134.20 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and 
stock-in-trade 

28 132.65 302.91 

Employee benefits expense 29 921.31 1,018.70 
Finance costs 30 46.00 54.66 
DepreciaƟon and amorƟsaƟon expenses 31 634.58 601.67 
Other expenses 32 1,836.14 2,328.95 
Total expenses   7,853.41 10,045.00 
    Profit/ (Loss) before excepƟonal items and tax   (342.15) (431.45) 
ExcepƟonal items 33 - (1,863.07) 
     
Profit/(Loss) before tax  (342.15) (2,294.52) 
Tax expense 34   
a) Current tax  - - 
b) Tax for previous years    - 
c) Deferred tax charge/(credit)   62.91 (542.81) 
Profit/ (Loss) for the year from conƟnuing operaƟons   (405.06) (1,751.71) 
Profit/(Loss) for the year  (405.06) (1,751.71) 
    Other comprehensive income    
-Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss    
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans  6.29 (13.38) 
Less: Income tax expense relaƟng to Items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss 

34 (1.64) 3.48 

Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax   4.65 (9.90) 
Total comprehensive income for the year   (400.41) (1,761.61) 
    Earnings per equity share     
a) Basic (Face value of ₹ 10 each)  (0.52) (2.23) 
b) Diluted (Face value of ₹ 10 each)  (0.52) (2.23) 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 

     As per our report of even dated aƩached 
   For TATTVAM & Co.  

 
 For and on behalf of Board of Directors  

Chartered Accountants 
 

 JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited  
Firm RegistraƟon No.:015048N       
        
  

 
 Nikhil Nanda   Vinay MiƩal  

  
 

 Managing Director   Director  
Gaurav Saraf 

 
 DIN : 00051501   DIN : 08232559  

Partner 
 

    
Membership No.: 535309 

 
  

   
 

 Ashish Goel   Paramvir Singh Pabla  
  

 
 Chief Financial Officer   Chief ExecuƟve Officer  

      
       
 Place : New Delhi 

  
 Komal Jha  

Date : 18 May 2024 
  

Company Secretary  
 

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(₹ in lakhs)

(₹ in lakhs)

(₹ in lakhs)

A. Equity Share Capital       
 Balance as at 01 April 2023 Changes in equity share capital 

during the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 

 7,839.68  7,839.68 
 Balance as at 01 April 2022 Changes in equity share capital 

during the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2023 

 7,839.68 - 7,839.68 
 B. Other Equity         

  Reserve and Surplus Other 
Comprehensive 

income 

Money 
Received 
against 
Share 

warrants 

Total Other 
Equity 

   Capital 
Reserve 

SecuriƟes 
Premium 

General 
Reserve 

Retained 
Earnings 

Remeasurement 
of net defined 
benefit plans 

 Balance as at 01 April 2023 (313.16) 11,035.39 6.68 (1,153.52) 8.18 - 9,583.57 
 Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - (405.06) - - (405.06) 
 Other comprehensive income  - - - - 4.65 - 4.65 
 Total comprehensive income for 

the year  
- - - (405.06) 4.65 - (400.41) 

          
 TransacƟon with owners in 

capacity as owners 
       

 Adjustment pertaining to a loan 
given to shareholder 

- - - 5.47 - - 5.47 

 Adjustments of Lease EquilisaƟon 
Reserve 

- - - - - - - 

 Other consolidaƟon adjustment  -  -   - 

 Balance as at 31 March 2024 (313.16) 11,035.39 6.68 (1,553.11) 12.83 - 9,188.63 
          

   Reserve and Surplus Other 
Comprehensive 

income 

Money 
Received 
against 
Share 

warrants 

Total 
Other 
Equity 

   Capital 
Reserve 

SecuriƟes 
Premium 

General 
Reserve 

Retained 
Earnings 

Remeasurement 
of net defined 
benefit plans 

 Balance as at 01 April 2022 (313.16) 11,035.39 6.68 550.18 18.08 - 11,297.18 
 Profit for the year - - - (1,751.71) - - (1,751.71) 
 Other comprehensive income  - - - - (9.90) - (9.90) 
 Total comprehensive income for the year  - - - (1,751.71) (9.90) - (1,761.61) 
          
 TransacƟon with owners in capacity as owners      
 Adjustment pertaining to a loan given to 

shareholder 
- - - 46.79 - - 46.79 

 Adjustments of Lease EquilisaƟon Reserve  - - 1.22 - - 1.22 
 Share warrants converted into shares  - - - - - - - 
 Premium on warrant converted into 

shares 
- - - - - - - 

 Other consolidaƟon adjustment -  - -  - - 
 Balance as at 31 March 2023 (313.16) 11,035.39 6.68 (1,153.52) 8.18 - 9,583.57 
 Refer note no. 19 for nature and purpose of reserves. 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements  
As per our report of even dated attached 

 
     

  
     

For TATTVAM & Co.     
 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants    

 
JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited 

Firm Registration No.:015048N 
 

     

  
     

 
       

Gaurav Saraf    
 

Nikhil Nanda  Vinay Mittal  
Partner    

 
Managing Director  Director  

Membership No.: 535309    
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 Ashish Goel Paramvir Singh Pabla 

 
 

  
 Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
Place : New Delhi    

  
Komal Jha 

Date : 18 May 2024    
  

Company Secretary  
 

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-

Sd/-Sd/-

Sd/-
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(₹ in lakhs)

  ParƟculars  Year Ended  
31 March 2024  

 Year Ended  
31 March 2023  

A.  Cash Flow from OperaƟng AcƟviƟes   
 Profit before tax (342.15)  (2,294.52) 
     Adjustments for:   
 DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon 634.58 601.67  
 (Profit)/Loss on disposal of property, plant  and equipment (net) (0.15)  (4.00) 
 Interest income (56.07)  (98.96) 
 Government grant amorƟzaƟon (15.07)  (15.44) 
 Provision no longer required wriƩen back -  (26.89) 
 Balances and advances wriƩen off 22.39 3.06  
 Provision for doubƞul advances - 1,863.07  
 Balances and advances wriƩen back (52.14) 0.13  
 AmorƟsaƟon of deferred rent expense  26.68 8.35  
 Profit on sale of investment -  (4.16) 
 Interest and financial charges 41.20 24.46  
 Exchange loss/(gain) (net) (0.01)  (89.99) 
 Net gain on financial asset mandatorily measured at FVTPL (28.49)  (2.80) 
 OperaƟng profit before working capital changes and other adjustments  230.78  (36.03) 
     Working capital changes and other adjustments :    
 (Increase)/decrease in inventories 34.85  (124.78) 
 (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 555.59  (111.24) 
 (Increase)/Decrease in Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12.03  (22.81) 
 (Increase)/decrease in other current assets 152.98 186.09  
 (Increase)/Decrease in deffered tax assets 23.09 95.05  
 (Increase)/Decrease in non-current tax assets (10.30)  (29.60) 
 (Increase)/decrease in other current financial assets 266.02 171.54  
 (Increase)/decrease in non current loans  -  (29.12) 
 (Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets (498.12) 250.29  
 Increase/ (decrease) in other current financial liabiliƟes 210.97  (8.18) 
 Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables (810.69) 1,009.68  
 Increase/ (decrease) in lease liabiliƟes (3.31)  13.07  
 Increase/ (decrease) in other non current financial liabiliƟes 3.53 1.89  
 Increase/ (decrease) in short term provisions 0.21  (9.38) 
 Increase/ (decrease) in long term provisions 10.96  (17.17) 
 Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabiliƟes (1,036.27) 986.18  
 Cash generated/(used) from operaƟons (857.68) 2,325.48  
 Taxes paid  -  -    
 Net cash generated/(used) from operaƟng acƟviƟes  (857.68) 2,325.48  
    B. Cash Flow from InvesƟng AcƟviƟes   
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,174.59)  (1,434.36) 
 Capital Work in Progress 775.16 1,138.57  
 Right-of-use 5.46 37.28  
 Purchase of mutual funds (30.00)  (71.88) 
 Loan money received back 5.74 1,084.84  
 Interest income received 56.07 98.96  
 Change in other bank balance and cash not available for immediate use 167.46 114.29  
 Net Cash generated/(used) in invesƟng acƟviƟes  (2,194.69) 967.70  
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

CONTD....)

    C. Cash Flow from Financing AcƟviƟes   
 Proceeds from/ (repayment of) long term borrowings (12.04)  (14.28) 
 Proceeds from/ (repayment of) short term borrowings 329.97  (6.40) 
 Repayment of lease liabiliƟes (59.34)  (44.85) 
 Interest and financial charges (41.20)  (24.46) 
 Net increase from financing acƟviƟes  217.38  (89.99) 
      Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (2,834.98) 3,203.20  
  Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents  3,721.61 518.42  
  Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents  886.63 3,721.61  
      Components of cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year    
  Cash on hand  18.61 47.08  
  Balances with banks    
       -  on current account  427.48 3,674.53  
       -  in term deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less  440.54 -    
  Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 12)  886.63 3,721.61  

 

  ParƟculars  Year Ended  
31 March 2024  

 Year Ended  
31 March 2023  

(₹ in lakhs)

As per our report of even dated aƩached   
   For TATTVAM & Co.  For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited 
Firm RegistraƟon No.:015048N   

 

Note:- The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in IND AS 7, Statement 
of Cash Flows. 
 

   
Gaurav Saraf Nikhil Nanda  Vinay MiƩal  
Partner Managing Director  Director  
Membership No.: 535309 DIN : 00051501  DIN : 08232559  

   
   
 Ashish Goel Paramvir Singh Pabla 

 
Chief Financial Officer Chief ExecuƟve Officer 

 
  

 
  

Place : New Delhi  Komal Jha 
Date : 18 May 2024 Company Secretary  
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

Background     
JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited ("the Company") is a 
Public Company domiciled in India and incorporated under 
the provisions of the Companies Act. The Company is 
engaged in manufacturing a range of oral and dental 
products for elite naƟonal and internaƟonal brands. The 
main porƞolio of the Company is to carry out manufacturing 
and exporƟng of oral care and hygiene products including 
toothbrushes, toothpastes, mouthwash, saniƟzers and job 
work of detergent powder. The Company's shares are listed 
for trading on the NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited 
and the BSE Limited.

1 Basis of preparaƟon
a) Compliance with Indian AccounƟng Standard

These financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Indian AccounƟng Standards (Ind AS) 
noƟfied under SecƟon 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
Act) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian AccounƟng 
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian AccounƟng 
Standards) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the 
Act.
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes 
have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the 
requirement of  Division II IND AS Schedule III, unless 
otherwise stated.  
These financial statements were approved by the Board of 
Directors on 18 May 2024.  

b) Basis of measurement   
The Financial Statements have been prepared under the 
historical cost convenƟon on accrual basis, unless otherwise 
stated.

c) CriƟcal esƟmates and judgments
 The preparaƟon of financial statements requires the use of 

accounƟng esƟmates which, by definiƟon, will seldom equal 
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise 
judgment in applying the Company's accounƟng policies.
This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a 
higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which 
are more likely to be materially adjusted due to esƟmates 
and assumpƟons turning out to be different than those 
originally assessed. Detailed informaƟon about each of 
these esƟmates and judgments is included in relevant notes 
together with informaƟon about the basis of calculaƟon for 
each affected line item in the financial statements.
The areas involving criƟcal esƟmates and judgments are:
I.  Useful life of property, plant and equipment
 The esƟmated useful life of property, plant and 

equipment is based on a number of factors including 
the effects of obsolescence, demand, compeƟƟon and 
other economic factors (such as the stability of the 
industry and known technological advances) and the 

level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain 
the expected future cash flows from the asset.

 The Company reviews, at the end of each reporƟng 
date, the useful life of property, plant and equipment 
and changes, if any, are adjusted prospecƟvely, if 
appropriate.

ii.  Recoverable amount of property, plant and 
equipment            

 The recoverable amount of plant and equipment is 
based on esƟmates and assumpƟons regarding in 
parƟcular the expected market outlook and future cash 
flows.  Any changes in these assumpƟons may have a 
material impact on the measurement of the 
recoverable amount and could result in impairment.

iii.  EsƟmaƟon of defined benefit obligaƟon
 Employee benefit obligaƟons are measured on the 

basis of actuarial assumpƟons which include mortality 
and withdrawal rates as well as assumpƟons 
concerning future developments in discount rates, the 
rate of salary increases and the inflaƟon rate. The 
Company considers that the assumpƟons used to 
measure its obligaƟons are appropriate and 
documented. However, any changes in these 
assumpƟons may have a material impact on the 
resulƟng calculaƟons.

iv.  EsƟmaƟon of deferred tax assets for carry forward 
losses and current tax expenses

 The Company review carrying amount of deferred tax 
assets and LiabiliƟes at the end of each reporƟng 
period. The policy for the same has been explained 
under Note No 2(d). 

 v.  Impairment of trade receivables  
  The Company review carrying amount of Trade 

receivable at the end of each reporƟng period and 
provide for Expected Credit Loss based on esƟmate. 

  vi.  Fair value measurement   
   Management uses valuaƟon techniques in measuring 

the fair value of financial instrument where acƟve 
market codes are not available. Details of assumpƟon 
used are given in the notes regarding financial assets 
and liabiliƟes. In applying the valuaƟon techniques 
management makes maximum use of market inputs 
and uses esƟmates and assumpƟons that are, as fast as 
possible, consistent with observable data that market 
parƟcipant would use in pricing the instrument where 
applicaƟon data is not observable, management uses 
its best esƟmate about the assumpƟon that market 
parƟcipant would make. These esƟmates may vary 
from actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's 
length transacƟon at the reporƟng date.  

   EsƟmates and judgments are conƟnually evaluated. 
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They are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectaƟons of future events that 
may have a financial impact on the Company and that 
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.   

e) Others  
  Financial Statements has been prepared on a going concern 

basis in accordance with the applicable accounƟng 
standards prescribed in the Companies (Indian AccounƟng 
Standards) Rules, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs.  

f) Current versus non-current classificaƟon  
  The Company presents assets and liabiliƟes in the Financial 

Statement based on current/ non-current classificaƟon.   
  An asset is treated as current when it is:  
  -   Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or 

consumed in normal operaƟng cycle   
  -   Expected to be realized within twelve months aŌer the 

reporƟng period, or   
  -   Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being 

exchanged or used to seƩle a liability for at least twelve 
months aŌer the reporƟng period  

  All other assets are classified as non-current.  
  A liability is current when:  
  -   It is expected to be seƩled in normal operaƟng cycle   
  -   It is due to be seƩled within twelve months aŌer the 

reporƟng period, or   
  -   There is no uncondiƟonal right to defer the seƩlement 

of the liability for at least twelve months aŌer the 
reporƟng period  

  All other liabiliƟes are classified as non-current.  
  Deferred tax assets and liabiliƟes are classified as non-

current assets and liabiliƟes.   
  The operaƟng cycle is the Ɵme between the acquisiƟon of 

assets for processing and their realizaƟon in cash and cash 
equivalents. The Company has idenƟfied twelve months as 
its operaƟng cycle.  

g) Foreign currency translaƟon            
 i) FuncƟonal and presentaƟon currency  
   Items included in the Financial Statements are 

measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the enƟty operates i.e. 'the 
funcƟonal currency'. The Financial Statements are 
presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Company's 
funcƟonal and presentaƟon currency.  

 ii) TransacƟons and balances  
   Foreign currency transacƟons are translated into the 

funcƟonal currency using exchange rates at the date of 
the transacƟon. Foreign exchange gains and losses from 
seƩlement of such transacƟons and from translaƟon of 

monetary assets and liabiliƟes denominated in foreign 
currency at the reporƟng date exchange rates are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses are presented in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other 
income/ expenses.  

2 Summary of significant accounƟng policies            
a) Revenue recogniƟon  
  Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when 

control of the goods or services are transferred to the 
customer at an amount that reflects the consideraƟon to 
which the Company expects to be enƟtled in exchange for 
those goods or services.  

  Sale of goods            
  For sale of goods, revenue is recognised when control of the 

goods has transferred at a point in Ɵme i.e. when the goods 
have been dispatched to the locaƟon of customer. Following 
dispatch, the customer has full discreƟon over the 
responsibility, manner of distribuƟon, price to sell the goods 
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relaƟon to the 
goods. A receivable is recognised by the Company when the 
goods are dispatched to the customer as this represents the 
point in Ɵme at which the right to consideraƟon becomes 
uncondiƟonal, as only the passage of Ɵme is required before 
payment is due. Payment is due within 10-15 days. The 
Company considers the effects of variable consideraƟon, 
non-cash consideraƟon, and consideraƟon payable to the 
customer (if any).  

  Variable consideraƟon            
  If the consideraƟon in a contract includes a variable amount, 

esƟmates the amount of consideraƟon to which it will be 
enƟtled in exchange for transferring the goods to the 
customer. The variable consideraƟon is esƟmated at 
contract incepƟon and constrained unƟl it is highly probable 
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of 
cumulaƟve revenue recognised will not occur when the 
associated uncertainty with the variable consideraƟon is 
subsequently resolved. The Company recognizes changes in 
the esƟmated amount of variable consideraƟon in the 
period in which the change occurs. Some contracts for the 
sale of goods provide customers with volume rebates and 
pricing incenƟves, which give rise to variable consideraƟon.  

  Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer. 
To esƟmate the variable consideraƟon for the expected 
future rebates, the Company applies the most likely amount 
method for contracts with a single-volume threshold. The 
selected method that best predicts the amount of variable 
consideraƟon is primarily driven by the number of volume 
thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then 
applies the requirements on constraining esƟmates of 
variable consideraƟon and recognises a refund liability for 
the expected future rebates.  
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  Contract balances            
  Trade receivables
 A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of 

consideraƟon that is uncondiƟonal (i.e., only the passage of 
Ɵme is required before payment of the consideraƟon is due). 
Refer to accounƟng policies of financial assets in Note No 2(i) 
Financial assets – iniƟal recogniƟon and subsequent 
measurement.  

  Contract liabiliƟes (which the Company refer to as advance 
from customer)

 A contract liability is the obligaƟon to transfer goods or 
services to a customer for which the Company has received 
consideraƟon (or an amount of consideraƟon is due) from 
the customer. If a customer pays consideraƟon before the 
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a 
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or 
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabiliƟes 
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs 
under the contract.  

  The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its 
Statement of Profit and Loss.      

  Cost to obtain a contract
 The Company pays sales commission to its selling agents for 

each contract that they obtain for the Company. The 
Company has elected to apply the opƟonal pracƟcal 
expedient for costs to obtain a contract which allows the 
Company to immediately expense sales commissions 
(included in 'commission on sales' under other expenses) 
because the amorƟzaƟon period of the asset that the 
Company otherwise would have used is one year or less.

 Costs to fulfil a contract i.e. freight, insurance and other 
selling expenses are recognized as an expense in the period 
in which related revenue is recognised.  

  Financing components            
  The Company does not expect to have any contracts where 

the period between the transfer of the promised goods or 
services to the customer and payment by the customer 
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not 
adjust any of the transacƟon prices for the Ɵme value of 
money.  

  Rendering of services  
  Service income includes job work and its revenue is 

recognised when the performance obligaƟon to render the 
services are completed as per contractually agreed terms.  

c) Other revenue streams            
  Interest income  
  Interest income from debt instrument is recognised using 

the effecƟve interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate which 
exactly discounts the esƟmated future cash receipts over the 
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying 

amount of the financial asset. When calculaƟng the EIR the 
Company esƟmates the expected cash flows by considering 
all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for 
example, prepayments, extensions, call and similar opƟons)  
but does not consider the expected credit losses.  

  Dividend income  
  Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

only when the Company's right to receive the payment is 
established.  

  Export incenƟves  
  Export incenƟves principally comprise of duty drawback. The 

benefit under these incenƟve schemes are available based 
on the guideline formulated for respecƟve schemes by the 
government authoriƟes. Duty drawback is recognized as 
revenue on accrual basis to the extent it is probable that 
realizaƟon is certain.  

  Government grants            
  Grants from the government are recognized at their fair 

value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant 
will be received and the Company will comply with all 
aƩached condiƟons.  

  Government grants which are revenue in nature and are 
towards compensaƟon for the qualifying costs, incurred by 
the Company, are recognised as income in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss in the period in which such costs are incurred.
Government grants relaƟng to the purchase of property, 
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabiliƟes 
as deferred income and are credited to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives 
of the related assets and presented within other income.  

d) Income taxes  
  Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and 

deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to an item 
which is recognised in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, in which case the tax is recognized in 'Other 
comprehensive income' or directly in equity, respecƟvely. 

 The Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax 
payable on the current period's taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdicƟon adjusted by 
changes in deferred tax assets and liabiliƟes aƩributable to 
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.  

  Current tax            
  Current tax is based on tax rates applicable for respecƟve 

years on the basis of tax law enacted and substanƟvely 
enacted at the end of the reporƟng period. The Company 
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authoriƟes. Current 
is payable on taxable profit, which differs from profit and loss 
in financial statements. Current tax is charged to Statement 
of Profit and Loss. Provision for current tax is made aŌer 
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taking in to consideraƟon benefits admissible under Income 
Tax Act, 1961.  

  Deferred tax            
  Deferred income taxes are calculated without discounƟng 

the temporary differences between carrying amounts of 
assets and liabiliƟes and there tax base using the tax laws 
that have been enacted or substanƟvely enacted by the 
reporƟng date. However deferred tax is not provided on the 
iniƟal recogniƟon of assets and liabiliƟes unless the related 
transacƟon is business combinaƟon or affects tax or 
accounƟng profit. Tax losses available to the carried forward 
and other income tax credit available to the enƟty are 
assessed for recogniƟon as deferred tax assets.  

  Deferred tax liabiliƟes are always provided for in full. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is 
probable that they will be able to uƟlize against future 
taxable income. 

 Deferred tax asset are recognised to the extent that is 
probable that the underlying tax loss or deducƟble 
temporary differences will be uƟlized against future taxable 
income. This is assessed based on Company's forecast of 
future operaƟng income at each reporƟng date.

 Deferred tax assets and liabiliƟes are offset where the enƟty 
has a right and intenƟon to set off current tax assets and 
liabiliƟes from the same taxaƟon authority.   

  Minimum AlternaƟve Tax (MAT)            
  Minimum Alternate Tax credit enƟtlement paid in 

accordance with tax laws, which gives rise to future 
economic benefit in form of adjustment to future tax liability, 
is considered as an asset to the extent management esƟmate 
its recovery in future years.   

e) Leases  
  The determinaƟon of whether an arrangement is (or 

contains) a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at the incepƟon of the lease. The arrangement 
is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the 
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even 
if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.  

  As a lessee            
  The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases 

for buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract 
contains a lease, at incepƟon of a contract. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an idenƟfied asset for a period of Ɵme in exchange 
for consideraƟon. To assess whether a contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an idenƟfied asset, the Company 
assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an 
idenƟfied asset (ii) the Company has substanƟally all of the 
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period 
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the 

use of the asset. At the date of commencement of the lease, 
the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in 
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 
months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For 
these short-term and low-value leases, the Company 
recognizes the lease payments as an operaƟng expense on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain lease 
arrangements includes the opƟons to extend or terminate 
the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and 
lease liabiliƟes includes these opƟons when it is reasonably 
certain that they will be exercised. The ROU assets are 
iniƟally recognized at cost, which comprises the iniƟal 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments 
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease 
plus any iniƟal direct costs less any lease incenƟves. They are 
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciaƟon and impairment losses. ROU assets are 
depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line 
basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the 
underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the 
purpose of impairment tesƟng, the recoverable amount (i.e. 
the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the 
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the 
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash GeneraƟng 
Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. The lease liability is 
iniƟally measured at amorƟzed cost at the present value of 
the future lease payments. The lease payments are 
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if 
not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing 
rates . Lease liabiliƟes are remeasured with a corresponding 
adjustment to the related ROU asset if the Company changes 
its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a 
terminaƟon opƟon. Lease liability and ROU assets have been 
separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease 
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.  

  As a lessor            
  Lease income from operaƟng leases where the Company is a 

lessor is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a 
straight- line basis over the lease term.  

f) Impairment of non-financial assets  
  Assessment for impairment is done at each Balance Sheet 

date as to whether there is any indicaƟon that a non-
financial asset may be impaired. Indefinite-life intangibles 
are subject to a review for impairment annually or more 
frequently if events or circumstances indicate that it is 
necessary.   

  For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest 
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idenƟfiable Company of assets that generates cash inflows 
from conƟnuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows from other assets or Company of assets is considered 
as a cash generaƟng unit. Goodwill acquired in a business 
combinaƟon is, from the acquisiƟon date, allocated to each 
of the Company's cash-generaƟng units that are expected to 
benefit from the synergies of the combinaƟon, irrespecƟve 
of whether other assets or liabiliƟes of the acquire are 
assigned to those units.   

  If any indicaƟon of impairment exists, an esƟmate of the 
recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash generaƟng 
unit is made. Asset/cash generaƟng unit whose carrying 
value exceeds their recoverable amount are wriƩen down to 
the recoverable amount by recognizing the impairment loss 
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The 
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying 
amount of any goodwill (if any) allocated to the cash 
generaƟng unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro 
rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. 
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash 
generaƟng unit's fair value less cost of disposal and its value 
in use. Value in use is the present value of esƟmated future 
cash flows expected to arise from the conƟnuing use of an 
asset or cash generaƟng unit and from its disposal at the end 
of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each Balance 
Sheet date as to whether there is any indicaƟon that an 
impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior accounƟng 
periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. An 
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the 
esƟmates used to determine the recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciaƟon and 
amorƟzaƟon, if no impairment loss had been recognized. An 
impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in 
subsequent periods.  

g) Cash and cash equivalents  
  For the purpose of presentaƟon in the statement of cash 

flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, 
deposits held at call with financial insƟtuƟons, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturiƟes of 
three months or less that are readily converƟble to know 
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value, and bank overdraŌs. Bank overdraŌs are 
shown within borrowings in current liabiliƟes in  the balance 
sheet.  

h) Inventories  
  (i)  Raw materials, packaging materials and stores and 

spare parts are valued at the lower of weighted average 
cost and net realizable value. Cost includes purchase 
price, taxes (excluding levies or taxes subsequently 
recoverable by the enterprise from the concerned 

revenue authoriƟes), freight inwards and other 
expenditure incurred in bringing such inventories to 
their present locaƟon and condiƟon. However, these 
items are considered to be realizable at cost if finished 
products in which they will be used are expected to be 
sold at or above cost.

 (ii)  Work in progress, manufactured finished goods and 
traded goods are valued at the lower of weighted 
average cost and net realizable value. Cost of work in 
progress and manufactured finished goods is 
determined on the weighted average basis and 
comprises direct material, cost of conversion and other 
costs incurred in bringing these inventories to their 
present locaƟon and condiƟon.

 (iii)  Provision for obsolescence on inventories is made on 
the basis of management's esƟmate based on demand 
and market of the inventories.

 (iv)  Net realizable value is the esƟmated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less the esƟmated costs of 
compleƟon and the esƟmated costs necessary to make 
the sale. 

 (v) The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made 
on an item by item basis.  

i) Investments and Other Financial Assets  
 (I) ClassificaƟon  
   The Company classifies its financial assets in the 

following measurement categories:  
   -  those to be measured subsequently at fair value 

(either through other comprehensive income, or 
through profit or loss), and  

   -  those measured at amorƟzed cost.  
  The classificaƟon depends on the enƟty's business model for 

managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of 
the cash flows.  

  For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either 
be recorded in Statement of Profit and Loss or other 
comprehensive income. For investments in debt 
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which 
the investment is held. For investments in equity 
instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has 
made an irrevocable elecƟon at the Ɵme of iniƟal 
recogniƟon to account for the equity investment at fair value 
through other comprehensive income.  

  The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only 
when its business model for managing those assets changes.  

(ii) IniƟal measurement  
  At iniƟal recogniƟon, the Company measures a financial 

asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not 
at fair value through profit or loss, transacƟon costs that are 
directly aƩributable to the acquisiƟon of the financial asset. 
TransacƟon costs of financial assets carried at fair value 
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through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.  
(iii) Subsequent measurement  
  Debt instruments  
  Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on 

the Company's business model for managing the asset and 
the cash flow characterisƟcs of the asset. There are three 
measurement categories into which the Company classifies 
its debt instruments:  

  l AmorƟzed cost: Assets that are held for collecƟon of 
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent 
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at 
amorƟzed cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at amorƟzed cost and is not part of a 
hedging relaƟonship is recognised in Statement of Profit and 
Loss when the asset is derecognized or impaired. Interest 
income from these financial assets is included in finance 
income using the effecƟve interest rate method.  

  l Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 
(FVOCI): Assets that are held for collecƟon of contractual 
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the 
assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and 
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying 
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recogniƟon of 
impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign 
exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit and 
loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the 
cumulaƟve gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is 
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in 
other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial 
assets is included in other income using the effecƟve interest 
rate method. At present no financial assets fulfil this 
condiƟon.  

  l Fair Value Through Profit or Loss(FVTPL): Assets that do 
not meet the criteria for amorƟzed cost or FVOCI are 
measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that 
is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss 
and is not part of a hedging relaƟonship is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss and presented net in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/(losses) in 
the period in which it arises. Interest income from these 
financial assets is included in other income.  

  Equity instruments            
  All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109, are measured 

at fair value. At Equity instruments which are held for trading 
are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, 
the Company may make an irrevocable elecƟon to present in 
other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair 
value. The Company makes such elecƟon on an instrument 
by instrument basis. The classificaƟon is made on iniƟal 
recogniƟon and is irrevocable.  

  Where the Company's management has elected to present 

fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other 
comprehensive income, there is  no subsequent 
reclassificaƟon of fair value gains and losses to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. 
Dividends from such investments are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as other income when the 
Company's right to receive payments is established.  

  Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss are recognized in other gain/ (losses) in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses (and 
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments 
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other 
changes in fair value.  

  Investments in subsidiaries            
  Investments are carried at cost less accumulated 

impairment losses, if any Where an indicaƟon of impairment 
exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and 
wriƩen down immediately to its recoverable amount. On 
disposal of investments, the difference between net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.   

(iv) Impairment of financial assets  
  For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other than 

trade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to 
the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk from iniƟal recogniƟon in which case 
those are measured at lifeƟme ECL. The amount of ECLs (or 
reversal) for the period is recognised as expense/income in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

(v) De recogniƟon of financial assets  
  A financial asset is derecognized only when:  
  l The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash 

flows from the financial asset or   
  l retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of 

the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligaƟon to 
pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.  

  Where the enƟty has transferred an asset, the Company 
evaluates whether it has transferred substanƟally all risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such 
cases, the financial asset is derecognized.   

  Where the enƟty has neither transferred a financial asset nor 
retains substanƟally all risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the 
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. 
Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, 
the asset is conƟnued to be recognised to the extent of 
conƟnuing involvement in the financial asset.  

j) Financial liabiliƟes            
  IniƟal recogniƟon and measurement  
  All financial liabiliƟes are recognised iniƟally at fair value 

and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of 
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directly aƩributable transacƟon costs.  
   Subsequent measurement  
  Financial liabiliƟes at amorƟzed cost  
  AŌer iniƟal measurement, such financial liabiliƟes are 

subsequently measured at amorƟzed cost using the effecƟve 
interest rate (EIR) method. AmorƟzed cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisiƟon 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amorƟzaƟon is included in finance costs in the profit or loss.   

  Trade and other payables            
  These amounts represent liabiliƟes for goods and services 

provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year 
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are 
usually paid within the operaƟng cycle of the business. Trade 
and other payables are presented as current liabiliƟes unless 
payment is not due within 12 months aŌer the reporƟng 
period. They are recognised iniƟally at their fair value and 
subsequently measured at amorƟzed cost using the effecƟve 
interest method.   

  Borrowings            
  Borrowings are iniƟally recognised at fair value, net of 

transacƟon costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amorƟzed cost. Any difference between the 
proceeds (net of transacƟon costs) and the redempƟon 
amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
over the period of the borrowings using the effecƟve interest 
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan faciliƟes are 
recognised as transacƟon costs of the loan.  

  Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the 
obligaƟon specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a 
financial liability that has been exƟnguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideraƟon paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabiliƟes assumed, is recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss as other gains/(losses).  

  Where the terms of a financial liability are renegoƟated and 
the enƟty issues equity instruments to a creditor to 
exƟnguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a 
gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
which is measured as the difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the 
equity instruments issued.  

  Borrowings are classified as current liabiliƟes unless the 
Company has an uncondiƟonal right to defer seƩlement of 
the liability for at least 12 months aŌer the reporƟng period. 
Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-
term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporƟng 
period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on 
demand on the reporƟng date, the enƟty does not classify 
the liability as current, if the lender agreed, aŌer the 
reporƟng period and before the approval of the financial 

statements for issue, not to demand payment as a 
consequence of the breach.  

  DerecogniƟon  
  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligaƟon 

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an exisƟng financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substanƟally different terms, or the 
terms of an exisƟng liability are substanƟally modified, such 
an exchange or modificaƟon is treated as the derecogniƟon 
of the original liability and the recogniƟon of a new liability. 
The difference in the respecƟve carrying amounts is 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.  

k) Offseƫng financial instruments            
  Financial assets and liabiliƟes are offset and the net amount 

is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an intenƟon to seƩle on a net basis or realize the 
asset and seƩle the liability simultaneously. The legally 
enforceable right must not be conƟngent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business 
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the 
Company or the counterparty.   

l) Property plant and equipment            
  Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Other property, 

plant and equipment are stated at historical cost of 
acquisiƟon net of recoverable taxes(wherever applicable), 
less accumulated depreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon, if any. Cost 
comprises the purchase price, any cost aƩributable to 
bringing the assets to its working condiƟon for its intended 
use and iniƟal esƟmate of costs of dismantling and removing 
the item and restoring the site if any.   

  Where cost of a part of the asset is significant to the total cost 
of the assets and useful lives of the part is different from the 
remaining asset, then useful live of the part is determined 
separately and accounted as separate component.  

  Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount 
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any 
component accounted for as a separate asset is 
derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
during the reporƟng period in which they are incurred.  

  An asset's carrying amount is wriƩen down to its recoverable 
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its 
esƟmated recoverable amount.  

  An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant 
part iniƟally recognised is derecognized upon disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecogniƟon of the 
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asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss when the asset is 
derecognized.  

  The Company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying value 
for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in 
the financial statements on transiƟon to Ind AS, measured as 
per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at 
the date of transiƟon.C hanges in wordings

m) Intangible assets            
  An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the 

future economic benefits aƩributable to the asset will flow 
to the enterprise and where its cost can be reliably 
measured. Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisiƟon 
less accumulated amorƟzaƟon and impairment losses, if any. 
Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost aƩributable 
to bringing the assets to its working condiƟon for its 
intended use.   

  Cost of Internally generated asset comprises of all 
expenditure that can be directly aƩributed, or allocated on a 
reasonable and consistent basis, to create, produce and 
make assets ready for its intended use.  

  Losses arising from reƟrement of , and gains or losses on 
disposals of intangible assets are determined as the 
difference between net disposal proceeds with carrying 
amount of assets and recognised as income or expenses in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

  The Company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying value 
for all of its intangible assets as recognised in the financial 
statements on transiƟon to Ind AS, measured as per the 
previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date 
of transiƟon.C hanges in wordings

n) Capital work in progress/ Intangible under development            
  Capital Work in progress/ Intangible under development 

represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital 
projects/ intangible assets under development and are 
carried at cost. Cost includes related acquisiƟon expenses, 
development cost, borrowing cost(wherever applicable) and 
other direct expenditures.  

  The Company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying value 
for all of its Capital Work in progress/ Intangible under 
development as recognised in the financial statements on 
transiƟon to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and 
use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transiƟon. 
Changes in wordings

o) DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon            
  DepreciaƟon on property plant and equipment has been 

provided on straight line method in accordance with the 
provisions of  Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 
2013. The Management believes that the esƟmated useful 
lives as per the provisions of Schedule II to the Companies 

Act, 2013, except for moulds and dies, are realisƟc and 
reflect fair approximaƟon of the period over which the assets 
are likely to be used.

 Based on internal assessment and technical evaluaƟon, the 
management has assessed useful lives of moulds and dies as 
five years, which is different from the useful lives as 
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013.  

  DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon on addiƟon to property plant 
and equipment is provided on pro rata basis from the date of 
assets are ready to use. DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon on 
sale/deducƟon from property plant and equipment is 
provided for upto the date of sale, deducƟon, discardment 
as the case may be.  

  The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciaƟon 
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are 
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
prospecƟvely, if appropriate.  

  All assets cosƟng Rs. 5,000 or below are depreciated/ 
amorƟzed by a one-Ɵme depreciaƟon/amorƟzaƟon charge 
in the year of purchase.  

p) Borrowing costs
  Borrowing cost includes interest calculated using the 

effecƟve interest rate method and amorƟzaƟon of ancillary 
cost incurred in connecƟon with the arrangement of 
borrowings. General and specific borrowing costs that are 
directly aƩributable to the acquisiƟon, construcƟon or 
producƟon of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the 
period of Ɵme that is required to complete and prepare the 
asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets 
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DescripƟon Useful lives (upto)
Vehicle 8 years

Computer 3 years

Furniture & Fixture 10 years

Computer SoŌware 5 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Leasehold Improvements 8 years

Electronic Equipment 8 years

Mould & Dies 5 years

Plant & Machinery 15 years

Computer network 6 years

Factory Building 30 years

Office Building 30 years

Lab Equipment 10 years

Technical Know How 5 years
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that necessarily take a substanƟal period of Ɵme to get ready 
for their intended use or sale.

 All Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which they are incurred.  

q) Provisions, ConƟngent liabiliƟes and ConƟngent assets  
  A Provision is recognised when the Company has a present 

legal or construcƟve obligaƟon as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an ouƞlow of resources embodying economic 
benefit will be required to seƩle the obligaƟon and the 
amount can be reliably esƟmated. Provisions are not 
recognised for future operaƟng losses.  

  Provisions are measured at the present value of the 
management's best esƟmate of the expenditure required to 
seƩle the present obligaƟon at the end of the reporƟng 
period. If the effect of the Ɵme value of money is material, 
provisions are determined by discounƟng the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current 
,market assessments of the Ɵme value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due 
to the passage of Ɵme is recognised as interest expense.  

  ConƟngent liabiliƟes are possible obligaƟons that arise from 
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future 
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where 
it is not probable that an ouƞlow of economic benefits will 
be required, or the amount cannot be esƟmated reliably, the 
obligaƟon is disclosed as a conƟngent liability, unless the 
probability of ouƞlow of economic benefits is remote. 
ConƟngent liabiliƟes are disclosed on the basis of judgment 
of the management/ independent experts. These are 
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to 
reflect the current management esƟmate.  

r) Employee Benefits :             
(i) Short-term obligaƟons  
  Short term benefits comprises of employee cost such as 

salaries and  bonuses including non-monetary benefits that 
are expected to be seƩled wholly within 12 months aŌer the 
end of the period in which the employees render the related 
service are recognised in respect of employees' services up 
to the end of the reporƟng period and are measured at the 
amounts expected to be paid when the liabiliƟes are seƩled. 

 The liabiliƟes are presented as current employee benefit 
obligaƟons in the Balance Sheet. 

(ii) Post employment obligaƟons 

  Defined benefit plans 

  Gratuity obligaƟons       
  The Company provides for the reƟrement benefit in the form 

of Gratuity. The liability or asset recognised in the Balance 
Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the 
present value of the defined benefit obligaƟon at the end of 
the reporƟng period less the fair value of plan assets. The 

defined benefit obligaƟon is calculated annually by actuaries 
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of 
the defined benefit obligaƟon denominated in INR is 
determined by discounƟng the esƟmated future cash 
ouƞlows by reference to market yields at the end of the 
reporƟng period on government bonds that have terms 
approximaƟng to the terms of the related obligaƟon. The net 
interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the 
net balance of the defined benefit obligaƟon and the fair 
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit 
ex p e n s e  i n  t h e  S t a t e m e n t  o f  P ro fi t  a n d  L o s s . 
Remeasurement of gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumpƟons are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other 
comprehensive income. They are included in retained 
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the 
Balance Sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined 
benefit obligaƟon resulƟng from plan amendments or 
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as 
past service cost.  

  Defined contribuƟon plans            
  Provident Fund  
  All the employees of the Company are enƟtled to receive 

benefits under Provident Fund, which is defined 
contribuƟon plan. Both the employee and the employer 
make monthly contribuƟons to the plan at a predetermined 
rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund 
and miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. These contribuƟons 
are made to the fund administered and managed by the 
Government of India.  

  Employee state insurance            
  Employees whose wages/salary is within the prescribed limit 

in accordance with the Employee State Insurance Act, 1948, 
are covered under this scheme. These contribuƟons are 
made to the fund administered and managed by the 
Government of India. The Company's contribuƟons to these 
schemes are expensed off in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. The Company has no further obligaƟons under the plan 
beyond its monthly contribuƟons.  

iii) Other long-term employee benefit obligaƟons            
  Leave encashment            
  The liabiliƟes for accumulated absents are not expected to 

be seƩled wholly within 12 months aŌer the end of the 
period in which the employees render the related service. 
They are therefore measured as the present value of 
expected future payments to be made in respect of services 
provided by employees up to the end of the reporƟng period 
using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are 
discounted using the market yields at the end of the 
reporƟng period that have terms approximaƟng to the terms 
of the related obligaƟon. Remeasurements as a result of 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
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assumpƟons are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.  

  The obligaƟons are presented as current liabiliƟes in the 
Balance Sheet if the enƟty does not have an uncondiƟonal 
right to defer seƩlement for at least twelve months aŌer the 
reporƟng period, regardless of when the actual seƩlement is 
expected to occur.  

  Share-Based Payments       
  The Company recognises the goods or services received or 

acquired in a share-based payment transacƟon when it 
obtains the goods or as the services are received with a 
corresponding increase in equity if the goods or services 
were received in an equity-seƩled share-based payment 
transacƟon, or a liability if the goods or services were 
acquired in a cash-seƩled share-based payment transacƟon.

 When the goods or services received or acquired do not 
qualify for recogniƟon as assets, they are recognised as 
expenses.

 For equity-seƩled share-based payment transacƟons, the 
Company measures the goods or services received, and the 
corresponding increase in equity, directly, at the fair value of 
the goods or services received, unless that fair value cannot 
be esƟmated reliably. If the Company cannot esƟmate 
reliably the fair value of the goods or services received, the 
Company measures their value, and the corresponding 
increase in equity, indirectly, by reference to the fair value of 
the equity instruments granted. 

  If the equity instruments granted vest immediately, on grant 
date the Company recognises the services received in full, 
with a corresponding increase in equity.  

s) Contributed equity       
 Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs 

directly aƩributable to the issue of new shares or opƟons are 
shown in equity as a deducƟon, net of tax, from the 
proceeds.  

t) Earnings per share            
  Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the 

net profit or loss for the year aƩributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
Shares outstanding during the financial year. The weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period, are adjusted for events of bonus issued to exisƟng 
shareholders.  

  For the purpose calculaƟng diluted earnings per share, the 
net profit or loss aƩributable to equity shareholders and the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding are 
adjusted for the effects of all diluƟve potenƟal equity shares, 
if any.  

u) Segment reporƟng            
  In line with the provisions of Ind AS 108 OperaƟng Segments, 

and on the basis of the review of operaƟons by the Chief 

OperaƟng Decision Maker (CODM), the operaƟons of the 
Company fall under Manufacturing of Oral Care products, 
other than manufacturing business and retail operaƟons.  

v) Measurement of fair values            
  A number of the accounƟng policies and disclosures require 

measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabiliƟes. Fair values are categorized into 
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs 
used in the valuaƟon techniques as follows:

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in acƟve markets for 
idenƟcal assets or liabiliƟes.

 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

 The Company has an established control framework with 
respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a 
finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all 
significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair 
values.

 The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable 
inputs and valuaƟon adjustments. If third party informaƟon, 
is used to measure fair values, then the finance team 
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parƟes to 
support the conclusion that these valuaƟons meet the 
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value 
hierarchy in which the valuaƟons should be classified.

 When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the 
Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If 
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a 
liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, 
then the fair value measurement is categorized in its enƟrety 
in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest 
level input that is significant to the enƟre measurement.

 The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair 
value hierarchy at the end of the reporƟng period during 
which the change has occurred. Further informaƟon about 
the assumpƟons made in measuring fair values used in 
preparing these financial statements is included in the 
respecƟve notes.  

w) Assets held for Sale            
  Non-current assets or disposal Companys comprising of 

assets and liabiliƟes are classified as held for sale if their 
carrying amount is intended to be recovered principally 
through a sale (rather than through conƟnuing use) when 
the asset (or disposal Company) is available for immediate 
sale in its present condiƟon subject only to terms that are 
usual and customary for sale of such asset (or disposal 
Company) and the sale is highly probable and is expected to 
qualify for recogniƟon as a completed sale within one year 
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from the date of classificaƟon.
 Non-current assets or disposal Companys comprising of 

assets and liabiliƟes classified as held for sale are measured 
at lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to 
sell. Non-current assets held for sale are not depreciated or 
amorƟsed.  

x) ExcepƟonal items            
  An item of income or expense which its size, type or 

incidence requires disclosure in order to improve an 
understanding of the performance of the Company is 
treated as an excepƟonal item and the same is disclosed in 
the notes to accounts.  

2.2. Recent accounƟng pronouncements: 
  Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") noƟfies new standards 

or amendments to the exisƟng standards under Companies 
(Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules as issued from Ɵme to 
Ɵme. On 31 March 2023, MCA amended the Companies 
(Indian AccounƟng Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as 
below: 

  IND AS 1 – PresentaƟon of Financial Statements
  This amendment requires the companies to disclose their 

material accounƟng policies rather than their significant 
accounƟng policies. The effecƟe date for adopƟon of this 

amendment is annual periods beginning on or aŌer 1 April 
2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the 
impact of the amendment is significant in the standalone 
financial statements. 

  Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes 

  This amendment has narrowed the scope of the iniƟal 
recogniƟon exempƟon so that it does not apply to 
transacƟons that give rise to equal and offseƫng temporary 
differences.The effecƟve date for adopƟon of this 
amendment is annual periods beginning on or aŌer 1 April 
2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and 
there is no impact on its standalone financial statement. 

  Ind AS 8 – AccounƟng Policies, Changes in AccounƟng 
EsƟmates and Errors 

  This amendment has introduced a definiƟon of 'accounƟng 
esƟmates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help 
enƟƟes disƟnguish changes in accounƟng policies from 
changes in accounƟng esƟmates.The effecƟve date for 
adopƟon of this amendment is annual periods beginning on 
or aŌer 1 April 2023. The Company has evaluated the 
amendment and there is no impact on its standalone 
financial statements. 
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5 Financial Asset - Non - current loans      
       

 ParƟculars   
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023  
 Unsecured, considered good   
 Security deposit to related parƟes                           -    47.91 

Security deposit to others - 1.20 

 Loans to others   321.23 - 

    321.23 49.11 

      6  Other non- current financial assets     
        

 ParƟculars   
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at 

31 March 2023  
 Deposits with banks having maturity period of more than twelve months* 51.80                    15.32  

 Advance to employee   3.65 276.43 

 Security deposit with related party   68.83 - 

    124.29 291.75 

      

 
* includes pledged & margin money deposited with various government authoriƟes amounƟng to Rs. 22.51 lakhs  (31 
March 2023: Rs. 22.51 lakhs). 

(₹ in lakhs)

(₹ in lakhs)

      7 Deferred tax assets (net)     (a)  The balance comprises temporary differences aƩributable to:      

 
 

 As at 
31 March 2024  

 As at  
31 March 2023   

 Deferred tax liability on account of:     
 Property, plant and equipment    (571.15) (442.94) 

 Financial assets at FVTPL   (5.68) - 

 Lease LiabiliƟes   (40.84) (36.76) 

 Right-of-use assets   -  
 Sub Total    (617.66) (479.70) 

 Deferred tax asset on account of:     
 Provision for bonus   5.82 4.18 

 Provision for doubƞul debts   206.21 0.78 

 Provision for obsolete stock   0.21 2.69 

 Provision for gratuity   35.74 32.66 

 Provision for doubƞul advance   (0.12) 209.50 

 Property, Plant & Equipment    -  
 Provision for leave encashment   5.43 6.05 

 Right-of-use assets   38.08 32.06 

 Security Deposit   (0.58) 1.10 

 Expenses for merger   - 1.17 

 Lease LiabiliƟes   -  
 Other temporary differences   (2.30) 6.84 

 Tax losses carried forward    1,049.64 974.83 

 Government grant   33.91 37.83 

 MAT credit enƟtlement    297.85 297.85 

 Sub Total    1,669.90 1,607.53 

 Net deferred tax (liability)/asset    1,052.23 1,127.83 

 

(₹ in lakhs)
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(b)  Movement in deferred tax balances:      
        

  

Provision for 
employement 

benefit  

Property, 
Plant and 

Equipment 

 Tax losses 
carried 

forward 

Others Total  

 At 31 March 2022 50.57 (419.98) 379.56 637.05 647.20 

 Charged/(Credited):      
   -directly in equity - - - - - 

  - to profit or loss (7.69) (22.96) 595.27 (83.99) 480.63 

  - to other comprehensive income - - - - - 

 At 31 March 2023 42.88 (442.94) 974.83 553.06 1,127.83 

 Charged/(Credited):      
   -directly in equity - - - - - 

  - to profit or loss 4.11 (128.21) 74.82 (26.31) (75.59) 

  - to other comprehensive income - - - - - 

 At 31 March 2024 46.99 - 1,049.64 526.75 1,052.23 

       
 

(₹ in lakhs)

 

(₹ in lakhs)8
 

Non current tax assets (net)
     

     

 ParƟculars   
 As at 

31 March 2024  
 As at  

31 March 2023   
 Advance income tax and Tax deducted at source    95.70 85.40 

    95.70 85.40 
      9 Other non current assets     

     

 ParƟculars   
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023  
 Capital advance*     
    Unsecured (considered good)   4,338.88 3,722.33 

    Unsecured (considered doubƞul)   - - 

    Less: Provision for doubƞul capital advances    - - 

 Prepaid expenses   1.24 26.51 

 Deferred payroll cost    - 81.81 

 Deferred rent expense   0.00 11.35 

    4,340.12 3,842.00 
      10 Inventories     
 (Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)     

 ParƟculars   
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023  
 Raw materials   532.78 381.71 

 Packing material   350.95 476.85 

 Work-in-progress    172.56 171.85 

 Finished goods   142.78 207.48 

 Stores and spares   66.70 62.73 

 Less: Provision for obselence & dimuniƟon in value*   (0.80) (0.80) 

    1,264.97 1,299.82 

      
 *Provision for obselence & dimuniƟon in value    
 Opening balance   0.80 10.35 

 AddiƟon during the year   - - 

 Used during the year   - - 

 Reversed during the year   - (9.55) 

 Closing balance   0.80 0.80 

(₹ in lakhs)

(₹ in lakhs)

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024



Annual Report 2023-24 77

11 Trade receivables     
 Refer note. 2(a) for accounƟng policy on trade receivable     
     
 ParƟculars  As at 

31 March 2024 
As at 

31 March 2023  
 Trade receivables considered good - Secured  - - 
 Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured  1,287.96 1,856.61 
 Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk   - - 
 Trade receivables - credit impaired  - - 
 Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss  - (3.01) 
   1,287.96 1,853.60 

  Ageing for trade receivables - current outstanding as at 31 March 2024:     
 

ParƟculars 

Unbilled Not 
Due 

Outstanding for following periods from due 
date of Payment 

Total  

 Less than 
6 months 

6 
months 
- 1 year 

1 - 2 
years 

2 - 3 
years 

More 
than 3 
years 

 

 Trade receivables                  
 Undisputed trade receivables – considered good - - 806.65 234.04 104.35 10.52 132.40 1,287.96 
 Undisputed trade receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk 
- -      - 

 Undisputed trade receivables – credit impaired - - - - - - - - 
 Disputed trade receivables – considered good - - - - - - - - 
 Disputed trade receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk 
- - - - - - - - 

 Disputed trade receivables – credit impaired - - - - - - - - 
          

(₹ in lakhs)

(₹ in lakhs)

(₹ in lakhs)

 Ageing for trade receivables -current outstanding as at 31 March 2023:      
 ParƟculars Unbilled Not 

Due 
Outstanding for following periods from due 

date of Payment 
Total  

 Less 
than 6 

months 

6 
months 
- 1 year 

1 - 2 
years 

2 - 3 
years 

More 
than 3 
years 

 

 Trade receivables          
 Undisputed trade receivables – considered good - - 953.25 569.82 120.64 209.88 - 1,853.60 
 Undisputed trade receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk 
- - - - - - - - 

 Undisputed trade receivables – credit impaired - - - - - - - - 
 Disputed trade receivables – considered good - - - - - - - - 
 Disputed trade receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk 
- - - - - - - - 

 Disputed trade receivables – credit impaired - - - - - - - - 

(₹ in lakhs)

 12 Cash and cash equivalents 
  

    
 ParƟculars As at 

31 March 2024 
As at 

31 March 2023  
 Cash on hand 18.61 47.08 
 Balance with bank   - 
   - current account 427.48 3,674.53 
   - deposits with banks with original maturity of less than 3 months* 440.54 - 
  886.63 3,721.61 
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(₹ in lakhs)

(₹ in lakhs)

(₹ in lakhs)

(₹ in lakhs)

    
 * includes pledged & margin money deposited against cash credit with banking authoriƟes amounƟng to ₹ 440.54 lakhs as 

on 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: ₹ Nil) 
    
13 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents   
    
 ParƟculars As at 

31 March 2024 
As at 

31 March 2023  
 Deposits with banks with original maturity of more than 3 months but maturity 

less than 12 months* 
126.01 140.23 

  126.01 140.23 
    
 * includes pledged & margin money deposits with various government authoriƟes amounƟng to ₹ 90.88 lakhs as on  

31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: ₹ 90.88 lakhs) 
    
14 Current loans 

  
   

 

 
ParƟculars As at 

31 March 2024 
As at 

31 March 2023 
 
 

Unsecured, considered good   

 
   loans to related party - 278.32 

 
   Loan to others 1.80 - 

 
   Loan to employees - 1.34 

 
 1.80 279.66 

 
* Loan is receivable within a period of 12 months at interest rate in the range of 7.5% p.a. to 8% p.a.  

 
15 Other current financial assets   

    
 ParƟculars As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023  
 Interest receivables* 96.99 242.99 
 Other receivables 9.49 8.50 
 Advance to employees - 121.01 
  106.48 372.51 
 * Interest receivable includes interest on employee advances and interest on loan to subsidiaries amounƟng to Rs. 60.84 

Lakhs(31 March 2023- Rs. 237.32 Lakhs) 
    
16 Other current assets   

 (Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)   
 ParƟculars As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023  
 Deferred expenses - 1.64 
 Prepaid expenses 19.39 11.63 
 Balances with statutory/government authoriƟes 163.60 90.51 
 Imprest to employees 2.63 0.59 
 Advance to suppliers 482.71 208.43 
 Less: Provision for doubƞul advance   - - 
 Export incenƟve receivables 0.31 0.31 
 Other receivables - 508.52 
  668.64 821.62 
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  17   Equity share capital      
   As at 

31 March 2024 
 As at  

31 March 2023 
 a)   Authorised       
  10,10,00,000 Equity shares of ₹10/- each  

(31 March 2023: 10,10,00,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10/- each)  
10,100.00  10,100.00 

      
 b)   Issued, subscribed & fully paid up       
  7,83,96,762 Equity shares of ₹10/- each; 

(31 March 2023: 7,83,96,762 Equity shares of ₹ 10/- each)  
7,839.68  7,839.68 

       
  Total   7,839.68  7,839.68 

 
c)        ReconciliaƟon of number of equity shares and share capital outstanding  
 

  

ParƟculars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 
  No. of Shares   (₹ in lakhs)   No. of Shares   (₹ in lakhs)  

 At the beginning of the year   78,396,762 7,839.68 78,396,762 7,839.68 
 Add : Shares issued during the year *  - - - - 
 At the end of the year  78,396,762 7,839.68 78,396,762 7,839.68 

 
d)   Terms / rights aƩached to equity shares 
 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹10/- per share referred to herein as equity share. Each holder 

of equity shares is enƟtled to one vote per share held.
 The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 

approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng except in the case where interim dividend is distributed. During 
the year ended 31 March, 2024 and 31 March, 2023, no dividend has been declared by the Company.

 In the event of liquidaƟon of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enƟtled to receive all of the remaining assets of the 
Company, aŌer distribuƟon of all preferenƟal amounts, if any. Such distribuƟon amount will be in proporƟon to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders.

 e)  Aggregate number of shares issued for consideraƟon other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the 
reporƟng date:

 No shares were issued to the shareholders for consideraƟon other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding 
the reporƟng date.

f)  Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company      

  As at 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023 
  No. of Shares % of holding   No. of Shares     % of holding  
              
 Nikhil  Nanda 26,494,102 33.79%  26,494,102  33.79% 

        

 g)  Details of promotors shareholding           
              
  Shares held by promoter at the end of the year As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 % Change 

during 
the year 

  Promoter Name Number of 
shares 

% of total 
shares 

Number of 
shares 

% of total 
shares 

  Mr. Nikhil Nanda 26,494,102 33.79% 26,494,102 33.79% 0.00% 
  Late Mr. Harish Chander Nanda * 19,731 0.03% 19,731 0.03% 0.00% 
  Mr. Diljit Singh Grewal  1,500 0.00% 1,500 0.00% 0.00% 
  Mrs. Shushma Nanda 3,065,985 3.91% 3,065,985 3.91% 0.00% 

 

NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024



JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited80

  Shares held by promoter at the end of the year As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % Change 
during 

the year 
  Promoter Name Number of 

shares 
% of total 

shares 
Number of 

shares 
% of total 

shares 
  Mr. Nikhil Nanda 26,494,102 33.79% 26,494,102 41.14% -7.34% 
  Late Mr. Harish Chander Nanda * 19,731 0.03% 19,731 0.03% -0.01% 
  Mr. Diljit Singh Grewal  1,500 0.00% 1,500 0.00% 0.00% 
  Mrs. Shushma Nanda 3,065,985 3.91% 3,065,985 4.76% -0.85% 

  * Transmission of shares is under process.            
 

18   Other Equity  

    A  Summary of Other Equity Balance 
  

 

 
ParƟculars 

As at 
31 March 2024 

 

As at  
31 March 2023 

     
 

Capital reserves  (313.16) 
 

(313.16) 

 
SecuriƟes premium 11,035.39 

 
11,035.39 

 
General reserves 6.68 

 
6.68 

 
Retained earnings (1,553.11) 

 
(1,153.52) 

 
Other comprehensive income 12.83 

 
8.18 

 
Total  9,188.63 

 
9,583.57 

     

 

 a) Capital reserves   

   

 
 

As at 
31 March 2024 

 

As at  
31 March 2023 

 
 Opening balance  (313.16) 

 
(313.16) 

 
 AddiƟon/DeleƟon during the year  - 

 
- 

 
 Closing balance (A)  (313.16) 

 
(313.16) 

  
 

 
 

 
 b) SecuriƟes premium   

 
 

 
 

As at 
31 March 2024 

 As at  
31 March 2023 

 
Opening balance 11,035.39 

 
11,035.39 

 
Add : Premium on warrant converted into shares  - 

 
- 

 
Add : Premium on coversion of share warrants  - 

 
- 

 
Less : Other changes - Share issue expenses - 

 
- 

 
Less: Other consolidaƟon adjustment - 

 
- 

 
Closing balance (B) 11,035.39 

 
11,035.39 

  
 

 
 

 

c) General reserves 
 

 
 

 
 

As at 
31 March 2024 

 As at  
31 March 2023 

 
Opening balance 6.68 

 
6.68 

 
AddiƟon during the year - 

 
- 

 
Closing balance (C) 6.68 

 
6.68 

 

(₹ in lakhs)
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d) Retained earnings  

 
 

 
 

As at 
31 March 2024 

 As at  
31 March 2023 

 
Opening balance (1,153.52) 

 
550.18 

 

Add: Profit/ (Loss )for the year transferred from the Statement of Profit  
        and Loss (405.06) 

 

(1,751.71) 

 
Less: Adjustment pertaining to a loan given to shareholder 5.47 

 
46.79 

 
Add: Other consolidaƟon adjustment - 

 
 

 
Add: Adjustments of Lease EquilisaƟon Reserve - 

 
1.22 

 
Closing balance (D) (1,553.11) 

 
(1,153.52) 

  
 

 
 

 
 e) Other comprehensive income   

 
 

 
 

As at 
31 March 2024 

 As at  
31 March 2023 

 
Opening balance 8.18  18.08 

 
 Add: Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans  4.65  (9.90) 

 
Closing balance (E) 12.83 

 
8.18 

  
 

 
 

 
Total other equity (A+B+C+D+E) 9,188.62 

 
9,583.57 

 

(₹ in lakhs)

B Nature and purpose of reserve
   
a) Capital reserve   
 A capital reserve is an account in the equity secƟon of the balance sheet that can be used for conƟngencies or to offset capital losses. 

It is derived from the accumulated capital surplus of a company, created out of capital profit.The reserve is uƟlise in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

    
b) Security premium    
 SecuriƟes premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is uƟlise in accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013.
    
c) General reserve   
 This represents appropriaƟon of profit by the Company and is available for distribuƟon of dividend.
    
d) Retained earnings   
 Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned Ɵll date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other 

distribuƟons paid to shareholders. 

 e)  Other comprehensive income   
 Differences between the interest income on plan assets and the return actually achieved, and any changes in the liabiliƟes over the 

year due to changes in actuarial assumpƟons or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised in 'Other comprehensive 
income' and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

19  Financial liabiliƟes      
 (i)  Borrowings     (₹ in lakhs) 
  Non current    Current 
 As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023  
 Secured     
 Cash Credit - - 331.29 - 
 Vehicle loans*     
 - from banks 11.89 23.93 12.64 13.95 
  11.89 23.93 343.92 13.95 
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 * RespecƟve assets are hypothecated against the loans taken to acquire such vehicles. Loan is repayable within a period 
of 60 months at interest rate in the range of 7% p.a. to 10% p.a.  

  
 (ii)  Lease liabiliƟes     (₹ in lakhs) 
   Non current   Current 
 As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023  
 Lease liability on office building 104.85 182.99 52.21 36.73 
   104.85 182.99 52.21 36.73 
       
  20  Provisions    

 
(₹ in lakhs) 

  Non Current    Current  
 As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
 Provision for employee benefits - Gratuity  128.28 115.02 10.85 10.58 
 Provision for employee benefits - Leave 

encashment  
19.43 21.73 1.46 1.52 

  147.71 136.75 12.31 12.11 

 
  21  Other non current liabiliƟes   (₹ in lakhs)  
  As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
    
 Deferred government grant- non current part(refer note 37)  118.90 130.44 
  118.90 130.44 

 
22  Trade payables   (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars As at 
31 March 2024 

As at  
31 March 2023  

 Due to micro & small enterprises (Refer note 47)  381.94 179.86 

 Due to others 1,027.56 2,058.49 

  1,409.51 2,238.35 

    
 
   (₹ in lakhs) 
ParƟculars As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
 Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises  

(as per the inƟmaƟon received from vendors) 
  

a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounƟng year:    
 Principal 381.94 179.86 
 Interest - - 
b) Interest paid by the Company in terms of SecƟon 16 of the Micro, Small and -

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day.  

- - 

c ) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which - have 
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding 
interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006.  

- - 

d) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid  - - 
e) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unƟl - such 

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises. 
- - 

 

Disclosure under the Micro, small and medium enterprises development Act,(27 of 2006) ("MSMED ACT 2006")
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f) Trade payable ageing schedule  
    Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  as at 31 March 2024  (₹  in lakhs) 

 ParƟcular Not Due  Less than 1 year   1 - 2 years   2 - 3 years   More than 3 years Total  
 Trade payables      

   MSME*  - 381.78 0.16 - - 381.94 
 Others - 871.49 87.91 66.99 1.19 1,027.57 
 Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - 
 Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - 
 

        Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as at 31 March 2023  (₹ in lakhs) 
 ParƟcular Not Due  Less than 1 year   1 - 2 years   2 - 3 years   More than 3 years Total  
 Trade payables   

      MSME*  - 179.86 - - - 179.86 
 Others 1,045.65 836.25 84.76 91.83 - 2,058.49 
 Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - 
 Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - 
 

23 Other current financial liabiliƟes  (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars As at 
31 March 2024 

As at  
31 March 2023 

 
 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.15 0.20 

 
Payable to employees 147.51 174.68 

 
Payable towards purchase of property, plant and equipment  295.16 56.97 

  442.83 231.86 

 
*there are no amounts due for payments to the Investors EducaƟon  and ProtecƟon Fund under SecƟon 125 of the Companies Act, 
2013 as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 - Nil).

24 Other current liabiliƟes  (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars As at 
31 March 2024 

As at  
31 March 2023  

 Statutory dues 39.50 24.80 

 Advance received from customers 16.05 1,074.82 

 Government grant (refer note 38)  14.14 15.07 

 Payable to employees 2.92 - 

 Other Current Liability - 1.50 

  72.61 1,116.17 

      25  Revenue from operaƟons   
   (₹  in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars  Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 
 Revenue from contracts with customers*    
 Sale of manufactured goods-Oral Care products  6,520.20 8,396.91 

 Sale of packing material/raw material/traded Goods 460.38 11.33 

 Other operaƟng revenue   
 Scrap sales  99.24 73.21 

 Revenue from OperaƟons 7,079.82 8,481.45 

    
 * It represents disaggregated revenue informaƟon in accordance with IND AS 115.   
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The transacƟon price allocated to the remaining performance obligaƟon (unsaƟsfied or parƟally unsaƟsfied) as at 
year end are, as follows: 

    (₹  in lakhs)  

 ParƟculars  Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 Advances from customers (refer note no. 24) 18.44 1,074.82 

    

 
Management expects that the enƟre transacƟon price alloƩed to the unsaƟsfied contract as at the end of the reporƟng 
period will be recognised as revenue during the next financial year.  

    
26 Other income   (₹  in lakhs)  

  Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 
 Interest income on fixed deposits  11.40 8.36 

 Interest income from financial assets at amorƟsed cost  44.67 90.60 

 Export incenƟves 0.31 0.82 

 Provision no longer required wriƩen back - 26.89 

 Government grant (refer note 38) 15.07 15.44 

 Profit/loss on modificaƟon of lease liability 69.48 - 

 Foreign exchange gain (net)  - 89.99 

 Profit on sale of investments - 4.16 

 Sale of media rights - 250.00 

 Miscellaneous income 209.18 633.67 

 Profit on sale of fixed assets 0.15 4.00 

 Net gain on financial asset measured at FVTPL 28.49 2.80 

 Shipping charges recovered 0.55 5.24 

 Miscellaneous balance wriƩen back 52.14 0.13 

  431.44 1,132.10 

 
27 Cost of materials consumed   

   (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars  Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 
(i) Cost of raw materials consumed   

 Stock at the beginning of the year 381.71 356.28 

 Add: Purchases raw material 2,424.36 3,288.84 

 Less: Stock at the end of the year (524.88) (381.71) 

  2,281.19 3,263.42 

 Cost of packing materials consumed   
 Stock at the beginning of the year  404.61 282.49 

 Add: Purchases packaging 1,687.65 2,462.62 

 Less: Stock at the end of the year (292.20) (404.61) 

  1,800.06 2,340.50 

    
  4,081.25 5,603.91 
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(ii)
 

Purchases of stock in trade
   

   (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars  Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 
 Purchases of stock in trade 20.92 3.10 

 Purchases of finished goods 180.56 131.10 

  201.48 134.20 

    
28 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock -in-trade   

   (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars  Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 
 Finished goods   
 At the beginning of the year 350.62 354.04 

 Add: Purchases 2.01  
 Less: At the end of the year (265.28) (350.62) 

  87.35 3.43 

 Work-in-progress   
 At the beginning of the year 116.76 117.69 

 Add: Purchases 49.70 324.23 

 Less: At the end of the year (121.16) (116.76) 

  45.30 325.16 

    
    
  132.65 302.91 

 29 Employee benefits expenses 
  

   
(₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars 
 Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023  

 
 

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances 821.77 967.44 

 
ContribuƟon to provident and other funds  48.79 58.72 

 
Workmen and staff welfare expenses  23.35 16.36 

 
Gratuity  29.76 1.35 

 
Leave encashment  (2.36) (25.96) 

 
Staff training & sƟpends - 0.79 

  
921.31 1,018.70 

    30 Finance costs 
  

   
(₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars 
 Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023  

 
 

Interest expense 11.93 23.12 

 
Interest on lease liability 30.26 24.46 

 
Interest on delay in deposit of Statutory dues  0.28 2.21 

 
Bank charges 3.52 4.87 

46.00 54.66 
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    31 DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon expenses 
  

   
(₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars 
 Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023  

 
 

DepreciaƟon on property, plant & equipment  568.80 576.26 

 
DepreciaƟon on right of use asset 52.34 23.92 

 
AmorƟsaƟon of intangible assets 13.44 1.49 

  
634.58 601.67 

 
32 Other expenses 

  
   

(₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars 
 Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023  

 
 

ConsumpƟon of stores and spares 25.54 52.93 

 
Power and Fuel  273.34 290.40 

 
AdverƟsement expenses 1.54 116.64 

 
Job work charges  501.98 659.77 

 
Business promoƟon expenses 26.91 61.25 

 
Repairs  

  
 

      Plant and Machinery 126.20 109.77 

 
      Building 12.57 131.98 

 
      Others 29.06 31.20 

 
Freight and cartage outward 31.55 51.89 

 
Insurance charges 48.00 57.31 

 
Legal and professional fees 111.36 376.37 

 
Rates and taxes 27.98 50.18 

 
AddiƟonal Goods Tax 6.51 4.88 

 
Telephone and postage  5.55 5.82 

 
PrinƟng and staƟonery  6.44 8.84 

 
Travelling and conveyance expenses  88.27 95.23 

 
Provision for doubƞul receivables 0.19 3.01 

 
Exchange fluctuaƟon 11.97 - 

 
Commission on sale  58.88 46.66 

 
Provision wriƩen off 22.21 5.56 

 
Directors' siƫng fees  6.17 3.00 

 
Auditor's remuneraƟon (Refer note 47)  8.70 10.44 

 
Office maintenance  24.72 30.49 

 
Research & Development charges 13.77 6.53 

 
Miscellaneous expenses 328.69 90.86 

 
AmorƟzaƟon of deferred rent expense  26.68 8.35 

 
License fees 9.13 15.77 

 
DonaƟon expense 2.25 3.82 

  
1,836.14 2,328.95 
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    33 ExcepƟonal Items 
  

   
(₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars 
 Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023  

 
 

Provision for doubƞul advance - 1,606.79 

 
Balances wriƩen off - 256.27 

  
- 1,863.07 

 
34 Income taxes 

   
     (a) Income tax expenses 

  
(₹ in lakhs) 

 
   Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023  

 
 

Profit and loss secƟon    
    
i. Current tax 

   
 

Current tax on profits for the year  
 

- - 

 
Adjustments for current tax of previous years  

 
- - 

   
- - 

ii. Deferred tax charge/(credit) 
   

 
OriginaƟon and reversal of temporary differences  

 
62.91 (542.81) 

   
62.91 (542.81) 

 
Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss (i+ii)  62.91 (542.81) 

     
 

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) SecƟon 
   

 
Tax relaƟng to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit & Loss  (1.64) 3.48 

 
Income tax charged to OCI 

 
(1.64) 3.48 

     (b) ReconciliaƟon of tax expense and the accounƟng profit mulƟplied by India's 
domesƟc rate  

(₹ in lakhs) 

    Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023   

 
Profit from conƟnuing operaƟons (A)  

 
(342.15) (2,294.52) 

 
Income tax rate applicable (B) 

 
26.00% 26.00% 

 
Computed tax expense (A*B) 

 
(88.96) (596.57) 

 

Tax effect of the amounts that are not deducƟble (taxable) while 
calculaƟng taxable income : 

   
 

Effect of Non- deducƟble expenses 
 

100.65 18.10 

 
Income not taxable under income tax 

 
- (2.48) 

 
Effect of changes in tax rate due to MAT  

 
- - 

 
Tax expense for previous year  

 
- - 

 
Deferred tax on unabsorbed losses, previously not recognised  

 
- - 

 
Tax impact of IND AS adjustment  

 
15.19 8.32 

 
Deffered tax reversal on provision wriƩen back  

 
- 6.99 

 
Others 

 
(81.71) 25.71 

 
Income tax expense/(reversal) 

 
(54.84) (539.93) 
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35 ConƟngent liability
 I.  Claims/liƟgaƟons made against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
 1.  MaƩers under liƟgaƟon:
  Claims against the Company by vendors & customers amounƟng to ฀ 31.38 lakhs (Previous Year ฀ 45.39 lakhs). The 

management of the Company believes that the ulƟmate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material/adverse effect 
on the Company's financial condiƟon and results of operaƟons.

 II.  Others:
  Bank guarantee issued by bank amounƟng to ฀ 151.16 lakhs (Previous Year ฀ 151.16 lakhs).

36 Capital commitments 
   

(₹ in lakhs) 

 

  Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 

EsƟmated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 
account and not provided for (net of capital advances) 

 39.14 18.39 

 
Investment in Sixth Sense Ventures Advisors LLP   - 30.00 

 
Total     39.14 48.39 

 
37 Government grant
 During the financial year ended 31 March, 2022, the Company had received a capital subsidy of Rs. 225 lakhs under the Industrial 

development scheme ,2017 noƟfied vide no. 2(2)2018-SPS of the Government of India. The subsidy received is being apporƟoned to 
Statement of Profit & Loss over the useful life of the eligible assets. During the year the Company has recognised ₹ 15.07 lakhs 
(previous year ₹ 15.44 lakhs ) as government grant based on useful life of the assets. 

  
38 Segment reporƟng
 The Company is engaged in manufacturing a range of oral and dental products for elite naƟonal and internaƟonal brands. 

InformaƟon reported to and evaluated regularly by the Chief OperaƟonal Decision Maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource 
allocaƟon and assessing performance focuses on business as a whole. The CODM reviews the Company's performance on the 
analysis profit before tax at overall level. Accordingly, there is no other separate reportable segmental as defined by IND AS 108 
"Segment ReporƟng".

 
InformaƟon about geographical areas are as under   (₹ in lakhs) 

 
    Revenue from external customers 

 

  Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 
India    6,889.95 8,397.55 

 
UAE    0.01 65.67 

 
Bangladesh   - 6.02 

 
Italy    96.24  

 
Nepal    33.60 12.06 

 
Russia    35.99  

 
USA    24.04 0.16 

 
Total  7,079.82 8,481.45 

         InformaƟon about major customers

 Revenue of  ₹ 3464.70 lakhs, (Previous year  ₹ 6489.20 lakhs) arising from three customers in India contribute more than 10% of the 
Company's revenue individually. No other customer contribute 10% or more than 10% to the Company's revenue for the current 
year ended 31 March, 2024. The Company does not hold any non current assets outside India.
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39 Employee benefit obligaƟons
 The Company has classified various employee benefits as under:
 a.  Defined contribuƟon plans    
        i)      Employees Provident fund    
       ii)      Employee State Insurance Scheme    
 The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year: (Refer Note- 30)

    (₹ in lakhs)

 ParƟculars Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 ContribuƟon to Provident Fund                  40.08                    48.34  

 ContribuƟon to Employee State Insurance Scheme                   8.71                    10.38  

 Total                 48.79                   58.72  

 

 ParƟculars     Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Discount rate (per annum)     7.22% 7.45% 

 Rate of increase in compensaƟon levels     7.00% 7.00% 

 ReƟrement age      58  Years  

 Mortality table      100% of IALM (2012-14)  

 Average withdrawal rate      7% 7% 

 
 The discount rate has been assumed at 7.22% p.a. (Previous year 7.45% p.a.) based upon the market yields available on Government 

bonds at the accounƟng date for remaining life of employees. The esƟmates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial 
valuaƟon, take account of inflaƟon, seniority, promoƟon and other  relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment 
market on long term basis.

 b.  Defined benefit plans 
        I.)         Gratuity
    
 c.  Other long-term employee benefits 
       ii.)        Leave encashment    
 Gratuity is payable to eligible employees as per the Company's policy and The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The present value of 

obligaƟon is determined based on actuarial valuaƟon using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method, which recognizes each period 
of service as giving rise to addiƟonal unit of employee benefit enƟtlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final 
obligaƟons.

 Provision for leave benefits is made by the Company on the basis of actuarial valuaƟon using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) 
method.

 Liability with respect to the gratuity and leave encashment is determined based on an actuarial valuaƟon done by an independent 
actuary at the year end and is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumpƟons and are recognized 
immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income as income or expense.

     
 Other disclosures required under IND AS 19 “Employee benefits” are given below: 
 Principal Actuarial AssumpƟons at the Balance Sheet date
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 I) Changes in the present value of obligaƟon (₹  in lakhs) 

ParƟculars 

Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Present value of obligaƟon as at the beginning of the year  23.25 125.60 42.73 129.76 
AcquisiƟon adjustment - - - - 
Interest cost 1.73 9.23 2.97 8.90 
Past service cost - - -  
Current service cost 4.62 20.53 7.33 19.54 
ContribuƟon by plan parƟcipants - - - - 
Curtailment cost/(credit) - - - - 
SeƩlement cost/(credit) - - - - 
Benefit paid - (9.94) - (7.79) 
Change in financial assumpƟon - - - - 
Experience variance - - - - 
Actuarial (gains)/loss (8.71) (6.29) (29.78) (24.80) 
Present value of obligaƟon as at the end of the year 20.89 139.13 23.25 125.60 
      
Current 1.46 10.85 1.52 10.58 
Non current 19.43 128.28 21.73 115.02 
Total  20.89 139.13 23.25 125.60 

 
II) ReconciliaƟon of the Present Value of Defined Benefit ObligaƟon and the Fair Value of Assets  (₹  in lakhs) 

ParƟculars 

Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Present value of funded obligaƟon as at the end of the year  - - - - 
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year - - - - 
Funded (asset)/liability recognised in the balance sheet - - - - 
Present value of unfunded obligaƟon as at the end of the year  20.89 139.13 23.25 125.60 
Unfunded net liability recognised in the balance sheet 20.89 139.13 23.25 125.60 

 III) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Account     (₹  in lakhs) 

ParƟculars 

Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Current service cost 4.62 20.53 7.33 19.54 
Past service cost - - - - 
AcquisiƟon adjustment - - - - 
Interest cost 1.73 9.23 2.97 8.90 
Expected return on plan assets - - - - 
Curtailment cost/(credit) - - - - 
SeƩlement cost/(credit) - - - - 
Benefit paid - - - - 
Remeasurement - - - - 
Net actuarial (gains)/loss (8.71) - (29.78) - 
Employees contribuƟon - - - - 
Total expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss account  (2.36) 29.76 (19.48) 28.44 
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Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Gratuity (Unfunded)                             (₹  in lakhs) 

ParƟculars Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

Net cumulaƟve unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) opening - - 
Actuarial gain / (loss) for the year on PBO 6.29 24.80 
Actuarial gain /(loss) for the year on asset - - 
Unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) at the end of the year 6.29 24.80 

 

IV) Expected Employer ContribuƟon        (₹  in lakhs)  

ParƟculars 

Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Expected employer contribuƟon for the next year  - - - - 

     
    (₹  in lakhs) 

V) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit ObligaƟon Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

Year Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

0 to 1 Year 1.46 12.53 1.52 10.55 
1 to 2 Year 1.43 8.81 1.61 9.77 
2 to 3 Year 1.91 9.13 1.47 8.33 
3 to 4 Year 1.24 8.47 1.81 8.41 
4 to 5 Year 1.27 8.34 1.48 7.38 

5 Year onwards  13.57 91.86 15.36 81.17 

     
VI) Sensivity Analysis of the Defined Benefit ObligaƟon:-        (₹  in lakhs)  

ParƟculars  Leave Encashment   Gratuity  
(Unfunded)  

  Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Impact of change in discount rate        
Present value of obligaƟon at the end of the year  20.89   139.13  
a) Impact due to increase of 0.5% (0.87)   (5.47)  
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.5% 0.93   5.86  
  Year ended  

31 March 2024 
Impact of change in salary rate        
Present value of obligaƟon at the end of the year  20.89   139.13   
a) Impact due to increase of 0.5% 0.92   5.84   
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.5% (0.87)   (5.51)   

 
DescripƟon of Risk Exposures :
Risks associated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks. These risks are:- (i) investment risk, (ii) interest risk (discount rate risk), (iii) 
mortality risk and (iv) salary risk. 
i)  Investment Risk- The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to 

Government bonds yield. If plan liability is funded and return on plan assets is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.
ii)  Interest Risk (discount rate risk) – A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability.
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iii)  Mortality Risk  - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best esƟmate of the mortality 
of plan parƟcipants. For this report we have used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) ulƟmate table. A change in mortality rate 
will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

iv)  Salary Risk – The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumpƟon of salary increase rate of plan 
parƟcipants in future. DeviaƟon in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan parƟcipants from the rate of increase in salary used 
to determine the present value of obligaƟon will have a bearing on the plan's liability. 

40 Related party disclosures as per IND AS 24
(a) Names of related parƟes and descripƟon of relaƟonship:

  RelaƟonships  Name of Related Party 
  Related parƟes where control exists  

  
- JHS Svendgaard Mechanical and Warehouse Private Limited 
(99.99%) 

  EnƟƟes controlled by a person who is a KMP of the 
Company or a person who has significant influence 
over the Company 

- Starpool Consultants & Advisors LLP 
- Harish Chander Nanda EducaƟonal and Charitable Society 
- JHS Svendgaard Retail Ventures Ltd.  
- Anand & Anand Legal Services LLP 

  
  
  
  RelaƟves of Key Managerial Personnel  - Mrs Sushma Nanda (Mother of Mr. Nikhil Nanda)  
  EnƟƟes which are controlled or jointly controlled by 

Key Managerial Personnel category or by his/her close 
family members 

- Number One Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.  
- Apogee Manufacturing Private Limited  
- GuruNanda LLC 
- Magna Waves Private Limited  

 
(b) Key Managerial Personnels (KMP) of the JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited   

 Name of Key Managerial Personnel Category Period  
 Mr. Nikhil Nanda Managing Director 2023-24 

 
 Mr. Rajagopal Chakravarthi Venkateish    Non -ExecuƟve Independent Director  2023-24 

 
 Mr. Mukul Pathak   Non - ExecuƟve Independent Director 2023-24 

 
 Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani   Non - ExecuƟve Independent Director 2023-24 

 
 Mr. Vinay MiƩal    Non - ExecuƟve Independent Director 2023-24 

 
 Mr. Kapil Minocha    Non - ExecuƟve Independent Director  2023-24 

 
 Mr. Paramvir Singh Pabla    Chief ExecuƟve Officer 2023-24 

 
 Mr. Ashish Goel    Chief Financial Officer 2023-24 

 
 Mrs. Komal Jha   Company Secretary  2023-24 

 
 Mr. Deepesh Sharma   VP - Strategy & Business Development 2023-24 

 
 
(c) Key Managerial Personnels (KMP) of JHS Mechanical and Warehouse Private Limited   

 Name of Key Managerial Personnel Category Period 
 Mr. Nikhil Nanda Director 2023-24 
 Mr. Chhabi Lal Prasad  Director 2023-24 
    

(d) Key Management Personnel CompensaƟon    (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Short- term employee benefits     161.96                    149.69  
 Post- employment benefits    27.60                     28.71  
 Long- term employee benefits    -                       4.43  
 Director's Siƫng fees     6.17                       3.00  
 Total CompensaƟon                195.73                   185.83  
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(e) TransacƟons with related parƟes        The following transacƟons occurred with related parƟes:   (₹ in lakhs)  
S.No. Statement of Profit and Loss heads     Year ended  

31 March 2024 
 Year ended  

31 March 2023  
1. Income:          Interest income               - Nikhil Nanda   44.67 90.60    Sale of Products              - Apogee Enterprises Private Limited   0.87 -          - GuruNanda LLC   24.04 -           2. Expenditure:        i) Interest expenses on lease liability as per IND AS 116              - Nikhil Nanda   30.26 24.46    ii) DepreciaƟon expenses on Right of use assets as per as per IND AS 116              - Nikhil Nanda   52.34 23.92    iii) AmorƟzaƟon of deferred rent expense               - Nikhil Nanda   26.68 8.35    iv) Electricity and Water expenses      
        - Nikhil Nanda   16.29 13.68    v) Rent Expenses             - Magna Waves Private Limited   0.30 -  
 * As per secƟon 135(1) of companies Act ,2013 this year CSR not applicable on the company.    

 
(f) Investments / Loans & advances and other adjustments to/ from Related ParƟes  (₹ in lakhs) 
        Year ended  

31 March 2024 
 Year ended  

31 March 2023 
i. Payment Received        
  - GuruNanda LLC                   425.50                           -    
  - JHS Svendgaard Mechanical & Warehouse Private Limited                     94.70                  1,319.52  
          

ii. Payment made        
  - JHS Svendgaard Mechanical & Warehouse Private Limited                1,355.32                           -    
  - HWJHS Labs Private Limited                            -                          0.20  
      

(g)  Balance Sheet heads (Closing balances)     (₹ in lakhs)  
         Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023  
  Credit balances       
i. Other liabiliƟes       
  - Nikhil Nanda                       8.68    

ii. Trade Payable        
  - Anand & Anand Legal Services LLP                       1.38                        1.38  
  - Magna Waves Private Limited                           -                          0.17  
          
  Debit Balances       

iii. Loans and advances       
  - JHS Svendgaard Mechanical & Warehouse Private Limited                  1,491.62                 1,319.52  
  - Nikhil Nanda (At amorƟsed cost)                     68.83                      16.73  
  - Nikhil Nanda (staff housing advance)                          -                       459.72  

iv. Trade receivables        
  - Apogee Manufacturing Private Limited                       34.58                      33.55  
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(h) Terms and CondiƟons
 Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured, interest free and recoverable/repayable on demand. There has been no 

guarantee provided or received for any related party receivable and payable, other than disclosed. For the year end 31 March, 2024 
the Company has provided for impairment of receivables owed by the related party ₹ Nil (31 March, 2023: ₹ Nil ). This assessment 
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial posiƟon of related party and market in which related party operates.

41      Fair valuaƟon measurements

   

 Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

S.No. ParƟculars Level of 
Hierarchy 

FVTPL FVTOCI AmorƟzed 
cost 

Total 
carrying 

value 

FVTPL FVTOCI AmorƟzed 
Cost 

Total 
carrying 

value 
  Financial assets          

1 Investments          
 Investment in Mutual Funds 1 28.49 - 215.97 244.46 2.80  183.15 185.96 
 Investment in MLD 1 - - - - - - - - 
 Investment in Preference shares  1 - - 100.17 100.17 -  100.17 100.17 

2 Loans     -    - 
 Security deposit 3 - - - - - - 49.11 49.11 
 Related parƟes 3   165.67 165.67   278.32 278.32 
 Others  3 - - 157.36 157.36 - - 1.34 1.34 

3 Trade receivables  3 - - 1,287.96 1,287.96 - - 1,853.60 1,853.60 
4 Other financial assets 3 - - 230.77 230.77  - 664.26 664.26 
5 Cash & cash equivalents 3 - - 886.63 886.63 - - 3,721.61 3,721.61 
6 Bank balances other than cash & cash 

equivalents 
3 - - 126.01 126.01 - - 140.23 140.23 

  Total financial assets   28.49 - 3,170.54 3,199.03 2.80 - 6,991.80 6,994.60 
 Financial liability          

1 Borrowings including current maturiƟes 3 - - 355.81 355.81 - - 37.88 37.88 
2 Trade & other payables  3 - - 1,409.51 1,409.51 - - 2,238.35 2,238.35 
3 Lease liabiliƟes 3 - - 157.06 157.06   219.71 219.71 
4 Other financial liabiliƟes 3 - - 442.83 442.83 - - 231.86 231.86 

  Total financial liabiliƟes   - - 2,365.21 2,365.21 - - 2,727.80 2,727.80 
 Fair valuaƟon of financial assets and liabiliƟes with short term maturiƟes is considered as approximate to respecƟve carrying amount 
due to the short term maturiƟes of these instruments.
- Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. 
- Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an acƟve market is determined using valuaƟon techniques which 
maximize the use of observable market data and rely as liƩle as possible on enƟty specific esƟmates. If all significant inputs required to 
fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 
- Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The fair 
value of financial assets and liabiliƟes included in Level 3 is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based 
on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transacƟons and dealer quotes of similar instruments.

42 The Company has valued the following investments in subsidiaries at cost, as per Ind AS 27.  

 
ParƟculars       As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 

 
Investment in equity shares                                                0.20                                           0.20  

 43 Financial risk management
 Risk management objecƟves and policies
 The Company is exposed to various risks in relaƟon to financial instruments. The Company's financial assets and liabiliƟes by 

category are summarised in Note 41. The main types of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company's risk management is coordinated by its board of directors, and focuses on acƟvely securing the Company's short to 
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medium-term cash flows by minimising the exposure to volaƟle financial markets. 
 The Company does not acƟvely engage in the trading of financial assets for speculaƟve purposes nor does it write opƟons. The most 

significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed to, are described below:
1 Market risk
 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will have an effect on Company's income or value of the financial assets and 

liabiliƟes. The Company is exposed to various types of market risks which result from its operaƟng and invesƟng acƟviƟes. The most 
significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed are described below:

(a) Foreign currency risk
 The Company operates internaƟonally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transacƟons, primarily 

with respect to  USD and EURO. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transacƟons and recognise assets and liabiliƟes 
denominated in a currency that is not Company's funcƟonal currency(INR). The Risk is measured through a forecast of highly 
probable foreign currency cashflows.

 The following table presents non-derivaƟve instruments which are exposed to currency risk and are unhedged as at 31 March 2024 
and 31 March 2023 :

      (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars  Foreign currency As at  
31 March 2024 

 As at  
31 March 2023  

      
 Trade Payable   USD 5.56 57.00 

 Trade Receivable   USD 156.19 498.40 

  
 

 Currencies Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 INR/USD -1% -8% 

       
  These percentages have been determined based on the average market volaƟlity in exchange rates in the previous 12 months. The 

sensiƟvity analysis given in the table below is based on the Company's foreign currency financial instruments held at each reporƟng 
date.

 SensiƟvity analysis for enƟƟes with foreign currency balances in INR
 The following tables illustrate the sensiƟvity of profit/loss and equity in regards to the Company's trade payables and trade 

receivables and the movement of exchange rates of respecƟve funcƟonal currencies' against INR, assuming 'all other things being 
constant'. 

 If the respecƟve funcƟonal currencies had strengthened/weakened against the INR by the afore menƟoned percentage of market 
volaƟlity, then this would have had the following impact on profit/loss:

      (₹ in lakhs) 

 Year ended 31 March, 2024  Movement  Profit and loss  

    Strengthening   Weakening  

 USD SensiƟvity -1%                    (2.20)                       2.20  

  
 Year ended 31 March, 2023  Movement  Profit and loss  

    Strengthening   Weakening  

 USD SensiƟvity -8%                   (36.46)                      36.46  

       
 

 To miƟgate the Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk, cash flows in foreign currencies are monitored and net cash flows are 
managed in accordance with Company's risk management policies. Generally, the Company's risk management procedures 
disƟnguish short term foreign currency cash flows (due within 6 months) from longer term cash flows (due aŌer 6 months). Where 
the amounts to be paid and received in a specific currency are expected to largely offset one another, no hedging acƟvity is 
undertaken.

 The following table gives the volaƟlity in exchange rates for the respecƟve reporƟng years for major currencies:
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(₹ in lakhs) 

 Year ended 31 March, 2024  Movement  Profit and loss  

  Strengthening   Weakening  

 Price risk sensiƟvity 2% 5.62   (5.62) 

    
   

 Year ended 31 March, 2023  Movement  Profit and loss  

  Strengthening   Weakening  

 Price risk sensiƟvity 2% 4.28   (4.28) 
 (c) Interest rate risk

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Company is  not exposed to significant interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at fixed interest 
rates. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in rupees and fixed rates of interest.  

      (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars As at  
31 March 2024 

 As at  
31 March 2023  

 Fixed-rate borrowings including current maturiƟes    
 - Vehicle loan (secured)                    24.52                       37.88  

 -Loan from Corporate (Unsecured)                         -                         10.00  

 Total borrowings (gross of transacƟon cost)                    24.52                      47.88  

 2 CREDIT RISK
 Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalent, investments in mutual funds, deposits with the banks, as well as credit exposure to 

customers including outstanding receivables.
 Credit risk management 
 For Bank and Financial InsƟtuƟons, only high rated banks/ insƟtuƟons are accepted.
 For other counter parƟes, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial 

condiƟon, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of account receivables. Individual risk limits are 
set accordingly. The Company conƟnuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparƟes and incorporates this 
informaƟon into its credit risk controls. The Company's policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparƟes only.

 The Company considers the probability of default upon iniƟal recogniƟon of asset and whether there has been a significant increase 
in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporƟng period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the 
Company compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at the reporƟng date with the risk of default as at the date of iniƟal 
recogniƟon. The Company considers reasonable and supporƟve forward-looking informaƟon.

 The Company based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/current facts available in relaƟon to default 
and delays in collecƟon thereof, the credit risk for trade receivable is considered low. The Company esƟmates its allowance for trade 
receivable using life Ɵme expected credit loss. The balance past due for more than 6 months (net of expected credit loss allowance), 
excluding receivable from Group companies is ₹ 481.30 lakhs (31 March, 2023 ₹ 900.35 lakhs).

 The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents and other financial instruments is considered negligible and no impairment has been 
recorded by the Company.

 Significant esƟmates and judgments
 Impairment of financial assets
 The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumpƟons about risk of default and expected loss 

rates. The Company uses judgment in making these assumpƟons and selecƟng the inputs to the impairment calculaƟon, based on 
the Company's past history, exisƟng market condiƟons as well as forward looking esƟmates at the end of each reporƟng period. 

(b) Price risk 
 The Company is mainly exposed to the price risk due to investment in mutual funds and market linked debentures. The price risk 

arises due to uncertainƟes about the future market values of these investments. In order to minimise pricing risk arising from 
investment in mutual funds, Company invest in highly rated mutual funds. 

 The sensiƟvity to price risk if increases/ decrease in NAV of the mutual funds is: 
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3 Liquidity risk
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeƟng the obligaƟons associated with its financial liabiliƟes 

that are seƩled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as 
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabiliƟes when they are due, under both normal and stressed condiƟons, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputaƟon.

 The Company's is responsible for managing the short term and long term liquidity requirements. Short term liquidity situaƟon is 
reviewed daily. Longer term liquidity posiƟon is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are 
taken according to the situaƟon.

 Exposure to liquidity risk 
 The following are the remaining contractual maturiƟes of financial liabiliƟes at the reporƟng date. The amounts are gross and 

undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments :

      (₹ in lakhs) 

   As at 31 March, 2024 

   Upto 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 year Above 5 years Total  

 
Borrowings including 
current maturiƟes 343.92                       11.89                              -                            -    355.81  

 Trade payables 1,409.51                            -                                -                            -    1,409.51  

 Lease liabiliƟes 52.21                    104.85                              -                            -    157.06  

 Other financial liabiliƟes 442.83                            -                                -                            -    442.83  

 Total  2,248.46                    116.75                              -                            -    2,365.21  

       
   As at 31 March, 2023 

   Upto 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 year Above 5 years Total  

 
Borrowings including 
current maturiƟes 13.95                       23.93                              -                            -    37.88  

 Trade payables  2,238.35                            -                                -                            -    2,238.35  

 Lease liabiliƟes 92.04                       82.82  44.85  -    219.71  

 Other financial liabiliƟes 231.86                            -                                -    -    231.86  

 Total  2,576.19                    106.76                        44.85  -    2,727.80  
 

44 Capital management
A Risk management
 For the purposes of Company capital management, Capital includes equity aƩributable to the equity holders of the Company and all 

other equity reserves. The primary objecƟve of the Company capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital 
structure and maximize shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in 
economic condiƟons and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may 
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital 
requirements. No changes were made in the objecƟves, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March, 
2024 and 31 March, 2023.

B Dividends       
 The Company has not proposed any dividend for the year ended 31 March, 2024 (31 March, 2023: ₹ Nil). 

        (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars  As at  
31 March 2024  

 As at  
31 March 2023  

 Equity share capital                7,839.68             7,839.68  

 Free reserve*              (1,533.62)           (1,138.66) 

         
 * Comprises of retained earning and general reserves.    
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46 Leases  

 The movement in lease liabiliƟes is as follows :   
      (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Opening balance 219.71 251.49 

 Add :  Lease assets during the period 181.80 - 

 Add :  Interest expense during the period 30.26 37.92 

 Less:  Cash ouƞlows (69.69) (69.69) 

 Less: DeleƟons/Adjustment on account of waiver in lease rent   (205.01) - 

 Closing lease liability at the end of the period 157.06 219.71 

 

45 Earnings per equity share 
  

   
(₹ in lakhs) 

 

ParƟculars Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 
  

  
 

Earnings per equity share has been computed as under:   

 
Earnings aƩributable to equity shareholders  (405.06) (1,751.71) 

 
Nominal value of equity share (₹) 10 10 

 
No of shares as at end of the year 78,396,762 78,396,762 

 
No. of weighted average equity shares 78,396,762 78,396,762 

 
Basic Earning per share (₹) (0.52) (2.23) 

 
Number of equity shares for DiluƟve earning per share 78,396,762 78,396,762 

 
DiluƟve earning per share (₹) (0.52) (2.23) 

 

47 
 

Auditor's RemuneraƟons 
    

(₹ in lakhs) 
 

 
 

Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 Statutory audit fees 4.00 4.50 

 Tax audit fees  1.50 1.50 

 Other maƩers   
  - Limited reviews 2.46 3.60 

  - Out of pocket expenses 0.75 0.02 

  - CerƟficaƟon fees - 0.82 

  8.70 10.44 

       
 

48 Suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 
 A sum of ₹ 381.94 lakhs is payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as at 31 March, 2024 (31 March, 2023: ₹ 179.86 lakhs). The above 

amount is on account of trade payables only. Out of the total amount outstanding to Micro and Small Enterprises a sum of ₹ 119.92 
lakhs (31 March, 2023: ₹ 78.76 lakhs) is outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31 March, 2024. This informaƟon as required to be 
disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parƟes 
have been idenƟfied on the basis of informaƟon available with the Company.

49 Disclosure required under secƟon 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013 :-
i ParƟculars of loan given     (₹ in lakhs) 

 
Sr.  
No ParƟculars   Purpose Year ended  

31 March 2024 
 Year ended  

31 March 2023 

 1 JHS Svendgaard Mechanical and Warehouse Private Limited  Purchase of land 163.32 - 

 2 Amit Saxena   Business purpose 2.11 278.29 

 3 Nirvikar Films LLP   Business purpose 47.25 - 

 4 CreaƟve Jewellers Business purpose 110.35 - 
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ii ParƟculars of investment made    (₹ in lakhs) 

 
Sr.  
No ParƟculars     Year ended  

31 March 2024 
 Year ended  

31 March 2023 

 1 JHS Svendgaard Mechanical and Warehouse Private Limited  1.00 1.00 

 2 HWJHS Labs Private Limited 0.20 0.20 

 3 Sixth Sense India OpportuniƟes III Class A1 244.46 185.96 

 4 ARG Outlier Media Private Limited - CCPPS  100.17 100.17  

 5 Liquid funds - 10.43 

       
 iii There are no guarantees issued by the company to any parƟes.     
       
50 InformaƟon pursuant to RegulaƟon 34(3) & 53(f) of SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and 

Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 

       
 JHS Svendgaard Mechanical and Warehouse Private Limited  (₹ in lakhs) 

  
Year ended  

31 March 2024 
 Year ended  

31 March 2023 

 Closing balance excluding provision                      163.32                                  -    

 Maximum balance during the year                   1,355.02                        1,320.02  

     
 Amit Saxena     (₹ in lakhs) 

         Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Closing balance excluding provision                             2.11                           278.29  

 Maximum balance during the year                          283.28                           278.29  

       
 Nirvikar Films LLP      (₹ in lakhs) 

         Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Closing balance excluding provision                            47.25                                  -    

 Maximum balance during the year                            80.00                                  -    

       
 CreaƟve Jewellers      (₹ in lakhs) 

         Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Closing balance excluding provision                          110.35                                  -    

 Maximum balance during the year                          110.35                                  -    

       
 51 In accordance with the requirements of SecƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year ending March 31, 2024, 

the Company has no obligaƟon to spent in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility policy.
52 The NaƟonal Company Law Tribunal, Chandigarh Bench (“NCLT”) on 10 August, 2023, had approved the Composite Scheme of 

Arrangement between JHS Svendgaard Retail Ventures Private Limited ("ResulƟng Company"), JHS Svendgaard Brands Limited 
("Transferor Company") and JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited ("Demerged /Transferee Company") and their respecƟve 
shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) under the provisions of SecƟons 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the Rules framed thereunder. This Scheme is set to become effecƟve as of the appointed 
date, which is the 1 April 2021 and the cerƟfied order copy was submiƩed to the concerned Registrar of Companies, on the 28 
August 2023.

 As a result:
a)  The Transferor Company has been merged with the Transferee Company and its financial data shall not been consolidated in these 

financial results.
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b)  On 12 September, 2023, Transferee Company issued 1,34,96,297 shares to the shareholders of Transferor Company in accordance 
with the raƟo outlined in the scheme. At present, we have received the trading approval form the both Stock exchanges namely BSE 
and NSE dated on 07 February, 2024.

c)  The ResulƟng Company has been demerged and is no longer a subsidiary company. Its financials have also not been consolidated in 
these financial results and also, alloƩed 64,92,600 equity shares to the shareholders of JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited on the 
12 September, 2023, in accordance with the scheme's specified raƟo. The Corporate AcƟon for 64,92,600 equity shares has been 
completed.  

 Following the submissions, both stock exchanges raised several queries, which were promptly and comprehensively addressed. 
However, it's important to note that as of the current status, final lisƟng approval is sƟll pending from both Stock Exchanges.

 
RaƟo Numerator Denominator Current 

Year 
Previous 

Year 
Varia
nce 

 
Current raƟo (in Ɵmes) Total current assets  Total current liabiliƟes  1.86 2.29 -19% 

 
Debt-Equity raƟo (in Ɵmes) Debt consist of borrowings 

& lease liabiliƟes 
Total equity  0.01 0.01 -28% 

 

Debt Services Coverage raƟo 
(in Ɵmes) 

Earning for debt service= 
Net profit aŌer taxes+ Non 
- Cash operaƟng 
expenses+interest+other 
non-cash adjustments 

Debt service = interest 
& lease payments + 
principal repayments 

2.36 -5.58 142% 

 
Return on equity raƟo (in %) Profit for the year aŌer tax 

less preference dividend 
Average trade equity -2.35%

 -9.58%
 

75% 

 
Inventory Turnover raƟo (in 
Ɵmes) 

Cost of goods sold Average inventory  3.44 4.88 -29% 

 
Trade Receivable turnover 
raƟo (in Ɵmes) 

Revenue from operaƟons  Average trade 
receivables 

4.51 4.58 -2% 

 
Trade Payables turnover raƟo 
(in Ɵmes) 

Credit purchase during the 
period  

Average trade payables  3.29 3.67 -10% 

 

Net Capital turnover raƟo (in 
Ɵmes) 

Revenue from operaƟons  Average working capital 
(total current assets less 
total current liabiliƟes) 

2.07 1.64 26% 

 
Net profit raƟo (in %) Net profit aŌer tax Revenue from 

operaƟons  
-5.72% -20.65% 72% 

 
Return on Capital employed 
(in %) 

Profit before tax & finance 
cost 

Capital employed (total 
assets - current liab.) 

-1.70% -12.51% 86% 

 
Return on investment (in %) Income generated from 

investment funds  
Average invested funds 
in treasury investments  

2.95% 4.32% -32% 

 

53 AddiƟonal Regulatory InformaƟon 

 RaƟos 
 

 ExplanaƟon for change in raƟo by more than 25%  
 Debt-Equity RaƟo : Lower raƟon on account of repayment of debt during the year
 Debt Service Coverage RaƟo : Higher raƟo on account of decrease in losses during current year 
 Return on Equity RaƟo : Higher raƟo on account of decrease in loss during current year 
 Inventory Turnover RaƟo : Lower raƟo on account of decrease in cost of goods sold during the current year
 Net Capital turnover RaƟo : Higher raƟo on account of lower current raƟo
 Net Profit RaƟo : Higher raƟo on account of decrease in losses during current year 
 Return on Capital Employed : Higher raƟo on account of decrease in loss during current year 
 Return on Investment : Lower raƟo on account of decrease in interest rate earned during the year 
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54 Other statutory informaƟon
 (i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been iniƟated or pending against the Company 

for holding any Benami property. 
 (ii)   The Company does not have any charges or saƟsfacƟon which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory Period. 
 (iii)  The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial year. 
 (iv)  The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or enƟty (ies), including foreign enƟƟes 

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:     
  a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enƟƟes idenƟfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Company (UlƟmate Beneficiaries) or,  
  b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the UlƟmate Beneficiaries 
 (v)   The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or enƟty (ies), including foreign enƟƟes (Funding Party) with the 

understanding (whether recorded in wriƟng or otherwise) that the Company shall:
     a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enƟƟes idenƟfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (UlƟmate Beneficiaries) or 
     b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the UlƟmate Beneficiaries,  
 (vi)   The Company has no such transacƟon which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.  

 (vii) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial insƟtuƟon (as defined under the Companies 
Act, 2013) or consorƟum thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India. 

 (viii) during the year, Company does not have any transacƟons with companies struck off . 
55 The figures of the previous year have been re-Companyed / re-classified to render them comparable with the figures of the current 

year.

   
   For TATTVAM & Co.  For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited 
Firm RegistraƟon No.:015048N   

   
Gaurav Saraf Nikhil Nanda  Vinay MiƩal  
Partner Managing Director  Director  
Membership No.: 535309 DIN : 00051501  DIN : 08232559  

   
   
 Ashish Goel Paramvir Singh Pabla 

 
Chief Financial Officer Chief ExecuƟve Officer 

 
  

 
  

Place : New Delhi  Komal Jha 
Date : 18 May 2024 Company Secretary  
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Independent Auditor's Report
........................ u ........................

To the members of 
JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited (the 
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Company and its 
subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”) which comprise 
the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other 
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes 
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounƟng 
policies and other explanatory informaƟon (hereinaŌer referred 
to as the “consolidated financial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to 
the explanaƟons given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements, give the informaƟon required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the Indian AccounƟng Standards 
prescribed under secƟon 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind 
AS”) and other accounƟng principles generally accepted in India, 
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 
2024 and its consolidated loss, other  comprehensive income, 

consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng (“SA”s) specified 
under secƟon 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibiliƟes under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements secƟon of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibiliƟes in accordance with these requirements 
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
Key Audit MaƩers
Key audit maƩers are those maƩers that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 
maƩers were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these maƩers. We have determined the maƩers described below 
to be the key audit maƩers to be communicated in our report.

# Key Audit MaƩer Auditor’s Response 
1 Revenue recogniƟon 

Revenue from the sale of goods (hereinaŌer referred to as 
“Revenue”) is recognized when the company performs its 
obligaƟon to its customers  and the amount of revenue can 
be measured reliably and recovery of the consideraƟon is 
probable. The Ɵming of such recogniƟon in the case of sale 
of goods is when the control over the same is transferred to 
the customer, which is mainly upon delivery. The Ɵming of 
revenue recogniƟon is relevant to the reported performance 
of the Company. The management considers revenue as a 
key measure for evaluaƟon of performance. 

Refer Note 2 .1. (a) to the Standalone Financial Statements – 
Significant accounƟng policies. 

Principal audit procedures 

Our audit approach was a combinaƟon of test of internal 
controls and substanƟve procedures including: 

· Assessing the appropriateness of the Company's re venue 
recogniƟon accounƟng policies in line with Ind AS 115 
("Revenue from Contracts with Customers") and tesƟng 
thereof. 
· EvaluaƟng the design and implementaƟon of Company's 

controls in respect of revenue recogniƟon. 
· TesƟng the effecƟveness of such  controls over revenue 

cut off at year-end. 
· We performed substanƟve tesƟng by selecƟng samples of 

revenue transacƟons recorded during the year by 
verifying the underlying documents, which included 
goods dispatch notes and shipping documents. 
· Performing analyƟcal procedures on current year revenue 

based on monthly trends and where appropriate, 
conducƟng further enquiries and tesƟng. 

 
Based on the above procedure performed, the recogniƟon 
and measurement of revenue from sale of goods are 
considered to be adequate and reasonable. 
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InformaƟon Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements 
and Auditor's Report Thereon
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparaƟon of the other informaƟon. The other informaƟon 
comprises the informaƟon included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Director's Report including Annexures to 
Director's Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's 
InformaƟon, but does not include the consolidated financial 
statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor's 
report thereon. These reports are expected to be made available 
to us aŌer the date of this auditor's report. These reports are 
expected to be made available to us aŌer the date of this 
auditor's report.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not 
cover the other informaƟon idenƟfied above when it becomes 
available, and we do not and will not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connecƟon with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other informaƟon, 
consider whether the other informaƟon is materially 
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.
When we read the other informaƟon, if we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement therein, we are required to 
communicate the maƩer to those charged with governance and 
take appropriate acƟon, if required.
ResponsibiliƟes of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the 
maƩers stated in secƟon 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparaƟon and presentaƟon of these consolidated financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated 
financial posiƟon, consolidated financial performance including 
other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity 
and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the 
Ind AS and other accounƟng principles generally accepted in 
India. The respecƟve Boards of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounƟng records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for 
prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds and other irregulariƟes; 
selecƟon and applicaƟon of appropriate accounƟng policies; 
making judgments and esƟmates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementaƟon and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operaƟng 
effecƟvely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounƟng records, relevant to the preparaƟon and presentaƟon 
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of 
preparaƟon of the consolidated financial statements by the 
Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the 
respecƟve Boards of Directors of the companies included in the 
Group are responsible for assessing the Group ability of the 
respecƟve enƟƟes to conƟnue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, maƩers related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounƟng unless the respecƟve Boards of 

Directors either intend to liquidate their respecƟve enƟƟes or to 
cease operaƟons, or have no realisƟc alternaƟve but to do so.
The respecƟve Boards of Directors of the companies included in 
the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporƟng process of the Group.
Auditor's ResponsibiliƟes for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements
Our objecƟves are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepƟcism 
throughout the audit. We also:
· IdenƟfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecƟng a material misstatement resulƟng from fraud is 
higher than for one resulƟng from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intenƟonal omissions, 
misrepresentaƟons, or the override of internal control.

· Obtain an understanding of internal financial control 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under secƟon 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Company and its subsidiary 
companies which are companies incorporated in India, has 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements in place and the operaƟng 
effecƟveness of such controls.

· Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟng policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounƟng esƟmates and related 
disclosures made by the management.

· Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of 
the going concern basis of accounƟng and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or condiƟons that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to conƟnue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw aƩenƟon in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or condiƟons may cause the 
Group to cease to conƟnue as a going concern.

· Evaluate the overall presentaƟon, structure and content of 
the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
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statements represent the underlying transacƟons and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentaƟon.

· Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the 
financial informaƟon of the enƟƟes within the Group to 
express an opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements. We are responsible for the direcƟon, 
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial 
statements of such enƟƟes included in the consolidated 
financial statements of which we are the independent 
auditors. For the other enƟƟes included in the consolidated 
financial statements, which have been audited by the other 
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the 
direcƟon, supervision and performance of the audits carried 
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quanƟtaƟve 
materiality and qualitaƟve factors in (i) planning the scope of our 
audit work and in evaluaƟng the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any idenƟfied misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance of the 
Company and such other enƟƟes included in the consolidated 
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors 
regarding, among other maƩers, the planned scope and Ɵming of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we idenƟfy during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relaƟonships and other maƩers that may reasonably be thought 
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.
From the maƩers communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those maƩers that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements 
of the current period and are therefore the key audit maƩers. We 
describe these maƩers in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulaƟon precludes public disclosure about the maƩer or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a maƩer 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communicaƟon.
Other MaƩers
We did not audit the financial statements of three subsidiaries, 
whose financial statements reflect total assets of ₹ 8,058.46 
Lakhs as at 31 March 2024, total revenue of ₹ 566.53 lakhs and 
net cash inflow amounƟng to ₹ 466.03 Lakhs for the year ended 
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements. The consolidated financial statements also include 
the group's share of net profit of ₹ 149.49 Lakhs for the year 
ended 31 March 2024, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements, whose financial statements have not been audited 
by us. These financial statements have been audited by other 
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the 
management and our opinion on the consolidated financial 

statements, in so far as it relates to the amount and disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms 
of sub-secƟon (3) of secƟon 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to 
the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the 
other auditors.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above, and 
our report on other legal and regulatory requirements below, is 
not modified in respect of the above maƩers with respect to our 
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1) With respect to the maƩers specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) 

and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the 
“Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of SecƟon 143(11) of the Act, to be included in 
the Auditor's report, according to the informaƟon and 
explanaƟons given to us, and based on the CARO reports 
issued by us for the Company and its subsidiaries included in 
the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to 
which reporƟng under CARO is applicable, we report that 
there are no qualificaƟons or adverse remarks in these 
CARO reports.

2) As required by SecƟon 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit 
and on the consideraƟon of reports of the other auditors on 
separate financial statements and other financial 
informaƟon of subsidiaries, as noted in other maƩer 
paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the informaƟon and 

explanaƟons which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by 
law relaƟng to preparaƟon of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so 
far as it appears from our examinaƟon of those books 
and the reports of other auditors.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of 
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement 
with the relevant books of account maintained for the 
purpose of preparaƟon of the consolidated financial 
statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
SecƟon 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the wriƩen representaƟons received 
from the directors of the Company as on 31 March 
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of 
its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of 
the directors of the Group companies incorporated in 
India is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of SecƟon 164 (2) of 
the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements and the operaƟng effecƟveness of such 
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controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” 
which is based on the auditors' reports of the Company 
and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India. Our 
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operaƟng effecƟveness of internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements of those companies.

g) With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the 
Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements 
of secƟon 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

 In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and 
according to the explanaƟons given to us, the 
remuneraƟon paid by the Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
secƟon 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the 
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to 
us and based on the consideraƟon of the report of the 
other auditors on separate financial statements and 
also the other financial informaƟon of the subsidiaries, 
as noted in the 'Other maƩer' paragraph:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the 
impact of pending liƟgaƟons on the consolidated 
financial posiƟon of the Group. Refer Note 36 to the 
consolidated financial statements.

ii) The Group did not have any material foreseeable 
losses on long-term contracts including derivaƟve 
contracts during the year ended 31 March 2024.

iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts which 
were, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund by the Company and its 
subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

iv) 
(a)   The respecƟve Managements of the Company and 

its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated 
in India, whose financial statements have been 
audited under the Act, have represented to us 
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in 
the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in 
any other person or enƟty, outside the Group, 
including foreign enƟty (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in wriƟng 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
enƟƟes idenƟfied in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Company or any of such 
subsidiaries (“UlƟmate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
UlƟmate Beneficiaries.

(b)   The respecƟve Managements of the Company and 
its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated 
in India, whose financial statements have been 

audited under the Act, have represented to us 
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in 
the aggregate) have been received by the 
Company or any of such subsidiaries from any 
person or enƟty, including foreign enƟty 
(“Funding ParƟes”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in wriƟng or otherwise, that 
the Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or enƟƟes idenƟfied in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“UlƟmate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
UlƟmate Beneficiaries.

(c)  Based on the audit procedures that have been 
considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances performed by us on the Company 
and its subsidiaries which are companies 
incorporated in India whose financial statements 
have been audited under the Act, nothing has 
come to our noƟce that has caused us to believe 
that the representaƟons under sub-clause (i) and 
(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material misstatement.

v)   The holding company and its subsidiaries which are 
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have 
been audited under the act, have not declared or paid 
any dividend during the year and have not proposed 
final dividend for the year.
I.  Based on our examinaƟon which included test 

checks, the company has used an accounƟng 
soŌware for maintaining its books of account 
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has operated throughout 
the year for all relevant transacƟons recorded in 
the soŌware. Further, during the course of our 
audit we did not come across any instance of the 
audit trail feature being tampered with.

 For TATTVAM & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's RegistraƟon No: 015048N
Sd/-

Gaurav Saraf
Partner

Membership No: 535309
UDIN: 24535309BKHJQO7327

Place: New Delhi
Date : 18 May, 2024
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor's Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements' secƟon of the Independent Auditor's 
Report of even date to the Members of JHS Svendgaard 
Laboratories Limited on the consolidated financial statements as 
of and for the year ended 31 March 2024)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements under Clause (i) of sub-
secƟon 3 of SecƟon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
In conjuncƟon with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended 31 
March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements of JHS 
Svendgaard Laboratories Limited (hereinaŌer referred to as the 
“Company”) and its subsidiary companies, which are companies 
incorporated in India, as of that date.
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respecƟve Boards of Directors of the Company and its 
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in 
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial 
reporƟng criteria established by the respecƟve Companies 
considering the essenƟal components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial ReporƟng issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (the “ICAI”).
These responsibiliƟes include the design, implementaƟon and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respecƟve 
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevenƟon 
and detecƟon of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounƟng records, and the Ɵmely 
preparaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon, as required under 
the Act.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal 
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies, which 
are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) and the Standards on AudiƟng, 
prescribed under SecƟon 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements was established 
and maintained and if such controls operated effecƟvely in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and their 
operaƟng effecƟveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and tesƟng and evaluaƟng 
the design and operaƟng effecƟveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the 
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 
reports referred to in the Other maƩer(s) paragraph below, is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements
A company's internal financial control with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporƟng and the preparaƟon of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounƟng 
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transacƟons 
and disposiƟons of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transacƟons are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparaƟon of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounƟng principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizaƟons of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevenƟon or Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorized 
acquisiƟon, use, or disposiƟon of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent LimitaƟons of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projecƟons of any evaluaƟon of the 
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial control with reference to Consolidated 
Financial Statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in condiƟons, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to 
the explanaƟons given to us, the Company and its subsidiary 
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in 
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal 
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements were operaƟng effecƟvely as at 31 March 2024, 
based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements established by the 
respecƟve companies considering the essenƟal components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng issued by the ICAI.
Other MaƩers
Our aforesaid reports under secƟon 143(3)(I) of the act on the 
adequacy and operaƟng effecƟveness of the internal financial 
controls insofar as it relates to three subsidiaries, which are 

companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding 
reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For TATTVAM & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm RegistraƟon No: 015048N

Sd/-
Gaurav Saraf

Partner
Membership No: 535309

UDIN: 24535309BKHJQO7327

Place: New Delhi
Date : 18 May, 2024
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2024

(₹ in lakhs)

ParƟculars Notes  As at 31 March 
2024  

 As at 31 March  
2023  

ASSETS    
  Non-current assets  
    (a) Property,  plant and equipment 3.1 8,553.43 6,274.52  

  (b) Capital work-in-progress 3.2 81.68 856.83  
  (c) Right-of-use assets 3.3 146.47 151.93  
  (d) Goodwill 3.4 79.61 79.61  
  (e) Other intangible assets 3.5 261.96 0.72  
  (f) Financial assets    
    i) Investments  4 344.83  296.76  
    ii) Loans 5 157.91  49.11  
    iii) Other financial assets 6 124.49  291.75  

  (g) Deferred tax assets (net) 7 1,052.23 1,127.83  
  (h) Non-current tax assets (net) 8 95.70 85.40  

  (i) Other non-current assets 9 4,440.82 5,124.00  
Total non-current assets  15,339.13 14,338.46  
Current assets    
  (a) Inventories 10 1,264.97 1,299.82  
  (b) Financial assets    
    i) Trade receivables 11 1,287.96  1,853.60  
    ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12 910.47  3,724.87  
    iii) Bank balances other than (ii)above 13 126.01  140.23  
    iv) Loans 14 1.80  279.66  
    v) Other financial assets 15 106.48  372.70  
  (c) Other current assets 16 668.64 813.39  
  (d) Current tax assets (net)  - -    
Total current assets   4,366.33 8,484.27 
Total assets   19,705.46 22,822.73 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
EQUITY     
  (a) Equity share capital 17 7,839.68 7,839.68 
  (b) Other equity 18 9,148.73 9,544.36 
Total equity  16,988.41 17,384.03 
LIABILITIES    
Non-current liabiliƟes    
  (a) Financial liabiliƟes    
   i) Borrowings 19(i) 11.89 23.93  
   ii) Lease liabiliƟes 19(ii) 104.85 182.99  
  (b) Provisions 20 147.71 136.75 
  (c) Other non-current liabiliƟes 21 118.90 1,423.74  
Total non-current liabiliƟes  383.35 1,767.41 
Current liabiliƟes    
  (a) Financial liabiliƟes    
    i) Borrowings 19(i) 343.92 13.95  
    ii) Trade payables     
    - total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 22 381.94 179.86  

  
  - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

and small enterprises 
22 1,027.88 1,819.60  

    iii) Lease liabiliƟes 19(ii) 52.21 36.73  
    iv) Other financial liabiliƟes 23 442.83 471.17  

  (b) Other current liabiliƟes 24 72.61 1,137.89 
  (c) Provisions 20 12.31 12.11 
Total current liabiliƟes    2,333.71 3,671.30 
Total liabiliƟes   2,717.06 5,438.70 
Total equity and liabiliƟes   19,705.46 22,822.73 
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       The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements  
           

  As per our report of even dated aƩached   
  For TATTVAM & Co.     For and on behalf of Board of Directors  

Chartered Accountants    JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited  
Firm RegistraƟon No.:015048N   

            
            
             Nikhil Nanda 

Sd/-
  Vinay MiƩal

Sd/-
 

Gaurav Saraf
Sd/-

    Managing Director   Director  
Partner      DIN : 00051501   DIN :  08232559 

Membership No.: 535309   
            
             Ashish Goel 

Sd/-
 Paramvir Singh Pabla 

Sd/-
 

          
 Chief Financial 

Officer  
 Chief ExecuƟve 

Officer  
            
          

  Place : New Delhi   
 

Komal Jha
Sd/-

 
Date : 18 May 2024   

 
Company Secretary  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS 

(₹ in lakhs)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

ParƟculars Notes Year ended 
31March2024 

Year ended 
31March2023 

INCOME    
Revenue from operaƟons 25 7,079.82 8,481.45 
Other income 26 431.44 1,132.10 
Total income  7,511.26 9,613.55 
EXPENSES    
Cost of materials consumed 27(i) 4,081.25 5,603.91 
Purchases of stock-in-trade 27(ii) 201.48 134.20 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and 
stock-in-trade 

28 132.65 302.91 

Employee benefits expense 29 921.31 1,018.70 
Finance costs 30 46.00 54.66 
DepreciaƟon and amorƟsaƟon expenses 31 634.58 601.67 
Other expenses 32 1,836.85 2,328.95 
Total expenses   7,854.12 10,045.00 
    Profit/ (Loss) before excepƟonal items and tax  (342.86) (431.45) 
ExcepƟonal items 33 - (1,863.07) 
     
Profit/(Loss) before tax  (342.86) (2,294.52) 
Tax expense 34   
a) Current tax  - - 
b) Tax for previous years    - 
c) Deferred tax charge/(credit)  62.91 (542.81) 
Profit/ (Loss) for the year from conƟnuing operaƟons  (405.77) (1,751.71) 
Profit/(Loss) for the year  (405.77) (1,751.71) 
    Other comprehensive income    
-Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss    
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans  6.29 (13.38) 
Less: Income tax expense relaƟng to Items that will not be 
reclassified to profit or loss 

34 (1.64) 3.48 

Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax   4.66 (9.90) 
Total comprehensive income for the year   (401.11) (1,761.62) 
    Net profit aƩributable to:    
Owners of The Company  (1,546.38) (405.20) 
Non-controlling interest  (131.15) (23.74) 
Other Comprehensive Income aƩributable to:    
Owners of The Company  (12.92) 5.73 
Non-controlling interest  3.01 2.12 
Total Comprehensive Income aƩributable to:     
Owners of The Company  (1,559.30) (399.46) 
Non-controlling interest  (128.14) (21.63) 
Earnings per equity share     
a) Basic (Face value of ₹ 10 each)  (0.52) (2.23) 
b) Diluted (Face value of ₹ 10 each)  (0.52) (2.23) 

       The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements           

As per our report of even dated aƩached  

For TATTVAM & Co.  

For and on behalf of Board of Directors  

Chartered Accountants 

JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited  

Firm RegistraƟon No.:015048N   Nikhil Nanda 
Sd/-

  Vinay MiƩal
Sd/-

 

Gaurav Saraf
Sd/-

 

 Managing Director   Director  

Partner   

 DIN : 00051501   DIN : 08232559  

Membership No.: 535309

  
  Ashish Goel 

Sd/-
 Paramvir Singh Pabla 

Sd/-
 

Chief Financial 
Officer  

 Chief ExecuƟve 
Officer  

  
  Place : New Delhi Komal Jha

Sd/-
 

Date : 18 May 2024 Company Secretary 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(₹ in lakhs)

(₹ in lakhs)

(₹ in lakhs)

A. Equity Share Capital        

 Balance as at 01 April 2023 Changes in equity share capital during 
the year  

Balance as at 31 March 2024 

                                                          7,839.68                                                             -                                             7,839.68  
 Balance as at 01 April 2022 Changes in equity share capital during 

the year  
Balance as at 31 March 2023 

                                                          7,839.68                                                             -                                             7,839.68  
 
B Other Equity         

         
    Reserve and Surplus   Other 

Comprehensive 
income   

 Money  
Received  
against  
Share  

warrants  

 Total  
 Other  
Equity  

    Capital 
Reserve  

SecuriƟes 
 Premium  

General  
Reserve  

Retained  
Earnings   

Remeasurement  
of net defined 
benefit plans  

 Balance as at 01 April 2023 (307.90) 11,035.39 6.68 (1,192.74) 2.94 - 9,544.37 
 Profit/(Loss) for the year - - - (405.77) - - (405.77) 
 Other comprehensive income  - - - - 4.66 - 4.66 
 Total comprehensive income for 

the year  
- - - (405.77) 4.66 - (401.12) 

          
 TransacƟon with owners in 

capacity as owners 
       

 Adjustment pertaining to a loan 
given to shareholder 

- - - 5.46 - - 5.46 

 Adjustments of Lease EquilisaƟon 
Reserve 

- - - - - - - 

 Other consolidaƟon adjustment  -  -   - 
 Balance as at 31 March 2024 (307.90) 11,035.39 6.68 (1,593.06) 7.60 - 9,148.73 

 

   
   Reserve and Surplus Other  

Comprehensive 
income 

Money 
Received 
against 
Share 

warrants 

Total  
Other 
Equity 

    Capital 
Reserve  

SecuriƟes 
Premium  

 General 
Reserve  

Retained 
Earnings 

Remeasurement 
of net defined  
benefit plans 

 Balance as at 01 April 2022 (307.90) 11,035.39 6.68 550.18 18.08 - 11,302.43 
 Profit for the year - - - (1,751.71) - - (1,751.71) 
 Other comprehensive income  - - - - (9.90) - (9.90) 
 Total comprehensive income for the year  - - - (1,751.71) (9.90) - (1,761.61) 
          
 TransacƟon with owners in capacity as owners       
 Adjustment pertaining to a loan given to 

shareholder 
- - - 8.79 - - 8.79 

 Adjustments of Lease EquilisaƟon Reserve  - - - - - - 
 Share warrants converted into shares  - - - - - - - 
 Premium on warrant converted into shares  - - - - - - - 
 Other consolidaƟon adjustment -  - - (5.24) - (5.24) 
 Balance as at 31 March 2023 (307.90) 11,035.39 6.68 (1,192.74) 2.94 - 9,544.37 
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Refer note no. 18 for nature and purpose of reserves.

       The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements  
           

  As per our report of even dated aƩached   
  For TATTVAM & Co.     For and on behalf of Board of Directors  

Chartered Accountants    JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited  
Firm RegistraƟon No.:015048N   

            

            
             Nikhil Nanda 

Sd/-
  Vinay MiƩal

Sd/-
 

Gaurav Saraf
Sd/-

    Managing Director   Director  
Partner      DIN : 00051501   DIN :  08232559 

Membership No.: 535309   
            
             Ashish Goel 

Sd/-
 Paramvir Singh Pabla 

Sd/-
 

          
 Chief Financial 

Officer  
 Chief ExecuƟve 

Officer  
            
          

  Place : New Delhi   
 

Komal Jha
Sd/-

 
Date : 18 May 2024   

 
Company Secretary  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(₹ in lakhs)

  ParƟculars  Year Ended  
31 March 2024  

 Year Ended  
31 March 2023  

A.  Cash Flow from OperaƟng AcƟviƟes   
 Profit before tax (342.86) (2,295.11) 

    
 Adjustments for:   
 DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon 634.58 601.67 

 (Profit)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)  (0.15) (4.00) 

 Interest income (56.07) (98.96) 

 Government grant amorƟzaƟon (15.07) (15.44) 

 Provision no longer required wriƩen back - (26.89) 

 Balances and advances wriƩen off 22.39 3.06 

 Provision for doubƞul advances - 1,863.07 

 Balances and advances wriƩen back (52.14) 0.13 

 AmorƟsaƟon of deferred rent expense  26.68 8.35 

 Profit on sale of investment - (4.16) 

 Interest and financial charges 41.20 24.46 

 Exchange loss/(gain) (net) (0.01) (89.99) 

 Net gain on financial asset mandatorily measured at FVTPL (28.49) (2.80) 

 OperaƟng profit before working capital changes and other adjustments  230.08 (36.62) 

    
 Working capital changes and other adjustments :    
 (Increase)/decrease in inventories 34.85 (124.78) 

 (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 555.59 (111.24) 

 (Increase)/Decrease in Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 12.03 (22.81) 

 (Increase)/decrease in other current assets 153.04 186.09 

 (Increase)/Decrease in deffered tax assets  23.09 95.05 

 (Increase)/Decrease in non-current tax assets (10.30) (29.60) 

 (Increase)/decrease in other current financial assets 266.22 171.54 

 (Increase)/decrease in non current loans  - (29.12) 

 (Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets (498.12) 250.23 

 Increase/ (decrease) in other current financial liabiliƟes 210.78 21.83 

 Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables (810.79) 1,009.68 

 Increase/ (decrease) in lease liabiliƟes (3.31) 13.07 

 Increase/ (decrease) in other non current financial liabiliƟes 3.53 (24.33) 

 Increase/ (decrease) in short term provisions 0.21 (9.38) 

 Increase/ (decrease) in long term provisions 10.96 (17.17) 

 Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabiliƟes (1,036.27) 986.18 

 Cash generated/(used) from operaƟons  (858.42) 2,328.62 

 Taxes paid  - - 

 Net cash generated/(used) from operaƟng acƟviƟes  (858.42) 2,328.62 

    
B. Cash Flow from InvesƟng AcƟviƟes   
 Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (3,153.26) (1,434.36) 

 Capital Work in Progress 775.16 1,138.57 

 Right-of-use 5.46 37.28 

 Purchase of mutual funds (30.00) (71.88) 

 Loan money received back 5.74 1,084.84 

 Interest income received 56.07 98.96 

 Change in other bank balance and cash not available for immediate use 167.46 114.29 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTD) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

(₹ in lakhs)

  ParƟculars  Year Ended  
31 March 2024  

 Year Ended  
31 March 2023  

 Net Cash generated/(used) in invesƟng acƟviƟes  (2,173.36) 967.70 

    
C. Cash Flow from Financing AcƟviƟes   
 Proceeds from/ (repayment of) long term borrowings (12.04) (14.28) 

 Proceeds from/ (repayment of) short term borrowings 329.97 (6.40) 

 Repayment of lease liabiliƟes (59.34) (44.85) 

 Interest and financial charges (41.20) (24.46) 

 Net increase from financing acƟviƟes  217.38 (89.99) 

    
  Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (2,814.40) 3,232.63 

  Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents  3,724.87 518.54 

  Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents  910.47 3,751.17 

    
  Components of cash and cash equivalents as at end of the year    
  Cash on hand  18.62 47.08 

  Balances with banks    
       -  on current account  451.31 3,677.79 

       -  in term deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less  440.54 - 

 
 Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 12)  910.47 3,724.87 

 
Note:- The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in IND AS 7, Statement of 
            Cash Flows.        

           
  As per our report of even dated aƩached   
  For TATTVAM & Co.     For and on behalf of Board of Directors  

Chartered Accountants    JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited  
Firm RegistraƟon No.:015048N   

            
            
             Nikhil Nanda 

Sd/-
  Vinay MiƩal

Sd/-
 

Gaurav Saraf
Sd/-

    Managing Director   Director  
Partner      DIN : 00051501   DIN :  08232559 

Membership No.: 535309   
            
             Ashish Goel 

Sd/-
 Paramvir Singh Pabla 

Sd/-
 

          
 Chief Financial 

Officer  
 Chief ExecuƟve 

Officer  
            
          

  Place : New Delhi   
 

Komal Jha
Sd/-

 
Date : 18 May 2024   

 
Company Secretary  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

Background
JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited ("the Company") is a Public 
Company domiciled in India and incorporated under the 
provisions of the Companies Act. The Company is engaged in 
manufacturing a range of oral and dental products for elite 
naƟonal and internaƟonal brands. The main porƞolio of the 
Company is to carry out manufacturing and exporƟng of oral care 
and hygiene products including toothbrushes, toothpastes, 
mouthwash, saniƟzers and job work of detergent powder. The 
Company's shares are listed for trading on the NaƟonal Stock 
Exchange of India Limited and the BSE Limited.
1 Basis of preparaƟon          
a) Compliance with Indian AccounƟng Standard          
  These financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with Indian AccounƟng Standards (Ind AS) 
noƟfied under SecƟon 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
Act) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian AccounƟng 
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian AccounƟng 
Standards) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the 
Act.

  All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes 
have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the 
requirement of  Division II IND AS Schedule III, unless 
otherwise stated.

  These financial statements were approved by the Board of 
Directors on 18 May 2024.

b) Basis of measurement 
  The Financial Statements have been prepared under the 
historical cost convenƟon on accrual basis, unless otherwise 
stated.
c) CriƟcal esƟmates and judgments          
  The preparaƟon of financial statements requires the use of 
accounƟng esƟmates which, by definiƟon, will seldom equal the 
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgment in 
applying the Company's accounƟng policies.
  This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a 
higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are 
more likely to be materially adjusted due to esƟmates and 
assumpƟons turning out to be different than those originally 
assessed. Detailed informaƟon about each of these esƟmates 
and judgments is included in relevant notes together with 
informaƟon about the basis of calculaƟon for each affected line 
item in the financial statements.
  The areas involving criƟcal esƟmates and judgments are:
  i. Useful life of property, plant and equipment          
  The esƟmated useful life of property, plant and equipment is 

based on a number of factors including the effects of 
obsolescence, demand, compeƟƟon and other economic 
factors (such as the stability of the industry and known 
technological advances) and the level of maintenance 
expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash 
flows from the asset.

  The Company reviews, at the end of each reporƟng date, the 
useful life of property, plant and equipment and changes, if 

any, are adjusted prospecƟvely, if appropriate.
  ii. Recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment          
  The recoverable amount of plant and equipment is based on 

esƟmates and assumpƟons regarding in parƟcular the 
expected market outlook and future cash flows.  Any 
changes in these assumpƟons may have a material impact 
on the measurement of the recoverable amount and could 
result in impairment.

  iii. EsƟmaƟon of defined benefit obligaƟon          
  Employee benefit obligaƟons are measured on the basis of 

actuarial assumpƟons which include mortality and 
withdrawal rates as well as assumpƟons concerning future 
developments in discount rates, the rate of salary increases 
and the inflaƟon rate. The Company considers that the 
assumpƟons used to measure its obligaƟons are 
appropriate and documented. However, any changes in 
these assumpƟons may have a material impact on the 
resulƟng calculaƟons.

  iv. EsƟmaƟon of deferred tax assets for carry forward 
losses and current tax expenses

 The Company review carrying amount of deferred tax assets 
and LiabiliƟes at the end of each reporƟng period. The policy 
for the same has been explained under Note No 2(d).

  v. Impairment of trade receivables
  The Company review carrying amount of Trade receivable at 

the end of each reporƟng period and provide for Expected 
Credit Loss based on esƟmate.

  vi. Fair value measurement          
  Management uses valuaƟon techniques in measuring the 

fair value of financial instrument where acƟve market codes 
are not available. Details of assumpƟon used are given in the 
notes regarding financial assets and liabiliƟes. In applying 
the valuaƟon techniques management makes maximum 
use of market inputs and uses esƟmates and assumpƟons 
that are, as fast as possible, consistent with observable data 
that market parƟcipant would use in pricing the instrument 
where applicaƟon data is not observable, management uses 
its best esƟmate about the assumpƟon that market 
parƟcipant would make. These esƟmates may vary from 
actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length 
transacƟon at the reporƟng date.

  EsƟmates and judgments are conƟnually evaluated. They 
are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectaƟons of future events that may have a 
financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances.

e) Others
  Financial Statements has been prepared on a going concern 

basis in accordance with the applicable accounƟng 
standards prescribed in the Companies (Indian AccounƟng 
Standards) Rules, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs.

f) Current versus non-current classificaƟon          
  The Company presents assets and liabiliƟes in the Financial 
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Statement based on current/ non-current classificaƟon. 
  An asset is treated as current when it is:
  -   Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or 

consumed in normal operaƟng cycle 
  -   Expected to be realized within twelve months aŌer the 

reporƟng period, or 
  -   Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being 

exchanged or used to seƩle a liability for at least twelve 
months aŌer the reporƟng period

  All other assets are classified as non-current.
  A liability is current when:
  -   It is expected to be seƩled in normal operaƟng cycle 
  -   It is due to be seƩled within twelve months aŌer the 

reporƟng period, or 
  -   There is no uncondiƟonal right to defer the seƩlement 

of the liability for at least twelve months aŌer the 
reporƟng period

  All other liabiliƟes are classified as non-current.
  Deferred tax assets and liabiliƟes are classified as non-

current assets and liabiliƟes. 
  The operaƟng cycle is the Ɵme between the acquisiƟon of 

assets for processing and their realizaƟon in cash and cash 
equivalents. The Company has idenƟfied twelve months as 
its operaƟng cycle.

g) Foreign currency translaƟon          
i) FuncƟonal and presentaƟon currency
  Items included in the Financial Statements are measured 

using the currency of the primary economic environment in 
which the enƟty operates i.e. 'the funcƟonal currency'. The 
Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), 
which is Company's funcƟonal and presentaƟon currency.

ii) TransacƟons and balances
  Foreign currency transacƟons are translated into the 

funcƟonal currency using exchange rates at the date of the 
transacƟon. Foreign exchange gains and losses from 
seƩlement of such transacƟons and from translaƟon of 
monetary assets and liabiliƟes denominated in foreign 
currency at the reporƟng date exchange rates are 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on a net basis within other income/ 
expenses.

2 Summary of significant accounƟng policies          
a) Revenue recogniƟon
  Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when 

control of the goods or services are transferred to the 
customer at an amount that reflects the consideraƟon to 
which the Company expects to be enƟtled in exchange for 
those goods or services.

  Sale of goods          
  For sale of goods, revenue is recognised when control of the 

goods has transferred at a point in Ɵme i.e. when the goods 

have been dispatched to the locaƟon of customer. Following 
dispatch, the customer has full discreƟon over the 
responsibility, manner of distribuƟon, price to sell the goods 
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relaƟon to 
the goods. A receivable is recognised by the Company when 
the goods are dispatched to the customer as this represents 
the point in Ɵme at which the right to consideraƟon 
becomes uncondiƟonal, as only the passage of Ɵme is 
required before payment is due. Payment is due within 10-
15 days. The Company considers the effects of variable 
consideraƟon, non-cash consideraƟon, and consideraƟon 
payable to the customer (if any).

  Variable consideraƟon 

  If the consideraƟon in a contract includes a variable amount, 
esƟmates the amount of consideraƟon to which it will be 
enƟtled in exchange for transferring the goods to the 
customer. The variable consideraƟon is esƟmated at 
contract incepƟon and constrained unƟl it is highly probable 
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of 
cumulaƟve revenue recognised will not occur when the 
associated uncertainty with the variable consideraƟon is 
subsequently resolved. The Company recognizes changes in 
the esƟmated amount of variable consideraƟon in the 
period in which the change occurs. Some contracts for the 
sale of goods provide customers with volume rebates and 
pricing incenƟves, which give rise to variable consideraƟon.

 Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the 
customer. To esƟmate the variable consideraƟon for the 
expected future rebates, the Company applies the most 
likely amount method for contracts with a single-volume 
threshold. The selected method that best predicts the 
amount of variable consideraƟon is primarily driven by the 
number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The 
Company then applies the requirements on constraining 
esƟmates of variable consideraƟon and recognises a refund 
liability for the expected future rebates.

  Contract balances   
  Trade receivables
 A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount 

of consideraƟon that is uncondiƟonal (i.e., only the passage 
of Ɵme is required before payment of the consideraƟon is 
due). Refer to accounƟng policies of financial assets in Note 
No 2(i) Financial assets – iniƟal recogniƟon and subsequent 
measurement.

  Contract liabiliƟes (which the Company refer to as advance 
from customer)

 A contract liability is the obligaƟon to transfer goods or 
services to a customer for which the Company has received 
consideraƟon (or an amount of consideraƟon is due) from 
the customer. If a customer pays consideraƟon before the 
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a 
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or 
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabiliƟes 
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs 
under the contract.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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  The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

  Cost to obtain a contract
 The Company pays sales commission to its selling agents for 

each contract that they obtain for the Company. The 
Company has elected to apply the opƟonal pracƟcal 
expedient for costs to obtain a contract which allows the 
Company to immediately expense sales commissions 
(included in 'commission on sales' under other expenses) 
because the amorƟzaƟon period of the asset that the 
Company otherwise would have used is one year or less.

 Costs to fulfil a contract i.e. freight, insurance and other 
selling expenses are recognized as an expense in the period 
in which related revenue is recognised.

  Financing components  
  The Company does not expect to have any contracts where 

the period between the transfer of the promised goods or 
services to the customer and payment by the customer 
exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Company does not 
adjust any of the transacƟon prices for the Ɵme value of 
money. 

  Rendering of services
  Service income includes job work and its revenue is 

recognised when the performance obligaƟon to render the 
services are completed as per contractually agreed terms.

c) Other revenue streams   
  Interest income
  Interest income from debt instrument is recognised using 

the effecƟve interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate which 
exactly discounts the esƟmated future cash receipts over 
the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross 
carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculaƟng the 
EIR the Company esƟmates the expected cash flows by 
considering all the contractual terms of the financial 
instrument (for example, prepayments, extensions, call and 
similar opƟons)  but does not consider the expected credit 
losses.

  Dividend income
  Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

only when the Company's right to receive the payment is 
established.

  Export incenƟves
  Export incenƟves principally comprise of duty drawback. 

The benefit under these incenƟve schemes are available 
based on the guideline formulated for respecƟve schemes 
by the government authoriƟes. Duty drawback is recognized 
as revenue on accrual basis to the extent it is probable that 
realizaƟon is certain.

  Government grants          
  Grants from the government are recognized at their fair 

value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant 
will be received and the Company will comply with all 
aƩached condiƟons.

  Government grants which are revenue in nature and are 
towards compensaƟon for the qualifying costs, incurred by 
the Company, are recognised as income in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss in the period in which such costs are 
incurred.

 Government grants relaƟng to the purchase of property, 
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabiliƟes 
as deferred income and are credited to the Statement of 
Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the expected 
lives of the related assets and presented within other 
income.

d) Income taxes
  Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax 

and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to an 
item which is recognised in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, in which case the tax is recognized in 
'Other comprehensive income' or directly in equity, 
respecƟvely. 

 The Income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax 
payable on the current period's taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdicƟon adjusted by 
changes in deferred tax assets and liabiliƟes aƩributable to 
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

  Current tax   
  Current tax is based on tax rates applicable for respecƟve 

years on the basis of tax law enacted and substanƟvely 
enacted at the end of the reporƟng period. The Company 
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authoriƟes. Current 
is payable on taxable profit, which differs from profit and 
loss in financial statements. Current tax is charged to 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Provision for current tax is 
made aŌer taking in to consideraƟon benefits admissible 
under Income Tax Act, 1961.

   Deferred tax 

  Deferred income taxes are calculated without discounƟng 
the temporary differences between carrying amounts of 
assets and liabiliƟes and there tax base using the tax laws 
that have been enacted or substanƟvely enacted by the 
reporƟng date. However deferred tax is not provided on the 
iniƟal recogniƟon of assets and liabiliƟes unless the related 
transacƟon is business combinaƟon or affects tax or 
accounƟng profit. Tax losses available to the carried forward 
and other income tax credit available to the enƟty are 
assessed for recogniƟon as deferred tax assets.

  Deferred tax liabiliƟes are always provided for in full. 
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is 
probable that they will be able to uƟlize against future 
taxable income. 

 Deferred tax asset are recognised to the extent that is 
probable that the underlying tax loss or deducƟble 
temporary differences will be uƟlized against future taxable 
income. This is assessed based on Company's forecast of 
future operaƟng income at each reporƟng date.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Deferred tax assets and liabiliƟes are offset where the enƟty 
has a right and intenƟon to set off current tax assets and 
liabiliƟes from the same taxaƟon authority. 

  Minimum AlternaƟve Tax (MAT)   
  Minimum Alternate Tax credit enƟtlement paid in 

accordance with tax laws, which gives rise to future 
economic benefit in form of adjustment to future tax 
liability, is considered as an asset to the extent management 
esƟmate its recovery in future years. 

e) Leases
  The determinaƟon of whether an arrangement is (or 

contains) a lease is based on the substance of the 
arrangement at the incepƟon of the lease. The arrangement 
is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the 
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even 
if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

  As a lessee          
  The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases 

for buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract 
contains a lease, at incepƟon of a contract. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an idenƟfied asset for a period of Ɵme in exchange 
for consideraƟon. To assess whether a contract conveys the 
right to control the use of an idenƟfied asset, the Company 
assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an 
idenƟfied asset (ii) the Company has substanƟally all of the 
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period 
of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the 
use of the asset. At the date of commencement of the lease, 
the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in 
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 
months or less (short-term leases) and low-value leases, the 
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operaƟng 
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 
Certain lease arrangements includes the opƟons to extend 
or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU 
assets and lease liabiliƟes includes these opƟons when it is 
reasonably certain that they will be exercised. The ROU 
assets are iniƟally recognized at cost, which comprises the 
iniƟal amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 
payments made at or prior to the commencement date of 
the lease plus any iniƟal direct costs less any lease 
incenƟves. They are subsequently measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciaƟon and impairment losses. ROU 
assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and 
useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated 
for recoverability whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not 
be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment tesƟng, the 
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost 
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual 
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows 
that are largely independent of those from other assets. In 

such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the 
Cash GeneraƟng Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. The 
lease liability is iniƟally measured at amorƟzed cost at the 
present value of the future lease payments. The lease 
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in 
the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the 
incremental borrowing rates . Lease liabiliƟes are 
remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related 
ROU asset if the Company changes its assessment of 
whether it will exercise an extension or a terminaƟon 
opƟon. Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately 
presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have 
been classified as financing cash flows.

  As a lessor          
  Lease income from operaƟng leases where the Company is a 

lessor is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a 
straight- line basis over the lease term.

f) Impairment of non-financial assets
  Assessment for impairment is done at each Balance Sheet 

date as to whether there is any indicaƟon that a non-
financial asset may be impaired. Indefinite-life intangibles 
are subject to a review for impairment annually or more 
frequently if events or circumstances indicate that it is 
necessary. 

  For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest 
idenƟfiable Company of assets that generates cash inflows 
from conƟnuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows from other assets or Company of assets is 
considered as a cash generaƟng unit. Goodwill acquired in a 
business combinaƟon is, from the acquisiƟon date, 
allocated to each of the Company's cash-generaƟng units 
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the 
combinaƟon, irrespecƟve of whether other assets or 
liabiliƟes of the acquire are assigned to those units. 

  If any indicaƟon of impairment exists, an esƟmate of the 
recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash generaƟng 
unit is made. Asset/cash generaƟng unit whose carrying 
value exceeds their recoverable amount are wriƩen down to 
the recoverable amount by recognizing the impairment loss 
as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The 
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying 
amount of any goodwill (if any) allocated to the cash 
generaƟng unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro 
rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. 
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash 
generaƟng unit's fair value less cost of disposal and its value 
in use. Value in use is the present value of esƟmated future 
cash flows expected to arise from the conƟnuing use of an 
asset or cash generaƟng unit and from its disposal at the end 
of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each Balance 
Sheet date as to whether there is any indicaƟon that an 
impairment loss recognized for an asset in prior accounƟng 
periods may no longer exist or may have decreased. An 
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the 
esƟmates used to determine the recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the 
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assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon, if no impairment loss had 
been recognized. An impairment loss recognized for 
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

g) Cash and cash equivalents
  For the purpose of presentaƟon in the statement of cash 

flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, 
deposits held at call with financial insƟtuƟons, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturiƟes of 
three months or less that are readily converƟble to know 
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value, and bank overdraŌs. Bank 
overdraŌs are shown within borrowings in current liabiliƟes 
in  the balance sheet.

h) Inventories
  (i)  Raw materials, packaging materials and stores and 

spare parts are valued at the lower of weighted average 
cost and net realizable value. Cost includes purchase 
price, taxes (excluding levies or taxes subsequently 
recoverable by the enterprise from the concerned 
revenue authoriƟes), freight inwards and other 
expenditure incurred in bringing such inventories to 
their present locaƟon and condiƟon. However, these 
items are considered to be realizable at cost if finished 
products in which they will be used are expected to be 
sold at or above cost.

 (ii)  Work in progress, manufactured finished goods and 
traded goods are valued at the lower of weighted 
average cost and net realizable value. Cost of work in 
progress and manufactured finished goods is 
determined on the weighted average basis and 
comprises direct material, cost of conversion and other 
costs incurred in bringing these inventories to their 
present locaƟon and condiƟon.

 (iii)  Provision for obsolescence on inventories is made on 
the basis of management's esƟmate based on demand 
and market of the inventories.

 (iv)  Net realizable value is the esƟmated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business, less the esƟmated costs of 
compleƟon and the esƟmated costs necessary to make 
the sale. 

 (v) The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made 
on an item by item basis.

i) Investments and Other Financial Assets
(I) ClassificaƟon
  The Company classifies its financial assets in the following 

measurement categories:
  -  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either 

through other comprehensive income, or through 
profit or loss), and

  -  those measured at amorƟzed cost.
  The classificaƟon depends on the enƟty's business model 

for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms 

of the cash flows.
  For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either 

be recorded in Statement of Profit and Loss or other 
comprehensive income. For investments in debt 
instruments, this will depend on the business model in 
which the investment is held. For investments in equity 
instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has 
made an irrevocable elecƟon at the Ɵme of iniƟal 
recogniƟon to account for the equity investment at fair 
value through other comprehensive income.

  The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only 
when its business model for managing those assets 
changes.

(ii) IniƟal measurement
  At iniƟal recogniƟon, the Company measures a financial 

asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not 
at fair value through profit or loss, transacƟon costs that are 
directly aƩributable to the acquisiƟon of the financial asset. 
TransacƟon costs of financial assets carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

(iii) Subsequent measurement   
  Debt instruments
  Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on 

the Company's business model for managing the asset and 
the cash flow characterisƟcs of the asset. There are three 
measurement categories into which the Company classifies 
its debt instruments:

  ● AmorƟzed cost: Assets that are held for collecƟon of 
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent 
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at 
amorƟzed cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is 
subsequently measured at amorƟzed cost and is not part of 
a hedging relaƟonship is recognised in Statement of Profit 
and Loss when the asset is derecognized or impaired. 
Interest income from these financial assets is included in 
finance income using the effecƟve interest rate method.

  ● Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 
(FVOCI): Assets that are held for collecƟon of contractual 
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the 
assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal 
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the 
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the 
recogniƟon of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue 
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized 
in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, 
the cumulaƟve gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is 
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognized in 
other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial 
assets is included in other income using the effecƟve 
interest rate method. At present no financial assets fulfil this 
condiƟon. 

  ● Fair Value Through Profit or Loss(FVTPL): Assets that do 
not meet the criteria for amorƟzed cost or FVOCI are 
measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that 
is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss 
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and is not part of a hedging relaƟonship is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss and presented net in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss within other gains/(losses) in 
the period in which it arises. Interest income from these 
financial assets is included in other income.

  Equity instruments          
  All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109, are measured 

at fair value. At Equity instruments which are held for trading 
are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, 
the Company may make an irrevocable elecƟon to present 
in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the 
fair value. The Company makes such elecƟon on an 
instrument by instrument basis. The classificaƟon is made 
on iniƟal recogniƟon and is irrevocable.

  Where the Company's management has elected to present 
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other 
comprehensive income, there is  no subsequent 
reclassificaƟon of fair value gains and losses to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. 
Dividends from such investments are recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as other income when the 
Company's right to receive payments is established.

  Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss are recognized in other gain/ (losses) 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Impairment losses (and 
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments 
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other 
changes in fair value.

  Investments in subsidiaries          
  Investments are carried at cost less accumulated 

impairment losses, if any Where an indicaƟon of 
impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is 
assessed and wriƩen down immediately to its recoverable 
amount. On disposal of investments, the difference 
between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts 
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(iv) Impairment of financial assets
  For all financial assets with contractual cash flows other 

than trade receivable, ECLs are measured at an amount 
equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk from iniƟal recogniƟon in 
which case those are measured at lifeƟme ECL. The amount 
of ECLs (or reversal) for the period is recognised as 
expense/income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(v) De recogniƟon of financial assets
  A financial asset is derecognized only when:
  The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash 

flows from the financial asset or retains the contractual 
rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but 
assumes a contractual obligaƟon to pay the cash flows to 
one or more recipients.

  Where the enƟty has transferred an asset, the Company 
evaluates whether it has transferred substanƟally all risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such 

cases, the financial asset is derecognized. 
  Where the enƟty has neither transferred a financial asset 

nor retains substanƟally all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if 
the Company has not retained control of the financial asset. 
Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, 
the asset is conƟnued to be recognised to the extent of 
conƟnuing involvement in the financial asset.

j) Financial liabiliƟes          
  IniƟal recogniƟon and measurement
  All financial liabiliƟes are recognised iniƟally at fair value 

and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of 
directly aƩributable transacƟon costs.

  Subsequent measurement
  Financial liabiliƟes at amorƟzed cost
  AŌer iniƟal measurement, such financial liabiliƟes are 

subsequently measured at amorƟzed cost using the 
effecƟve interest rate (EIR) method. AmorƟzed cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 
on acquisiƟon and fees or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amorƟzaƟon is included in finance costs in 
the profit or loss. 

  Trade and other payables          
  These amounts represent liabiliƟes for goods and services 

provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year 
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are 
usually paid within the operaƟng cycle of the business. 
Trade and other payables are presented as current liabiliƟes 
unless payment is not due within 12 months aŌer the 
reporƟng period. They are recognised iniƟally at their fair 
value and subsequently measured at amorƟzed cost using 
the effecƟve interest method. 

  Borrowings          
  Borrowings are iniƟally recognised at fair value, net of 

transacƟon costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amorƟzed cost. Any difference between the 
proceeds (net of transacƟon costs) and the redempƟon 
amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
over the period of the borrowings using the effecƟve 
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan 
faciliƟes are recognised as transacƟon costs of the loan.

  Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the 
obligaƟon specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a 
financial liability that has been exƟnguished or transferred 
to another party and the consideraƟon paid, including any 
non-cash assets transferred or liabiliƟes assumed, is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as other 
gains/(losses).

  Where the terms of a financial liability are renegoƟated and 
the enƟty issues equity instruments to a creditor to 
exƟnguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a 
gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
which is measured as the difference between the carrying 
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amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the 
equity instruments issued.

  Borrowings are classified as current liabiliƟes unless the 
Company has an uncondiƟonal right to defer seƩlement of 
the liability for at least 12 months aŌer the reporƟng period. 
Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-
term loan arrangement on or before the end of the 
reporƟng period with the effect that the liability becomes 
payable on demand on the reporƟng date, the enƟty does 
not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, aŌer 
the reporƟng period and before the approval of the financial 
statements for issue, not to demand payment as a 
consequence of the breach.

  DerecogniƟon
  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligaƟon 

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an exisƟng financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substanƟally different terms, or 
the terms of an exisƟng liability are substanƟally modified, 
such an exchange or modificaƟon is treated as the 
derecogniƟon of the original liability and the recogniƟon of 
a new liability. The difference in the respecƟve carrying 
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

k) Offseƫng financial instruments          
  Financial assets and liabiliƟes are offset and the net amount 

is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an intenƟon to seƩle on a net basis or realize the 
asset and seƩle the liability simultaneously. The legally 
enforceable right must not be conƟngent on future events 
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business 
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the 
Company or the counterparty. 

l) Property plant and equipment    
  Freehold land is carried at historical cost. Other property, 

plant and equipment are stated at historical cost of 
acquisiƟon net of recoverable taxes(wherever applicable), 
less accumulated depreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon, if any. Cost 
comprises the purchase price, any cost aƩributable to 
bringing the assets to its working condiƟon for its intended 
use and iniƟal esƟmate of costs of dismantling and removing 
the item and restoring the site if any. 

  Where cost of a part of the asset is significant to the total 
cost of the assets and useful lives of the part is different from 
the remaining asset, then useful live of the part is 
determined separately and accounted as separate 
component.

  Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying 
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying 
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset 
is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and 
maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and 

Loss during the reporƟng period in which they are incurred.
  An asset's carrying amount is wriƩen down to its 

recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater 
than its esƟmated recoverable amount.

  An item of property, plant and equipment and any 
significant part iniƟally recognised is derecognized upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecogniƟon of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 
of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss 
when the asset is derecognized.

  The Company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying 
value for all of its property, plant and equipment as 
recognised in the financial statements on transiƟon to Ind 
AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its 
deemed cost as at the date of transiƟon.

m) Intangible assets   
  An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the 

future economic benefits aƩributable to the asset will flow 
to the enterprise and where its cost can be reliably 
measured. Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisiƟon 
less accumulated amorƟzaƟon and impairment losses, if 
any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost 
aƩributable to bringing the assets to its working condiƟon 
for its intended use. 

  Cost of Internally generated asset comprises of all 
expenditure that can be directly aƩributed, or allocated on a 
reasonable and consistent basis, to create, produce and 
make assets ready for its intended use.

  Losses arising from reƟrement of , and gains or losses on 
disposals of intangible assets are determined as the 
difference between net disposal proceeds with carrying 
amount of assets and recognised as income or expenses in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  The Company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying 
value for all of its intangible assets as recognised in the 
financial statements on transiƟon to Ind AS, measured as 
per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at 
the date of transiƟon.

n) Capital work in progress/ Intangible under development          
  Capital Work in progress/ Intangible under development 

represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital 
projects/ intangible assets under development and are 
carried at cost. Cost includes related acquisiƟon expenses, 
development cost, borrowing cost(wherever applicable) 
and other direct expenditures.

  The Company has elected to conƟnue with the carrying 
value for all of its Capital Work in progress/ Intangible under 
development as recognised in the financial statements on 
transiƟon to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and 
use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transiƟon.

o) DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon          
  DepreciaƟon on property plant and equipment has been 
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provided on straight line method in accordance with the 
provisions of  Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 
2013. The Management believes that the esƟmated useful 
lives as per the provisions of Schedule II to the Companies 
Act, 2013, except for moulds and dies, are realisƟc and 
reflect fair approximaƟon of the period over which the 
assets are likely to be used.

 Based on internal assessment and technical evaluaƟon, the 
management has assessed useful lives of moulds and dies as 
five years, which is different from the useful lives as 
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013.

  DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon on addiƟon to property plant 
and equipment is provided on pro rata basis from the date of 
assets are ready to use. DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon on 
sale/deducƟon from property plant and equipment is 
provided for upto the date of sale, deducƟon, discardment 
as the case may be.

  The residual values, useful lives and methods of 
depreciaƟon of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and 
adjusted prospecƟvely, if appropriate.

  All assets cosƟng Rs. 5,000 or below are depreciated/ 
amorƟzed by a one-Ɵme depreciaƟon/amorƟzaƟon charge 
in the year of purchase.

p) Borrowing costs  
  Borrowing cost includes interest calculated using the 

effecƟve interest rate method and amorƟzaƟon of ancillary 
cost incurred in connecƟon with the arrangement of 
borrowings. General and specific borrowing costs that are 
directly aƩributable to the acquisiƟon, construcƟon or 
producƟon of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the 
period of Ɵme that is required to complete and prepare the 
asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets 
that necessarily take a substanƟal period of Ɵme to get 
ready for their intended use or sale.

 All Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in 
which they are incurred.  

q) Provisions, ConƟngent liabiliƟes and ConƟngent assets  
  A Provision is recognised when the Company has a present 

legal or construcƟve obligaƟon as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an ouƞlow of resources embodying economic 
benefit will be required to seƩle the obligaƟon and the 
amount can be reliably esƟmated. Provisions are not 
recognised for future operaƟng losses.  

  Provisions are measured at the present value of the 
management's best esƟmate of the expenditure required to 
seƩle the present obligaƟon at the end of the reporƟng 
period. If the effect of the Ɵme value of money is material, 
provisions are determined by discounƟng the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current 
,market assessments of the Ɵme value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision 
due to the passage of Ɵme is recognised as interest expense.  

  ConƟngent liabiliƟes are possible obligaƟons that arise from 
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future 
events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where 
it is not probable that an ouƞlow of economic benefits will 
be required, or the amount cannot be esƟmated reliably, the 
obligaƟon is disclosed as a conƟngent liability, unless the 
probability of ouƞlow of economic benefits is remote. 
ConƟngent liabiliƟes are disclosed on the basis of judgment 
of the management/ independent experts. These are 
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to 
reflect the current management esƟmate.  

r) Employee Benefits :    
(i) Short-term obligaƟons  
  Short term benefits comprises of employee cost such as 

salaries and  bonuses including non-monetary benefits that 
are expected to be seƩled wholly within 12 months aŌer the 
end of the period in which the employees render the related 
service are recognised in respect of employees' services up 
to the end of the reporƟng period and are measured at the 
amounts expected to be paid when the liabiliƟes are seƩled. 
The liabiliƟes are presented as current employee benefit 
obligaƟons in the Balance Sheet.  

(ii) Post employment obligaƟons  
  Defined benefit plans 

  Gratuity obligaƟons  
  The Company provides for the reƟrement benefit in the 

form of Gratuity. The liability or asset recognised in the 
Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is 
the present value of the defined benefit obligaƟon at the 
end of the reporƟng period less the fair value of plan assets. 
The defined benefit obligaƟon is calculated annually by 
actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The 
present value of  the defined benefit obl igaƟon 
denominated in INR is determined by discounƟng the 
esƟmated future cash ouƞlows by reference to market 
yields at the end of the reporƟng period on government 
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DescripƟon Useful lives (upto) 
Vehicle 8 years 

Computer 3 years 
Furniture & Fixture 10 years 
Computer SoŌware 5 years 

Office Equipment 5 years 
Leasehold Improvements 8 years 

Electronic Equipment 8 years 
Mould & Dies 5 years 

Plant & Machinery 15 years 
Computer network 6 years 

Factory Building 30 years 
Office Building 30 years 
Lab Equipment 10 years 

Technical Know How  5 years 
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bonds that have terms approximaƟng to the terms of the 
related obligaƟon. The net interest cost is calculated by 
applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined 
benefit obligaƟon and the fair value of plan assets. This cost 
is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Remeasurement of gains and losses arising 
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumpƟons are recognised in the period in which they 
occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are 
included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in 
equity and in the Balance Sheet. Changes in the present 
value of the defined benefit obligaƟon resulƟng from plan 
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in 
profit or loss as past service cost.  

  Defined contribuƟon plans 

  Provident Fund  
  All the employees of the Company are enƟtled to receive 

benefits under Provident Fund, which is defined 
contribuƟon plan. Both the employee and the employer 
make monthly contribuƟons to the plan at a predetermined 
rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund 
and miscel laneous Provis ions Act ,  1952.  These 
contribuƟons are made to the fund administered and 
managed by the Government of India.  

  Employee state insurance    
  Employees whose wages/salary is within the prescribed 

limit in accordance with the Employee State Insurance Act, 
1948, are covered under this scheme. These contribuƟons 
are made to the fund administered and managed by the 
Government of India. The Company's contribuƟons to these 
schemes are expensed off in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. The Company has no further obligaƟons under the 
plan beyond its monthly contribuƟons.  

iii) Other long-term employee benefit obligaƟons   
  Leave encashment    
  The liabiliƟes for accumulated absents are not expected to 

be seƩled wholly within 12 months aŌer the end of the 
period in which the employees render the related service. 
They are therefore measured as the present value of 
expected future payments to be made in respect of services 
provided by employees up to the end of the reporƟng period 
using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are 
discounted using the market yields at the end of the 
reporƟng period that have terms approximaƟng to the 
terms of the related obligaƟon. Remeasurements as a result 
of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumpƟons are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

  The obligaƟons are presented as current liabiliƟes in the 
Balance Sheet if the enƟty does not have an uncondiƟonal 
right to defer seƩlement for at least twelve months aŌer the 
reporƟng period, regardless of when the actual seƩlement 
is expected to occur.  

  Share-Based Payments       
  The Company recognises the goods or services received or 

acquired in a share-based payment transacƟon when it 
obtains the goods or as the services are received with a 
corresponding increase in equity if the goods or services 
were received in an equity-seƩled share-based payment 
transacƟon, or a liability if the goods or services were 
acquired in a cash-seƩled share-based payment 
transacƟon.

 When the goods or services received or acquired do not 
qualify for recogniƟon as assets, they are recognised as 
expenses.

 For equity-seƩled share-based payment transacƟons, the 
Company measures the goods or services received, and the 
corresponding increase in equity, directly, at the fair value of 
the goods or services received, unless that fair value cannot 
be esƟmated reliably. If the Company cannot esƟmate 
reliably the fair value of the goods or services received, the 
Company measures their value, and the corresponding 
increase in equity, indirectly, by reference to the fair value of 
the equity instruments granted.  

  If the equity instruments granted vest immediately, on grant 
date the Company recognises the services received in full, 
with a corresponding increase in equity.  

s) Contributed equity       
 Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs 

directly aƩributable to the issue of new shares or opƟons 
are shown in equity as a deducƟon, net of tax, from the 
proceeds.  

t) Earnings per share            
  Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the 

net profit or loss for the year aƩributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
Shares outstanding during the financial year. The weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period, are adjusted for events of bonus issued to exisƟng 
shareholders.  

  For the purpose calculaƟng diluted earnings per share, the 
net profit or loss aƩributable to equity shareholders and the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding are 
adjusted for the effects of all diluƟve potenƟal equity shares, 
if any.

u) Segment reporƟng   
  In line with the provisions of Ind AS 108 OperaƟng 

Segments, and on the basis of the review of operaƟons by 
the Chief OperaƟng Decision Maker (CODM), the operaƟons 
of the Company fall under Manufacturing of Oral Care 
products, other than manufacturing business and retail 
operaƟons.  

v) Measurement of fair values   
  A number of the accounƟng policies and disclosures require 

measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabiliƟes. Fair values are categorized 
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the 
inputs used in the valuaƟon techniques as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in acƟve markets for 
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idenƟcal assets or liabiliƟes.
 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

 The Company has an established control framework with 
respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a 
finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing 
all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair 
values.

 The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable 
inputs and valuaƟon adjustments. If third party informaƟon, 
is used to measure fair values, then the finance team 
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parƟes to 
support the conclusion that these valuaƟons meet the 
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value 
hierarchy in which the valuaƟons should be classified.

 When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the 
Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If 
the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a 
liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, 
then the fair value measurement is categorized in its 
enƟrety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the 
lowest level input that is significant to the enƟre 
measurement.

 The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair 
value hierarchy at the end of the reporƟng period during 
which the change has occurred. Further informaƟon about 
the assumpƟons made in measuring fair values used in 
preparing these financial statements is included in the 
respecƟve notes.

w) Assets held for Sale  
  Non-current assets or disposal Companys comprising of 

assets and liabiliƟes are classified as held for sale if their 
carrying amount is intended to be recovered principally 
through a sale (rather than through conƟnuing use) when 
the asset (or disposal Company) is available for immediate 
sale in its present condiƟon subject only to terms that are 
usual and customary for sale of such asset (or disposal 
Company) and the sale is highly probable and is expected to 
qualify for recogniƟon as a completed sale within one year 
from the date of classificaƟon.

 Non-current assets or disposal Companys comprising of 
assets and liabiliƟes classified as held for sale are measured 
at lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to 
sell. Non-current assets held for sale are not depreciated or 
amorƟsed.  

x) ExcepƟonal items 

  An item of income or expense which its size, type or 
incidence requires disclosure in order to improve an 
understanding of the performance of the Company is 
treated as an excepƟonal item and the same is disclosed in 
the notes to accounts.  

2.2. Recent accounƟng pronouncements: 
  Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") noƟfies new 

standards or amendments to the exisƟng standards under 
Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules as issued 
from Ɵme to Ɵme. On 31 March 2023, MCA amended the 
Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2023, as below: 

  IND AS 1 – PresentaƟon of Financial Statements
  This amendment requires the companies to disclose their 

material accounƟng policies rather than their significant 
accounƟng policies. The effecƟe date for adopƟon of this 
amendment is annual periods beginning on or aŌer 1 April 
2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the 
impact of the amendment is significant in the standalone 
financial statements. 

  Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes 

  This amendment has narrowed the scope of the iniƟal 
recogniƟon exempƟon so that it does not apply to 
transacƟons that give rise to equal and offseƫng temporary 
differences.The effecƟve date for adopƟon of this 
amendment is annual periods beginning on or aŌer 1 April 
2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and 
there is no impact on its standalone financial statement. 

  Ind AS 8 – AccounƟng Policies, Changes in AccounƟng 
EsƟmates and Errors 

  This amendment has introduced a definiƟon of 'accounƟng 
esƟmates' and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help 
enƟƟes disƟnguish changes in accounƟng policies from 
changes in accounƟng esƟmates.The effecƟve date for 
adopƟon of this amendment is annual periods beginning on 
or aŌer 1 April 2023. The Company has evaluated the 
amendment and there is no impact on its standalone 
financial statements.
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4 Financial Asset - Non Current Investments 
     

 

Par�culars As at 
 31 March 

2024 

As at 
 31 March 

2023 
A Investments in Joint Ventures  

   (i) HWJHS Labs Private Limited                  0.20                    0.20  

    
 

Total                  0.20                   0.20  

  B 
Investments carried at fair value through profit & loss  Fair value 

Number of 
Units 

  
 

Mutual Fund units (Quoted)  1,222.31  20000               244.46                 185.96  

 
Other investments 

  
                    -                    10.43  

      
 

ARG Outlier Media Private Limited 
    

 

274 Compulsorily Convertable ParƟcipatory Preference shares of 
Rs.10/- each having issue price of Rs.36,601.92  

 
              100.17                 100.17  

     
 

Total  
 

              344.63                 296.56  

     C Aggregate amount of investments (A+B) 
 

            344.83               296.76  

 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment at cost  

 
            100.37               110.80  

 
Aggregate amount of quoted investment at cost  

 
            200.00               170.00  

 
Aggregate market value of quoted investment  

 
            244.46               185.96  

 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

5 Financial Asset - Non - current loans      
     (฀ in lakhs) 

 Par�culars  
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
 
 Unsecured, considered good     
 Security deposit to related parƟes                          -                      47.91  

 Security deposit to others                           -                        1.20   
 Loans to others   157.91                        -    

                    157.91                   49.11  

      
6  Other non- current financial assets     

     (฀ in lakhs) 

 Par�culars  
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
 

 Deposits with banks having maturity period of more than twelve months* 51.80                   15.32  

 Advance to employee   3.65                  276.43  

 Security deposit with related party   68.83                        -    

 Security deposit to others   0.20                        -    

                    124.49                 291.75  

      

 
* includes pledged & margin money deposited with various government authoriƟes amounƟng to Rs. 22.51 lakhs  (31 
March 2023: Rs. 22.51 lakhs). 
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7 Deferred tax assets (net)     
(a)  The balance comprises temporary differences aƩributable to:    (₹ in lakhs) 

 
  

 As at 
31 March 2024  

 As at  
31 March 2023   

 Deferred tax liability on account of:     
 Property, plant and equipment                    (571.15)                (442.94) 

 Financial assets at FVTPL                       (5.68)                        -    

 Lease LiabiliƟes                     (40.84)                  (36.76) 

 Right-of-use assets                           -     
 Sub Total                   (617.66)               (479.70) 

 Deferred tax asset on account of:     
 Provision for bonus                        5.82                      4.18  

 Provision for doubƞul debts                     206.21                      0.78  

 Provision for obsolete stock                        0.21                      2.69  

 Provision for gratuity                      35.74                    32.66  

 Provision for doubƞul advance                       (0.12)                  209.50  

 Property, Plant & Equipment                            -     
 Provision for leave encashment                        5.43                      6.05  

 Right-of-use assets                      38.08                    32.06  

 Security Deposit                       (0.58)                     1.10  

 Expenses for merger                           -                        1.17  

 Lease LiabiliƟes                           -     
 Other temporary differences                       (2.30)                     6.84  

 Tax losses carried forward                   1,049.64                   974.83  

 Government grant                      33.91                    37.83  

 MAT credit enƟtlement                      297.85                   297.85  

 Sub Total                 1,669.90              1,607.53  

 Net deferred tax (liability)/asset                 1,052.23              1,127.83  

 

(b) Movement in deferred tax balances:
 in lakhs) 

      
      (₹

 

 Provision for 
employement 

benefit 

Property, 
Plant and 

Equipment 

Tax losses 
carried 
forward 

Others 

 
At 31 March 2022 50.57 (419.98) 379.56 637.05 

 
Charged/(Credited):     

 
  -directly in equity - - - - 

 
 - to profit or loss (7.69) (22.96) 595.27 (83.99) 

 
 - to other comprehensive income - - - - 

 
At 31 March 2023 42.88 (442.94) 974.83 553.06 

 
Charged/(Credited):     

 
  -directly in equity - - - - 

 
 - to profit or loss 4.11 (128.21) 74.82 (26.31) 

 
 - to other comprehensive income - - - - 

 
At 31 March 2024 46.99 - 1,049.64 526.75 

 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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8 Non current tax assets (net)     
     (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars  As at 
31 March 2024  

 As at  
31 March 2023  

 
 Advance income tax and Tax deducted at source    95.70                   85.40  

                      95.70                   85.40  

      
9 Other non current assets     

     (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars  
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
 
 Capital advance*     
    Unsecured (considered good)                  4,439.58                5,004.33  

    Unsecured (considered doubƞul)                           -                           -    

    Less: Provision for doubƞul capital advances                           -                           -    

 Prepaid expenses                        1.24                    26.51  

 Deferred payroll cost                            -                      81.81  

 Deferred rent expense                        0.00                    11.35  

                 4,440.82              5,124.00  
      
10 Inventories     
 (Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)     (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars  
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
 
 Raw materials                     532.78                   381.71  

 Packing material                     350.95                   476.85  

 Work-in-progress                      172.56                   171.85  

 Finished goods                     142.78                   207.48  

 Stores and spares                      66.70                    62.73  

 Less: Provision for obselence & dimuniƟon in value*                       (0.80)                    (0.80) 

                 1,264.97              1,299.82  

      
 *Provision for obselence & dimuniƟon in value    
 Opening balance                        0.80                    10.35  

 AddiƟon during the year                           -                           -    

 Used during the year                           -                           -    

 Reversed during the year                           -                       (9.55) 

 Closing balance                       0.80                     0.80  

 
11 Trade receivables     
 Refer note. 2(a) for accounƟng policy on trade receivable     
    (₹ in lakhs) 
 ParƟculars  As at 

31 March 2024 
As at 

31 March 
2023 

 

 Trade receivables considered good - Secured                          -                        -    
 Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured                1,287.96            1,856.61  
 Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk                           -                        -    
 Trade receivables - credit impaired                          -                        -    
 Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss                          -                   (3.01) 
                1,287.96           1,853.60  
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 Ageing for trade receivables - current outstanding as at 31 March 2024:    (₹ in lakhs) 
 ParƟculars Unbill

ed 
Not 
Due 

Outstanding for following periods from due date 
of Payment 

Total  

 Less 
than 6 

months 

6 months 
- 1 year 

1 - 2 
years 

2 - 3 
years 

More 
than 3 
years 

 Trade receivables          
 Undisputed trade receivables –considered 

good 
- - 806.65 234.04 104.35 10.52 132.40 1,287.96 

 Undisputed trade receivables – which have 
significant increase in credit risk 

- - - - - - - - 

 Undisputed trade receivables – credit 
impaired 

- - - - - - - - 

 Disputed trade receivables –considered good - - - - - - - - 
 Disputed trade receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk 
- - - - - - - - 

 Disputed trade receivables – credit impaired - - - - - - - - 
          
          
 Ageing for trade receivables -current outstanding as at 31 March 2023:   (₹ in lakhs) 
 ParƟculars Unbill

ed 
Not 
Due 

Outstanding for following periods from due date 
of Payment 

Total  

 Less than 
6 

months 

6 months 
- 1 year 

1 - 2 
years 

2 - 3 
years 

More 
than 3 
years 

 Trade receivables                  
 Undisputed trade receivables –considered 

good - - 953.25 569.82 120.64 209.88 - 1,853.61 

 Undisputed trade receivables – which have 
significant increase in credit risk - 

- - - - - - - 

 Undisputed trade receivables – credit 
impaired - 

- - - - - - - 

 Disputed trade receivables –considered good - - - - - - - - 
 Disputed trade receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk - 
- - - - - - - 

 Disputed trade receivables – credit impaired - - - - - - - - 
          
 

12 Cash and cash equivalents   
   (₹ in lakhs) 
 ParƟculars As at 

31 March 2024 
As at 

31 March 2023  
 Cash on hand                    18.62                      47.09  
 Balance with bank                            -    
   - current account                  451.31                 3,677.78  
   - deposits with banks with original maturity of less than 3 months*                  440.54                           -    
                  910.47                3,724.87  
    
 * includes pledged & margin money deposited against cash credit with banking authoriƟes amounƟng to ₹ 440.54 lakhs as 

on 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: ₹ Nil) 
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13 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents   
   (₹ in lakhs) 
 ParƟculars As at 

31 March 2024 
As at 

31 March 2023  
 Deposits with banks with original maturity of more than 3 months but maturity 

less than 12 months* 
                 126.01                    140.23  

                  126.01                   140.23  
    
 * includes pledged & margin money deposits with various government authoriƟes amounƟng to ₹ 90.88 lakhs as on  

31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: ₹ 90.88 lakhs) 
    
14 Current loans 

  
   

(₹ in lakhs) 

 
ParƟculars As at 

31 March 2024 
As at 

31 March 2023 
 
 

Unsecured, considered good   

 
   loans to related party                      1.80                    278.32  

 
   Loan to employees                         -                          1.34  

 
                     1.80                   279.66  

 
* Loan is receivable within a period of 12 months at interest rate in the range of 7.5% p.a. to 8% p.a.  

 15 Other current financial assets   
   (₹ in lakhs) 
 ParƟculars As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023  
 Interest receivables* 96.99 242.99 
 Other receivables   9.49 8.70 
 Advance to employees - 121.01 
  106.48 372.70 
 * Interest receivable includes interest on employee advances and interest on loan to subsidiaries amounƟng to Rs. 

237.32 Lakhs(31 March 2022- Rs. 61.52 Lakhs) 
    

16 Other current assets   
 (Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise specified)  (₹ in lakhs) 
 ParƟculars As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023  
 Deferred expenses - 1.64 
 Prepaid expenses 19.39 11.69 
 Balances with statutory/government authoriƟes 163.60 90.51 
 Imprest to employees 2.63 0.59 
 Advance to suppliers 482.71 200.14 
 Less: Provision for doubƞul advance   - - 
 Export incenƟve receivables 0.31 0.31 
 Other receivables - 508.52 
  668.64 813.39 
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  17   Equity share capital      
   As at 

31 March 2024 
 As at  

31 March 2023 
 a)   Authorised       
  10,10,00,000 Equity shares of ₹10/- each  

(31 March 2023: 10,10,00,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10/- 
each)  

             10,100.00             10,100.00  

      

 b)   Issued, subscribed & fully paid up       
  7,83,96,762 Equity shares of ₹10/- each; 

(31 March 2023: 7,83,96,762 Equity shares of ₹ 10/- each)  
               7,839.68               7,839.68  

       
  Total               7,839.68             7,839.68  

 c)   ReconciliaƟon of number of equity shares and share capital outstanding      
        

 ParƟculars As at 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023 
   No. of Shares   (₹ in lakhs)    No. of Shares    (₹ in lakhs)  
  At the beginning of the year   78,396,762 7,839.68  78,396,762  7,839.68 
  Add : Shares issued during the year *  - -  -  - 
  At the end of the year            78,396,762              7,839.68         78,396,762              7,839.68  

 
d)   Terms / rights aƩached to equity shares
 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ₹10/- per share referred to herein as equity share. Each holder 

of equity shares is enƟtled to one vote per share held.
 The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 

approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General MeeƟng except in the case where interim dividend is distributed. During 
the year ended 31 March, 2024 and 31 March, 2023, no dividend has been declared by the Company.

 In the event of liquidaƟon of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be enƟtled to receive all of the remaining assets of the 
Company, aŌer distribuƟon of all preferenƟal amounts, if any. Such distribuƟon amount will be in proporƟon to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders.

 e)  Aggregate number of shares issued for consideraƟon other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the 
reporƟng date:

 No shares were issued to the shareholders for consideraƟon other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding 
the reporƟng date.

 f)       Detail of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

g)  Details of promotors shareholding           
  Shares held by promoter at the end of the year As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 % Change 

during 
the year 

  Promoter Name Number of 
shares 

% of total 
shares 

Number of 
shares 

% of total 
shares 

  Mr. Nikhil Nanda 26,494,102 33.79% 26,494,102 33.79% 0.00% 
  Late Mr. Harish Chander Nanda * 19,731  0.03%        19,731  0.03% 0.00% 
  Mr. Diljit Singh Grewal              1,500  0.00%          1,500  0.00% 0.00% 
  Mrs. Shushma Nanda 3,065,985 3.91% 3,065,985 3.91% 0.00% 
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  As at 31 March 2024  As at 31 March 2023 
   No. of Shares   % of holding    No. of Shares     % of holding  
              
 Nikhil  Nanda             26,494,102  33.79%          26,494,102    33.79% 
 Sixth Sense India OpportuniƟes II 48,67,185 6.21%  -  0.00% 
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  Shares held by promoter at the end of the year As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % Change 
during 

the year 
  Promoter Name Number of 

shares 
% of total 

shares 
Number of 

shares 
% of total 

shares 
  Mr. Nikhil Nanda 26,494,102 33.79% 26,494,102 41.14% -7.34% 
  Late Mr. Harish Chander Nanda * 19,731 0.03% 19,731 0.03% -0.01% 
  Mr. Diljit Singh Grewal  1,500 0.00% 1,500 0.00% 0.00% 
  Mrs. Shushma Nanda 3,065,985 3.91% 3,065,985 4.76% -0.85% 

  * Transmission of shares is under process.            
 18   Other Equity  

   A  Summary of Other Equity Balance 
 

(₹ in lakhs) 

 
ParƟculars 

As at 
31 March 2024 

As at  
31 March 2023 

    
 

Capital reserves                       (307.90)                       (307.90) 

 
SecuriƟes premium                   11,035.40                    11,035.40  

 
General reserves                           6.68                             6.68  

 
Retained earnings                   (1,593.06)                    (1,192.74) 

 
Other comprehensive income                           7.60                             2.94  

 
Total                    9,148.73                     9,544.38  

    
 

 a) Capital reserves   
  

 
 

As at 
31 March 2024 

As at  
31 March 2023 

 
 Opening balance                       (307.90)                       (307.90) 

 
 AddiƟon/DeleƟon during the year                                -                                  -    

 
 Closing balance (A)                      (307.90)                     (307.90) 

    

 
 b) SecuriƟes premium    

 
 

As at 
31 March 2024 

As at  
31 March 2023 

 
Opening balance                   11,035.40                    11,035.40  

 
Add : Premium on warrant converted into shares                                -                                  -    

 
Add : Premium on coversion of share warrants                                -                                  -    

 
Less : Other changes - Share issue expenses                               -                                  -    

 
Less: Other consolidaƟon adjustment                               -                                  -    

 
Closing balance (B)                 11,035.40                   11,035.40  

    

 
c) General reserves   

 
 

As at 
31 March 2024 

As at  
31 March 2023 

 
Opening balance                           6.68                             6.68  

 
AddiƟon during the year                               -                                  -    

 
Closing balance (C)                           6.68                            6.68  

    

 
d) Retained earnings   

 
 

As at 
31 March 2024 

As at  
31 March 2023 

 
Opening balance                   (1,192.74)                        550.18  

 

Add: Profit/ (Loss )for the year transferred from the Statement of Profit  
        and Loss                      (405.77)                    (1,751.71) 

 
Less: Adjustment pertaining to a loan given to shareholder                           5.46                             8.79  

 
Add: Other consolidaƟon adjustment                               -                                  -    

 
Add: Adjustments of Lease EquilisaƟon Reserve                               -                                  -    

 
Closing balance (D)                  (1,593.06)                  (1,192.74) 
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 e) Other comprehensive income    

 
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
Opening balance                           2.94                           18.08  
 Add: Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans                            4.66                           (9.90) 
 Less: Other adjustments  

 
                         (5.24) 

Closing balance (E)                           7.60                            2.94  

   Total other equity (A+B+C+D+E)                   9,148.72                     9,544.38  

 
B Nature and purpose of reserve   
a) Capital reserve   
 A capital reserve is an account in the equity secƟon of the balance sheet that can be used for conƟngencies or to offset capital losses. 

It is derived from the accumulated capital surplus of a company, created out of capital profit.The reserve is uƟlise in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Security premium    
 SecuriƟes premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is uƟlise in accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013.
c) General reserve   
 This represents appropriaƟon of profit by the Company and is available for distribuƟon of dividend.
d) Retained earnings   
 Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned Ɵll date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other 

distribuƟons paid to shareholders. 
 e)  Other comprehensive income   
 Differences between the interest income on plan assets and the return actually achieved, and any changes in the liabiliƟes over the 

year due to changes in actuarial assumpƟons or experience adjustments within the plans, are recognised in 'Other comprehensive 
income' and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  19  Financial liabiliƟes       
 (i)  Borrowings      (₹ in lakhs) 
  Non current    Current 
  As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023  
 Secured      
 Cash Credit                        -                          -                   331.29                        -    
 Vehicle loans*       
 -  from banks                   11.89                   23.93                  12.64                   13.95  
                  11.89                  23.93               343.92                  13.95  
       
 * RespecƟve assets are hypothecated against the lo ans taken to acquire such vehicles. Loan is repayable within a period 

of 60 months at interest rate in the range of 7% p.a. to 10% p.a. 
  
 (ii)  Lease liabiliƟes      (₹ in lakhs) 
  Non current   Current 
   As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023  
 Lease liability on office building        104.85                 182.99                  52.21     36.73  
                 104.85                182.99                 52.21                  36.73  
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  20  Provisions    
 

(₹ in lakhs) 
  Non Current    Current  
  As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
 Provision for employee benefits - Gratuity  128.28                 115.02                  10.85  10.58  
 Provision for employee benefits - Leave 

encashment  
                 19.43                   21.73                    1.46                    1.52  

                147.71                136.75                 12.31                  12.11  

 
  21  Other non current liabiliƟes   (₹ in lakhs)  
  As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
    
 Deferred government grant- non current part(refer note 38)                 118.90                 130.44  
 Loan and capital advances                       -                1,293.30  
                118.90            1,423.74  

 22  Trade payables    
   (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars As at 
31 March 2024 

As at  
31 March 2023 

 
 Due to micro & small enterprises (Refer note 47)  381.94 179.86 

 Due to others 1,027.88 1,819.60 

  1,409.82 1,999.46 

 
Disclosure under the Micro, small and medium enterprises development Act,(27 of 2006) ("MSMED ACT 2006")

   (₹ in lakhs) 
 ParƟculars As at 

31 March 2024 
As at  

31 March 2023 
 Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises  

(as per the inƟmaƟon received from vendors) 
  

a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounƟng year:    
 Principal                  381.94  178.82  
 Interest                        -    -    
b) Interest paid by the Company in terms of SecƟon 16 of the Micro, Small and -

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day.  

                       -    -    

c ) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which - 
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without 
adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 
2006.  

                       -    -    

d) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid                         -    -    
e) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unƟl - such 

date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises.  
                       -    -    
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f) Trade payable ageing schedule  
     Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment  as at 31 March 2024  (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟcular Not Due  Less than 1 year   1 - 2 years   2 - 3 years   More than 3 years Total  
 Trade payables      

   MSME*  - 381.78 0.16 - - 381.94 
 Others - 871.49 87.91 66.99 1.19 1,027.57 
 Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - 
 Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - 

         Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as at 31 March 2023  (₹ in lakhs) 
 ParƟcular Not Due  Less than 1 year   1 - 2 years   2 - 3 years   More than 3 years Total  
 Trade payables   

      MSME*  - 179.86 - - - 179.86 
 Others 1,045.65 777.23 84.76 91.83 - 1,999.46 
 Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - - 
 Disputed dues - Others - - - - - - 
 

23 Other current financial liabiliƟes  (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars As at 
31 March 2024 

As at  
31 March 2023 

 
 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.15 0.20 

 Payable to employees 147.51 174.68 

 Payable towards purchase of property, plant and equipment  295.16 56.97 

 Expenses Payable 0.00 239.31 

  442.83 471.17 

 *there are no amounts due for payments to the Investors EducaƟon  and ProtecƟon Fund under SecƟon 125 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023 - Nil).

24 Other current liabiliƟes  (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars As at 
31 March 2024 

As at  
31 March 2023  

 Statutory dues 39.50 24.80 

 Advance received from customers 18.44 1,074.82 

 Government grant (refer note 38)  14.14 15.07 

 Payable to employees 0.53 - 

 Other Current Liability - 23.21 

  72.61 1,137.89 

 25  Revenue from operaƟons   
   (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars  Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 
 Revenue from contracts with customers*    
 Sale of manufactured goods-Oral Care products  6,764.65 8,396.91 

 Sale of packing material/raw material/traded Goods 215.93 11.33 

 Other operaƟng revenue   
 Scrap sales  99.24 73.21 

 Revenue from OperaƟons 7,079.82 8,481.45 

    
 * It represents disaggregated revenue informaƟon in accordance with IND AS 115.   
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The transacƟon price allocated to the remaining performance obligaƟon (unsaƟsfied or parƟally unsaƟsfied) as at year 
end are, as follows: 

    (₹ in lakhs)  

 ParƟculars  Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 Advances from customers (refer note no. 24)                   18.44                  1,074.82  

    

 
Management expects that the enƟre transacƟon price alloƩed to t he unsaƟsfied contract as at the end of the reporƟng 
period will be recognised as revenue during the next financial year.  

    
26 Other income   (₹ in lakhs)  

 
 

 Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 
 Interest income on fixed deposits                   11.40                        8.36  

 Interest income from financial assets at amorƟsed cost                    44.67                       90.60  

 Export incenƟves                     0.31                        0.82  

 Provision no longer required wriƩen back                        -                         26.89  

 Government grant (refer note 38)                   15.07                       15.44  

 Profit/loss on modificaƟon of lease liability                   69.48                            -    

 Foreign exchange gain (net)                      0.01                       89.99  

 Profit on sale of investments                        -                          4.16  

 Sale of media rights                        -                       250.00  

 Miscellaneous income                  209.17                     633.67  

 Profit on sale of fixed assets                     0.15                        4.00  

 Net gain on financial asset measured at FVTPL                   28.49                        2.80  

 Shipping charges recovered                     0.55                        5.24  

 Miscellaneous balance wriƩen back                   52.14                        0.13  

                 431.44                1,132.10  

 
27 Cost of materials consumed   

 ParƟculars  Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 (i) Cost of raw materials consumed   
 Stock at the beginning of the year                381.71                  356.28  

 Add: Purchases raw material             2,424.36               3,288.84  

 Less: Stock at the end of the year               (524.88)                (381.71) 

             2,281.19              3,263.42  

 Cost of packing materials consumed   
 Stock at the beginning of the year                 404.61                  282.49  

 Add: Purchases packaging             1,687.65               2,462.62  

 Less: Stock at the end of the year               (292.20)                (404.61) 

             1,800.06              2,340.50  

    
             4,081.25              5,603.91  

    (ii) Purchases of stock in trade   
 ParƟculars  Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023   
 Purchases of stock in trade                  20.92                      3.10  

 Purchases of finished goods                180.56                  131.10  

                201.48                 134.20  
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28 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock -in-trade   
   (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars  Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 
 Finished goods   
 At the beginning of the year                350.62                  354.04  

 Add: Purchases                    2.01   
 Less: At the end of the year               (265.28)                (350.62) 

                  87.35                     3.43  

 Work-in-progress   
 At the beginning of the year                116.76                  117.69  

 Add: Purchases                  49.70                  324.23  

 Less: At the end of the year               (121.16)                (116.76) 

                  45.30                 325.16  

    
                132.65                 302.91  

 
29 Employee benefits expenses 

  
   

(₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars 
 Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023  
 
 

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances 821.77 967.44 

 
ContribuƟon to provident and other funds  48.79 58.72 

 
Workmen and staff welfare expenses  23.35 16.36 

 
Gratuity  29.76 1.35 

 
Leave encashment  (2.36) (25.96) 

 
Staff training & sƟpends - 0.79 

  
921.31 1,018.70 

 30 Finance costs 
  

   
(₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars 
 Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023  
 
 

Interest expense 11.93 23.12 

 
Interest on lease liability 30.26 24.46 

 
Interest on delay in deposit of Statutory dues  0.28 2.21 

 
Bank charges 3.52 4.87 

  
46.00 54.66 

    31 DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon expenses 
  

   
(₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars 
 Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023  
 
 

DepreciaƟon on property, plant & equipment  568.80 576.26 

 
DepreciaƟon on right of use asset 52.34 23.92 

 
AmorƟsaƟon of intangible assets 13.44 1.49 

  
634.58 601.67 
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32 Other expenses 
  

   
(₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars 
 Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023  

 
 

ConsumpƟon of stores and spares                      25.54                    52.93  

 
Power and Fuel                      273.34                  290.40  

 
Rent                             -                        1.41  

 
AdverƟsement expenses                        1.54                  116.64  

 
Job work charges                      501.98                  659.77  

 
Business promoƟon expenses                      26.91                    60.62  

 
Sampling Expense                           -                        0.63  

 
Repairs  

  

 
      Plant and Machinery                     126.20                  109.77  

 
      Building                      12.57                  131.98  

 
      Others                      29.06                    31.20  

 
Freight and cartage outward                      29.41                    51.89  

 
Insurance charges                      48.00                    57.31  

 
Legal and professional fees                     108.98                  376.37  

 
Rates and taxes                      34.60                    55.02  

 
AddiƟonal Goods Tax                           -                        0.05  

 
Telephone and postage                         5.55                      5.82  

 
PrinƟng and staƟonery                         6.44                      8.84  

 
Travelling and conveyance expenses                       87.76                    95.23  

 
Provision for doubƞul receivables                        0.19                      3.01  

 
Exchange fluctuaƟon                      11.97                         -    

 
Loss on sale of fixed assets (Net)                        0.00                         -    

 
Vehicle running & mantainance                        0.51                         -    

 
Freight & cartage inwards                        2.14                         -    

 
Commission on sale                       58.88                    46.66  

 
Provision wriƩen off                      22.21                      5.56  

 
Directors' siƫng fees                        6.17                      3.00  

 
TesƟng charges                       13.77                         -    

 
Auditor's remuneraƟon (Refer note 46)                       11.62                    10.44  

 
Office maintenance                       24.72                    30.49  

 
Research & Development charges                           -                        6.53  

 
Miscellaneous expenses                     327.66                    89.45  

 
AmorƟzaƟon of deferred rent expense                      26.68                      8.35  

 
Online subscripƟon charges                        1.03                         -    

 
License fees                        9.13                    15.77  

 
Interest on MSME                        0.02  

 

 
Bank charges                        0.04  

 

 
DonaƟon expense                        2.25                      3.82  

  
               1,836.85              2,328.95  
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33 ExcepƟonal Items 
  

   
(₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars  Year ended  
31 March 2024  

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 
 

Provision for doubƞul advance                           -                 1,606.79  

 
Balances wriƩen off                           -                    256.27  

  
                          -                1,863.07  

34 Income taxes 
   

     (a) Income tax expenses 
  

(₹ in lakhs) 

 
   Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023  
 
 

Profit and loss secƟon    
    
i. Current tax 

   
 

Current tax on profits for the year 
 

- - 

 
Adjustments for current tax of previous years  

 
- - 

   
- - 

ii. Deferred tax charge/(credit) 
   

 
OriginaƟon and reversal of temporary differences  

 
62.91 (542.81) 

   
62.91 (542.81) 

 
Income tax expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss (i+ii) 62.91 (542.81) 

     
 

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) SecƟon 
   

 
Tax relaƟng to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit & Loss  (1.64) 3.48 

 
Income tax charged to OCI 

 
(1.64) 3.48 

     (b) ReconciliaƟon of tax expense and the accounƟng profit mulƟplied by India's domesƟc rate  (₹ in lakhs) 
    Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023    

 
Profit from conƟnuing operaƟons (A)  

 
(342.86) (2,294.52) 

 
Income tax rate applicable (B) 

 
26.00% 26.00% 

 
Computed tax expense (A*B) 

 
(89.14) (596.57) 

 

Tax effect of the amounts that are not deducƟble (taxable) 
while calculaƟng taxable income : 

   
 

Effect of Non- deducƟble expenses 
 

100.65 18.10 

 
Income not taxable under income tax 

 
- (2.48) 

 
Effect of changes in tax rate due to MAT  

 
- - 

 
Tax expense for previous year  

 
- - 

 
Deferred tax on unabsorbed losses, previously not recognised  

 
- - 

 
Tax impact of IND AS adjustment  

 
15.19 8.32 

 
Deffered tax reversal on provision wriƩen back  

 
- 6.99 

 
Others 

 
(81.71) 25.71 

 
Income tax expense/(reversal) 

 
(55.02) (539.93) 

 
35 ConƟngent liability    
I.    Claims/liƟgaƟons made against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
    1.  MaƩers under liƟgaƟon:
 Claims against the Company by vendors & customers amounƟng to ฀ 31.38 lakhs (Previous Year ฀ 45.39 lakhs). The management of 

the Company believes that the ulƟmate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material/adverse effect on the Company's 
financial condiƟon and results of operaƟons.

II.  Others:
 Bank guarantee issued by bank amounƟng to ฀ 151.16 lakhs (Previous Year ฀ 151.16 lakhs).
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36 Capital commitments 
   

(₹ in lakhs) 

 

 

 

Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 

EsƟmated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 
account and not provided for (net of capital advances)  

 

               39.14                   18.39  

 
Investment in Sixth Sense Ventures Advisors LLP  

 
                    -                     30.00  

 
Total    

 
              39.14                  48.39  

 
37 Government grant 
 During the financial year ended 31 March, 2022, the Company had received a capital subsidy of Rs. 225 lakhs under the Industrial 

development scheme ,2017 noƟfied vide no. 2(2)2018-SPS of the Government of India. The subsidy received is being apporƟoned to 
Statement of Profit & Loss over the useful life of the eligible assets. During the year the Company has recognised ₹ 14.14 lakhs 
(previous year ₹ 15.07 lakhs ) as government grant based on useful life of the assets. 

38 Segment reporƟng 
 The Company is engaged in manufacturing a range of oral and dental products for elite naƟonal and internaƟonal brands. 

InformaƟon reported to and evaluated regularly by the Chief OperaƟonal Decision Maker (CODM) for the purpose of resource 
allocaƟon and assessing performance focuses on business as a whole. The CODM reviews the Company's performance on the 
analysis profit before tax at overall level. Accordingly, there is no other separate reportable segmental as defined by IND AS 108 
"Segment ReporƟng".

 InformaƟon about major customers 
 Revenue of ฀ 3464.70 lakhs, (Previous year ฀ 6489.20 lakhs) arising from three customers in India contribute more than 10% of the 

Company's revenue individually. No other customer contribute 10% or more than 10% to the Company's revenue for the current 
year ended 31 March, 2024. The Company does not hold any non current assets outside India.

39 Employee benefit obligaƟons
 The Company has classified various employee benefits as under:   
 a.  Defined contribuƟon plans 
        i)      Employees Provident fund 
       ii)      Employee State Insurance Scheme 
 The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year: (Refer Note- 30)

 
InformaƟon about geographical areas are as under   (₹ in lakhs) 

 
 

Revenue from external customers  

 

Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 
India    6,889.95 8,397.55 

 
UAE    0.01 65.67 

 
Bangladesh   - 6.02 

 
Italy    96.24  

 
Nepal    33.60 12.06 

 
Russia    35.99  

 
USA    24.04 0.16 

 
Total  7,079.82 8,481.45 

 

   (₹ in lakhs) 

ParƟculars   Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

ContribuƟon to Provident Fund                   40.08                    48.34  
ContribuƟon to Employee State Insurance Scheme                    8.71                    10.38  
Total                   48.79                   58.72  
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b.   Defined benefit plans 
        i.)         Gratuity
c.   Other long-term employee benefits 
       ii.)        Leave encashment
 Gratuity is payable to eligible employees as per the Company's policy and The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The present value of 

obligaƟon is determined based on actuarial valuaƟon using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method, which recognizes each period 
of service as giving rise to addiƟonal unit of employee benefit enƟtlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final 
obligaƟons.

 Provision for leave benefits is made by the Company on the basis of actuarial valuaƟon using the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) 
method.

 Liability with respect to the gratuity and leave encashment is determined based on an actuarial valuaƟon done by an independent 
actuary at the year end and is charged to Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumpƟons and are recognized 
immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income as income or expense.

 Other disclosures required under IND AS 19 “Employee benefits” are given below:   
 Principal Actuarial AssumpƟons at the Balance Sheet date 

 ParƟculars     Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Discount rate (per annum)     7.22% 7.45% 

 Rate of increase in compensaƟon levels     7.00% 7.00% 

 ReƟrement age      58  Years  

 Mortality table      100% of IALM (2012-14)  

 Average withdrawal rate      7% 7% 

 
The discount rate has been assumed at 7.22% p.a. (Previous year 7.45% p.a.) based upon the market yields available on Government 
bonds at the accounƟng date for remaining life of employees. The esƟmates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuaƟon, 
take account of inflaƟon, seniority, promoƟon and other  relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market on long 
term basis.

 I) Changes in the present value of obligaƟon      (₹ in lakhs) 

ParƟculars 

Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Present value of obligaƟon as at the beginning of the year  23.25 125.60 42.73 129.76 
AcquisiƟon adjustment - - - - 
Interest cost 1.73 9.23 2.97 8.90 
Past service cost - - -  
Current service cost 4.62 20.53 7.33 19.54 
ContribuƟon by plan parƟcipants - - - - 
Curtailment cost/(credit) - - - - 
SeƩlement cost/(credit) - - - - 
Benefit paid - (9.94) - (7.79) 
Change in financial assumpƟon - - - - 
Experience variance - - - - 
Actuarial (gains)/loss (8.71) (6.29) (29.78) (24.80) 
Present value of obligaƟon as at the end of the year 20.89 139.13 23.25 125.60 
      
Current 1.46 10.85 1.52 10.58 
Non current 19.43 128.28 21.73 115.02 
Total  20.89 139.13 23.25 125.60 
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II) ReconciliaƟon of the Present Value of Defined Benefit ObligaƟon and the Fair Value of Assets - (₹ in lakhs) 

ParƟculars 

Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Present value of funded obligaƟon as at the end of the year  - - - - 

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year - - - - 

Funded (asset)/liability recognised in the balance sheet - - - - 

Present value of unfunded obligaƟon as at the end of the year  20.89 139.13 23.25 125.60 

Unfunded net liability recognised in the balance sheet 20.89 139.13 23.25 125.60 

         
III) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss Account     (₹ in lakhs) 

ParƟculars 

Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Current service cost 4.62 20.53 7.33 19.54 

Past service cost - - - - 

AcquisiƟon adjustment - - - - 

Interest cost 1.73 9.23 2.97 8.90 

Expected return on plan assets - - - - 

Curtailment cost/(credit) - - - - 

SeƩlement cost/(credit) - - - - 

Benefit paid - - - - 

Remeasurement - - - - 

Net actuarial (gains)/loss (8.71) - (29.78) - 

Employees contribuƟon - - - - 
Total expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 
account (2.36) 29.76 (19.48) 28.44 

      
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Gratuity (Unfunded)                             (₹ in lakhs)  

ParƟculars Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

Net cumulaƟve unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) opening -  -  
Actuarial gain / (loss) for the year on PBO 6.29  24.80  
Actuarial gain /(loss) for the year on asset -  -  
Unrecognized actuarial gain/(loss) at the end of the year 6.29  24.80  
         
IV) Expected Employer ContribuƟon        (₹ in lakhs)  

ParƟculars 

Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Leave 
Encashment  

 Gratuity 
(Unfunded)  

 Leave 
Encashment  

 Gratuity 
(Unfunded)  

Expected employer contribuƟon for the next year  - - - - 
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DescripƟon of Risk Exposures : 
 Risks associated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks. These risks are:- (i) investment risk, (ii) interest risk (discount rate risk), 

(iii) mortality risk and (iv) salary risk.   
 i)  Investment Risk- The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by 

reference to Government bonds yield. If plan liability is funded and return on plan assets is below this rate, it will create a plan 
deficit. 

 ii)  Interest Risk (discount rate risk) – A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability. 
 iii)  Mortality Risk  - The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best esƟmate of the 

mortality of plan parƟcipants. For this report we have used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) ulƟmate table. A change in 
mortality rate will have a bearing on the plan's liability. 

 iv)  Salary Risk – The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumpƟon of salary increase rate of 
plan parƟcipants in future. DeviaƟon in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan parƟcipants from the rate of increase in 
salary used to determine the present value of obligaƟon will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

40 Related party disclosures as per IND AS 24   
    (a) Names of related parƟes and descripƟon of relaƟonship:  

  RelaƟonships  Name of Related Party 
 Related parƟes where control exists  
 Related parƟes where control exists  - JHS Svendgaard Mechanical and Warehouse Private 

Limited (99.99%) 
  EnƟƟes controlled by a person who is a KMP of the Company or 

a person who has significant influence over the Company 
- Starpool Consultants & Advisors LLP 

  - Harish Chander Nanda EducaƟonal and Charitable 
Society 

     - Anand & Anand Legal Services LLP 
  RelaƟves of Key Managerial Personnel    - Mrs Sushma Nanda (Mother of Mr. Nikhil Nanda)  
  EnƟƟes which are controlled or jointly controlled by Key 

Managerial  
- Number One Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.  

Personnel category or by his/her close family members  - Apogee Manufacturing Private Limited  
    - GuruNanda LLC 

 

     (₹ in lakhs) 

 V) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit ObligaƟon Year ended  
31 March 2024 

Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Year Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

Leave 
Encashment 

Gratuity 
(Unfunded) 

 0 to 1 Year 1.46 12.53 1.52 10.55 

 1 to 2 Year 1.43 8.81 1.61 9.77 

 2 to 3 Year 1.91 9.13 1.47 8.33 

 3 to 4 Year 1.24 8.47 1.81 8.41 

 4 to 5 Year 1.27 8.34 1.48 7.38 

 5 Year onwards  13.57 91.86 15.36 81.17 

      
 VI) Sensivity Analysis of the Defined Benefit ObligaƟon:-        (₹ in lakhs)  

 ParƟculars  Leave Encashment   Gratuity  
(Unfunded)  

   Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Impact of change in discount rate         

 Present value of obligaƟon at the end of the year  20.89  139.13   

 a) Impact due to increase of 0.5% (0.87)  (5.47)   

 b) Impact due to decrease of 0.5% 0.93  5.86   

   Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Impact of change in salary rate         

 Present value of obligaƟon at the end of the year  20.89  139.13   

 a) Impact due to increase of 0.5% 0.92  5.84   

 b) Impact due to decrease of 0.5% (0.87)  (5.51)   
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(b) Key Managerial Personnels (KMP) of the JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited  
 Name of Key Managerial Personnel Category Period 
 Name of Key Managerial Personnel Category Period 
 Mr. Nikhil Nanda Managing Director 2023-24 
 Mr. Rajagopal Chakravarthi Venkateish    Non -ExecuƟve Independent Director  2023-24 
 Mr. Mukul Pathak    Non - ExecuƟve Independent Director 2023-24 

 Mrs. Rohina Sanjay Sangtani   Non - ExecuƟve Independent Director 2023-24 
 Mr. Vinay MiƩal    Non - ExecuƟve Independent Director 2023-24 
 Mr. Kapil Minocha   Non - ExecuƟve Independent Director  2023-24 
 Mr. Paramvir Singh Pabla    Chief ExecuƟve Officer 2023-24 
 Mr. Ashish Goel    Chief Financial Officer 2023-24 
 Mrs. Komal Jha   Company Secretary  2023-24 
      

 
(c) Key Managerial Personnels (KMP) of JHS Mechanical and warehousing Private Limited  

 Name of Key Managerial Personnel Category Period 
 Mr. Nikhil Nanda Director 2023-24 
 Mr. Chhabi Lal Prasad  Director 2023-24 
    
 (f) Key Management Personnel CompensaƟon   (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Short- term employee benefits    
151.73 149.69  

 Post- employement benefits   
27.60 28.71  

 Long- term employee benefits   
- 4.43  

 Director's Siƫng fees    
6.17 3.00  

 Total CompensaƟon                185.50  185.83 

 (g) TransacƟons with related parƟes     
 The following transacƟons occurred with related parƟes:    (₹ in lakhs) 

S.No Statement of Profit and Loss heads     Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

1. Income:         
  Interest income        
        - Nikhil Nanda   44.67 90.60 
  Revenue     
        - APOGEE ENTERPRISES PRIVATE LIMITED  0.87  
        - GuruNanda LLC   24.04  
        

2. Expenditure:     
  i) Interest expenses on lease liability as per IND AS 116     
        - Nikhil Nanda   30.26 24.46 
  ii) DepreciaƟon expenses on Right of use assets as per as per IND AS 116    
        - Nikhil Nanda   52.34 23.92 
  iii) AmorƟzaƟon of deferred rent 

expense 
    

        - Nikhil Nanda   26.68 8.35 
  iv) Electricity and Water expenses     
        - Nikhil Nanda   3.76 13.68 
  v) Rent Expenses     
       - Magna Waves Private Limited     0.30 - 

 * As per secƟon 135(1) of companies Act ,2013 this year CSR not applicable on the company.   
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(h) Investments / Loans & advances and other adjustments to/ from Related ParƟes  (₹ in lakhs)  

    Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

        
i. Payment Received      
  - GuruNanda LLC            35,529.65                           -    

ii. Investments made     
  - HWJHS Labs Private Limited                     0.20                        0.20  

    
(i)  Balance Sheet heads (Closing balances)   (₹ in lakhs)  
     Year ended  

31 March 2024  
  Year ended  

31 March 2023  
  Credit balances     
i. Other liabiliƟes     
  - Nikhil Nanda                     8.68                           -    
        

ii. Trade Payable      
  - Anand & Anand Legal Services LLP                     1.38                        1.38  
  - Magna Waves Private Limited                         -                          0.17  
        
  Debit Balances     

iii. Loans and advances     
  - Nikhil Nanda (At amorƟsed cost)                   68.83                      16.73  
  - Nikhil Nanda (staff housing advance)                        -                       459.72  

iv. Trade receivables      
  - Apogee Manufacturing Private Limited                   34.58                      33.55  

    
 

(j) Terms and CondiƟons 
 Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured, interest free and recoverable/repayable on demand. There has been no 

guarantee provided or received for any related party receivable and payable, other than disclosed. For the year end 31 March, 2024 
the Company has provided for impairment of receivables owed by the related party ₹ Nil (31 March, 2023: ₹ Nil ). This assessment 
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial posiƟon of related party and market in which related party operates.

41      Fair valuaƟon measurements 
         

    

 Year ended  
31 March 2024  

Total 
carrying 

value 

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

Total 
carrying 

value  S. 
No ParƟculars Level of 

Hierarchy FVTPL FVTOCI AmorƟze
d cost  FVTPL FVTOCI AmorƟzed 

Cost  

 
  Financial assets          

 
1 Investments          

 
  Investment in Mutual Funds 1 28.49 - 215.97 244.46 2.80  183.15 185.96 

 
  Investment in MLD 1 - - - - - - - - 

 
  Investment in Preference shares 1 - - 100.17 100.17 -  100.17 100.17 

 
2 Loans     -    - 

 
  Security deposit 3 - - - - - - 49.11 49.11 

 
  Related parƟes 3   2.35 2.35   278.32 278.32 

 
  Others  3 - - 157.36 157.36 - - 1.34 1.34 

 
3 Trade receivables 3 - - 1,287.96 1,287.96 - - 1,853.60 1,853.60 

 
4 Other financial assets 3 - - 230.97 230.97  - 664.46 664.46 

 
5 Cash & cash equivalents 3 - - 910.47 910.47 - - 3,724.87 3,724.87 
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41      Fair valuaƟon measurements 
         

    

 Year ended  
31 March 2024  

Total 
carrying 

value 

  Year ended  
31 March 2023  

Total 
carrying 

value  S. 
No ParƟculars Level of 

Hierarchy FVTPL FVTOCI AmorƟze
d cost  FVTPL FVTOCI AmorƟzed 

Cost  
 

 

6 Bank balances other than cash & cash 
equivalents 3 - - 126.01 126.01 - - 140.23 140.23 

 
  Total financial assets  28.49 - 3,031.25 3,059.74 2.80 - 6,995.26 6,998.06 

 
  Financial liability          

 

1 Borrowings including current 
maturiƟes 3 - - 355.81 355.81 - - 37.88 37.88 

 
2 Trade & other payables 3 - - 1,409.83 1,409.83 - - 1,999.46 1,999.46 

 
3 Lease liabiliƟes 3 - - 157.06 157.06   219.71 219.71 

 
4 Other financial liabiliƟes 3 - - 442.83 442.83 - - 471.17 471.17 

 
  Total financial liabiliƟes  - - 2,365.53 2,365.53 - - 2,728.23 2,728.23 

 
Fair valuaƟon of financial assets and liabiliƟes with short term maturiƟes is considered as approximate to respecƟve carrying amount due 
to the short term maturiƟes of these instruments.
-  Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. 
-  Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an acƟve market is determined using valuaƟon techniques 

which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as liƩle as possible on enƟty specific esƟmates. If all significant 
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. 

-  Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. The 
fair value of financial assets and liabiliƟes included in Level 3 is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing 
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transacƟons and dealer quotes of 
similar instruments.

42 The Company has valued the following investments in subsidiaries at cost, as per Ind AS 27.    

 

ParƟculars As at 31 
March 2024 

As at 31 
March 2023 

 
Investment in equity shares 0.20  0.20  

 
43 Financial risk management
 Risk management objecƟves and policies
 The Company is exposed to various risks in relaƟon to financial instruments. The Company's financial assets and liabiliƟes by 

category are summarised in Note 42. The main types of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company's risk management is coordinated by its board of directors, and focuses on acƟvely securing the Company's short to 
medium-term cash flows by minimising the exposure to volaƟle financial markets. 

 The Company does not acƟvely engage in the trading of financial assets for speculaƟve purposes nor does it write opƟons. The most 
significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed to, are described below:

 
1 Market risk
 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices will have an effect on Company's income or value of the financial assets and 

liabiliƟes. The Company is exposed to various types of market risks which result from its operaƟng and invesƟng acƟviƟes. The most 
significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed are described below:

 
(a) Foreign currency risk
 The Company operates internaƟonally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transacƟons, primarily 

with respect to  USD and EURO. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transacƟons and recognise assets and liabiliƟes 
denominated in a currency that is not Company's funcƟonal currency(INR). The Risk is measured through a forecast of highly 
probable foreign currency cashflows.
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            (₹ in lakhs) 

  ParƟculars   Foreign 
currency   As at  

31 March 2024 
 As at  

31 March 2023  
              
  Trade Payable    USD   5.56 57.00 
  Trade Receivable    USD   156.19 498.40 

    
  To miƟgate the Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk, cash flows in foreign currencies are monitored and net cash flows are 

managed in accordance with Company's risk management policies. Generally, the Company's risk management procedures 
disƟnguish short term foreign currency cash flows (due within 6 months) from longer term cash flows (due aŌer 6 months). Where 
the amounts to be paid and received in a specific currency are expected to largely offset one another, no hedging acƟvity is 
undertaken.

      
 The following table gives the volaƟlity in exchange rates for the respecƟve reporƟng years for major currencies:

 These percentages have been determined based on the average market volaƟlity in exchange rates in the previous 12 months. The 
sensiƟvity analysis given in the table below is based on the Company's foreign currency financial instruments held at each reporƟng 
date.

 SensiƟvity analysis for enƟƟes with foreign currency balances in INR
 The following tables illustrate the sensiƟvity of profit/loss and equity in regards to the Company's trade payables and trade 

receivables and the movement of exchange rates of respecƟve funcƟonal currencies' against INR, assuming 'all other things being 
constant'. 

 If the respecƟve funcƟonal currencies had strengthened/weakened against the INR by the afore menƟoned percentage of market 
volaƟlity, then this would have had the following impact on profit/loss:

(b) Price risk  
 The Company is mainly exposed to the price risk due to investment in mutual funds and market linked debentures. The price risk 

arises due to uncertainƟes about the future market values of these investments. In order to minimise pricing risk arising from 
investment in mutual funds, Company invest in highly rated mutual funds. 

 The sensiƟvity to price risk if increases/ decrease in NAV of the mutual funds is:

 Currencies    
Year ended  

31 March 2024 
 Year ended  

31 March 2023 

 INR/USD    -1% -8% 

 

            (₹ in lakhs) 
  Year ended 31 March, 2024     Movement  Profit and loss  
           Strengthening   Weakening  
  USD SensiƟvity     -1%                    (2.20)                       2.20  

              
  Year ended 31 March, 2023     Movement  Profit and loss  
           Strengthening   Weakening  
  USD SensiƟvity     -8%                   (36.46)                      36.46  
              
 

            (₹ in lakhs) 
  

Year ended 31 March, 2024  Movement  Profit and loss  
   Strengthening   Weakening  
  Price risk sensiƟvity     2% 5.62   (5.62) 

              
  

Year ended 31 March, 2023   Movement  Profit and loss  
   Strengthening   Weakening  
  Price risk sensiƟvity     2% 4.28   (4.28) 
 

 The following table presents non-derivaƟve instruments which are exposed to currency risk and are unhedged as at 31 March 2024 
and 31 March 2023 :
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      (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars    
As at  

31 March 2024 
 As at  

31 March 2023  

 Fixed-rate borrowings including current maturiƟes     
 - Vehicle loan (secured)                       24.52                       37.88  

 -Loan from Corporate (Unsecured)                            -                         10.00  

 Total borrowings (gross of transacƟon cost)                    24.52                      47.88  

 

(c) Interest rate risk 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market interest rates. The Company is  not exposed to significant interest rate risk because funds are borrowed at fixed interest 
rates. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in rupees and fixed rates of interest.  

2 CREDIT RISK 
 Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalent, investments in mutual funds, deposits with the banks, as well as credit exposure to 

customers including outstanding receivables.

 Credit risk management 
 For Bank and Financial InsƟtuƟons, only high rated banks/ insƟtuƟons are accepted.

 For other counter parƟes, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial 
condiƟon, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of account receivables. Individual risk limits are 
set accordingly. The Company conƟnuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparƟes and incorporates this 
informaƟon into its credit risk controls. The Company's policy is to deal only with creditworthy counterparƟes only.

 The Company considers the probability of default upon iniƟal recogniƟon of asset and whether there has been a significant increase 
in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporƟng period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk the 
Company compares the risk of default occurring on the asset as at the reporƟng date with the risk of default as at the date of iniƟal 
recogniƟon. The Company considers reasonable and supporƟve forward-looking informaƟon.

 The Company based on internal assessment which is driven by the historical experience/current facts available in relaƟon to default 
and delays in collecƟon thereof, the credit risk for trade receivable is considered low. The Company esƟmates its allowance for trade 
receivable using life Ɵme expected credit loss. The balance past due for more than 6 months (net of expected credit loss allowance), 
excluding receivable from Company companies is ₹ 481.30 lakhs (31 March, 2023 ₹ 900.35 lakhs).

 The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents and other financial instruments is considered negligible and no impairment has been 
recorded by the Company.

 Significant esƟmates and judgments
 Impairment of financial assets
 The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumpƟons about risk of default and expected loss 

rates. The Company uses judgment in making these assumpƟons and selecƟng the inputs to the impairment calculaƟon, based on 
the Company's past history, exisƟng market condiƟons as well as forward looking esƟmates at the end of each reporƟng period. 

3 Liquidity risk 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeƟng the obligaƟons associated with its financial liabiliƟes 

that are seƩled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as 
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabiliƟes when they are due, under both normal and stressed condiƟons, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputaƟon.

 The Company's is responsible for managing the short term and long term liquidity requirements. Short term liquidity situaƟon is 
reviewed daily. Longer term liquidity posiƟon is reviewed on a regular basis by the Board of Directors and appropriate decisions are 
taken according to the situaƟon.

 Exposure to liquidity risk 
 The following are the remaining contractual maturiƟes of financial liabiliƟes at the reporƟng date. The amounts are gross and 

undiscounted, and include contractual interest payments :
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      (₹ in lakhs) 

   
As at 31 March, 2024 

 Upto 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 year Above 5 years Total  

 Borrowings including current maturiƟes 343.92 11.89 - - 355.81 

 Trade payables  1,409.83 - - - 1,409.83 

 Lease liabiliƟes 52.21 104.85 - - 157.06 

 Other financial liabiliƟes 442.83 - - - 442.83 

 Total  2,248.78 116.75 - - 2,365.53 

       
  As at 31 March, 2023 

   Upto 1 year 1 to 3 years 3 to 5 year Above 5 years Total  

 Borrowings including current maturiƟes 13.95 23.93 - - 37.88 

 Trade payables  1,999.46 - - - 1,999.46 

 Lease liabiliƟes 92.04 82.82 44.85 - 219.71 

 Other financial liabiliƟes 471.17 - - - 471.17 

 Total  2,576.61 106.76 44.85 - 2,728.22 
 

44 Capital management
A Risk management
 For the purposes of Company capital management, Capital includes equity aƩributable to the equity holders of the Company and all 

other equity reserves. The primary objecƟve of the Company capital management is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital 
structure and maximize shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in 
economic condiƟons and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may 
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital 
requirements. No changes were made in the objecƟves, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March, 
2024 and 31 March, 2023.

        (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars      
 As at  

31 March 2024  
 As at  

31 March 2023  

 Equity share capital                    7,839.68             7,839.68  

 Free reserve*                   (1,578.78)           (1,183.12) 

         
 * Comprises of retained earning and general reserves.    
 B Dividends       

 The Company has not proposed any dividend for the year ended 31 March, 2024 (31 March, 2023: ₹ Nil). 
 45 Earnings per equity share 

  
   

(₹ in lakhs) 

 

ParƟculars Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 
      

 
Earnings per equity share has been computed as under:   

 
Earnings aƩributable to equity shareholders  (405.77) (1,751.71) 

 
Nominal value of equity share (₹) 10 10 

 
No of shares as at end of the year 78,396,762 78,396,762 

 
No. of weighted average equity shares 78,396,762 78,396,762 

 
Basic Earning per share (₹) (0.52) (2.23) 

 
Number of equity shares for DiluƟve earning per share 78,396,762 78,396,762 

 
DiluƟve earning per share (₹) (0.52) (2.23) 
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46 Leases       
       
 The movement in lease liabiliƟes is as follows :   
      (₹ in lakhs) 

 ParƟculars     Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Opening balance       219.71                           251.49  

 Add :  Lease assets during the period       181.80                                  -    

 Add :  Interest expense during the period       30.26                             37.92  

 Less:  Cash ouƞlows       (69.69)                          (69.69) 

 Less: DeleƟons/Adjustment on account of waiver in lease rent       (205.01)                                 -    

 Closing lease liability at the end of the period     157.06                          219.71  

       
47 Auditor's RemuneraƟons    (₹ in lakhs) 

 
        

Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023  

 Statutory audit                            4.00                              4.50  

 Tax audit fees                                 -                                1.50  

 Internal audit fees                            4.00                                  -    

 Other maƩers      
  - Limited reviews                            2.46                              3.60  

  - Out of pocket expenses                           0.75                              0.02  

  - CerƟficaƟon fees                                -                                0.82  

                           11.20                            10.44  

 
48 Suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 
 A sum of ₹ 381.94 lakhs is payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as at 31 March, 2024 (31 March, 2023: ₹ 179.86 lakhs). The 

above amount is on account of trade payables only. Out of the total amount outstanding to Micro and Small Enterprises a sum 
of ₹ 119.92 lakhs (31 March, 2023: ₹ 78.76 lakhs) is outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31 March, 2024. This informaƟon as 
required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the 
extent such parƟes have been idenƟfied on the basis of informaƟon available with the Company.

      

49 Disclosure required under secƟon 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013 :-
i ParƟculars of loan given     (₹ in lakhs) 

 
Sr.  
No. ParƟculars   Purpose Year ended  

31 March 2024 
 Year ended  

31 March 2023 

 1 JHS Svendgaard Mechanical and Warehouse Private 
Limited Purchase of land 163.32 - 

 2 Amit Saxena   Businesspurpose 2.11 278.29  

 3 Nirvikar Films LLP   Businesspurpose 47.25 -    

 4 CreaƟve Jewellers Business purpose 110.35 - 

       
ii ParƟculars of investment made    (₹ in lakhs) 

 
Sr.  
No. ParƟculars     Year ended  

31 March 2024 
 Year ended  

31 March 2023 

 1 JHS Svendgaard Mechanical and Warehouse Private Limited  1.00 1.00 

 2 HWJHS Labs Private Limited 0.20 0.20 

 3 Sixth Sense India OpportuniƟes III Class A1 244.46 185.96 

 4 ARG Outlier Media Private Limited - CCPPS  100.17 100.17  

 5 Liquid funds - 10.43 
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 JHS Svendgaard Mechanical and Warehouse Private Limited  (₹ in lakhs) 

         Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Closing balance excluding provision     163.32  -    

 Maximum balance during the year     1,355.02  1,320.02  

     
 Amit Saxena     (₹ in lakhs) 

         Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Closing balance excluding provision     2.11  278.29  

 Maximum balance during the year     2.11  278.29  

       
 Nirvikar Films LLP      (₹ in lakhs) 

         Year ended  
31 March 2024 

 Year ended  
31 March 2023 

 Closing balance excluding provision     47.25  -    

 Maximum balance during the year     80.00  -    

       
 CreaƟve Jewellers      (₹ in lakhs) 

         Year ended 31 
March 2024 

 Year ended 31 
March 2023 

 Closing balance excluding provision     110.35  -    

 Maximum balance during the year     110.35  -    

 

iii There are no guarantees issued by the company to any parƟes.

50 InformaƟon pursuant to RegulaƟon 34(3) & 53(f) of SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure 
Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015

51 In accordance with the requirements of SecƟon 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the financial year ending March 31, 2024, 
the Company has no obligaƟon to spent in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility policy.

52 The Company in its board meeƟng held on 09th October, 2020 has approved the Composite Scheme of Arrangement for 
AmalgamaƟon and Demerger between among JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited (Demerged Company/ Transferee Company), 
JHS Svendgaard Retail Ventures Private Limited (ResulƟng Company) and JHS Svendgaard Brands Limited (Transferor Company) 
('Composite Scheme') under SecƟon 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013. ThereaŌer, on 8th December, 2021, both the stock 
exchanges viz. BSE Limited and NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited had granted their no-objecƟon to the composite scheme. 
The next date of hearing of the peƟƟon shall be on 14 June 2023 for the consideraƟon of the approval of the scheme.

53 AddiƟonal Regulatory InformaƟon 

 RaƟos

 
RaƟo Numerator Denominator Current  

Year 
Previous 

Year 
Variance 

 Current raƟo (in Ɵmes) Total current assets  Total current liabiliƟes  1.87 2.29 -18% 

 
Debt-Equity raƟo (in 
Ɵmes) 

Debt consisit of borrowings & lease 
liabiliƟes 

Total equity  0.01 0.01 -28% 

 

Debt Services Coverage 
raƟo (in Ɵmes) 

Earning for debt service= Net profit 
aŌer taxes+ Non - Cash operaƟng 
expenses+interest+other non-cash 
adjustments  

Debt service = interest & 
lease payments + 
principal repayments 

2.36 -5.58 -142% 

 
Return on equity raƟo (in 
%) 

Profit for the year aŌer tax l ess 
preference dividend 

Average trade equity -2.35% -9.58% -75% 
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RaƟo Numerator Denominator Current  
Year 

Previous 
Year 

Variance 
 

 
Inventory Turnover raƟo 
(in Ɵmes) 

Cost of goods sold Average inventory  3.44 4.88 -29% 

 
Trade Receivable 
turnover raƟo (in Ɵmes) 

Revenue from operaƟons  Average trade receivables  4.51 4.58 -2% 

 
Trade Payables turnover 
raƟo (in Ɵmes) 

Credit purchase during the period  Average trade payables  3.29 3.67 -10% 

 

Net Capital turnover 
raƟo (in Ɵmes) 

Revenue from operaƟons  Average working capital 
(total current assets less 
total current liabliƟes) 

2.07 1.64 26% 

 Net profit raƟo (in %) Net profit aŌer tax Revenue from operaƟons  -5.72% -20.65% -72% 

 
Return on Capital 
employed (in %) 

Profit before tax & finance cost  Capital employed (total 
assets - current liab.) 

-1.70% -12.51% -86% 

 
Return on investment (in 
%) 

Income generated from investment 
funds  

Average invested funds in 
treasury investments  

2.95% -28.66% -110% 

 
 ExplanaƟon for change in raƟo by more then 25% 
 Debt-Equity RaƟo : Lower raƟon on account of repayment of debt during the year

 Debt Service Coverage RaƟo : Higher raƟo on account of decrease in losses during current year 

 Return on Equity RaƟo : Higher raƟo on account of decrease in loss during current year 

 Inventory Turnover RaƟo : Lower raƟo on account of decrease in cost of goods sold during the current year

 Trade Payable Turnover RaƟo : Higher RaƟo on account decrease in Average Trade Payable. 

 Net Profit RaƟo : Higher raƟo on account of decrease in losses during current year 

 Return on Capital Employed : Higher raƟo on account of decrease in loss during current year 

 Return on Investment : Lower raƟo on account of decrease in interest rate earned during the year 

54 Other statutory informaƟon
 (i)    The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been iniƟated or pending against the Company 

for holding any Benami property. 

 (ii)   The Company does not have any charges or saƟsfacƟon which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory Period. 

 (iii)  The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial year. 

 (iv)  The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or enƟty (ies), including foreign enƟƟes 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

      a)     directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enƟƟes idenƟfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company (UlƟmate Beneficiaries) or, 

      b)      provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the UlƟmate Beneficiaries 

 (v)   The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or enƟty (ies), including foreign enƟƟes (Funding Party) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in wriƟng or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

     a)     Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enƟƟes idenƟfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (UlƟmate Beneficiaries) or 

     b)     Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the UlƟmate Beneficiaries,  

 (vi)   The Company has no such transacƟon which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.  

 (vii)  The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial insƟtuƟon (as defined under the Companies 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024



JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited156

Act, 2013) or consorƟum thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India. 

 (viii)  during the year, Company does not have any transacƟons with companies struck off . 

       

55 The figures of the previous year have been re-Companyed / re-classified to render them comparable with the figures of the current 
year.

For TATTVAM & Co.      For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants     JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited 
Firm RegistraƟon No.:015048N         
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thNOTICE OF 20  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
THNOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 20  ANNUAL GENERAL 

MEETING (“AGM”) OF THE MEMBERS OF JHS SVENDGAARD 
LABORATORIES LIMITED (the Company)  WILL BE HELD ON 

thTuesday 10  September, 2024  AT 1:00 P.M.  (IST) through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) 
facility, to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:
1. To receive, Consider and Adopt the Audited Financial 

Statements (Standalone & Consolidated) of the Company 
for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024 together with 
the Reports of the Board of Directors and Statutory Auditors 
thereon.

2. APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITOR 
 To appoint Statutory Auditor of the Company and to fix their 

remuneraƟon and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary 
ResoluƟon:  

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to SecƟon 139, 142 of the 
Companies Act read with the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, 
2013 as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme or any other law for the 
Ɵme being in force (including any statutory modificaƟon or 
amendment thereto or enactment thereof for the Ɵme 
being in force), upon the recommendaƟon of the Audit 
CommiƩee, M/s. Lodha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants 
(Firm RegistraƟon No. 301051E/E300284),be and is hereby 
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a 
period of 5 year years commencing the conclusion of the 
ensuing Annual General MeeƟng Ɵll the conclusion of 25th 
Annual General MeeƟng to be held in the year of 2029 at 
such remuneraƟon and terms and condiƟons menƟoned in 
the Explanatory Statement.” 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director/ Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do 
all such acts, deeds, maƩers and things as may be necessary, 
proper, expedient or incidental for giving effect to this 
resoluƟon and to file necessary e-forms with the Registrar of 
Companies.”

3. APPOINTMENT OF MR. VINAY MITTAL (DIN: 08232559), AS 
DIRECTOR, LIABLE TO RETIRES BY ROTATION

 To appoint a director in place of Mr. Vinay MiƩal (DIN: 
08232559), who reƟres by rotaƟon and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:
4. APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITOR TO FILL CASUAL 

VACANCY 
 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modificaƟon, the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary 
ResoluƟon: 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 
139(8), 142 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors Rules), 2014 (the Rules), 
including any statutory modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the Ɵme being in force and pursuant to the 
recommendaƟon made by the Board of Directors through 
resoluƟon passed on 15th June 2024, M/s. Lodha & Co LLP, 
C h a r te re d  A c co u nta nt s  ( F i r m  Re g i st raƟ o n  N o . 
301051E/E300284),, be and are hereby appointed as the 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy 
caused by the resignaƟon of  M/s TATTVAM & Co. Chartered 
Accountants (FRN:507971C),

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT M/s. Lodha & Co LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, be and are hereby appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company to hold the office from June 15, 
2024, unƟl the conclusion of the 20th Annual General 
MeeƟng of the Company, at such remuneraƟon plus 
applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be 
determined and recommended by the Audit CommiƩee in 
consultaƟon with the Auditors and duly approved by the 
Board of Directors of the Company."

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director/Key Managerial 
Personnel be and is hereby severally authorized to do all 
acts, deeds, maƩers and things as considered necessary and 
execute all necessary documents, applicaƟons and returns 
for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resoluƟons.

5.  A LT E R AT I O N  O F  M A I N  O B J E C T S  C L A U S E  O F 
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION.

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon(s) as a Special 
ResoluƟon: -

 "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 4 & 
13 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder (including any 
statutory modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the 
Ɵme being in force) and any other applicable laws for the 
Ɵme being in force and such other approvals, permissions 
and sancƟons, as may be necessary, approval be and is 
hereby accorded for addiƟon of following new clauses to 
exisƟng clauses of main object in the Objects Clause (Clause 
III) of Memorandum of AssociaƟon of JHS Svendgaard 
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Laboratories Limited: -

d)  To manufacture, produce, process, pack, distribute, import, 
export, trade, sell, and deal in all kinds of cosmeƟcs, beauty 
products, personal care items, FMCG products and related 
accessories. This includes but is not limited to skincare 
products, haircare products, makeup, fragrances, and other 
beauty treatments.

e)  To carry on the business of markeƟng, adverƟsing, and 
promoƟng products related to cosmeƟcs, personal care, 
consumer durables, food and beverages, daily consumer 
goods, and other related items through various channels 
including retail, wholesale, online plaƞorms, and other 
distribuƟon networks.

f)  To establish, operate, manage, and maintain retail outlets, 
stores, e-commerce plaƞorms, and other sales channels for 
the purpose of selling and distribuƟng the company's 
products.

g)  To engage in research and development acƟviƟes for the 
innovaƟon and improvement of products related to 
cosmeƟcs, personal care, consumer durables, food and 
beverages, daily consumer goods, and other related items.

  "RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors / key 
managerial personal of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to do and execute all such acts, deeds and things 
as may be necessary for giving effect to the above 
resoluƟon.”

6    TO ADVANCE ANY LOAN/GIVE GUARANTEE/PROVIDE 
SECURITY UNDER SECTION 185 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013.

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 
resoluƟons as SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

 "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 185 
and all other applicable provisions of the Companies, Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) read with rules framed thereunder and 
other applicable regulaƟons, rules and circulars / guidelines 
in force, from Ɵme to Ɵme (including any statutory 
modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the Ɵme 
being in force),  and the enabl ing provis ions of 
Memorandum of AssociaƟon and ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of 
the Company, consent of the members  be and is hereby 
accorded for  giving of guarantee(s), and/or providing of 
security(ies) in connecƟon with any Loan to be taken by JHS 
Svendgaard Retail Ventures Limited , being enƟty covered 
under the category of 'a person in whom any of the director 
of the Company is interested' as specified in the explanaƟon 
to clause (b) of Sub-secƟon 2 of SecƟon 185 of the Act, from 
Ɵme to Ɵme, up to an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs 5 
Crore (Rupees Five  Crore Only) in one or more tranches, 
provided that such guarantee/security given by the 
Company shall be uƟlized by such enƟty for its principal 

business acƟviƟes of Airport Store operaƟon and managing 
the business.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to 
this resoluƟon, any Director of the Company be and is 
hereby authorized to negoƟate, finalize and agree to the 
terms and condiƟons of the aforesaid Guarantees / 
SecuriƟes, and to take all necessary steps, to execute all such 
documents, instruments and wriƟngs and to do all 
necessary acts, deeds and things in order to comply with all 
the legal and procedural formaliƟes and to do all such acts, 
deeds or things and incidental as the Board / CommiƩee in 
its absolute discreƟon may deem.”

7.  TO ADVANCE ANY LOAN/GIVE GUARANTEE/PROVIDE 
SECURITY UNDER SECTION 185 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013. 

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 
resoluƟons as SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

 "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 185 
and all other applicable provisions of the Companies, Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) read with rules framed thereunder and 
other applicable regulaƟons, rules and circulars / guidelines 
in force, from Ɵme to Ɵme (including any statutory 
modificaƟon(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the Ɵme 
being in force),  and the enabl ing provis ions of 
Memorandum of AssociaƟon and ArƟcles of AssociaƟon of 
the Company, consent of members be and is hereby 
accorded for making advance to  Magna Waves Buildtech 
Private Limited , being enƟty covered under the category of 
'a person in whom any of the director of the Company is 
interested' as specified in the explanaƟon to clause (b) of 
Sub-secƟon 2 of SecƟon 185 of the Act, from Ɵme to Ɵme, 
up to an aggregate amount not exceeding Rs 13.20 Crore 
(Rupees Thirteen Crores Twenty Lacs) in one or more 
tranches, provided that such advance given by the Company 
shall be uƟlized by such enƟty for   securing Pre-empƟve 
rights for the purpose of transfer of lease rights in Srinagar 
and Jammu, UT of J&K, which have been alloƩed to Magna 
Waves Buildtech Pvt Limited by Govt of J&K for the purpose 
of seƫng up Shopping Mall, Hotel and Corporate Park/ 
Office Complex etc. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to 
this resoluƟon, any Director of the Company be and is 
hereby authorized to negoƟate, finalize and agree to the 
terms and condiƟons of the aforesaid  advance , and to take 
all necessary steps, to execute all such documents, 
instruments and wriƟngs and to do all necessary acts, deeds 
and things in order to comply with all the legal and 
procedural formaliƟes and to do all such acts, deeds or 
things and incidental as the Board / CommiƩee in its 
absolute discreƟon may deem.”



Annual Report 2023-24 159

8.  APPROVAL OF MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
WITH MAGNA WAVES BUILDTECH PRIVATE LIMITED FOR 
THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25.

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modificaƟon(s), the following resoluƟon as an Ordinary 
ResoluƟon:

 "RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of RegulaƟons 
2(1)(zc), 23(4) and other applicable RegulaƟons, if any, of 
the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng 
ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 ('SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟons'), as amended from Ɵme to 
Ɵme, SecƟon 2(76) and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with the Rules framed 
thereunder [including any statutory modificaƟon(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the Ɵme being in force] and other 
applicable laws/statutory provisions, if any, the Company's 
Policy on Related Party TransacƟons as well as subject to 
such approval(s), consent(s) and/or permission(s), as may 
be required, on such terms and condiƟons as may be 
mutually agreed between the Company and Magna Waves 
Buildtech Private Limited, for an aggregate value of not 
exceeding ฀13.20 crore during the financial year 2024-25, 
consent of members  be and is hereby accorded to 
amend/modify the terms of the said Material Related Party 
TransacƟon(s)/ Contract(s)/Arrangement(s)/Agreement(s) 
proposed to be entered into (whether by way of an 
individual transacƟon or transacƟons taken together or a 
series of transacƟons or otherwise), as menƟoned in detail 
in the Explanatory Statement annexed herewith, provided 
that such transacƟon(s)/ contract(s) / arrangement(s) / 
agreement(s) is/are carried out at an arm's length pricing 
basis and in the ordinary course of business.”

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do and perform all such acts, deeds, maƩers 
and things, as may be necessary, including but not limited to, 
finalizing the terms and condiƟons, methods and modes in 
respect of execuƟng necessary. documents, including 
contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s) and other 
ancillary documents; seeking necessary approvals from the 
authoriƟes; seƩling all such issues, quesƟons, difficulƟes or 
doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such 
decisions from powers herein conferred; and delegate all or 
any of the powers herein conferred to any Director, Chief 
Financial Officer, Company Secretary or any other Officer / 
Authorised RepresentaƟve of the Company, without being 
required to seek further consent from the Members and 
that the Members shall be deemed to have accorded their 
consent thereto expressly by the authority of this 
ResoluƟon.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all acƟons taken by the Board in 
connecƟon with any maƩer referred to or contemplated in 
this resoluƟon, be and are hereby approved, raƟfied and 

confirmed in all respects.” 

   For and on behalf of Board of Directors  
JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited

Sd/-
                       (Komal Jha)

    Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Date:  12.08.2024
Place: New Delhi

Registered Office: 
Trilokpur Road,  Kala Amb 
DisƩ. Sirmaur, Himachal Pradesh-173003
Email- cs@svendgaard.com

Website: www.svendgaard.com

CIN: L74110HP2004PLC027558  

NOTES:-
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (“MCA”) 
has vide its circular No. 9/2023 dated 25 September, 2023, read 
with circulars dated 8 April, 2020, 13 April, 2020, 5 May, 2020, 13 
January, 2021, 8 December, 2021 and 28 December, 2022 
(collecƟvely referred to as “MCA Circulars”) allowing, inter-alia, 
conducƟng of AGMs through Video Conferencing/Other Audio-
Visual Means (“VC/ OAVM”) facility on or before September 30, 
2024, in accordance with the requirements provided in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the MCA General Circular dated 5 May, 
2020. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) also 
vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 
dated October 7, 2023 (“SEBI Circular”) has provided certain 
relaxaƟons from compliance with certain provisions of the LisƟng 
RegulaƟons. In compliance with these Circulars,  provisions of 
the Act and LisƟng RegulaƟons, the 20th AGM of the Company is 
being conducted through VC/OAVM facility, without the physical 
presence of Members at a common venue. The deemed venue 
for the 20th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER 
ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO 
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF 
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 
SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO
THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH VC OR OAVM, THE 
REQUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS 
BEEN DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA 
CIRCULARS, THE FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY 

mailto:cs@svendgaard.com
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THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS   AGM AND 
HENCE THE PROXY FORM, ATTENDANCE
SLIP AND ROUTE MAP OF AGM ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS 
NOTICE.
An Explanatory Statement pursuant to SecƟon 102 of the Act, 
relaƟng to special business to be transacted at the AGM and the 
details of the Directors proposed to be appointed / re-appointed 
as required in terms of RegulaƟon 36(3) of the SEBI LisƟng 
RegulaƟons and Secretarial Standards on General MeeƟngs 
(“Secretarial Standards – 2”) issued by The InsƟtute of Company 
Secretaries of India, is annexed hereto. As per the provisions of 
Clause 3.A.II. of the General Circular No.20/2020 dated May 5, 
2020, the maƩers of Special Business as appearing at Item Nos. 
4,5,6,7&8 of the accompanying NoƟce, are unavoidable by the 
Board and hence, form part of this NoƟce.

The Company has availed the services of NaƟonal SecuriƟes  
Depository  Limited (“NSDL”) for conducƟng the AGM through 
VC/OAVM and enabling parƟcipaƟon of Members at the meeƟng 
thereto and for providing facility to the Members to cast their 
votes using an electronic voƟng system from any place before the 
meeƟng (“Remote e-voƟng”) and e-voƟng during the AGM. 

Corporates/InsƟtuƟonal Investors, who are Members of the 
Company, are encouraged to aƩend and vote at   the AGM 
through VC/OAVM facility. Corporate Members/ InsƟtuƟonal 
Investors (i.e. other than individuals, HUFs, NRIs etc.) who are 
intending to appoint their authorized representaƟves pursuant 
to SecƟons 112  and 113 of the Act, as the case may be, to aƩend 
the AGM through VC or OAVM and to vote through remote e-
voƟng are requested to send a cerƟfied copy of the Board 
ResoluƟon to the ScruƟnizer by e-mail at   csmdahiya@gmail.com
w i t h  a  c o p y  m a r k e d  t o   a n d e v o Ɵ n g @ n s d l . c o m
cs@svendgaard.com. 

Corporate Members/ InsƟtuƟonal Investors (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUFs, NRIs etc.) can also upload their Board 
ResoluƟon/ Power of AƩorney/Authority LeƩer etc. by clicking on 
the "Upload Board ResoluƟon/Authority LeƩer" displayed under 
the “e-voƟng” tab in their login.

In case of joint holders aƩending the AGM, only such joint holder 
who is higher in the order of the names as per the Register of 
Members of the Company, as of the cut-off date, will be enƟtled 
to vote at the MeeƟng.

1. The NoƟce of AGM is being sent to those members/ 
beneficial owners whose name appear in the register of 
members/list of beneficiaries received from the 
depositories as on 09th August,  2024.

2. ELECTRONIC DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT AND PROCESS 
FOR REGISTRATION OF E-MAIL ID:

In accordance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and the Circular 
Nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/ CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, 
SEBI/HO/CFD/ PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 and 
SEBI/ HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/ CIR/2023/167 dated October 07, 
2023 issued by SecuriƟes Exchange Board of India (collecƟvely 
referred to as “SEBI Circulars”) companies can send the NoƟce of 
the AGM along with the Integrated Annual Report for FY 2023-24  
through electronic mode to those Members who have registered 
their e-mail addresses with the Company or Depositories.

Accordingly, the NoƟce of the AGM along with the Integrated 
Annual Report for FY 2023-24 are being sent through electronic 
mode to those Members whose e-mail address is registered with 
the Company or the Depositories.  

Physical copy of the Annual Report shall be sent to those 
shareholders who request for the same  to the Company's e-mail 
address at  menƟoning Folio No./DP ID and cs@svendgaard.com
Client ID.

Members who have quesƟons or are seeking clarificaƟons on the 
Annual Report or on the proposals as contained in this NoƟce, are 
requested to send email to the Company on  cs@svendgaard.com
on or before 5:00 p.m. on Sunday, September 01, 2024. This 
would enable the Company to compile the informaƟon and 
provide the replies at the meeƟng. The Company will be able to 
answer only those quesƟons at the meeƟng which are received in 
advance as per the above process. The Company will allot Ɵme 
for members to express their views or give comments during the 
meeƟng. The Members who wish to speak at the meeƟng need to 
register themselves as a speaker by sending an e-mail from their 
registered e-mail ID menƟoning their name, DP ID and Client 
ID/Fol io number and Mobile number,  on e-mail  ID, 
CS@SVENDGAARD.COM on or before 5:00  p.m. on 01st 
September, 2024. Depending on the availability of Ɵme, the 
Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers at 
the meeƟng.

Members may note that the NoƟce of AGM along with the 
Integrated Annual Report FY 2023-24 will also be available on the 
Company's website at , websites of the www.svendgaard.com
Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and NaƟonal Stock Exchange of 
India Limited at  and  www.bseindia.com www.nseindia.com
respecƟvely, and on the website of NaƟonal SecuriƟes 
Depository Limited (NSDL) at  and also at www.evoƟng.nsdl.com
the website of our RTA at .www.alankit.com

3. Shareholders, whose email address is not registered with 
the Company /RTA or with their respecƟve Depository  
ParƟcipant(s) are requested to register their e-mail address 
in the following manner:

• Shareholders holding shares in physical form can register 
their e-mail id with the RTA by sending an e-mail to RTA at 
rta@alankit.com .

• Shareholders holding shares in demat mode may update the 
e-mail address through their respecƟve Depository 
ParƟcipant(s).

mailto:csmdahiya@gmail.com
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 Please note that registraƟon of e-mail address and mobile 
number is now mandatory while voƟng electronically and 
joining virtual meeƟngs.

4. Members, who are holding shares in physical/electronic 
form and their e-mail addresses are not registered with the 
Company/their respecƟve Depository ParƟcipants, are 
requested to register their e-mail addresses at the earliest 
by sending scanned copy of a duly signed leƩer by the 
Member(s) menƟoning their name, complete address, folio 
number, number of shares held with the Company along 
with self-aƩested scanned copy of the PAN Card and self-
aƩested scanned copy of any one of the following 
documents viz., Aadhar Card, Driving Licence, ElecƟon Card, 
Passport, uƟlity bill or any other Govt. document in support 
of the address proof of the Member as registered with the 
Company for receiving the Annual Report 2023-24 along 
with AGM NoƟce by email to  Members cs@svendgaard.com
holding shares in demat form can update their email 
address with their Depository ParƟcipants.

 The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM 30 minutes 
before and within 15 minutes aŌer the scheduled Ɵme of 
the commencement of the MeeƟng by following the 
procedure menƟoned in the NoƟce. The facility of 
parƟcipaƟon at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 
available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. 
This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders 
holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, InsƟtuƟonal 
Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit CommiƩee, NominaƟon and 
RemuneraƟon CommiƩee and Stakeholders RelaƟonship 
CommiƩee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to aƩend the 
AGM without restricƟon on account of first come first 
served basis.

5. The aƩendance of the Members aƩending the AGM through 
VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under SecƟon 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

6. In line with the MCA Circulars and the relevant SEBI 
Circulars, the NoƟce calling the AGM has been uploaded on 
the website of the Company at . The cs@svendgaard.com
NoƟce can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and NaƟonal Stock Exchange of 
India Limited at  &  www.bseindia.com www.nseindia.com
respecƟvely and the AGM NoƟce shall also be made 
available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the 
Remote e-VoƟng facility) i.e. .www.evoƟng.nsdl.com

7. Any person becoming a Member of the Company aŌer the 
NoƟce of the AGM is sent out and holds shares as on the cut-
off date i.e. Tuesday, September 03, 2024, may obtain the 
user  ID and password by sending a  request  to 
evoƟng@nsdl.com and can exercise their voƟng rights 
through Remote e-voƟng by following the instrucƟons listed 

herein below or by voƟng at the meeƟng.

8. Please note that the updaƟon/registraƟon of email 
addresses on the basis of the above scanned documents will 
be only for the purpose of sending the noƟce of 20th AGM 
and Annual Report for 2023-24 and thereaŌer shall be 
disabled from the records of the RTA immediately aŌer the 
20th AGM. The Member(s) will therefore be required to 
send the email ID updaƟon request along with hard copies 
of the aforesaid documents to RTA for actual registraƟon in 
the records to receive all the future communicaƟons 
including Annual Reports, NoƟces, Circulars, etc. from the 
Company electronically.

9. It is clarified that for permanent registraƟon of e-mail 
address in respect of members holding shares in demat, 
such members are requested to register their e-mail 
address, in respect of demat holdings with the respecƟve 
Depository ParƟcipant (DP) by following the procedure 
prescribed by the Depository ParƟcipant.

10. LisƟng RegulaƟons, has mandated that for making dividend 
payments, companies whose securiƟes are listed on the 
stock exchanges shall use electronic clearing services (local, 
regional or naƟonal), direct credit, real Ɵme gross 
seƩlement, naƟonal electronic funds transfer etc. The 
companies and the registrar and share transfer agents are 
required to seek relevant bank details of shareholders from 
depositories/ investors for making payment of dividends in 
electronic mode. It is also mandatory to print the bank 
details on the physical instrument if the payment is made in 
physical mode. Accordingly, shareholders are requested to 
provide or update (as the case may be) their bank details 
with the respecƟve depository parƟcipant for the shares 
held in dematerialised form and with the registrar and share 
transfer agent in respect of shares held in physical form. For 
further details about registraƟon process, please contact 
your depository/ R&TA of the Company at .rta@alankit.com

11. Members are requested to note that dividends, if not 
encashed for a consecuƟve period of 7 years from the date 
of transfer to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company, are 
liable to be transferred to the Investor EducaƟon and 
ProtecƟon Fund (IEPF). Further, the shares in respect of such 
unclaimed dividends are also liable to be transferred to the 
demat account of the IEPF Authority. In view of this, 
Members/Claimants are requested to claim their dividends 
from the Company within the sƟpulated Ɵmeline. The 
Members whose unclaimed dividends/shares have been 
transferred to IEPF, may claim the same by making an 
applicaƟon to the IEPF Authority, in e-Form/web form No. 
IEPF-5 available on . www.iepf.gov.in

 Further, pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund Authority 
(AccounƟng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, the 
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requisite details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying 
with the Company has been uploaded on Company's 
website .www.svendgaard.com

12. The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 
mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 
(PAN) by every parƟcipant in securiƟes market. Members 
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested 
to submit their PAN to their DPs with whom they are 
maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares 
in physical form can submit their PAN details to the 
Company's RTA. You are also requested to update your Bank 
details by wriƟng to the Company's RTA.

13. To prevent fraudulent transacƟons, Members are advised to 
exercise due diligence and noƟfy the Company of any 
change in address or staying abroad or demise of any 
Member as soon as possible. Members are also advised not 
to leave their demat account(s) dormant for a long period. 
The statement of holdings should be obtained from the 
concerned Depository ParƟcipants and holdings should be 
verified periodically.

14. SEBI NoƟficaƟon No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/24 dated 
June 08, 2018 and further amendment vide NoƟficaƟon No. 
SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/49 dated November 30, 2018 read 
with press release no. 12/2019 dated March 27,2019, 
requests for effecƟng transfer of securiƟes (except in case of 
transmission or transposiƟon of securiƟes) shall not be 
processed from April 01, 2019 unless the securiƟes are held 
in dematerialized form with the depositories. Therefore, 
shareholders are requested to take acƟon to dematerialize 
the equity shares of the Company.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their 
shareholding maintained under SecƟon 170 of the Act, the 
Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are 
interested under SecƟon 189 of the Act and any other documents 
referred to in the accompanying NoƟce and Explanatory 
Statements, shall be made available for inspecƟon in accordance 
with the applicable statutory requirements based on the 
requests received by the Company at   latest cs@svendgaard.com
by 05th September, 2024 (upto 5.00 p.m.).

To prevent fraudulent transacƟons, shareholders are advised to 
exercise due diligence and noƟfy the Company of any change in 
address or demise of any member as soon as possible. Members 
are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for 
long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the 
concerned Depository ParƟcipant and holdings should be 
verified.

As per the provisions of SecƟon 72 of the Act, the facility for 
making nominaƟon is available to the Members in respect of the 
shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their 
nominaƟon, are requested to register the same by submiƫng 
Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires to opt-out or cancel the 

earlier nominaƟon and record a fresh nominaƟon, the Member 
may submit the same in form ISR-3 or form SH-14, as the case may 
be. The said forms can be downloaded from the Company's  
www.svendgaard.com/investor_query.html Members are 
requested to submit the said form to their respecƟve DPs in case 
the shares are held in electronic form, and to the RTA in case the 
shares are held in physical form.

15. Members who are holding physical shares in idenƟcal order 
of names in more than one folio are requested to send to the 
Company's Share Transfer Agent the details of such folios 
together with the share cerƟficates for consolidaƟng their 
holding in one folio.

16. Non-Resident Indian members are requested to inform RTA 
/ respecƟve DPs, immediately of:

i. Change in their residenƟal status on return to India for 
permanent seƩlement.

ii. ParƟculars of their bank account maintained in India with 
complete name, branch, account type, account number and 
address of the bank with pin code number, if not furnished 
earlier.

 In terms of RegulaƟon 40(1) of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, as 
amended, securiƟes of listed companies can be transferred 
only in dematerialised form with effect from April 1, 2019. 
Members may please note that SEBI, vide its Circular No. 
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_ RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 
January 25, 2022, has mandated Listed Companies to issue 
securiƟes in demat form only while processing service 
requests viz. Issue of duplicate securiƟes cerƟficate; claim 
from Unclaimed Suspense Account; Renewal/Exchange of 
securiƟes cerƟficate; Endorsement; Sub-division/Spliƫng 
of securiƟes cerƟficate; ConsolidaƟon of securiƟes 
cerƟficates/folios; Transmission and TransposiƟon. 
Accordingly, Members are requested to make service 
requests by submiƫng a duly filled and signed Form ISR–4, 
the format of which is available on the Company's website 
under the weblink at 

  and on the www.svendgaard.com/investor_query.html
website of the Company's RTA at-

 .www.alankit.com/registrar-and-share-transfer-agent

 It may be noted that any service request can be processed 
only aŌer the folio is KYC compliant. SEBI, vide its 
noƟficaƟon dated January 24, 2022, has mandated that all 
requests for transmission and transposiƟon shall be 
processed only in dematerialised form. In view of the same 
and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and 
avail various benefits of dematerialisaƟon, Members are 
advised to dematerialise the shares held by them in physical 
form. Members can contact the Company or RTA, for 
assistance in this regard.

 SEBI vide Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/ 
CIR/2023/131 dated July 31, 2023, and SEBI/HO/OIAE/ 
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OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated August 04, 2023,read 
with Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/ OIAE/OIAE_ IAD-
1/P/CIR/2023/145 dated July 31, 2023 (updated as on 
August11, 2023), has established a common Online Dispute 
ResoluƟon Portal (“ODR Portal”) for resoluƟon of disputes 
arising in the Indian SecuriƟes Market.

 Pursuant to above-menƟoned circulars, post exhausƟng the 
opƟon to resolve their grievances with the RTA/ Company 
directly and through exisƟng SCORES plaƞorm, the investors 
can iniƟate dispute resoluƟon through the ODR Portal 
(hƩps://smartodr.in/login) and the same can also be 
accessed through the Company's website

   www.svendgaard.com/investor_query.html

 Norms for furnishing of PAN, KYC, Bank details and 
NominaƟon: 

 To miƟgate unintended challenges on account of freezing of 
folio, SEBI vide circular dated November 17, 2023 has done 
away with the provision regarding freezing of folios not 
having PAN, KYC and nominaƟon details. Further, SEBI, vide 
its circular dated November 3, 2021 (subsequently 
amended by circulars dated December 14, 2021, March 16, 
2023 and May 7, 2024) has mandated that with effect from 
April 1, 2024, dividend to security holders holding securiƟes 
in physical form, shall be paid only through electronic mode. 
Such payment shall be made aŌer furnishing the PAN, 
contact details including mobile no., bank account details 
and specimen signature.

 Further, relevant FAQs published by SEBI on its website can 
be viewed at the following link :

www.sebi.gov.in/sebi_data/faqfiles/jan2024/1704433843
359.pdf   

The securiƟes in the frozen folios shall be eligible: 

Ÿ To lodge any grievance or avail of any service, only aŌer 
furnishing the complete documents / details as menƟoned 
above;

Ÿ To receive any payment including dividend, interest or 
redempƟon amount (which would be only through electronic 
mode) only aŌer they comply with the above stated 
requirements. The forms for updaƟon of PAN, KYC, bank 
details and NominaƟon viz., Forms ISR-1, ISR-2, ISR-3, SH-13 
and the said SEBI circular are available on our website 
www.svendgaard.com.  

Ÿ In view of the above, we urge Members holding shares in 
physical form to submit the required forms along with the 
supporƟng documents at the earliest. The Company is in the 
process of dispatching a leƩer to the Members holding shares 
in physical form in relaƟon to the above referred SEBI Circular. 
Members who hold shares in dematerialised form and wish 
to update their PAN, KYC Bank details and NominaƟon, are 

requested to contact their respecƟve DPs. Further, 
Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to 
ensure that their PAN is linked to Aadhaar to avoid freezing of 
folios. Such frozen folios shall be referred by RTA/Company to 
the administering authority under the Benami TransacƟons 
(ProhibiƟons) Act, 1988 and/or PrevenƟon of Money 
Laundering Act, 2002, aŌer December 31, 2025.

17. E-VoƟng facility:
 The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. 

Mohit Dahiya , (CP No. [23052]) Partner of M/s Dahiya & 
Associates, New Delhi as ScruƟnizer to scruƟnize the e-
voƟng during the AGM and remote e-voƟng process in a fair 
and transparent manner.

 The results of the e-VoƟng shall be declared to the Stock 
Exchanges within the Ɵmeframe prescribed under the Act 
and LisƟng RegulaƟons. The results along with the 
ScruƟniser's Report, shall also be placed on the website of 
the Company at .www.svendgaard.com

18. The results along with ScruƟnizer's Report, shall be 
displayed at the Registered Office and Corporate office of 
the Company and placed on the Company's website at 
www.svendgaard.com and the website of  NSDL 
immediately aŌer the result is declared. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING 
AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER:-
Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 108 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and RegulaƟon 44 of 
SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons & Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons 
2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars, the Company is providing 
facility of remote e-VoƟng to its Members in respect of the 
business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the 
Company has entered into an agreement with NSDL for 
facilitaƟng voƟng through electronic means, as the authorized 
agency. The facility of casƟng votes by a member using remote e-
VoƟng system as well as venue voƟng on the date of the AGM will 
be provided by NSDL.

The remote e-voƟng period begins on September 07th , 2024 at 
09:00 A.M. and ends on September 09th , 2024 at 05:00 P.M. The 
remote e-voƟng module shall be disabled by NSDL for voƟng 
thereaŌer. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of 
Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) 
i.e. Tuesday, September 03rd, 2024 may cast their vote 
electronically. The voƟng right of shareholders shall be in 
proporƟon to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date, being i.e. Tuesday, September 
03rd, 2024.

http://www.svendgaard.com/investor_query.html
https://www.svendgaard.com
https://www.svendgaard.com
https://www.svendgaard.com


JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited164

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-VoƟng system?
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-VoƟng system consists of “Two Steps” which are menƟoned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-VoƟng system
A) Login method for e-VoƟng and joining virtual meeƟng for Individual shareholders holding securiƟes in demat mode
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-VoƟng facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding 
securiƟes in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository ParƟcipants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-VoƟng facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securiƟes in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders  Login Method

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL.

1. ExisƟng IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz.  hƩps://eservices.nsdl.com
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 'IDeAS' secƟon , this will 
prompt you to enter your exisƟng User ID and Password. AŌer successful authenƟcaƟon, you 
will be able to see e-VoƟng services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-VoƟng” 
under e-VoƟng services and you will be able to see e-VoƟng page. Click on company name or e-
VoƟng service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-VoƟng website of NSDL for 
casƟng your vote during the remote e-VoƟng period or joining virtual meeƟng & voƟng during 
the meeƟng.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, opƟon to register is available at 
hƩps://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
hƩps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-VoƟng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
hƩps://www.evoƟng.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 
page of e-VoƟng system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
'Shareholder/Member' secƟon. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 
your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a VerificaƟon 
Code as shown on the screen. AŌer successful authenƟcaƟon, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-VoƟng page. Click on company name or e-VoƟng 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-VoƟng website of NSDL for casƟng 
your vote during the remote e-VoƟng period or joining virtual meeƟng & voƟng during the 
meeƟng.

4.   Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by 
scanning the QR code menƟoned below for seamless voƟng experience.
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Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their depository 
participants

    You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 
Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, 
you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password opƟon 
available at abovemenƟoned website.
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securiƟes in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. 
NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 

sending a request at   or call at 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 evoƟng@nsdl.com
7000

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 

sending a request at  or contact at toll free no. 1800 helpdesk.evoƟng@cdslindia.com
22 55 33

B)  Login Method for e-VoƟng and joining virtual meeƟng for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securiƟes in 
demat mode and shareholders holding securiƟes in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-VoƟng website? 
Visit the e-VoƟng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:  either on a Personal hƩps://www.evoƟng.nsdl.com/
Computer or on a mobile. 
1. Once the home page of e-VoƟng system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 'Shareholder/Member' 

secƟon.
2. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a VerificaƟon Code as shown on the screen.
 AlternaƟvely, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at  with your exisƟng hƩps://eservices.nsdl.com/

IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices aŌer using your log-in credenƟals, click on e-VoƟng and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. 
Cast your vote electronically.

3. Your User ID details are given below :

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

1.  Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user 
id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your 
existing my easi username & password.

2.   After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for 
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the 
e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links 
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers' website directly.

3.  If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on 
registration option.

4.  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on  home page. The www.cdslindia.com
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Provider

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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Ÿ Password details for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders are given below: 

Ÿ If you are already registered for e-VoƟng, then you can user 
your exisƟng password to login and cast your vote.

Ÿ If you are using NSDL e-VoƟng system for the first Ɵme, you 
will need to retrieve the 'iniƟal password' which was 
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'iniƟal 
password', you need to enter the 'iniƟal password' and the 
system will force you to change your password.

Ÿ How to retrieve your 'iniƟal password'?

Ÿ If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with 
the company, your 'iniƟal password' is communicated to you 
on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from 
your mailbox. Open the email and open the aƩachment i.e. a 
.pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file 
is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client 
ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
physical form. The .pdf file contains your 'User ID' and your 
'iniƟal password'. 

Ÿ If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps 
menƟoned below in process for those shareholders whose 
email ids are not registered. 

4. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ IniƟal 
password” or have forgoƩen your password:

Ÿ Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding 
shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) opƟon 
available on .www.evoƟng.nsdl.com

Ÿ Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in 
physical mode) opƟon available on .www.evoƟng.nsdl.com

Ÿ If you are sƟll unable to get the password by aforesaid two 
opƟons, you can send a request at  evoƟng@nsdl.com
menƟoning your demat account number/folio number, your 
PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

Ÿ Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based 

login for casƟng the votes on the e-VoƟng system of NSDL.

Ÿ AŌer entering your password, Ɵck on Agree to “Terms and 
CondiƟons” by selecƟng on the check box.

Ÿ Now, you will have to click on “Login” buƩon.

Ÿ AŌer you click on the “Login” buƩon, Home page of e-VoƟng 
will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join 
General MeeƟng on NSDL e-VoƟng system.
How to cast your vote electronically and join General   
MeeƟng on NSDL e-VoƟng system?

1. AŌer successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the 
companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and 
whose voƟng cycle and General MeeƟng is in acƟve status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your 
vote during the remote e-VoƟng period and casƟng your 
vote during the General MeeƟng. For joining virtual 
meeƟng, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under 
“Join MeeƟng”.

3. Now you are ready for e-VoƟng as the VoƟng page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecƟng appropriate opƟons i.e. assent 
or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmaƟon, the message “Vote cast successfully” 
will be displayed. 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by 
clicking on the print opƟon on the confirmaƟon page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resoluƟon, you will not 
be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders
1. InsƟtuƟonal shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, 

NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 
Format) of the relevant Board ResoluƟon/ Authority leƩer 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL 
or CDSL) or Physical

 Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then 
your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user 
ID is 12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the 
company
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user 
ID is 101456001***

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
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etc. with aƩested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the ScruƟnizer 
by e-mail to  with a copy marked to csmdahiya@gmail.com
evoƟng@nsdl.com. InsƟtuƟonal shareholders (i.e. other 
than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 
ResoluƟon / Power of AƩorney / Authority LeƩer etc. by 
clicking on "Upload Board ResoluƟon / Authority LeƩer" 
displayed under "e-VoƟng" tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with 
any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidenƟal. Login to the e-voƟng website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful aƩempts to key in the 
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
U s e r  R e s e t  P a s s w o r d ? ”  o p Ɵ o n  a v a i l a b l e  o n 
www.evoƟng.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
QuesƟons (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voƟng user 
manual for Shareholders available at the download secƟon 
of  or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 and www.evoƟng.nsdl.com
022 - 2499 7000 or send a request  at  evoƟng@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are 
not registered with the depositories for procuring 
user id and password and registraƟon of e mail ids 
for e-voƟng for the resoluƟons set out in this noƟce:
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio 

No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
cerƟficate (front and back), PAN (self aƩested scanned copy 
of PAN card), AADHAR (self aƩested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) by email to .cs@svendgaard.com

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-
CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, 
client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self aƩested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
a Ʃ e s t e d  s c a n n e d  c o p y  o f  A a d h a r  C a r d )  t o 
cs@svendgaard.com. If you are an Individual shareholders 
holding securiƟes in demat mode, you are requested to 
refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login 
method for e-VoƟng and joining virtual meeƟng for 
Individual shareholders holding securiƟes in demat mode.

3. AlternaƟvely shareholder/members may send a request to 
evoƟng@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password for e-
voƟng by providing above menƟoned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-VoƟng 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securiƟes in demat mode are allowed 
to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository ParƟcipants. Shareholders are 

required to update their mobile number and email ID 
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-VoƟng 
facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON 
THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER:-
1. The procedure for e-VoƟng on the day of the EGM/AGM is 

same as the instrucƟons menƟoned above for remote e-
voƟng.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in 
the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the ResoluƟons through remote e-
VoƟng and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 
eligible to vote through e-VoƟng system in the EGM/AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-VoƟng will be 
eligible to aƩend the EGM/AGM. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any 
grievances connected with the facility for e-VoƟng on the 
day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person menƟoned 
for Remote e-voƟng.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE 
EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:
1. Member will be provided with a facility to aƩend the 
EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-VoƟng 
system. Members may access by following the steps menƟoned 
above for Access to NSDL e-VoƟng system. AŌer successful login, 
you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeƟng” 
menu against company name. You are requested to click on 
VC/OAVM link placed under Join MeeƟng menu. The link for 
VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where 
the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the 
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-VoƟng 
or have forgoƩen the User ID and Password may retrieve the 
same by following the remote e-VoƟng instrucƟons menƟoned in 
the noƟce to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the MeeƟng through 
Laptops for beƩer experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use 
Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during 
the meeƟng.

4. Please note that ParƟcipants ConnecƟng from Mobile 
Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecƟng via Mobile 
Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to 
FluctuaƟon in their respecƟve network. It is therefore 
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN ConnecƟon to 
miƟgate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have 

mailto:csmdahiya@gmail.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com
mailto:cs@svendgaard.com
mailto:cs@svendgaard.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
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quesƟons may send their quesƟons in advance menƟoning 
their name demat account number/folio number, email id, 
mobile number at  The same will be cs@svendgaard.com. 
replied by the company suitably.

Explanatory Statement-Pursuant to SecƟon 102 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and 
Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015
The following Explanatory Statement sets out material 
facts relaƟng to the Ordinary Business Item no. 3, Special 
Business item no. 4 and 5 of the accompanying NoƟce:

ITEM NO.02
Upon the recommendaƟon of the Audit CommiƩee, the Board of 
Directors of the Company at its their meeƟng held on 15th June 
2024 had appointed M/s. Lodha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants 
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual 
vacancy caused by the resignaƟon of M/s  TaƩvam & Co  
Chartered Accountants and they shall hold the office Ɵll the 
conclusion of the ensuing annual general meeƟng. 

AŌer evaluaƟng and considering various factors such as industry 
experience, competency of the audit team, efficiency in conduct 
of audit, independence, etc., the Board of Directors of the 
Company (‘Board’) has, based on the recommendaƟon of the 
Audit CommiƩee, proposed the appointment of M/s. Lodha & Co 

LLP, Chartered Accountants, for the first consecuƟve term of five 
years from the conclusion of 20th AGM Ɵll the conclusion of 25th  
AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2029, at a 
remuneraƟon as may be mutually agreed between the Board and 
the Statutory Auditors.

Accordingly, shareholders’ approval by way of ordinary 
resoluƟon is sought.

M/s. Lodha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm RegistraƟon 
No. 318086E), have conveyed their consent for being  appointed 
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company along with a 
confirmaƟon that, their appointment, if made by the members, 
would be within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 
2013 and shall saƟsfy the criteria as  provided under secƟon 141 
of the Companies Act, 2013.

 The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the passing 
of the resoluƟon in Item No. 02 of the noƟce as an ordinary 
resoluƟon.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Persons of the Company 
(including their relaƟves), except to the extent of  their 
shareholding in the Company are concerned or interested in the 
said resoluƟon.

Details required to be provided as per RegulaƟon 36(5) of SEBI 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 in relaƟon to the appointment of the Statutory Auditors is 
provided below:

Proposed Fee payable to auditor 11,00,000

Material change in the fee payable to such auditor Considering the enhanced size of the operaƟons of the Company, scope 
of services and experience, profile and calibre of the proposed Auditors, 
the fees is reasonable and is commensurate with the experience and 
scope of work.

RaƟonale for such change Lodha & Co LLP, a firm of Chartered Accountants having its Registered 
Office at 19, Esplanade Mansion, 14, Government Place East, Kolkata 
700069, West Bengal was founded in 1941. It has branches in Mumbai, 
Delhi, Hyderabad, Chennai and Jaipur. The firm has 15 Partners and a 
dedicated team of more than 80 Professionals. Staff strength of the firm, 
other than Professional Staff, is around 250 personnel. 
The firm is currently providing Assurance, TaxaƟon, AccounƟng and 
Advisory Services. It has experience of working with several 
MulƟnaƟonal Companies, listed enƟƟes and companies with MulƟ- 
products and Services. It is empanelled with Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India and is currently eligible to carryout Statutory Audit of 
Maharatna and large Public Sector Banks. Further, the firm is registered 
with Public Company AccounƟng Oversight Board (PCAOB) and therefore 
eligible to conduct the audit of Indian subsidiaries/ associates of 
companies listed in USA. The firm having more than 80 years of 
professional experience, has presence in major Business Groups, Banks 
and various non-Government and Government organisaƟons in India.

mailto:cs@svendgaard.com
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ITEM NO. 3
ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE
Details required under RegulaƟon 30 of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 read with 
SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD1/P/CIR/2023/123 dated July 13, 2023.
Details of Directors seeking Re-appointment at the 20th Annual General MeeƟng 

ParƟculars Vinay MiƩal

Director Identification Number 08232559

Designation/category of the Director Non-Executive (Non-Independent) Director

Age 71

Date of the first appointment on the Board 27-05-2022

Qualification Bachelors in English Literature from St. Stephen's College, Delhi 
University.
two years of Law degree from Faculty of Law, Delhi University

Profile, Experience and Expertise in specific functional areas Mr. Vinay Mittal did Bachelors in English Literature from St. 
Stephen's College, Delhi University. In 1973, he enrolled into 
Faculty of Law, Delhi University for two years of Law degree.
He then joined Indian Railways Traffic Service in 1975 and where 
he remains in the service for good 37 years. Mr. Mittal retired as 
chairman of Railway Board in 2013 and joined Union Public 
Service Commission as member till 2018.

Shareholding in the Company including shareholding as a beneficial 
owner

Nil

Relationship with the other Directors None

Terms & conditions of the reappointment To retire by rotation

Directorships held in other companies including equity listed 
companies and excluding foreign companies as on the date of this 
Notice.

Listed Companies
Nil
Other Companies

Memberships / Chairmanships of committees of other companies
(excluding foreign companies) as on date of this Notice

Nil

Number of meetings of the Board attended during the financial year 7

Details of remuneration paid in FY23-24 Nil

Resignation from Listed Entities in past three years Nil

For other details such as the number of meeƟngs of the Board aƩended during FY 2023-24, remuneraƟon last drawn in FY 2023-24 by Mr. 
Vinay MiƩal please refer to the corporate governance report which is a part of this Integrated Annual Report. 



JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited170

ITEM NO. 4
The Members of the Company at its 18th Annual General MeeƟng 
held on 30th September, 2022 had appointed M/s. TaƩvam & Co, 
Chartered Accountants to hold office from the conclusion of 18th 
AGM Ɵll the conclusion of 23rd Annual General MeeƟng of the 
Company.
M/s. TaƩvam & Co, Chartered Accountants, vide their leƩer dated 
May 18, 2024 have resigned from the posiƟon of Statutory Auditor 
of the Company, resulƟng into a casual vacancy in the office of 
Statutory Auditor of the Company as envisaged by secƟon 139(8) 
of the Companies Act, 2013.
The Audit CommiƩee in its meeƟng dated 15th June 2024 
considered various parameters like capability of M/s. Lodha & Co 
LLP, Chartered Accountants to serve a diverse and complex 
business landscape as that of the Company, audit experience in 
the Company's operaƟng segments, market standing of the firm, 
clientele served, technical knowledge etc. The Audit CommiƩee 
found M/s. Lodha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants to be best 
suited to handle the scale, diversity and complexity associated 
with the audit of the financial statements of the Company. 
Therefore, considering the experience and experƟse of M/s. 
Lodha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Audit CommiƩee of 
the Company recommended the proposal to appoint them as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy.
Upon the recommendaƟon of the Audit CommiƩee, the Board of 
Directors of the Company at its their meeƟng held on  15th June 
2024 had appointed M/s. Lodha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants 
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy 
caused by the resignaƟon of M/s  TaƩvam & Co  Chartered 
Accountants.

In this connecƟon this is to inform the members that in 
accordance with the provisions of SecƟon 139 (8) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, any casual vacancy in the office of an 
auditor shall be filled by the Board of Directors within thirty days, 
but if such casual vacancy is as a result of the resignaƟon of an 
auditor, such appointment shall also be approved by the company 
at a general meeƟng convened within three months of the 
recommendaƟon of the Board and he shall hold the office Ɵll the 
conclusion of the next annual general meeƟng. 
Accordingly, shareholders' approval by way of ordinary resoluƟon 
is sought.
M/s. Lodha & Co LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm RegistraƟon 
No. 318086E), have conveyed their consent for being appointed as 
the Statutory Auditors of the Company along with a confirmaƟon 
that, their appointment, if made by the members, would be within 
the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and shall 
saƟsfy the criteria as provided under secƟon 141 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.
The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the passing 
of the resoluƟon in Item No. 04 of the noƟce as an ordinary 
resoluƟon.
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Persons of the Company 
(including their relaƟves), except to the extent of their 
shareholding in the Company is concerned or interested in the 
said resoluƟon.

Details required to be provided as per RegulaƟon 36(5) of SEBI 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015 in relaƟon to the appointment of the Statutory Auditors is 
provided below:

Proposed Fee payable to auditor 11,00,000

Material change in the fee payable to such 
auditor

Considering the enhanced size of the operaƟons of the Company, scope of services and 
experience, profile and calibre of the proposed Auditors, the fees is reasonable and is 
commensurate with the experience and scope of work.

RaƟonale for such change Lodha & Co LLP, a firm of Chartered Accountants having its Registered Office at 19, 
Esplanade Mansion, 14, Government Place East, Kolkata 700069, West Bengal was 
founded in 1941. It has branches in Mumbai, Delhi, Hyderabad, Chennai and Jaipur. The 
firm has 15 Partners and a dedicated team of more than 80 Professionals. Staff strength 
of the firm, other than Professional Staff, is around 250 personnel. 

The firm is currently providing Assurance, TaxaƟon, AccounƟng and Advisory Services. It 
has experience of working with several MulƟnaƟonal Companies, listed enƟƟes and 
companies with MulƟ- products and Services. It is empanelled with Comptroller and 
Auditor General of India and is currently eligible to carryout Statutory Audit of 
Maharatna and large Public Sector Banks. Further, the firm is registered with Public 
Company AccounƟng Oversight Board (PCAOB) and therefore eligible to conduct the 
audit of Indian subsidiaries/ associates of companies listed in USA. The firm having more 
than 80 years of professional experience, has presence in major Business Groups, Banks 
and various non-Government and Government organisaƟons in India.
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ITEM NO. 5
In accordance with the NaƟonal Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) 
order dated 10th August 2023, regarding the Composite scheme 
of Arrangement and AmalgamaƟon among JHS Svendgaard 
Laboratories Limited (Demerged/Transferee Company), JHS 
Svendgaard Retail Ventures Private Limited (ResulƟng Company), 
and JHS Svendgaard Brands Limited (Transferor Company), the 
scheme has become effecƟve. As per the scheme, all the business 
acƟviƟes, assets, and liabiliƟes of JHS Svendgaard Brands Limited 
have been transferred to JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited.
As a result of this merger, it is imperaƟve to amend the 
Memorandum of AssociaƟon (MoA) of the Transferee Company 
to include the objects of the transferor company to ensure a 
seamless transiƟon and to carry out the combined business 
acƟviƟes efficiently. By doing so, the Company aims to 
consolidate operaƟons, opƟmize resources, and achieve greater 
efficiency and profitability. 
The addiƟon of these proposed new object clauses will align the 
Memorandum of AssociaƟon with the expanded business scope 
resulƟng from the merger, ensuring the company can effecƟvely 
pursue its objecƟves and capitalize on synergies generated from 
the consolidaƟon.
The Board of Directors of JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited, at 
its meeƟng held 03rd August, 2024 has proposed to amend the 
object clause in the MoA and recommends approval by the 
shareholders. The resoluƟon for amending the MoA will be 
presented as a Special ResoluƟon at the upcoming general 
meeƟng of shareholders.
In terms of secƟon 4 and 13 of the Act, the consent of the 
Members by way of Special ResoluƟon is required for change in 
objects clause of the Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the 
Company. The Board recommends for approval by the members 
the resoluƟon as set out at Item No. 5 of the NoƟce as a Special 
resoluƟon.
None of the Directors, Key Managerial personnel of the Company 
and their relaƟves are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resoluƟons, as set out at Item No. 
5 of the NoƟce. 
The Memorandum of AssociaƟon of the Company is available for 
inspecƟon in physical or in electronic form during specified 
business hours i.e. between 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. at the 
Registered office of the company and copies thereof shall also be 
made available for inspecƟon in physical or electronic form also 
at the MeeƟng.

ITEM NO. 6
Members of the Company are hereby informed that pursuant to 
the provisions of SecƟon 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”), a company may advance any loan including any loan 
represented by a book debt, or give any guarantee or provide any 
security in connecƟon with any loan taken by any person in whom 
any of the director of the Company is interested, subject to the 
condiƟon that—
(a) a special resoluƟon is passed by the Company in general 

meeƟng: and
(b) the loans are uƟlised by the borrowing company for its 

principal business acƟviƟes.
The Borrowing Company/ Body Corporates  covered under the 
category of 'a person in whom any of the director of the Company 
is interested' as specified in the explanaƟon to sub-secƟon-2 of 
the SecƟon 185 of the Act and hence consent of the members is 
being sought by way of a special resoluƟon pursuant to SecƟon 
185 of the Act (as amended by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 
2017) for making of Loan(s) to, and/or giving of guarantee(s), 
and/or providing of security(ies) in connecƟon with any Loan to 
be taken by JHS Svendgaard Retail Ventures Limited, up to an 
aggregate amount not exceeding Rs 5 Crore (Rupees Five  Crore 
Only)  in one or more tranches,  provided that such 
guarantee/security given by the Company shall be uƟlized by 
such enƟty for its principal business acƟviƟes of Airport Store 
operaƟon and managing the business, on the terms menƟoned in 
the resoluƟon set out at Item No. 6 and necessary delegaƟon of 
authority to the Board for this purpose.
The members may note that Board of Directors would carefully 
evaluate the proposals and provide such loan, guarantee or 
security through deployment of funds out of internal 
resources/accruals and/or any other appropriate sources, from 
Ɵme to Ɵme, and the proposed loan shall be at such rate of 
interest as agreed by the parƟes in the best interest of the 
Company and shall be used by the borrowing company for its 
principal business acƟviƟes only.
The Board of Directors recommend the resoluƟon set forth in 
Item no. 6 of the noƟce for your approval as a Special ResoluƟon.
Except Mr. Nikhil Nanda, Managing Director, None of the 
Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relaƟves are in any 
way concerned with or interested, financially or otherwise in the 
said resoluƟon except to the extent of their shareholding in the 
Company, if any.

ITEM NO. 7
Members of the Company are hereby informed that pursuant to 
the provisions of SecƟon 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”), a company may advance any loan including any loan 
represented by a book debt, or give any guarantee or provide any 
security in connecƟon with any loan taken by any person in whom 
any of the director of the Company is interested, subject to the 
condiƟon that—
(c) a special resoluƟon is passed by the Company in general 

meeƟng: and
(d) the loans are uƟlised by the borrowing company for its 

principal business acƟviƟes.
The Borrowing Company/ Body Corporates  covered under the 
category of 'a person in whom any of the director of the Company 
is interested' as specified in the explanaƟon to sub-secƟon-2 of 
the SecƟon 185 of the Act and hence consent of the members is 
being sought by way of a special resoluƟon pursuant to SecƟon 
185 of the Act (as amended by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 
2017) for making for making advance to  Magna Waves Buildtech 
Private Limited , being enƟty covered under the category of 'a 
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person in whom any of the director of the Company is interested' 
as specified in the explanaƟon to clause (b) of Sub-secƟon 2 of 
SecƟon 185 of the Act, from Ɵme to Ɵme, up to an aggregate 
amount not exceeding Rs 13.20 Crore (Rupees Thirteen Crores 
Twenty Lacs) in one or more tranches, provided that such 
advance given by the Company shall be uƟlized by such enƟty for   
securing Pre-empƟve rights for the purpose of transfer of lease 
rights in Srinagar and Jammu, UT of J&K, which have been alloƩed 
to Magna Waves Buildtech Pvt Limited by Govt of J&K for the 
purpose of seƫng up Shopping Mall, Hotel and Corporate Park/ 
Office Complex, subject to approval of shareholders.
The members may note that Board of Directors would carefully 
evaluate the proposals and provide such loan, guarantee or 
security through deployment of funds out of internal 
resources/accruals and/or any other appropriate sources, from 
Ɵme to Ɵme, and the proposed loan shall be at such rate of 
interest as agreed by the parƟes in the best interest of the 
Company and shall be used by the borrowing company for its 
principal business acƟviƟes only.
The Board of Directors recommend the resoluƟon set forth in 
Item no. 7 of the noƟce for your approval as a Special ResoluƟon.
Except Mr. Nikhil Nanda, Managing Director, None of the 
Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relaƟves are in any 
way concerned with or interested, financially or otherwise in the 
said resoluƟon except to the extent of their shareholding in the 
Company, if any.

ITEM NO.8
In accordance with the provisions of RegulaƟon 23 of the SEBI 
LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirement (LODR) read with 
the Company's Policy on Materiality of Related Party 
TransacƟons and dealing with Related Party TransacƟons, the 
transacƟons involving transfer of resources, services or 
obligaƟons between the Company or any of its subsidiaries on 
one hand and a related party of the Company or any of its 
subsidiaries on the other hand, which either individually or taken 
together with previous transacƟon(s) during a financial year, 

exceed Rs. 1,000 crores or 10% of the annual consolidated 
turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial 
statements, whichever is lower, requires approval of the 
Members of the Company.
The Company, in order to further its business interests and the 
business interest of the Group, enters into various transacƟons 
with Magna Waves Buildtech Private Limited (MWBPL). The 
esƟmated value of related party transacƟons between the 
Company and MWBPL, during the financial year 2024-25 shall 
exceeding the materiality threshold as stated above.
Further, the Audit CommiƩee and the Board at its meeƟng held 
on 12 August, 2024, reviewed, and approved the material related 
party contracts / arrangements / transacƟons, for the financial 
years 2024-25, as set out in ResoluƟon nos. 8, subject to approval 
of the Members, while noƟng that such transacƟon shall be on 
arms' length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the 
Company.
Accordingly, as per the SEBI LODR, approval of the Members is 
being sought for contracts /arrangements / transacƟons 
proposed to be undertaken by the Company with Magna Waves 
Buildtech Private Limited (MWBPL) during financial years 2024-
25.
As per the SEBI LODR, all related parƟes of the Company, whether 
or not a party to the proposed transacƟon(s), shall abstain from 
voƟng on the said resoluƟons.
The Board recommends passing of the Ordinary ResoluƟons as 
set out in Item nos. 8 of this NoƟce, for approval by the Members 
of the Company.
Except Mr. Nikhil Nanda, Managing Director, none of the 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 
respecƟve relaƟves, are in any way concerned or interested 
financially or otherwise, in the said resoluƟons.
informaƟon required to be disclosed as part of the Explanatory 
Statement pursuant to the SEBI Master Circular no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023 and 
the proposed material modificaƟon(s) thereto, are as follows:

Sr. 
No.

DescripƟon Details

1 Summary of informaƟon provided by the Management to the Audit CommiƩee for approval of the proposed material 
modificaƟon to the RPTs

a Name of the Related Party (s) and its 
relaƟonship with the Company or its 
subsidiary, including nature of its concern or 
interest (financial or otherwise)

Magna Waves Buildtech Private Limited is an unlisted promoter group company.
Magna Waves Buildtech Private Limited  is a real estate Company and main 
business of Town planners, Infrastructure developers, Estate developers and 
Engineers land developers, Land Scapers, estate agents, immovable property 
dealers etc many more. 

b Type, material terms and parƟculars of the 
proposed transacƟon

The transacƟons involve Rendering of services, Inter-Corporate Loan, Interest 
Expense, Common Cost AllocaƟon of Corporate Services and other transacƟons 
for business purposes during the financial years 2024-25. provided that such 
transacƟon(s) / contract(s) / arrangement(s) / agreement(s) is/are carried out at 
an arm's length pricing basis and in the ordinary course of business
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Sr. 
No.

DescripƟon Details

c Percentage of the annual consolidated 
turnover, for the immediately preceding 
financial year, that is represented by the value 
of the proposed RPTs.

19%

d Tenure of the proposed transacƟon 2024-25

e Value of proposed transacƟon Rs. 13.20 Cr.

2 JusƟficaƟon for the proposed RPTs Expansion of its business in real estate area.

3 Details of proposed RPTs relaƟng to any loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments made or given by the 
Company or its subsidiary.

i Details of the source of funds in connecƟon 
with the proposed transacƟon.

Own share capital/ Internal accruals and liquidity of the Company.

ii Where any financial indebtedness is incurred 
to make or give loans, intercorporate 
deposits, advances or investments: -
- Nature of indebtedness
 - Cost of funds and 
- Tenure

NA

iii Applicable terms, including covenants, 
tenure, interest rate and repayment schedule, 
whether secured or unsecured; if secured, the 
nature of security.

iv The purpose for which the funds will be 
uƟlized by the ulƟmate beneficiary of such 
funds pursuant to the RPT 

Principle business only

4 A copy of the valuaƟon or other external party 
report, if any such report has been relied upon

The pricing mechanism followed for proposed value of the Material RPTs shall be 
based on Arm's Length Principle applicable as per JurisdicƟonal guidelines. 
ValuaƟon report and/or other external report(s), if applicable, would be 
obtained and relied upon.

5 Name of the Director or Key Managerial 
Personnel ('KMP') who is related, if any and 
the nature of their relaƟonship

Mr. Nikhil Nanda, Managing Director of the company 

6 Any other informaƟon that may be relevant All relevant details and informaƟon have been menƟoned in the Explanatory 
Statement seƫng out material facts, pursuant to SecƟon 102(1) of the Act, 
forming part of this NoƟce.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors  
JHS Svendgaard Laboratories Limited

Sd/-
Komal Jha
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Date: 12.08.2024
Place: New Delhi
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